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ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

To be held at 6.00 pm on

Monday 23 September 2019

Council Chambers, Level 10,
Council Administration Building, 41 Burelli Street, Wollongong

I Order of Business I Members

1 Opening Meeting Lord Mayor —

2  Acknowledgement of Traditional Owners Councillor Gordon Bradbery AM (Chair)

3 Civic Prayer Deputy Lord Mayor —

4  Apologies and Applications for Leave of Councillor David Brown
Absence by Councillors Councillor Ann Martin

5  Confirmation of Minutes of Ordinary Councillor Cameron Walters
Council Meeting Councillor Cath Blakey

6  Confirmation of Minutes of Extraordinary Councillor Dom Figliomeni
Council meeting Councillor Janice Kershaw

7  Conflicts of Interest Councillor Jenelle Rimmer

8 Petitions and Presentations Councillor John Dorahy

9  Confirmation of Minutes of Council Councillor Leigh Colacino
Committee Meeting Councillor Mithra Cox

10 Public Access Forum Councillor Tania Brown

11 Call of the Agenda Councillor Vicky King

12 Lord Mayoral Minute

13 Urgent Items

14 Reports to Council

15 Reports of Committees

16 ltems Laid on the Table

17 Notices of Motion(s)/Questions with
Notice

18 Notice of Rescission Motion

19 Confidential Business

20 Conclusion of Meeting
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MINUTES ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

at 6.00 pm

Monday 2 September 2019

I Present
Lord Mayor — Councillor Gordon Bradbery AM (in the Chair)
Deputy Lord Mayor — Councillor David Brown

Councillor Ann Martin Councillor John Dorahy
Councillor Cameron Walters Councillor Leigh Colacino
Councillor Cath Blakey Councillor Mithra Cox
Councillor Janice Kershaw Councillor Tania Brown

Councillor Jenelle Rimmer

I In Attendance

General Manager Greg Doyle
Director Infrastructure + Works, Connectivity Assets + Liveable City Andrew Carfield
Director Planning + Environment (Acting), Future City and Neighbourhoods Chris Stewart
Director Corporate Services, Connected + Engaged City Renee Campbell
Director Community Services, Creative + Innovative City Kerry Hunt
Manager Governance + Customer Service Todd Hopwood
Chief Financial Officer Brian Jenkins
Manager Property + Recreation (Acting) Lucielle Power
Chief Information Officer Ingrid McAlpin
Manager City Strategy (Acting) David Green
Manager City Works (Acting) Alan Davis
Manager Project Delivery Glenn Whittaker
Manager Infrastructure Strategy + Planning Mike Dowd
Manager Open Space + Environmental Services Joanne Page
Manager Community Cultural + Economic Development Sue Savage

I Apologies
Min No.

[ofe]u]\[ef gy R{=tSTo]Mup[e]N| - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor D Brown
seconded Councillor T Brown that the leave of absence tendered by Councillor King (from 2
September to 13 October) and for Councillor Figliomeni (from 15 August to 5 September) be
accepted.
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CLOSED SESSION
ITEM C1 CONFIDENTIAL: General Manager’s Performance Agreement 2019/20............ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiininnn, 12

Reason for Confidentiality

This report recommends that this item be considered in Closed Session to the exclusion of
the press and public in accordance with Section 10A(2)(a) of the Local Government Act,
1993, as the report contains personnel matters concerning particular individuals.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Councillor T Brown declared a non-significant, non-pecuniary Conflict of Interest in Iltem 22 as
she is a Member-elected Board Member of Destination Wollongong, which is referenced in
the Motion. As the Motion is for a report to be prepared and Destination Wollongong is not
the applicant, Councillor Brown advised that she would remain in the meeting during debate
and voting on this matter.

Councillor Colacino declared a non-significant, non-pecuniary Conflict of Interest in ltem 22
as he is a Member-elected Board Member of Destination Wollongong, which is referenced in
the Motion. As the Motion is for a report to be prepared and Destination Wollongong is not
the applicant, Councillor Colacino advised that he would remain in the meeting during debate
and voting on this matter

WOMENS BIG BASH LEAGUE

Councillor D Brown advised of his recent attendance at the launch of the Women'’s Big Bash
League with the Sydney Thunder to play Adelaide Strikers at Dalton Park on 20 November
2019. Councillor D Brown also advised that he is in receipt of a promotional Sydney Thunder
shirt.

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD ON
MONDAY, 12 AUGUST 2019

g (olelul\\ef[ResHni=IO]RUAN[6]N| — RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor D

Brown seconded Councillor Colacino that the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held
on Monday, 12 August 2019 (a copy having been circulated to Councillors) be taken as read
and confirmed.

PUBLIC ACCESS FORUM

ITEM TITLE NAME OF SPEAKER
21 Notice of Motion — Councillor Rimmer — Request for Katherine McDonogh
Home Ground for lllawarra Stingrays For Recommendation

At [ofe]V]\N[ef[RRIISS{OIMERN[O]Y] - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor

D Brown seconded Councillor Martin that all speakers be thanked for their presentation and
invited to table their notes.

CALL OF THE AGENDA

il [elelul\[ef|Si=SIo|RualelN — RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor

D Brown seconded Councillor Dorahy that the staff recommendations for items 2 to 4, 6 to 8,
10 to 12 and 14 to 19 inclusive be adopted as a block.

A PROCEDURAL MOTION by Councillor Rimmer seconded Councillor Cox was CARRIED
UNANIMOUSLY that Item 21 be considered prior to Iltem 1.

DEPARTURE OF COUNCILLOR

During debate and prior to voting on Item 21, Councillor Walters departed and returned to the
meeting, the time being from 6:28 pm to 6:29 pm.
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ITEM 21 - NOTICE OF MOTION - COUNCILLOR RIMMER - REQUEST FOR HOME
GROUND FOR ILLAWARRA STINGRAYS

(ofelV]\\[ef IS ISS{o]MU[6]| — RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
Rimmer seconded Councillor Cox that Council —

1 Acknowledges that the lllawarra Stingrays are a National Premier League team based in
the Wollongong LGA using various grounds for games and training.

Recognises the need for a home ground to be provided to the lllawarra Stingrays.

Is committed to finding them a stand-alone home ground that allows them an income
stream toward financial sustainability.

4 Requests staff work proactively to locate a suitable home ground for the Stingrays and
provide Councillors with a briefing on possible options at the briefing on 4 November
2019.

5 Council write to the Sports Minister, CEO Football NSW and CEO Football Federation of
Australia to discuss funding and ground options for the lllawarra Stingrays.

At this stage Councillor Bradbery moved a FORESHADOWED MOTION should Councillor
Rimmer’s Motion be defeated —

1 Acknowledges the lllawarra Stingrays are a National Premier League team who are
based in the Wollongong Local Government Area and congratulate them accordingly.

2 Requests Council staff to identify possible sites for a suitable home ground and facilities
for the Stingrays.

3  Provide Councillors with a Briefing on the outcome of Point 2 at the Councillor Briefing
scheduled for 4 November 2019.

The FORESHADOWED MOTION moved by Councillor Bradbery lapsed for the lack of a
seconder.

The following variation by Councillor Dorahy was accepted by the mover and seconder —
e The addition of Point 5
The following variation by Councillor Cox were accepted by the mover and seconder -

e The removal of the words ‘with their own lease arrangements or a joint / sub leasing
arrangement that provides a home ground on terms’ from Point 3

e The addition of the words ‘stand-alone’ in Point 3

DEPARTURE OF COUNCILLOR

During debate and prior to voting on Item 1, Councillor Walters departed and returned to the
meeting, the time being from 6:57 pm to 6:59 pm.

ITEM 1 - WOLLONGONG CITY FLOOD STUDY (2019)

ofelu/\N (oIS {=SIeIEAN[6])) — RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor D
Brown seconded Councillor T Brown that —
1 The Wollongong Flood Study (2019) be adopted.

2 Persons who made submissions be thanked and advised of Council’s decision.


x-apple-data-detectors://0/

\7 4
wollongong
ity of innovation

Minute No.

Ordinary Meeting of Council 2 September 2019 5

ITEM 2 - WEST DAPTO DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTIONS PLAN (2017) MINOR
AMENDMENT FOR ADOPTION

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the block adoption of items (refer
Minute Number 280).

(ofe]u]\[of Sy a=tSTe]nu[e]| — RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor D
Brown seconded Councillor Dorahy that the minor amendment to the West Dapto
Development Contributions Plan (2017) be adopted (Attachment 1 to the report).

ITEM 3 - DRAFT WEST DAPTO DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTIONS PLAN (2020) POST
EXHIBITION

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the block adoption of items (refer
Minute Number 280).

(ofe]8]\[of S s=tSTe]Nu (0]l — RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor D
Brown seconded Councillor Dorahy that —

1 The key issues raised in submissions be noted.

2 The Draft West Dapto Development Contributions Plan (2020) be submitted to IPART
(as exhibited) along with full copies of all submissions received for independent review.

3 A report be presented back to Council with the IPART recommendations and NSW
Minister for Planning’s advice in relation to the finalisation of the 2020 Plan. The report
will clearly outline how all public submissions have been considered and responded to
during preparation of the final 2020 Plan.

ITEM 4 - QUARTERLY VARIATIONS REPORT FOR DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS
JUNE 2019

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the block adoption of items (refer
Minute Number 280).

ofelu]\[ef S i=tSIo]RULR[6]N] - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor D
Brown seconded Councillor Dorahy that Council note the development standards variation
report for the period 1 April 2019 to 30 June 2019.

DEPARTURE OF COUNCILLOR

During debate and prior to voting on Item 5, Councillor Cox departed and returned to the
meeting, the time being from 7:14 pm to 7:16 pm.

ITEM 5 - ILLAWARRA DISTRICT WEEDS AUTHORITY DEED OF AGREEMENT -
SEPTEMBER 2019

(o{0]0] (oS N=S[O]HU[e]| — RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor Blakey that —

1 In accordance with Section 377 of the Local Government Act 1993, Council exercise
their weed control functions as the Local Control Authority under the Biosecurity Act
2015 jointly as the lllawarra District Weeds Authority, under the auspices of the lllawarra
Shoalhaven Joint Organisation.

2 Council delegate to the General Manager the authority to finalise and execute the
lllawarra District Weeds Authority Agreement and any other documentation required to
give effect to this resolution.

3  Council grant authority for the use of the Common Seal of Council on the agreement and
any other documentation, should it be required to give effect to this resolution.
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ITEM 6 - PROPOSED NAMING OF THREE UNNAMED RESERVES IN KEMBLA GRANGE
The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the block adoption of items (refer
Minute Number 280).

(e{e]u\\[ef| S =STe]RERN[e]N| — RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor D
Brown seconded Councillor Dorahy that Council endorse the application to the Geographical
Names Board of NSW to formally assign the following under the Geographical Names Act
1996 -

a Lot 996 DP 1239565 as ‘Stane Dyke Park’
b Lot 99 DP 1230416 and Lot 999 DP1239565 as ‘McPhail Reserve’
¢ Lot 2000 DP 1239566 as ‘Mogomorra Park’.

ITEM 7 - PROPOSED ROAD NAMING OF LANE 47 IN AUSTINMER

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the block adoption of items (refer
Minute Number 280).

— RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor D
Brown seconded Councillor Dorahy that Council take action under Section 162 of the Roads
Act 1993 to name the unnamed Lane 47 located between Gilchrist Street/The Grove and
Wigram Road in Austinmer as “Hilldale Walk”.

ITEM 8 - DRAINAGE EASEMENT OVER COMMUNITY LAND AT KEIRAVILLE

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the block adoption of items (refer
Minute Number 280).

(efe]u]\[of ISy si=tS{e]mu[e]| — RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor D
Brown seconded Councillor Dorahy that —

1 Council resolves to grant a drainage easement under S. 46 (a1) of the Local Government
Act 1993 over Council Community Land, Lot 226 DP 217886, known as Murray Reserve,
Keiraville.

2 The drainage easement is to benefit the adjoining land, 74 Robsons Road, Keiraville,
identified as Lot 6 DP 503156.

3  Council resolves to accept compensation for the grant of the easement in accordance
with the valuation report prepared by the registered valuer, the amount to be calculated
as being 20% of the square metre rate of the property determined to be $576.29 per
square metre (GST free).

The applicant be responsible for all costs associated with the matter.
The Lord Mayor and General Manager be authorised to finalise the matter.
Council grant authority for the use of the Common Seal of Council on all documents
relevant to this matter, should it be required to give effect to this resolution.
ITEM 9 - POLICY REVIEW: ENCROACHMENT COUNCIL POLICY

(ofolu]\[e] S =S{ojuuR[e]N| — RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor Walters that the revised Encroachment Council Policy be
adopted.
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ITEM 10 - POLICY REVIEW: FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE COUNCIL POLICY

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the block adoption of items (refer
Minute Number 280).

(efe]u]\[of Sy a{=tSTe]Nu[e]| — RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor D
Brown seconded Councillor Dorahy that Council adopts the revised Financial Assistance
Council Policy.

ITEM 11 - POLICY REVIEW: FRAUD AND CORRUPTION PREVENTION POLICY

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the block adoption of items (refer
Minute Number 280).

(ofe]8]\[of [ty s{=tSTe]Nu[e]| — RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor D
Brown seconded Councillor Dorahy that the revised Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy
be adopted.

ITEM 12 - TENDER T17/14 ELECTRICAL DISTRIBUTION BOARD INSPECTION AND
TESTING

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the block adoption of items (refer
Minute Number 280).

— RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor Dorahy that in accordance with clause 178 (1) (b) of the Local
Government (General) Regulation 2005, Council decline to accept any of the tenders
received for T17/14 Electrical Distribution Board Inspection & Testing Services to Council and
resolve to invite fresh tenders by open tendering in accordance with clause 178 (3) (b).

ITEM 13 - TENDER T18/20 BUILDING TRADE SERVICES PANEL

ofe]U/\\[eISHE{=SI0INuRN[0] — RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor D
Brown seconded Councillor Kershaw that —

1 In accordance with clause 178 (1) (a) of the Local Government (General) Regulation
2005, Council accept the tender of the companies listed in the tables provided for the
building services panel, over the two-year term of the contract (with options of extension
for 3 further periods of one year).

2 Council delegate to the General Manager the authority to finalise and execute the
contracts and any other documentation required to give effect to this resolution.

3 Council grant authority for the use of the Common Seal of Council on the contract and
any other documentation, should it be required, to give effect to this resolution.

4  Assessment rankings/summary of tenderers have been updated on 2 September 2019
due to two tenderers lobbying Councillers.
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ITEM 14 - TENDER T19/20 WOLLONGONG SENIOR CITIZENS CENTRE BUILDING
UPGRADES

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the block adoption of items (refer
Minute Number 280).

(ofelV]\[ef S =SIo]RuLJ[0]N] — RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor D
Brown seconded Councillor Dorahy that —

1 In accordance with clause 178 (1) (a) of the Local Government (General) Regulation
2005, Council accept the tender of Matrix Group Co Pty Ltd for the Wollongong Senior
Citizens Centre Building Upgrades in the sum of $623,300.00, excluding GST.

2 Council delegate to the General Manager the authority to finalise and execute the
contract and any other documentation required to give effect to this resolution.

3 Council grant authority for the use of the Common Seal of Council on the contract and
any other documentation, should it be required, to give effect to this resolution.

ITEM 15 - WRITE OFF COUNCIL RATES - LOT 1 DARCY ROAD, PORT KEMBLA NSW

2505

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the block adoption of items (refer
Minute Number 280).

— RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor D
Brown seconded Councillor Dorahy that Council write off rates of $105,282.36 on
Assessment No 76083.0 that was subject to a lease over Crown land as the lessee has been
deregistered with Australian Security & Investments Commission (ASIC) and Council is
unable to recover the rates arrears.

ITEM 16 - DRAFT QUARTERLY REVIEW STATEMENT JUNE 2019

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the block adoption of items (refer
Minute Number 280).

(ofe]8] (e[S a=tSTe]Ru (0]l — RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor D
Brown seconded Councillor Dorahy that —

1 The draft Quarterly Review Statement June 2019 be adopted.

2 Council approve the transfer to Strategic Projects internally restricted cash of $4M
representing an improvement in the Funds Result for the year ending 30 June 2019.

3 Council approve the transfer to Strategic Projects internally restricted cash of $630K
representing proceeds from a road closure in Ellen Street.

ITEM 17 - JULY 2019 FINANCIALS

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the block adoption of items (refer

Minute Number 280).

(ofelV]\[ef S =SIe]RuLJ[0]N] - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor D

Brown seconded Councillor Dorahy that —

1 The financials be received and noted.

2 Council approves the proposed changes to the Capital Budget.
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ITEM 18 - STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT - JULY 2019

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the block adoption of items (refer
Minute Number 280).

ofelu]\[ef[mspai=siojnulj(elN| — RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor D
Brown seconded Councillor Dorahy that Council receive the Statement of Investment for July
2019.

ITEM 19 - NOTICE OF MOTION - COUNCILLOR COX - NEW BUILDINGS - ENERGY
POSITIVE

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the block adoption of items (refer
Minute Number 280).

— RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor D
Brown seconded Councillor Dorahy that Council staff provide a report or briefing to
Councillors outlining ways to ensure that all new buildings are energy positive (buildings that
produce more energy than they use), including but not limited to -

1 Changes to our Development Control Plan including any site specific Development
Control Plans.

Incentives for developers, home owners and renovators.

Working with state government to lift energy efficiency and production requirements
under Basix and extend Basix to commercial buildings.

4  Working with state and federal governments to lift the standards applied to exempt and
complying development.

5 Working with the Federal Government to include energy efficiency requirements in the
National Building Code.

6 Encouraging energy positive homes in display villages to demonstrate to buyers that
energy positive homes are practical and affordable.
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ITEM 20 - NOTICE OF MOTION - COUNCILLOR BLAKEY - STYROFOAM WAFFLE POD
MANAGEMENT

(ofo]u] (o] |S =T MUR[0]N) — RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
Blakey seconded Councillor Cox that —

1 Council note that styrofoam waffle pods as used in building slabs are prone to being
dispersed by wind, and when this happens they have a serious impact on our waterways,
farmland and the environment.

2 Council notes that the current voluntary code of practice for waffle pod use and storage
is insufficient to secure them during seasonal high winds.

3 Council write to the NSW Minister for Better Regulation and the Environment Minister
outlining the serious pollution incidents that have occurred under the voluntary code of
practice, and seek their support to investigate solutions such as -

a

d

Mandating a compulsory code of practice for the storage and use of styrofoam waffle
pods.

Significantly increasing fines for non-compliance.

Replacement with void forms made of sustainable materials such as cardboard, or
recycled plastics and other materials.

The phase out of styrofoam in waffle pods.

4  Council support the following motion to the 2019 Local Government NSW Conference
that Local Government NSW —

a
b

d

Recognises that styrofoam waffle pods cause serious wind-blown pollution.

Is concerned that the current voluntary code of practice is insufficient to secure
styrofoam waffle pods on building sites.

Is concerned that the clean-up of wind-blown styrofoam is a major burden on council
resources.

Lobbies the NSW State Government to seek solutions to the use of styrofoam in
waffle pods in building slabs.

The variation to remove the words ‘see newspaper link’ at the end of Point 4a by Councillor
D Brown was accepted by the mover and seconder.

DEPARTURE OF COUNCILLOR

During debate and prior to voting on Item 22, Councillor Dorahy departed and returned to the
meeting, the time being from 8:05 pm to 8:08 pm.
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ITEM 22 - NOTICE OF MOTION - COUNCILLOR WALTERS - TRIAL OF BEACH CLUB
AT NORTH WOLLONGONG BEACH 2019/2020

(ofe]u]\[of IS S=tSIe]ME[e])| - RESOLVED on the motion of Councillor Walters seconded
Councillor Dorahy that Wollongong City Council -

1 Investigate the opportunities offered to our ongoing tourism growth by holding a trial of a
pop-up “Beach Club” at North Wollongong Beach, or any other suitable foreshore
location in the Wollongong Local Government Area, over the summer of the 2020/2021
season.

2 Council deliver to Councillors, in the form of a briefing note, the results of the following
investigations, by the end of April 2020 -

a

h

Council work in collaboration with Destination Wollongong to investigate running a
pop-up “Beach Club” trial at North Wollongong Beach or any other suitable
foreshore location in the Wollongong Local Government Area

The scope of the term pop-up “Beach Club” will cover, but not be limited to, the
service of alcohol, food, seating, tables, sun chairs and live music

Consideration is given to running the trial during the months of December, January
and February

Outline the benefits in both economic terms, and as an area attractor/activator, that
this type of opportunity has already delivered to areas where such clubs currently
exist

Investigate what partnerships, within the local community, could be developed

Report on what the Development Application implications of such a proposal could
be and how other clubs from around Australia have managed this type of offering

Investigate the possible environmental impacts a pop-up “Beach Club” could have
on the surrounding area

Outline what times would be suitable for a pop-up “Beach Club” to operate.

Variation The following variations were accepted by the mover and seconder —

In favour

Against

The addition of the words ‘pop-up’ by Councillor Martin in Points 1, 2a, 2b, 2g and 2h

The removal of the words ‘beach location’ and replaced with ‘foreshore location’ by
Councillor Blakey in Points 1 and 2a

The removal of the words ‘2019/2020’ and replaced with ‘2020/2021" by Councillor
Wallters in Point 1

The removal of the words ‘as soon as possible’ with ‘by the end of April 2020’ by
Councillor Colacino in Point 2

At this stage Councillor Cox moved a FORESHADOWED MOTION should Councillor
Wallters’ Motion be defeated —

That the upcoming briefing on mobile food trucks also include an update on the possibility of
running a Beach Club.

At this stage Councillor D Brown moved a FORESHADOWED MOTION should Councillor
Walters’ Motion be defeated —

That Council call for proposals to operate a Beach Club.

Councillors Rimmer, T Brown, Martin, Cox, Blakey, Colacino, Walters and Dorahy

Councillors Kershaw, D Brown and Bradbery
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CLOSED COUNCIL SESSION
The Lord Mayor called for a Motion to close the meeting to consider a Confidential Item which

deals with a report back to Council on the General Manager's Performance Agreement
2019/2020 in accordance with Section 10A (2) (a) of the Local Government Act.

Prior to putting the above Motion to the vote, the Lord Mayor advised members of the press
and gallery that Item C1 relates to a report back to Council on the General Manager’s
Performance Agreement 2019/2020 and is classified as Confidential for the following
reasons —

1  Section 10A (2) (a) of the Local Government Act 1993, permits the meeting to be
closed to the public, as the report contains personnel matters concerning particular
individuals

2 In accordance with Section 10A (4) of the Local Government Act 1993, the Lord
Mayor invited members of the gallery to make representations to the Council meeting
as to whether this part of the meeting should be closed

288 — RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
Colacino seconded Councillor Dorahy that the meeting move into Closed Session to consider
a report back to Council on the General Manager’'s Performance Agreement 2019/2020 in
accordance with Section 10a (2) (a) of the Local Government Act 1993 on the basis that —

1 The report contains personnel matters concerning particular individuals

2 On balance, the public interest in preserving the confidentiality of the information
supplied outweighs the public interest in openness and transparency in Council decision-
making by discussing the matter in open meeting.

There being no members present in the gallery, the MOTION was PUT to the VOTE and was
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

At this stage, the time being 8:30pm, the meeting moved into Closed Session.
ITEM C1 - GENERAL MANAGER’S PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 2019/20

289 — RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
T Brown seconded Councillor Walters that Council noted the report provided by the
performance review committee on the confidential General Manager's Performance
Agreement 2019/20.

eacly [(efe]v]\N[ef|mgsiai=Sojuu)[0]y| - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
T Brown seconded Councillor Walters that the meeting move out of Closed Session and into
Open Council.

Council resumed into Open Session at 8:41pm.

OPEN COUNCIL SESSION
RESOLUTIONS FROM THE CLOSED SESSION OF COUNCIL

The Lord Mayor advised the meeting of Council’'s Resolution whilst in Closed Session (refer
to Minute Number 289).

THE MEETING CONCLUDED AT 8:42Pm

Confirmed as a correct record of proceedings at the Ordinary Meeting of the Council of the City of
Wollongong held on Monday 23 September 2019.

Chairperson
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File: LM-914.002 Doc: 1C19/601

ITEMA REFURBISHMENT OF THE WOLLONGONG ENTERTAINMENT CENTRE

The Wollongong Entertainment Centre (WEC) is owned by Venues NSW, a statutory authority which sits
within the NSW Office of Sport. There have been no significant improvements to the WEC since it was
opened in 1998 and the refurbishment of the facility needs to be prioritised by the NSW Government.

RECOMMENDATION

That Wollongong City Council write to the Minister for Sport, Multiculturalism, Seniors and Veterans to -

1 Note that there have been no significant capital works or improvements undertaken on the
Wollongong Entertainment Centre (WEC) since it was opened in 1998.

2 Note that the amenity of the WEC is tired and uninviting with seating which is especially
uncomfortable and substandard at present.

3 Request that the following refurbishment of the WEC be expediated:
a An upgrade of the disability access, toilets and seating.

b An upgrade of the facilities for exhibition and conference opportunities, expanding the use of
the WEC to include additional tourism and visitor activities.

¢ An upgrade of the Information, Communication and Technology systems, particularly the
installation of Wifi and digital media capabilities.

4 Note the need for this work to proceed to meet the infrastructure requirements for the forthcoming
UCI (Union Cycliste Internationale) Road Cycling Championships to be staged in Wollongong
September 2022.

ATTACHMENTS

There are no attachments for this report.
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File: CO-10.008 Doc: IC19/436

ITEM 1 ELECTION OF DEPUTY LORD MAYOR

Council at its meeting held on 24 September 2018 elected Councillor David Brown as Deputy Lord
Mayor for a term of one year. Council is now required to elect a Deputy Lord Mayor for a term to be
determined. The next general local government election in NSW will be held on Saturday 12 September
2020, and the determined term of the Deputy Lord Mayor cannot surpass this date.

The Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 establishes the process for electing a Deputy Lord
Mayor, which is outlined in this report.

RECOMMENDATION
1 Council elect a Deputy Lord Mayor for a term determined by the Council, noting that the term cannot

exceed the date for the next general local government election in NSW scheduled for Saturday 12
September 2020.

2  Council determine whether the method of election for the Deputy Lord Mayor is by open voting,
ordinary ballot or preferential ballot.

3 Council proceed to conduct the election of Deputy Lord Mayor in accordance with the determined
method and the requirements of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005.

REPORT AUTHORISATIONS

Report of: Todd Hopwood, Manager Governance and Customer Service
Authorised by:  Renee Campbell, Director Corporate Services - Connected + Engaged City

ATTACHMENTS

There are no attachments for this report.

BACKGROUND

Section 231 of the Local Government Act 1993 provides for Councillors to elect a person from among
their number to be the Deputy Lord Mayor.

The person may be elected for the mayoral term or a shorter term.

A Deputy Lord Mayor assumes all the duties and powers of the Lord Mayor at the request of the Lord
Mayor, or if the Lord Mayor is prevented by illness, absence or otherwise from exercising the function or
if there is a casual vacancy in the Office of Lord Mayor.

Clause 394 of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 stipulates that ‘if a Mayor or Deputy
Mayor is to be elected by the Councillors of an area, the election is to be in accordance with Schedule 7’
(of the Regulation). Council is therefore required to conduct the election of Deputy Lord Mayor in
accordance with this Schedule, which is summarised below.

PROPOSAL

A call for nominations was provided to Councillors. Nominations must be submitted to the Returning
Officer no later than the commencement of Council meeting at 6 pm on 23 September 2019.

The process to be followed in the election of the Deputy Lord Mayor in accordance with Schedule 7 of
the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 is as follows —

e The General Manager has appointed the Manager Governance and Customer Service as the
Returning Officer for the Election of the Deputy Mayor.

e A Councillor is to be nominated in writing by two or more Councillors, one of whom may be the
nominee, and the nomination is not valid unless the nominee has indicated consent to the nomination
in writing.
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e The nomination is to be delivered or sent to the Returning Officer.

e The Returning Officer for the election is to announce the names of the nominees at the Council
meeting at which the election is to be held.

e  Should more than one Councillor be nominated, Council is to resolve at the meeting at which the
election is to be held, whether the election is to proceed by way of open voting, ordinary ballot or
preferential ballot, with preferential ballots and ordinary ballots being secret ballots. Open voting
means voting by a show of hands or similar means.

e Counting will be conducted in accordance with Parts 2 or 3 of Schedule 7, depending on the method
adopted by Council.

CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION

Councillors have been provided with notification of this election together with a nomination form prior to

receiving the business paper for this meeting.

PLANNING AND POLICY IMPACT

This report contributes to the delivery of Our Wollongong 2028 goal “We are a connected and engaged
community”.

It specifically delivers on core business activities as detailed in the Governance and Customer Service
Business Plan 2019-2020.

CONCLUSION

Council can elect a Deputy Lord Mayor to exercise the functions of the Lord Mayor at the request of the
Lord Mayor, or if the Lord Mayor is prevented by illness, absence or otherwise from exercising the
function, or if there is a casual vacancy in the Office of Lord Mayor. It is appropriate for the election to
proceed at this meeting.
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File: CO-07.04.008 Doc: 1IC19/460

APPOINTMENT OF COUNCILLOR DELEGATES TO COMMITTEES AND REFERENCE
ITEM 2 B

Council is represented or participates on a number of reference groups, Section 355 Committees and
external organisations. Councillors are appointed by resolution of Council to the committees, reference
groups and external organisations listed in the attachment to this report, for a period of 12 months.

This report identifies those committees, reference groups and external organisations which require the
appointment of Councillor Representatives.

RECOMMENDATION

1 Councillor Representatives be appointed to the committees, reference groups and external
organisations listed in Attachment 1, where the number of nominations equals the number of
available appointments.

2  Elections be undertaken, by open means on a show of hands, to appoint Councillor Representatives
to the committees, reference groups and external organisations listed in Attachment 1, where there
are more nominees than available appointments.

3  The General Manager be authorised to appoint staff to any external committees that have vacancies
following the election of Councillors.
REPORT AUTHORISATIONS

Report of: Todd Hopwood, Manager Governance and Customer Service
Authorised by:  Renee Campbell, Director Corporate Services - Connected + Engaged City

ATTACHMENTS
1 Overview of Committees Report 2019-2020

PROPOSAL

Councillors have been provided with the opportunity to submit nominations for the various committees,
reference groups and external organisations to which they wish to be appointed. Any nominations
received as at the date of publishing this report have been noted in the attached listing of required
Councillor appointments. An updated listing will be distributed to Councillors prior to the meeting.
Further nominations can be made from the floor when considering this item.

Clause 11.5 of Council’'s adopted Code of Meeting Practice stipulates that voting in an election at a
Council meeting, other than an election for Deputy Lord Mayor, is to be by open means such as by voice
or a show of hands.

Council’'s Appointment of Councillor Delegates to Committees Policy states that Councillors are
appointed annually unless otherwise determined by Resolution of Council.
CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION

The Lord Mayor and Councillors have been provided with details of the various committees, reference
groups and external organisations that require appointments of Councillor representation, and have been
afforded the opportunity to submit nominations to the committees for which they wish to be appointed.



. 17

w‘ollyoyngm:lg
PLANNING AND POLICY IMPACT

This report contributes to the delivery of Our Wollongong 2028 goal “We are a connected and engaged
community”.

It specifically delivers on core business activities as detailed in the Governance and Customer Service
Business Plan 2019-2020.

CONCLUSION

Council should proceed to appoint Councillor Representatives to the Council Committees and
Reference Groups listed in the report.
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23 September 2019

OVERVIEW OF COMMITTEES / REFERENCE GROUPS / EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS

Nominations for Delegates

Purpose

PERFORMANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE

The Performance Review Committee is
responsible for conducting performance
reviews of the General Manager on an
annual basis and report the findings and
recommendations of those reviews to
Council.

ABORIGINAL REFERENCE GROUP

The Aboriginal Reference Group (ARG) will
provide input to Council regarding issues
affecting the Indigenous community in
Wollongong and provide the Aboriginal
community with capacity to inform Council's
decision-making processes.

Broadly, the ARG will enable Wollongong
City Council to meet its Community Strategic
Plan, in particular those parts of the plan that
relate to Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
people.

The ARG will also provide a point of contact
for Council's broader consultation with the
Aboriginal community and  promote

Page 1

Membership

Meeting Frequency

ADVISORY COMMITTEES

1 Lord Mayor (Chair),
1 Deputy Lord Mayor, and
1 One Councillor elected by Council.

1 One Councillor may be nominated
by the General Manager (optional)

As required in
accordance with the
performance review
timetable

REFERENCE GROUPS

The Reference Group will be
supported by:

] Two Councillors, and
[ One Council Officer

The Reference Group will include:

0 Five Aboriginal community
representatives who may also be
constituents of interest groups or
employees of Aboriginal
organisations, and;

0 One representative per Aboriginal
community organisation as listed
below (total of 3) and as nominated
by the following organisations:

Quarterly

L

Current Delegates

Lord Mayor —
Cr G Bradbery AM
(Chair)

Deputy Lord
Mayor - Cr D
Brown

Cr M Cox
(Council
Appointment)

Optional -
Vacant

Lord Mayor —
Cr G Bradbery AM

Cr V King

2019-2020

Lord Mayor (Chair)

Deputy Lord
Mayor

Cr M Cox

Optional - Vacant

Lord Mayor —
Cr G Bradbery AM

Cr V King

TRIM: Z19/201098
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Ordinary Meeting of Council

Item 2 - Attachment 1 - Overview of Committees Report 2019-2020

23 September 2019

OVERVIEW OF COMMITTEES / REFERENCE GROUPS / EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS

Nominations for Delegates

Purpose

Aboriginal initiatives and celebrations
auspiced by Wallongong City Council.

COMMUNITY SAFETY REFERENCE GROUP

The purpose of the Community Safety
Reference Group (CSRG) is to bring
partners together (including NSW Police,
Local, State and Federal Government
agencies; non-government agencies and the
community) to identify and drive the
development of specific strategies to
enhance community safety in the
Wollongong Local Government Area (LGA).

Broadly, the CSRG will enable Wollongong
City Council to meet the Our Wollongong
Community Strategic Plan and in particular
those parts of the plan that relate to the
creation of a safe city.

Page 2

Membership

o lllawarra Aboriginal Corporation

o lllawarra Local Aboriginal Land
Council

o lllawarra Aboriginal Medical
Service

The CSRG shall consist of no more
than 20 members, comprising of:

[1 Two Police representatives who
will be from Wollongong Local Area
Command and Lake lllawarra Area
Command respectively;

[ Representatives from a range of
relevant government and non-
government agencies including but
not limited to:

o Service Representatives

o Religious and Charity Based
Organisations

o Business and Industry
o State Government Departments

o Education and Research
agencies

In addition to the above members,
the CSRG will be supported by

[0 2 Wollongong City Councillors;
and

0 1 Wollongong City Council Officer

Meeting Frequency

Bi monthly

Current Delegates

Lord Mayor —
Cr G Bradbery AM

Vacant

2019-2020

Lord Mayor —
Cr G Bradbery AM

Cr T Brown

TRIM: Z19/201098

19



V’/ Ordinary Meeting of Council

wollongong Item 2 - Attachment 1 - Overview of Committees Report 2019-2020

ity of innovation

23 September 2019

OVERVIEW OF COMMITTEES / REFERENCE GROUPS / EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS

Purpose

Membership

Meeting Frequency

Current Delegates

Nominations for Delegates

Community representatives must
live or work in the Wollongong LGA
and must be able to demonstrate an
appropriate involvement in the
Wollongong City Council area and
within their local community.

SPORTS AND FACILITIES REFERENCE GROUP

The Sports and Facilities Reference Group
has been established to provide advice to
Council on policies and strategies which
relate to the implementation of the
Sportsground and Sporting Facilities
Strategy

Page 3

[0 Three Councillors (one to be
elected Chair),

[1 A representative from the Office of
Sport,

[0 A representative of lllawarra
Academy of Sport,

1 minimum of ten members targeting
major sporting associations that utilise
Council  sporting facilites and
grounds,

[0 and a single representative from
emerging sports as nominated by
their peak body.

Bi-monthly

Cr J Rimmer (Chair)
Vacant

Vacant

2019-2020

¢ CrJRimmer

(Chair)
¢ CrJohn Dorahy

¢ Councillor 3

TRIM: Z19/201098
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OVERVIEW OF COMMITTEES / REFERENCE GROUPS / EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS

Nominations for Delegates

Purpose Membership Meeting Frequency Current Delegates 2019-2020

WALKING, CYCLING AND MOBILITY REFERENCE GROUP

The Walking, Cycling and Mobility Reference [Two Councillors (one to be elected Bi-monthly e Cr D Brown (Chair) ¢ Cr D Brown (Chair)

Group has been established to provide advice  Chair)

to  Council on the preparation and * CrMCox * CrMCox

implementation of bicycle, pedestrian and

disability access policies and strategic plans in

Wollongong. [0 One Council officer from
Community and Cultural Services

0 One Council officer from
Infrastructure, Strategy and Planning

0 Two community members
representing bicycle users

0 Two community members
representing pedestrians

[0 Two community members
representing the access needs of
people with disability

0 One community member
representing the access needs of
seniors

[0 One community member
representing the access needs of
families with children

Page 4 TRIM: Z19/201098
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OVERVIEW OF COMMITTEES / REFERENCE GROUPS / EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS

Nominations for Delegates

Purpose Membership Meeting Frequency Current Delegates 2019-2020

WOLLONGONG HERITAGE REFERENCE GROUP

The Wollongong Heritage Reference Group [ Two Councillors (one to be elected | Bi-monthly ¢ CrM Cox (Chair) ¢ Cr A Martin
plays a significant role in development of Chair), c )

Council's Heritage Strategy and Implementation * CrAMartin
Plan.

0 Eight independent members with * Councillor 2

wide knowledge and expertise in
The Group was created to assist and advise natural and cultural heritage.
Council on development and delivery of a
Heritage Strategy Plan and provide advice on a

wide range of heritage issues and projects *« Cr M Cox (Chair) has
advised she will be stepping

down from this position.

One of the councillors
appointed will also be
required fo be appointed

Chair.
SECTION 355 COMMITTEE

AUSTRALIA DAY COMMITTEE
Provides community input into Wollongong City = (1 Lord Mayor (Chair), Monthly e Lord Mayor — e Lord Mayor —
Council's organisation of an annual celebration 1 One Councillor Cr G Bradbery AM Cr G Bradbery AM -
of Australia Day; determines Citizen of the Year ’ — (Chair) (Chair)
award winners (1 Australia Day Council representative, . .

s CrJ Rimmer ¢ CrJ Rimmer

[1 Up to ten community representatives
including:

o two youth representatives (aged
under 26 years),

o Current Citizen, Young Citizen and
Cultural and Community Award winners

Page 5 TRIM: Z19/201098
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OVERVIEW OF COMMITTEES / REFERENCE GROUPS / EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS

Purpose Membership Meeting Frequency

Current Delegates

Nominations for Delegates

EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS

ASSOCIATION OF MINING & ENERGY RELATED COUNCILS

The Association of Mining and Energy Two representatives from each Quarterly
Related Councils represents mining and member Council

energy related councils and their

communities throughout New South Wales.

The Association's mission is to advocate on
behalf of members (22 Local Government
Areas) and their communities on mining and
energy related issues and to ensure that
mining activity is conducted in accordance
with the principles of Ecologically Sustainable
Development.

In 2017 the Association adopted a new
direction embracing the necessity and
opportunities  surrounding the growing
renewable energy sector by renaming the
Association to reflect this new direction -
Mining and Energy Related Councils NSW

CIVICRISK MUTUAL AND CIVICRISK WEST BOARDS

CivicRisk West is an insurance pool 0 The Lord Mayor (or the Lord Meet every
comprising 11 councils and CivicRisk Mutual Mayor’'s nominee) and; second month
is a related pool comprising a further 6 (on average)

[ General Manager (or the General
Manager's nominee) attend the
The boards provide strategic direction and Board meetings

oversight of insurance procurement and

claims management, as well as providing

guidance to member councils regarding

good governance principles for an effective

enterprise-wide risk management

framework.

councils.

The role of the Councillor is to participate as
a Director on the Board.

Page 6

s Cr D Figliomeni
s Cr C Blakey

s Lord Mayor —

Cr G Bradbery AM

* CrVKing

(Alternate)

2019-2020

Cr D Figliomeni
Cr C Blakey

Lord Mayor -
Cr G Bradbery AM

Cr V King (Alternate)

TRIM: Z19/201098
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OVERVIEW OF COMMITTEES / REFERENCE GROUPS / EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS

Purpose

Membership

Meeting Frequency

Nominations for Delegates
Current Delegates 2019-2020

DESTINATION WOLLONGONG

The purpose of the company is to contribute to
the sustainable growth of a diverse and vibrant
economy, including through:

a) Growing the Wollongong and the
region’s visitor economy;

b) Promoting and marketing Wollongong
and the lllawarra region; and

c) Supporting the attraction of new
investment and business into
Wollongong and the lllawarra region.

FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT AUSTRALIA

Promotes sound and responsible floodplain
management representing the interests of
floodplain communities across Australia and
the authorities responsible for reducing future
flood losses

Page 7

[1Comprising at least 5 directors and
no more than 9 directors;

O Three Council appointed
independent Directors,

[0 Two Council appointed Officer
Directors (one Councillor and one
Council employee)

[0 And four-member directors.

0 Two nominees of each member
Council, together with representatives
from consultants and other groups
involved in floodplain management

Bi-Monthly

Quarterly

Cr L Colacino

Cr L Colacino

Cr J Dorahy e CrJ Kershaw
Cr J Kershaw
« Councillor 2

TRIM: Z19/201098
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OVERVIEW OF COMMITTEES / REFERENCE GROUPS / EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS

Nominations for Delegates

Purpose Membership Meeting Frequency Current Delegates 2019-2020

HEALTHY CITIES ILLAWARRA BOARD

Responsible for the control and management ) Four members appointed, one from | Bi-monthly e CrC Blakey + Lord Mayor

of Healthy Cities lllawarra Incorporated and each local council in the geographic

assists with improved collaboration between area in which the Association operates * Alternate Delegate
Healthy Cities lllawarra and Councils (being  Wollongong, Shellharbour, Councillor

Kiama and Shoalhaven Councils) and
shall be the Lord Mayor, Mayor or their e
delegate;

[1 Two members from the Health
Sector, one of whom shall represent
the Health entity that provides core
funding to the Association;

[1 The General Manager of Healthy
Cities lllawarra;

[ Up to four members elected from the
membership at the annual general
meeting;

[ Up to four members appointed by the
Board who have specific skills required
by the Board

ILLAWARRA BUSHFIRE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Coordinates rural bush fire management [ One Councillor from each Local @ Quarterly * CrVKing « CrVKing
activities over the lllawarra including the Local Government area, plus
Government areas of Wollongong, Kiama and

Shellharbour [l Representatives of the Rural Fire

Service and other  Authorities
throughout the Region

Page 8 TRIM: Z19/201098
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OVERVIEW OF COMMITTEES / REFERENCE GROUPS / EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS

Nominations for Delegates

Purpose

Membership

ILLAWARRA DISTRICT NOXIOUS WEEDS AUTHORITY

IDNWA is a regulatory association of Kiama,
Shellharbour and Wollongong Councils aimed at
the control of all declared noxious weeds within
the Wollongong-Shellharbour-Kiama boundary
limits

The IDNWA policy on noxious weed control
involves the process of education, co-operation
and where necessary enforcement with all
affected private owners and occupiers of land
and public authorities consulted. It aims to
prevent the establishment of new noxious weeds
and to restrict the spread and reduce the area of
all existing noxious weeds

ILLAWARRA ITEC LIMITED BOARD

Partnership between community, industry, Local,
State and Federal Government to support small
business and technology development in
employment, training, business and industry

[J One delegate from each of
Wollongong, Kiama and
Shellharbour Councils

0 Twelve board members including
representatives from business,
University of Wollongong,
community and the Department of
Education and

[l One representative each from
Shellharbour and  Wollongong
Councils

ILLAWARRA PERFORMING ARTS CENTRE BOARD

Manage the operation of the lllawarra
Performing Arts Centre.

Page 9

[J Two Councillors,
[0 General Manager of Council; and

[ Community members.

Meeting Frequency

Quarterly

Bi Monthly

Bi-monthly

Current Delegates 2019-2020

Cr C Blakey « Cr C Blakey
Cr C Walters e Cr C Walters
Cr T Brown e CrTBrown

Cr L Colacino Cr L Colacino

TRIM: Z19/201098
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OVERVIEW OF COMMITTEES / REFERENCE GROUPS / EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS

Nominations for Delegates

Purpose Membership Meeting Frequency

ILLAWARRA REGIONAL AIRPORT MANAGEMENT ADVISORY COMMITEE

To adviseon policy and strategies to One representative from each of the | As required
encourage business growth and development following organisations:

at the airport and to strengthen the airport's
role in providing transport services, fourism
and business opportunities within the region.

[0 Wollongong City Council (including
an alternate)

[ Kiama Municipal Council

[ Industry and Investment NSW

[ Regional Development Australia -
lllawarra

1 South Coast Regional Tourism
Organisation

[1 Destination Wollongong

(] Division of the Department of
Premier and Cabinet

[ lllawarra Business Chamber

ILLAWARRA REGIONAL INFORMATION SERVICE

To ensure the overall strategic direction of the = O Three Councillors from Wollongong | 5 meetings
organisation, enabling it to continue to serve the = City Council, and per year
social and economic development interests of

the lllawarra Region and its community | representatives from other local

governments, business, the University,
commerce and trade unions

Page 10

Current Delegates

Cr C Walters

Cr T Brown
(Alternate)

Cr J Rimmer

CrD
Figliomeni

Cr D Brown

2019-2020

Cr C Walters

Cr T Brown
(Alternate)

Cr J Rimmer
Cr D Figliomeni

Cr D Brown

TRIM: Z19/201098
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OVERVIEW OF COMMITTEES / REFERENCE GROUPS / EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS

Nominations for Delegates

Purpose Membership Meeting Frequency Current Delegates 2019-2020

ILLAWARRA SPORTS STADIUM LIMITED

The Board looks after the management, policy, 0 One Councillor representative, Quarterly e CrVKing s CrVKing
development and operation of the Indoor aT thall tati d
Sports complex at Fred Finch Park, Berkeley. wo netbal representatives, an

0 Two community representatives
ILLAWARRA ZONE LIAISON COMMITTEE — RURAL FIRE SERVICE
This committee reviews the performance 0 Two Councillors to be elected —one | Quarterly e CrVKing s CrVKing
criteria set out in the lllawarra Zone RFS as delegate and one as altemate
Management Plan and the Service Level delegate; + CrCBlakey * CrCBlakey
Agreement between Council and the RFS. (Altemate) (Alternate)

0 Staff and elected members from

Wollongong, Shellharbour and Kiama

Councils,

0 RFS staff and volunteer

representatives
LACHLAN REGIONAL TRANSPORT COMMITTEE
The Committee’s aim is to establish the most [ Lord Mayor and one Quarterly ¢ Lord Mayor — ¢ Lord Mayor —
efficient and fair transport system covering all = alternate Councillor Delegate. Cr G Bradbery AM Cr G Bradbery AM
means of transport for freight and people in the - . - .
State of New South Wales. Cr D Figliomeni * CrD Figliomeni

(Alternate) (Alternate)

The Lachlan Regional Transport Committee
was established in 1983. It draws its
membership from the outskirts of Sydney
through the Central West of New South Wales
to Dubbo, Parkes and Cootamundra.

Members include fifteen local
government councils and the Port of
Port Kembla.

Page 11 TRIM: Z19/201098
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OVERVIEW OF COMMITTEES / REFERENCE GROUPS / EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS

Nominations for Delegates

Purpose

Membership

LAKE ILLAWARRA ESTUARY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Lake lllawarra Estuary Management
Committee is a joint Committee of Wollongong
and Shellharbour City Councils. It will be chaired
by Wollongong City Council from Oct 2019 — Oct
2020.

The Lake lllawarra Estuary Management
Committee’s role is to provide advice, feedback
and support to Wollongong City and
Shellharbour City Councils in developing,
implementing and monitoring a Coastal
Management Program and projects for Lake
llawarra, that are primarily focused on
protecting estuary health. The Committee does
not have decision making authority, the power
to bind the two Councils or the power to incur
expenditure.

LANDCARE ILLAWARRA

Obtain funding and provide support and
development for environmental restoration
and repair by Community Groups and
individuals within the local government areas
of Wollongong, Shellharbour and Kiama.

Page 12

00 Three WCC Councillors - one from
each ward and one to be Chair

] Other members include two
community representatives from:

0 Both Wollongong and Shellharbour
City Council LGA’s.

OTwo Aboriginal
representatives,

community

0 Two Scientific Advisors and
0 Various state government agencies.

| One Councillor and one
officer (observer);

[ Representatives of other
local councils;

] Representatives of Southern
Rivers Catchment
Management Authority;

[ Representatives of Landcare
groups

Meeting Frequency

Quarterly

Monthly

Current Delegates

« Cr D Figliomeni
e CrC Walters
s Cr C Blakey

¢ Vacant

(resolution: The
GM is to allocate a
staff member to
attend in cases
where there are
vacancies)

2019-2020

Cr D Figliomeni
Cr C Walters
Cr C Blakey

Cr A Martin has
also placed a
nomination for
this Committee.

Councillor 1

TRIM: Z19/201098
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OVERVIEW OF COMMITTEES / REFERENCE GROUPS / EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS

Nominations for Delegates

Purpose Membership Meeting Frequency Current Delegates 2019-2020

PUBLIC LIBRARIES NSW — SE ZONE

Enables those Councils and public library 0O Each Council is entited to three Twice per year e CrJRimmer
services which are members to meet on a representatives being:

regular basis for common purposes and to
undertake united action.

Cr J Rimmer

0 One Councillor

It represents the interests of public libraries and © One Council afficer, and
their users throughout New South Wales and o One Library Manager or Library
has a vital interest in improving library services = Officer-in-Charge

and access to information resources for all

people living in New South Wales through a

range of initiatives, joint ventures and

partnerships.

There are 120 members comprising 105 local
government authorities and 15 regional library
services. Membership is open to each Council
directly providing or contributing funds towards
a public library service

SOUTH EAST AUSTRALIAN TRANSPORT STRATEGY

Provides coordinated advocacy for the [ One Councillor delegate and one Quarterly e« CrD « CrD Figliomeni
development of transport infrastructure in the alternate Councillor delegate Figliomeni
South East Australian region that supports
sustainable economic development and the
prosperity of its constituents.

¢ CrTBrown
e CrTBrown (alternate)
(alternate)

Page 13 TRIM: Z19/201098
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Item 2 - Attachment 1 - Overview of Committees Report 2019-2020

23 September 2019

OVERVIEW OF COMMITTEES / REFERENCE GROUPS / EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS

Nominations for Delegates

Purpose

Membership

Meeting Frequency Current Delegates

2019-2020

SOUTHERN JOINT REGIONAL PLANNING PANEL - formerly Joint Regional Planning Panel (JRPP)

The Southern Region Planning Panel (SRPP)
comprises of three state appointed and two
locally appointed panel members to determine

regionally significant development
applications.

The Planning Panel:

e Determines ‘regionally significant’

development applications (DA's)

s Acts as the Planning Proposal Authority
(PPA) when directed

e Reviews rezoning requests (Planning
Proposals)

Provides advice on other planning and
development matters when requested

Page 14

Each Planning Panel consists of five
members:

[0 Three members including the
Chair, appointed by the Minister
(State members), and

[0 Two members and two alternate
members nominated by the relevant
council (council members).

At least one council member is
required to have expertise in one or
more of the following areas:

o planning,

o architecture,

o heritage,

o the environment,

o urban design,

o land economics,

o traffic and transport,
o law,

0 engineering or

o tourism.

Monthly « CrDBrown e CrD Brown
e CrMCox ¢ CrMCox

TRIM: Z19/201098
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File: GCS-80.06.02.01.022 Doc: 1C19/435

ITEM 3 2020 COUNCIL MEETING CYCLE

Council Meeting and Councillor Briefing Sessions have traditionally been held on a Monday on a three-
weekly meeting cycle, with Councillor Briefing Sessions being held on the second and third Monday of
that cycle. This report recommends a continuation of that meeting cycle and proposes a set of meeting
dates for adoption by Council.

RECOMMENDATION

Council adopt the 2020 Council Meeting Cycle as shown in the attachment to this report.

REPORT AUTHORISATIONS

Report of: Todd Hopwood, Manager Governance and Customer Service
Authorised by:  Renee Campbell, Director Corporate Services - Connected + Engaged City

ATTACHMENTS
1 2020 Council Meeting Cycle

BACKGROUND

In accordance with the Local Government Act 1993, Council’'s Code of Meeting Practice (May 2019)
states, ‘Council is required to meet at least ten times each financial year, each time in a different month’.
The Code of Meeting Practice (Part 3) also states ‘The Council shall, by resolution, set the frequency,
time, date and place of its ordinary meetings’.

Council meetings have traditionally been held on a Monday.

Following the 2017 election, Council adopted the following meeting cycle —

e Ordinary Council meetings held on a three (3) weekly cycle on Mondays, commencing at 6.00 pm.

e Councillor Briefing Sessions held on the second and third Monday of the cycle, commencing at
5.00 pm.

e No Ordinary Council meetings or Councillor Briefing Sessions held during a public school holiday
period.

¢ Additional Councillor Briefing Sessions scheduled for Thursdays, when there is an urgent demand.

The above cycle has worked well, with Councillors being briefed on a wide range of significant matters
prior to the reports coming before Council. This report recommends adopting a set of meeting dates
consistent with the current three week cycle however Council may amend the meeting cycle any time by
future resolution.

The proposed Council Meeting and Briefing schedule for 2020 is shown in the attached Calendar and
features the following -

¢ 14 Ordinary Council meetings held on a three-week cycle on a Monday commencing at 6.00pm
e 22 Councillor Briefing Sessions be held on every other Monday commencing at 5.00pm

e No Ordinary Council meetings or Councillor Briefing Sessions will be held during a public school
holiday period, the National General Assembly of Local Government and the Local Government
NSW Conference
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e Additional Councillor Briefing Sessions be scheduled for Thursdays, when there is an urgent
demand.
PLANNING AND POLICY IMPACT

This report contributes to the delivery of Our Wollongong 2028 goal “We are a connected and engaged
community”.

It specifically delivers on core business activities as detailed in the Governance and Customer Service
Business Plan 2019-2020.
CONCLUSION

The recommended set of meeting dates is consistent with the current three-week cycle and will continue
to provide for Councillors to receive two briefing nights in each three-week cycle.
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2020 Council Meeting Calendar

S MT W T FS S MTWT FS S MTWTFS SM TWT F S
January February March April
1 23 |4 1 112 3 4 5 6|7 1.2 314
56 7 8 9 10/11|(2|3 4 5 6 78|89 10 11 12 13{14]| 5|6 7 8 9 10(11
121314 15 16 17(18| | 9 |10 11 12 13 14|15 [15[16 17 18 19 20|21| |12| 13 1415 16 17|18
19(20 21 22 23 24[25| (16|17 18 19 20 21|22| |22(23 24 25 26 27|28| [19]| 20 2122 23 2425
26 (27 28 29 30 31 2324 25 26 27 28(29| |29|30 31 26| 27 2829 30
May June July August
112 1 2 3 4 5|6 1 2 3|4(|30(31 1
3|4 5 6 7 8|9 718 9 10 11 12(13| (56 7 8 9 10(11||2(3 4 5 6 7|8
101112 13 14 15/ 16| | 14 |SHISIMEE 10 20| [12[13 14 15 16 17[18 | 9 |10 11 12 13 14|15
17118 19 20 21 22|23 | (21|22 23 24 25 26|27| [19(20 21 22 23 24|25| |16| 17 1819 20 21 |22
242526 27 28 29/30| |28|29 30 26|27 28 29 30 31 23|24 2526 27 28|29
September October November December
1 2 3 4|5 1 2|3||1|2 3 4 5 6|7 1.2 3 4|5
6(7 8 9 1011(12|| 4|5 6 7 8 9|(10/(8 |9 10 11 12 13|14/|6 |7 8 9 10 11|12
13|14 15 16 17 18[19| [ 11 13- 15 16 (17| (1516 17 18 19 20|21| [13| 141516 17 18|19
2021 22 23 24 25/26| |18|19 20 21 22 23 (24| (22|23 24 25 26 27|28| |20 21 22 23 24 25|26
27128 29 30 25(26 27 28 29 30(31| |29]|30 27| 28 29 30 31

-NGA June & LG NSW Conference Oct

Council Meetings

School Holidays

Briefing Nights

Public Holidays

218/255774

34
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File: GCS-80.13.033 Doc: 1C19/542

ITEM 4 ALTERATION OF COUNCIL WARD BOUNDARIES

Under section 211 of the Local Government Act 1993, councils are required to keep ward boundaries
under review to ensure that a difference in elector numbers of no greater than 10% exists between
wards. If a Council becomes aware that a variation of greater than 10% exists, then it must alter its ward
boundaries in such a manner to reduce the difference in elector numbers. This report outlines a
proposal for Council to commence the process to alter the ward boundaries.

RECOMMENDATION

1 In accordance with s210A of the Local Government Act 1993, the proposed ward boundaries
detailed in the report, and as shown in Attachment B, be endorsed and placed on public exhibition.

2 Afurther report be provided with the results of the public exhibition process.

REPORT AUTHORISATIONS

Report of: Todd Hopwood, Manager Governance and Customer Service

Authorised by:  Renee Campbell, Director Corporate Services - Connected + Engaged City
ATTACHMENTS

1 Attachment A - Current Ward Boundaries

2 Attachment B - Proposed Ward Boundaries

3 Attachment C - Detailed Map of changes to Ward 1 - Ward 2 boundary
4  Attachment D - Detailed Map of changes to Ward 2 - Ward 3 boundary

BACKGROUND

Section 211 of the Local Government Act 1993 states the following in relation to Council ward
boundaries —

211 Ward boundaries
(1) The council of an area divided into wards must keep the ward boundaries under review.
(2) If -

(a) during a council's term of office, the council becomes aware that the number of electors in one ward in
its area differs by more than 10 per cent from the number of electors in any other ward in its area, and

(b)  that difference remains at the end of the first year of the following term of office of the council,

the council must, as soon as practicable, alter the ward boundaries in a manner that will result in each
ward containing a number of electors that does not differ by more than 10 per cent from the number of
electors in each other ward in the area.

The variation between the largest and smallest wards for Council has been above 10% for several years
and was above 10% at the end of the first year of this term of office of the council. As such Council is
required to alter its ward boundaries to reduce the difference to below 10%.

The NSW Electoral Commission (NSWEC) have advised that Council must submit ward boundary plans
with them by 9 December 2019, if changes are to be in place for the 2020 Local Government elections.

Geographic Segmentation of the Council Area

Designing ward boundaries is not a simple process as council must utilise the elector number data
provided by the NSWEC. Until recently electors were grouped into Census Collection Districts (CCD's)
which on average had between 200 to 500 electors in each CCD. In the main, each CCD was comprised
of 5 - 10 adjoining street blocks. When re-designing ward boundaries each CCD had to sit entirely within
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a ward, which limited the natural geographical features or roadways that may be utilised as a ward
boundary. Council utilised the CCD boundaries when ward boundaries were last adjusted.

As of 21st May 2015, the NSWEC and its Joint Enrolment Partner have changed the geographic
segmentation of the NSW electoral roll from the previous Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS) standard
of Census Collection Districts (CCD) to the new ABS standard Statistical Areas Level 1 (SA1). The ABS
describe SA1 as "the smallest unit for the release of census data with a population between 200-800
people (on average 400 people)". The NSWEC have confirmed that Council will be required to utilise the
SA1 boundaries for any future changes to ward boundaries.

The SA1T’s in heavily populated areas generally only cover a few street blocks and their boundaries
generally follow the road system or railways. In rural or less populated areas geographical features such
as creeks and terrain may be used for boundaries to follow.

It should be noted that the CCD and SA1 boundaries do not exactly align in all areas, so it will not be
possible to keep the exact boundaries between any ward even if no substantive changes are proposed
in that area.

Current Situation

Table A below has been produced to show the number of electors per Ward as at 23 July 2019, with a
total of 153,541 enrolled electors.

Table A
Largest Variation
Ward 1 Ward 2 Ward 3 Between Wards %
52,390 53,573 47578 12.22%

In analysing Table A, the variation in the number of electors enrolled between Wards 2 (highest) and
Ward 3 (lowest), equals 12.22%.

Attached as Attachment A to this report is a map showing current ward boundaries.

PROPOSAL

Council's Governance and Risk team has reviewed the current ward boundaries with the view to
establishing a set of ward boundaries that have reasonably consistent levels of elector numbers, that
also allow for varying expected growth rates between wards, as well as boundaries that are easy to
define and follow major roads, train lines or major geographic features wherever possible. Consultation
has occurred with Council’s Land Use Planning team to gain their assistance in the development of an
appropriate set of ward boundaries that allow for future projected population growth.

It should be noted that some previous ward boundaries, that would normally have been retained, will not
be able to follow the same route, as the SA1 boundaries and the former CCD boundaries are not
consistent in all areas. This is particularly evident on the boundary between Ward 1 and Ward 2 west of
the Princes Hwy. The current ward boundary follows Cabbage Tree Creek west of the Princes Hwy to
where it passes under Balgownie Road which then becomes the boundary until Brokers Road. The new
boundary will essentially move 200m south and follow Cabbage Tree Lane, Hopewood Cres, Lombard
Avenue and Balmoral Street.
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Following the review and allowing for the boundaries possible (working with the new SA1 boundaries) an
alternate set of ward boundaries has been developed that have the following features -

e Reduced the variation in elector numbers between wards to a maximum of 6.0%

e Ward 1 made largest in population size due to higher projected growth rates in other wards

e Greater utilisation of significant / main roads and rail lines as ward boundaries

e Neater and more easily identified ward boundaries at the junction of Ward 1 and Ward 2 in the
SE corner of Fairy Meadow

The significant changes to existing ward boundaries that are proposed, are described in detail below -

Move from Ward 1 to Ward 2

Description of area:
SA1 to be moved:
Enrolled Electors:
Reason for change:

Area bounded by Princes Hwy, Memorial Drive and Bourke Street
1114436

355

To provide a straighter boundary between Wards 1 and 2

Move from Ward 3 to Ward 2

Description of area:

SA1’s to be moved:
Enrolled Electors:
Reason for change:

Area bounded by Princes Motorway, Princes Highway, Charcoal Creek and the
South Coast Rail line

1113447, 1114611, 1114612, 1114639, 1114640

1,322

To provide a straighter boundary between Wards 2 and 3 that follows the South
Coast Rail Line for a significant distance

Move from Ward 2 to Ward 3

Description of area:

SA1’s to be moved:

Enrolled Electors:
Reason for change:

Area north of the Unanderra-Moss Vale Rail line and west of the Princes Hwy,
and south of the following:

Factory Rd, Normandie PI, Charcoal Creek, Blackman Parade, Graham St,
Waples Rd, Sugarwood Pl and Charcoal Creek west to the Unanderra-Moss Vale
Rail line

1113404, 1113405, 1113407, 1113423, 1113433 to 1113438, 1113442,
1113443, 1113445, 1113448, 1113450

3,733

Ward 3 is significantly smaller than the other wards at present, there is little
scope for adjustment of the ward boundary between Ward 2 and Ward 3 in the
eastern part of the ward, due to the significant industrial lands in this area. The
area between the Unanderra-Moss Vale Rail and Waples Road covers almost the
entire suburb of Farmborough Heights and the adjusted boundary should be easy
for most residents to identify which ward they reside in.

The proposed ward boundaries will result in a distribution of electors per ward as follows:

Table B

Ward 1 Ward 2 Ward 3

Largest Variation
Between Wards %

52,963 50,613 49,965 6.0%
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Attached to this report are several maps that show the existing and proposed ward boundaries.

Attachment A Map of current Ward boundaries
Attachment B Map of the alternate proposed Ward boundaries
(with the existing ward boundaries shown by the orange broken lines).
Attachment C Detailed Map of changes to Ward 1/ Ward 2 boundary
Attachment D Detailed Map of changes to Ward 2 / Ward 3 boundary

CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION

If Council resolves to amend its ward boundaries then in accordance with s210A of the Local
Government Act 1993, the proposed ward boundaries will need to be placed on public exhibition for a
period of 28 days and Council must accept submissions on the proposal for a period of 42 days from the
date that the ward boundary plan is placed on public exhibition. The Council would then need to consider
any submissions made during that submission period before making application to the Minister for a
variation to ward boundaries.

The NSWEC has advised that any variations to ward boundaries need to be submitted to the
Commission by Monday 9 December 2019 if they are to be used for the local government elections to be
held in September 2020.

The proposed timetable for public exhibition and Council consideration is shown below -

Process Timetable

Project Stage Deliverables Required Key Dates
Resolution to Approve Public * Preparation of draft maps and report to Council 23 September, 2019
Exhibition e Resolution to publicly exhibit draft maps

¢ Preparation of public exhibition package including

Public Exhibition of Proposed background information and the draft map

Ward Boundary Map

24 September, 2019 to
4 November, 2019
¢ Receive public submissions for a period of 42 days

e Preparation of report to Council incorporating

Resolution to Approve Referral 18 November, 2019

to NSWEC feedback from public submissions
e Resolution to submit draft map to the NSWEC for
approval
Submit Ward Boundary Map to * Submit draft map to the NSWEC for approval Prior to 9 December,
NSWEC 2019

PLANNING AND POLICY IMPACT

This report contributes to the delivery of Our Wollongong 2028 Goal 4 “We are a connected and
engaged community”.

RISK ASSESSMENT

Disproportionate ward size creates a risk to the principle of an equal vote for eligible electors. The 10%
variance cap is put in place to acknowledge that numbers of electors in each ward fluctuates, but that
equality in ward size is a key feature of electoral system. Council will be in breach of s211 of the Local
Government Act 1993 if it does not alter its ward boundaries prior to the next council election.
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FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct costs associated with the application process to submit an altered Ward Boundary
proposal to the NSW Electoral Commission. The process can be resourced utilising existing resources
and budgets of the Governance and Customer Service Division.

CONCLUSION

An adjustment to Council’'s ward boundaries is required in accordance with s211 of the Local
Government Act 1993. The proposed ward boundaries are designed to allow for anticipated higher
future growth rates in Wards 2 and 3 to ensure that the proposed boundaries will not require
re-adjustment for a considerable length of time.
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File: CCE-040.010.01.339 Doc: IC19/534

ITEM 5 DRAFT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2019-2029

A review of the Economic Development Strategy 2013-23 commenced in October 2018. Council, at its
meeting on 27 May 2019 endorsed the public exhibition of the draft strategy from 31 May to
28 June 2019. The feedback has been considered and amendments have been made to the draft
Strategy.

A Community Engagement Report has been prepared by Council's Engagement Team which
summarises the feedback received during the public exhibition period. A We Asked, You Said, We Did
summary has been prepared by the Engagement Team which summarises how the key themes raised in
the community consultation have been addressed in the draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-
2029. This report will be used to communicate back to people who made a submission.

A Recommended Updates Summary outlines, in detail, how the issues raised in the public exhibition
period have been addressed in the final version of the Strategy. The Economic Development Strategy
2019-2029 Implementation Plan has been prepared to support delivery of the Economic Development
Strategy 2019-2029.

RECOMMENDATION

1 Council endorses the Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029.

2  Council notes the Community Engagement Report, the We Asked, You Said, We Did Summary, the
Recommended Updates Summary and the Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029
Implementation Plan.

REPORT AUTHORISATIONS

Report of: Sue Savage, Manager Community Cultural and Economic Development
Authorised by:  Kerry Hunt, Director Community Services - Creative and Innovative City

ATTACHMENTS

Draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029

Draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029 - Community Engagement Report

Draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029 - Recommended Updates Summary
Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029 - Implementation Plan

Draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029 - We Asked, You Said, We Did Summary

AR WON -

BACKGROUND

The Economic Development Strategy 2013-23 was identified for review in 2018-19. This Strategy has
delivered a range of outcomes for the city including -

»  Historically Wollongong has had an unemployment rate well above the NSW average. However, in
September 2018 this had fallen to just 4.6%, below the NSW average of 4.8%

«  Over $1.4B in investment has been attracted to city centre projects in the last six years
*  The economy has continued to diversify

+ Advantage Wollongong has attracted significant new businesses to the region

*  Over 80 small cafes and bars have opened in Wollongong

+  Streamlining of the major events process has resulted in attracting significant events such as the
World Cycling Championships.

The draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029 builds on these successes and is based on
extensive analysis of the current economic position of Wollongong, the projected trajectory for jobs
growth into the future and how Council can make a meaningful contribution to increase local employment
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opportunities. Council engaged a professional economic forecaster, .id, to undertake the jobs growth

modelling.

The draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029 has three goals -

1 Jobs target — generate 10,500 new jobs in the next decade to reduce the jobs deficit. This will be
more than double the 4,998 net new jobs created in the decade to 2018

2 Lifting median incomes — focus on generating new jobs in industries that are higher-paying, have a
greater share of full-time jobs and are expected to grow in the future

3 Targeted sectors align with talent pool — align the target industries with Wollongong’s existing talent
pool, in particular commuters and graduates of the University of Wollongong, to create more local job
opportunities for residents.

These goals will be achieved via Council working with other stakeholders to deliver key ‘game-changing’
projects and by the implementation of an Action Plan.
PROPOSAL

This report seeks endorsement from Council to adopt the draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-
2029 and for Council to note the Engagement Report, We Asked, You Said, We Did Summary, the
Recommended Updates Summary and the Implementation Plan.

CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION

Extensive consultation with business and government stakeholders has been undertaken to develop this
Strategy. In total, Council staff met with over 330 people during the process as well as conducted a
business survey which was sent to around 5,000 local businesses.

During the writing of the Strategy a number of engagement approaches were used including -

*  Areference group of key external business and government representatives

*  Meetings with key peak bodies and organisations

* A business survey sent to 5000 businesses, with almost 300 responses

*  Aninvestor roundtable

*  Multiple internal staff workshops and direct meetings

*  Three Councillor Briefings.

The continual feedback from all these consultations was incorporated as the Strategy was developed.

The Strategy was put on public exhibition from 31 May to 28 June and received 51 submissions, which
included 13 groups/organisations and 38 individuals. During the public exhibition period Council staff
also met with a further 207 people to brief them on the Strategy and encourage them to make
submissions.

As outlined in the Community Engagement Report, there was broad support for the draft Economic
Development Strategy 2019-29. The general sentiment was supportive of the goals to create more jobs,
reduce commuting times and strengthen the local economy. In particular, the key business
representative bodies of the lllawarra Business Chamber (around 1,500 businesses) and the
Property Council (around 40 businesses) both welcomed the Strategy and were supportive of these
goals.
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Some of the Action ltems that received widespread support in submissions from various business groups
included -

*  The jobs target of 10,500 additional jobs in the next 10 years

*  Upgrades to transport links to Greater Sydney

* Maintenance of a commercial core in the CBD area to ensure employment capacity into the future

+ Establishment of a cross-Council major projects team for significant employment-generating
projects.

The specific details of the feedback received on the draft Strategy and how these were responded to is
detailed in the attached Recommended Updates Summary.
PLANNING AND POLICY IMPACT

This report contributes to the delivery of Our Wollongong 2028 Goal 2 — We have an innovative and
sustainable economy. It specifically delivers on the following:

Community Strategic Plan Delivery Program 2018-2021 Operational Plan 2019-20
Strategy 3 Year Action Operational Plan Actions

2.1.3 Cross-sector initiatives are 2.1.3.1 Support regional activities  2.1.3.1.1 Review the Economic
coordinated and implemented to and partnerships that Development Strategy 2013-
increase and attract business promote business 2023.
investment, supporting small investment and jobs
businesses and encouraging jobs growth.
growth.

RISK ASSESSMENT

An economic development strategy demonstrates Council’'s commitment to working with local
businesses and the local community to support them in creating more local jobs.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Unfunded actions will be considered as part of Council’s annual budget planning process. Actions that
are funded by current budget allocations will be included in Council’s Annual Plan and Delivery Program.
Council may seek external funding to deliver actions in the Strategy.

CONCLUSION

The draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029 is based on a combination of detailed analysis of
the local economy, expert forecasting around future trends, desktop research of best-practice solutions
and extensive consultation with employers, investors and the broader community. Importantly, the
Strategy has received strong support from the Wollongong business community, the people who will
employ the extra 10,500 people to reach the Strategy’s jobs goal.

Endorsement of this Strategy reflects Council’'s commitment to instigating the operational changes
outlined in the Action Plan and Council’s willingness to work with other city stakeholders to change the
future trajectory of jobs growth in Wollongong and deliver an innovative and sustainable economy.
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Message
from the Lord
Mayor

I'm pleased to present this Economic Development
Strategy 2019-2029.

This Strategy builds on the successes and learnings of
the 2013 — 2023 Economic Development Strategy. Since
2013, Wollongong has successfully reinvented itself into
a service based economy.

Looking ahead this updated Strategy proposes a
number of actions to support an innovative and
sustainable economy in the city.

The Strategy is based on our learnings from the
previous Strategy, research into best-practice
approaches from other local governments, extensive

“The Strategy proposes a

jobs target of 10,500 new
jobs over the next ten years.”

consultation with key stakeholders and modelling of the
projected future growth trajectory of local jobs.

The key theme running throughout the document is

a renewed focus on increasing the number of high-
quality jobs in Wollongong. This objective to increase
the opportunity for local people to work closer to home
will have positive flow on effects such as reducing the
individual cost of commuting and helping build a more
connected and engaged community.

The Strategy proposes a target of 10,500 new jobs
over the next 10 years. This is almost double the
amount achieved over the past decade. This may seem
ambitious but we believe the actions outlined in the
document will provide us with the necessary framework
to achieve this positive outcome for Wollongong. The
strategy is particularly targeting knowledge-based
jobs, to capitalise on the highly skilled talent pool
Wollongong has in these areas.

There are a range of ways Council can directly support
the growth of our local economy. These policy levers
include our local planning policies, local infrastructure,

business support and attraction, how we procure goods,

sharing of information and our civic leadership and
advocacy role.

However, this strategy cannot be achieved by
Council working in isolation. In order to achieve

our goal we will need the support of both the
business community and other levels of government.
We will all need to work together to continue to
grow Wollongong's local economy and increase
employment opportunities for the people of
Waollongong and the broader lllawarra region.

Collaboration is vital for our success and this
Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029
provides a strong framewaork for us to work with our
key partners.
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Executive Summary

The future of Wollongong's economy is not set in stone.
The purpose of economic development strategies is to
alter the trajectory of employment growth and improve
the jobs outcomes above a 'business as usual’ trend.
Evidence shows that a committed community of private
and public sector participants can have an impact.

This Economic Development Strategy (‘the Strategy’)
focusses on the key challenge of creating more jobs in
Wollongong. This will both support a more sustainable
local economy and build stronger community
connections. The central objective of the Strategy is to
create an additional 10,500 new jobs in the decade to
2028.

As the regional capital of the lllawarra, Wollongong
plays an important role in providing employment
opportunities for both residents of Wollongong and the
surrounding region. Wollongong provides jobs for 43%
of employees from Shellharbour and 23% from Kiama.
This role as the regional capital reinforces the need for
Wollongong to increase its job generation capability, for
the benefit of both residents of the Wollongong Local
Government Area (LGA) and residents of the broader
lllawarra region. In addition, more than half (60%) of the
total value of economic activity (as measured by Gross
Regional Product) in the lllawarra occurs within the
Wollongong LGA.

In the last decade Wollongong has transformed into a
service-based economy, largely focussed on delivering
household services. This shift towards services is an
Australia-wide trend, but the adjustment has been
more dramatic in Wollongong than other locations, as
a result of an estimated 6,000 local job losses in the
manufacturing sector between 2007 and 2018. This
inevitably constrained Wollongong's overall jobs growth,
which averaged only 0.5% per annum over the last
decade. This was below both regional NSW (0.9%) and
Greater Sydney (2.1%).

In the last three years Wollongong has made
considerable progress in lowering its unemployment
rate. In the three years to 2017-2018, jobs growth
averaged 2.1% per year. Subsequently the
unemployment rate has fallen to 4.6% (as at September
2018). This result is below the NSW average of 4.8%
which is only the second time in the last decade that the
Wollongong rate has been below the NSW rate.

But these headline figures and positive trends do not
tell the full story about the Wollongong labour market.

Research undertaken by .id indicates the local economy
is not generating enough jobs to give all employed
residents the opportunity to work locally. This is called
a jobs deficit. Without intervention, this deficit is set to
continue to grow with more residents needing to leave
the LGA for work.

Research also identified that the industry composition of
jobs in Wollongong has shifted, which has been a drag
on median income growth. Industries that have seen

the largest jobs gains are largely lower paying and have
more part-time employees. Meanwhile, the industries
that have seen the biggest job losses are largely higher
paying and have more full-time employees.

The jobs deficit has added to the commuter pool over
time, with 33% of residents leaving the LGA for work
in 2016. Many of these employees are highly skilled
and are often higher paid than local employees. For
example, in 2016, 36% of the residents who left the
LGA for work were earning $1,500 or more per week,
compared to only 24% of those who worked locally.
The other talent pool of the city is the students of the
University of Wollengong (UOW), more than half of
whom leave the area when they graduate due to a lack
of local employment opportunities. Based on these
identified trends and challenges, this Strategy sets three
strategic objectives.
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These objectives are:

. Jobs target — generate 10,500 new jobs in the next
decade to reduce the jobs deficit. This will be more
than double the 4,998 net new jobs created in the
decade to 2018.

. Lifting median incomes — focus on generating new
jobs in industries that are higher-paying, have a
greater share of full-time jobs and are expected to
grow in the future.

. Targeted sectors align with talent pool — align the
target industries with Wollongong's existing talent
pool, in particular commuters and graduates of the
UOW, to create more local job opportunities for
residents.

Of the 10,500 jobs goal for the next decade, modelling
suggests that 5,800 of these will be in population
serving industries. That is, these jobs will occur because
of population growth. This means sectors such as health,
education, aged care, retail and hospitality will remain
important employers in Wollongong and continue

to make a critical contribution to the economy. This
Strategy is focused on the additional 4,700 jobs that the
city needs but which may not happen without specific
actions.

This Strategy is focused on the creation of the extra
4,700 jobs, that are above the business as usual
projection, to get to the target of 10,500. Jobs growth
in the targeted, knowledge-intensive, high value, high
skilled sectors, are not linked to population growth.
Instead they are industries who serve clients outside
the region and so have the capacity to grow the local
economy and employment faster than population
growth.

Based on this analysis the following sectors have been
identified as target sectors for future growth as part of
the jobs target process. There is a particular focus on
the knowledge economy.

® |CT/Tech

® Financial and Insurance Services

* Professional, Scientific and Technical Services
* Public Administration and Safety

* Electricity, Gas, Water and Waste Services

These sectors are broadly aligned with those

identified by Wollongong’s existing business attraction
partnership, Advantage Wollongong. Advantage
Wollongong is a partnership between Council, the NSW
Government and UOW. Since 2009 the partnership

has focussed on promoting Wollongeng to attract new
business, investment and jobs.

Additional sectors targeted by Advantage Wollongong,
and also this Strategy, include:

¢ Advanced Manufacturing

* Defence

* Medical Science and Technology
* Scale-ups

23 September 2019

Wollongeng City Council is also supportive of arts and
creative industries, as outlined in the Creative Wollongong
2019-24 strategy.

Going forward, there are multiple mechanisms that will be
employed to achieve the strategic objectives.

Firstly, the Strategy identifies a number of game-changing
projects that, if delivered, would have a positive impact
on the local economy and employment. Council will
support and advocate for these, working with key partners
and stakeholders, along with both state and federal
governments, to bring these major projects to reality.

The game-changing projects include:

- Critical transport projects to reduce the travel time
between Wollongong and Sydney

- Capitalising on the growth of Western Sydney and
the development of the Aerotropolis

- Increasing the office capacity in the Wollongong
City Centre

- Development of unused and underutilised
employment lands

- Attraction of more major events and tourism
infrastructure

- Completion of the Australian Industrial Gas Energy
Terminal project

- Establishment of a city centre university campus

- Delivery of the Port Kembla container terminal
project

- Further evolving as a smart city

- Improving the effectiveness of our advecacy

Secondly, Council has a number of policy levers that it
can directly change to increase the city's employment
generating capacity.

- Civic leadership

- Business attraction activities

- Acting as a knowledge hub for businesses
- Council-funded infrastructure projects

- Local planning policies

- Business support activities

- Council's procurement policy

In summary, the Strategy requires an interventionist
approach to economic development, seeking to change the
job growth trajectory by undertaking and promoting a series
of policy changes and actions to improve the job generating
capacity of the local economy.

Delivering more opportunities in higher paying jobs is
critical to support Council’s main economic goal of having
an innovative and sustainable economy.
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Part 1 Strategic Context

Economic
Development
Strategy

2013-2023

On 17 February 2014, Wollongong City Council
released the Economic Development Strategy 2013-
2023, which outlined the key priorities, goals and
actions of Council to support economic activity in
Wollongong.

The Strategy is a supporting document for Wollongong
City Council’s 2028 Community Strategic Plan. The
Strategy is focussed on Goal 2 - We have an innovative
and sustainable economy.

The Strategy 2013-2023 identified six ways Council can
influence economic growth across the city.

. Civic leadership
. Marketing activities
. Knowledge hub

. Infrastructure
. Planning
. Business support

The focus of the Strategy was on lifting employment
growth and jobs creation, including:

* Bringing the unemployment rate in line
with the state/national average, including
Wollongong's higher rate of youth
unemployment.

* Reducing the number of people forced to
commute each day.

 Reducing the ‘brain drain’ encouraging our
best and brightest young people to remain in

the region after graduating from their studies.

8

Unemployment rate (%)
tn o

Sept11  Sept12  Sept13  Sept14  Sept15 Sept16 Sept17 Sept 18

— Wollongong — NSW

Source: Small Market Labour Force; ABS data

Fig 1: Unemployment rates, Wellengong LGA & NSW,

12-month average, September Quarter 2011- 18

Since 2013, Wollongong has made considerable
progress on addressing its unemployment rate.
Historically, the unemployment rate had been stuck
around 2 percentage points above the state-wide
average. In recent years, this gap has closed with
Wollongong'’s unemployment rate, as at September
2018, at 4.6% compared to the NSW average of 4.8%
(See Fig 1).

Improvements have also been recorded around
youth unemployment. In 2017-18 the lllawarra’s youth
unemployment rate was 10.6%, down from 12.9%

in 2016-17 and is now broadly in line with the NSW
average of 10.4%."

In contrast, the proportion of Wollongong residents
leaving the region for work has risen slightly over
recent years. In 2016, 33% of employed residents left
Wollongong for work, up from 27% at the 2011 Census.
These residents are largely travelling to the Greater
Sydney area.

There is also a need to remain focussed on addressing
the 'brain drain’. The share of graduates from the UOW
staying in the lllawarra region after completing their
studies is estimated to be 41%.2
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Key Successes

The 2013-2023 Strategy was accompanied by an
Action Plan, which included a series of 24 discrete
actions, some short term and others ongoing longer
term advocacy actions. To date, eight of these
action items are already complete. The majority of
the remaining actions are longer term advocacy and
lobbying items which will continue into the future.

Achievements under the Economic Development
Strategy 2013-23 include;

* Ongoing promotion of Wollongeng as
a superior business location through
Advantage Wollongong

* Attracting over $1.4 billion in investment
for city centre projects in the last six years

® Establishing Boxing Day trading in the
Wollongong LGA

* Joining the NSW Government’s Small
Business Friendly Councils program/Easy

to do Business

* Establishing a dedicated Small Business
Assessment Team

* Streamlining major events process in place

¢ Introduction of online application and
payment process for outdoor dining

* Establishing an online Wollongang
Economic Profile

* Completion of the Crown Street Fagade
Rejuvenation Program

* Implementation of WiFi in the Wollongong
City Centre

* Bi-Annual Investor surveys undertaken

* Completion of the City Centre
Revitalisation Strategy

* Adoption of the Evening Economy Action
Plan with over 80 small bars and cafes
opening in the city centre since 2012-2013
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Consultation

As part of developing this Strategy we spoke to a broad
range of stakeholders about how Council could lift local
job creation.

These consultations, together with the development of

10,500 jobs target.

10

Who we spoke to and what they said

The development of this Strategy included engaging In addition to these direct engagements we read,

with multiple stakeholders who were able to provide reviewed and incorporated over 60 reports including
their expertise and insights into the future economic economic development strategies from other Councils
direction of Wollongong. The consultation process and other research papers.

covered a range of different approaches from meeting

with small groups of interested parties through to The initial consultation activities, done while the Strategy
conducting a major business survey. was being developed, are summarised in Table 1.

This consultation included establishing a Reference
Group of local business and government representatives
to guide the development of the Strategy and provide
expert advice and feedback.

Full details regarding the consultation and engagement
program can be found in the supporting Community
Engagement Report — a summary is provided here.

In all, we met directly with over 130 stakeholders
and engaged, via a business survey, with almost 300
(predominantly small) business owners.
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Table 1: Initial consultation activities

Engagement type

Reference Group » Adele Fiene, ANZ

s Jim Fraser, lllawarra Shoalhaven Joint Organisation

» Kirstan Fulton, NSW Government

+» Michelle Guido, Property Council of Australia,
lllawarra Chapter

+ Jonas Marcelo, Innovation Campus

» Nigel McKinnon, NSW Government

» Debra Murphy, RDA lllawarra

» Adam Zarth, lllawarra Business Chamber

Met four times during development of the Strategy

Industry groups and peak bodies | Engaged with the following peak bodies:

* |llawarra Business Chamber

* Property Council of Australia, lllawarra Chapter
* RDA lllawarra

* Destination Wollongong

* Urban Development Institute of Australia

* i3Net
Business survey Survey sent to 5,000 local businesses - 292 responses
Investor/developer community Roundtable held with key commercial investors in the
city centre
Start-up community Discussions with the start-up/scale-up community for

perspectives from new businesses in Wollongong

Council staff Two workshops providing oppertunity for staff to have
input into action items development

Councillors Two briefing sessions for Councillors

Other levels of government Engaged with surrounding LGAs and NSW
Government representatives

Other organisations Engaged directly with NSW Ports, UOW, local
Chambers of Commerce

23 September 2019

Two of the
biggest external
consultations
we held were a
business survey
and an investor
roundtable.

1"
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Business Survey

In December 2018 Council conducted a survey of 5,000 The top five industries respondents operated in were:
businesses in the LGA to gather their ideas about how
Council can support them to create employment.

Professional and technical services (22.2%)
Wholesale and retail trade (11.1%)
Construction (10.7%)

Health Care (9.7%)

Financial Services (8.0%)

This survey generated 292 responses and provided
valuable insights into their experiences around
interacting with Council, what is done well and what
areas need extra attention.

Who participated?

Most respondents to the survey were micro-businesses
who employed less than five people. Almost a third
(32.8%) of respondents were sole traders and a further
third (32.8%) employed between one and four people.
Only 8.5% of respondents had more than 20 employees.

12
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Business Survey Results

Main challenges

1)

Rising input
costs eg energy,
supplies

Inability to pass
on rising costs to
customers

Time pressures.
There is no time
to think about
my business and
plan

v
)

Finding suitable
staff

il

Rising wage
costs

23 September 2019

How can Council best assist your business?

We asked respondents for three areas Council
could best assist their business.

The top five responses were:

e
[

Planning
Faster DA approval times

J&

Procurement
More support for local businesses

F

Red tape
Less paperwork to complete when dealing
with Council

==

Streetscape
More resources for improving public amenity

y \

Marketing/Promotion
More promotion of the capabilities of the
region and its businesses

13
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Investor Roundtable

In December 2018 the Economic Development team
and the City Strategic Planning team convened a
roundtable of representatives from the Wollongong
commercial property market. The purpose of this
meeting was to discuss the challenges facing
commercial development in the city. The key issues
discussed included:

Tenant attraction issues

* A-grade occupiers, in particular State and Federal
agencies, want 5 Star Green and NABERS (National
Australian Built Environment Rating System) rated
buildings. However current parking requirements
make it harder to achieve these ratings.

* Major tenants want a minimum floorplate size of
1,000-1,200sgm so they can be on one floor which
enhances the efficient operation of the business.
From a commercial viability point of view, the ideal
size of a building in Wollongong is 5,000-10,000sgm.
A 10,000sgm building (1,200-1,500sqm floorplates)
would require a site of at least 2,000sgm (using a 6:1
FSR).

* Tenants want certainty for when a project will be
delivered.

* The current focus on private parking provisions for
commercial buildings means less public parking is
available outside business hours. Providing more
public parking areas is critical.

* Reducing parking requirements was identified as the
main measure that would improve the viability of
commercial buildings projects.

¢ Tenants value buildings that have a good provision of
public transport accessibility and high public amenity
around the building.

¢ A-grade tenants do not want to be in a mixed use
building.

14

Feasibility of commercial
development issues

¢ There is a conflict between the feasibility of residential
development, which significantly outweighs the
investment return on commercial development.

* There is a risk of losing the commercial core to
residential if the Local Environment Plan (LEP) is left
unchanged, due to the current permissibility of shop-
top housing throughout the commercial core. This
challenge could be overcome with the establishment
of a commercial only zone. Similar concerns were
raised in a BIS Shrapnel study, Strategic Employment
Review: Macquarie Park, which argued "The concern
is that, by taking sites, residential development will
limit the potential for commercial development when
it becomes more financially feasible.”?

Discussion around the
Development Application (DA)
process

* The timeframe for the DA process, so a project can be
commercially viable, ideally needs to be 3-6 months.

* There is a need for greater engagement and dialogue
throughout the life of the major project, not just at
the pre-development/planning stage. This could
be facilitated via a mechanism that expedites major
employment generating projects to ensure the
capacity to accommodate new jobs is delivered as
soon as possible.

Other issues

* An opportunity exists for Council to leverage its
asset ownership / tenancy in the city to deliver new
commercial space in the CBD.

* Section 94 payments and heights are not seen as
significant restrictions on commercial development.
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C;urrent State of Play

Before outlining the strategic objectives of this Strategy,
it is useful to review the state of play as it relates to
Wollongong, together with some of the challenges that
need to be overcome. Wollongong has a number of
advantages, including:

* The city’s role as the regional capital and
employment centre

* Wollongong's desirable liveability
* The large pool of highly-skilled potential
employees including the commuter pool and

UOW graduates

* |ts world class industry-focussed research
institutions

* Its proximity to Sydney and the international
airport

There are also some challenges which Wollongong must
overcome to improve the business and jobs creation
environment. These include:

* Improving external perceptions of
Wollongong

* Reducing the cost of commuting on
individuals and the community

* Encouraging more innovation and
entrepreneurship in Wollongong
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Wollongong is...

The regional capital and
employment centre
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Wolloengong is the regional capital of the lllawarra.

The size of the Wollongong economy is $11 billion
accounting for around 58% of the lllawarra region’s $19
billion economy (Fig 2).*

Shellharbour,

Wollongong Kiama and
LGA Shoalhaven
LGAs

Source: NIEIR Data compiled by .id

Fig 2: lllawarra-Shoalhaven region, gross regional product,
2017-2018

The importance of the Wollongong economy to
the region is recognised in the lllawarra-Shoalhaven
Regional Plan.

At the economic and cultural heart of the region is
Metro Wollongong - a nationally significant city. Much
of the future prosperity of the region will be built on
the potential to generate jobs from the integration of
education, health care, business and tourism precincts
in Metro Wollongong.

Building a strong, diversified economy is a priority
because it will enable the community to respond to
environmental, economic and social challenges. A
strong economy will generate the high-quality jobs

that will retain and attract young people and university
graduates. It will enhance the regions centres and
public spaces and offer interesting cultural and
recreational experiences that will increase the appeal of
the region as a place to live, work and invest.®

Wollongong's city centre and the immediately
surrounding suburbs is a critical employment area. It is
home to around 26,000 jobs which represents 29% of all
employees in the LGA¢
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Fig 3 shows the key employment precincts across

Wollongong LGA as at the 2016 Census and Fig 4
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Fig 3. Key employment precincts, Wollongong LGA as of 2016

area that has experienced the largest jobs gains. This
reinforces that strong employment growth in Central
Wollongeong has positive flow-on impacts for residents

shows the change in employment in each area between

2011 and 2016.7 Central Wollongong is both the most ~ across the LGA and the broader region, providing them
with local employment opportunities.

important area in the LGA for employment and the
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New developments in the
Wollongong City Centre

Council has invested over $30 million in upgrades to the
city centre since 2012. Major projects include the Crown
Street Mall revitalisation ($20 million), Keira Street -
Crown Street to Smith Street ($4 million) and Crown
Street West ($1.5 million).

In addition, Council has also invested in ancillary city
centre roadworks, car parks, bus shelters, drainage,
lighting, events and traffic studies. Council has also
invested $40 million upgrading the city's foreshore from
the Entertainment Centre to North Beach and Stuart
Park.

Over the same period the city centre has seen $1.4
billion in predominantly private investment since 2012.
Major investments have included the $268 million
upgrade to Wollongong Central by the GPT Group;
the new $120 million Wollongong Private Hospital,
operated by Ramsay Health Care; and the $134 million
expansion of the Wollongong Public Hospital.

There is currently 70,000 sgm of DA approved
commercial space in the city centre, including the four
largest office developments representing over 30,000
sqm in A-grade office space which could be completed
within the next 24 months.

There is currently strong demand for commercial office
space. The 2019 Office Market Report, published by
the Property Council of Australia, found that there is
currently a shortage of office space in the city centre.
The vacancy rate for A-grade is low at just 1.4%.%

The city centre has seen a dramatic increase in demand
for inner city living, with close to 1,500 dwellings
forecast to be delivered between 2016 - 2021. This
could increase the inner city population by around
80%.7 The city centre has also experienced a cultural
renaissance with over 80 new small bars, eateries and
cafes since 2012." It has a strong evening economy,
attracting people to visit, socialise, eat and listen to live
music.

Wollongeng is also an important employment hub for
residents of surrounding LGAs. Over 20,000 workers
commute into Wollongong from other LGAs for work.

Over three-quarters (77%) are from the surrounding
lllawarra-Shoalhaven LGAs with the remainder from
Greater Sydney'". This demonstrates that policies that
support employment within Wollongong city centre, or
more broadly Metro Wollongong, will deliver flow-on
benefits across the LGA and across the lllawarra.

Fig 5: New Developments in Wollongong City Centre
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A vibrant coastal city

The city boasts affordable living, a coastal lifestyle, * Thriving arts, festivals, music, bar and foodie
a strong bar/café culture and quality infrastructure. culture - Wollongong also attracts major
Wollongong is located only an hour south of Sydney, concerts at its entertainment centre and hosts
and offers a great lifestyle close to the Sydney CBD several music festivals.
without the congestion and high cost of living.
Liveability is a key factor in Wollongong's superiority as * Quality public infrastructure — Wollongong has
a business location. quality health infrastructure including a major
teaching hospital and a number of private
» Affordable living - Wollongong offers a hospitals. Its education infrastructure includes
generally lower cost of living, particularly with a major TAFE institute and world-class
residential housing which is currently priced university in the UOW.

around 47% less than the Sydney median'?.
Travel costs are also significantly lower due to
reduced commuting times.

* Coastal lifestyle - located immediately south
of the Royal National Park, Wellongong's
spectacular natural environment includes 17
patrolled beaches framed by the backdrop
of the lllawarra escarpment, offering an
abundance of recreational activities to enjoy.
Wollongong is also known as an adventure
city, with many high energy activities on offer
for locals and visitors.
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Home to a large talent pool

Wolloengong has a large, experienced, multilingual
workforce with skills ranging from traditional
manufacturing expertise through to creative industries

and new economy digital technology based capabilities.

This skill base is one of the key attraction for businesses
considering locating in Wollongong.

Wollongong’s local workforce is highly educated, with
around two thirds of the workforce holding tertiary
qualifications. This is on par with the NSW average

in terms of post-school qualifications. Over a quarter
(26.3%) of the workforce has a Bachelor degree or
higher, a further 11.9% have an Advanced Diploma/

Diploma and 28.5% have a post-school Certificate
qualification. Between 2011 and 2016 the number of
people with a Bachelor degree or higher increased
18%.1

Around 23,000 residents across the wider lllawarra
region travel to Greater Sydney for work, with a mix of
skills in both white and blue-collar occupations. These
skilled residents represent a talented pool of potential
employees for any new business looking to establish or
relocate to Wollongong.

23 September 2019
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Case study:

Wollongong’s Knowledge Services Sector

Wollongong has a well established knowledge services sector, with approximately 6,000 people
working in the industry across 85 locations in Wollongong. Major international and national
corporations that are currently located in Wollongong include NEC, Mercer, SES NSW, PeopleCare,
ahm, iag, ATO, Dept of Human Services, IMB, Stellar, Accor Hotels, Suncorp.

In 2018 Advantage Wollongong commissioned Fifth Quadrant to investigate the shared services
capability of Wollongong and the financial benefit shared services firms can gain by relocating to
Wollongong.'

The study found the operating costs of a 150 seat shared services facility were considerably lower

in Wollongong than in other comparable locations. The table below highlights the breakdown of
costs for Wollongong versus three other metropolitan locations. Wollongong is a more cost effective
location with the most affordable salary and real estate outcomes for an indicative 150 seat contact
centre operation, delivering savings in the range of 29% to 33% relative to comparable locations.

Table 2: Comparative operating costs for a 150 seat shared services facility

Wollongong  Sydney CBD Melbourne CBD  Parramatta
Total Salaries $7,090,000 $9,640,000 $9,635,000 $9,640,000

Cost of Staff $96,923 $316,514 $316,514 $316,514
Turnover

Real Estate @ $700,000 $1,750,000 $1,225,000 $962,500
1,750m2

Total $7,886,923

$11,706,514 $11,176,514 $10,919,014

Being located
in Wollongong

would result

in a saving to
companies of

In addition, the study found staff turnover rates are only 8% in Wollongong compared to 19%
throughout Australia. The findings of this report have also been supported by real-world experiences
from companies that have chosen to locate in Wollongong, such as Accelo.

“It's been awesome to be part of a global company having offices in San Francisco and
Denver, while still being able to service the whole world from Wollongong. A huge
advantage of being based in Wollongong is the talent pipeline coming from UOW has been
really important to us”

- Eamonn Bell, co-founder of Accelo
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A world-class research hub

UOW is a research-intensive university with an outstanding reputation
across a broad range of disciplines.

UOW ranks among the top 2% of universities in the world with an
enviable record in teaching and research. UOW has over 36,000
students, more than 2,400 staff and contributes around $2 billion
to the region annually'. These graduates are recognised for their
capability, quality and success in the global workplace.

Graduates come from a range of disciplines, as outlined in Table 3.

23 September 2019
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Table 3: 2018 UOW Graduate Numbers

Undergraduate
Faculty of Business 795 585

Postgraduate

Faculty of Engineering  JS5ZS] 550
and Information
Sciences

Faculty of Law, 768 88

Humanities and the
Arts

Faculty of Social 550 441
Sciences

Faculty of Science, 755 343
Medicine and Health

UOW is ranked in the top 1% in the world of universities
for the quality of graduates in the 2019 QS Graduate
Employability Rankings'®.

UOW has been particularly successful with respect to
Engineering & Technology which has a world ranking
of 177, comfortably in the top 200 worldwide. At the
subject level, Engineering — Mineral and Mining is
ranked 17th worldwide for university courses in this
discipline.

Research and industry
collaboration

UOW has a strong research focus, with over 270
academic and research collaborations worldwide. The
UOW Innovation Campus is a dedicated technology
precinct where organisations can co-locate with
leading research institutions and access an ecosystem
to create connections, build networks and fast track
their growth. UOW has an impressive track record in
collaborating with industry to drive new products and
processes, giving local companies a competitive edge
internationally.

The links between business and researchers are further
supported by Advantage SME (funded by the NSW
Government) UOW's in-house industry matchmaker.
Advantage SME helps businesses and researchers find
their ideal partners and build beneficial relationships.
Collaboration between UOW researchers and

industry solves complex, real-world problems, helping
businesses grow and prosper.

Fostering entrepreneurship

iAccelerate is UOW's business incubator and accelerator,
dedicated to helping innovative businesses and start-
ups build and grow, as well as support an innovative

business culture in the region.

The iAccelerate 2018 Economic Statement showed
iAccelerate has:"’

e Delivered 517 new jobs to the region since
2012;

* Supported 74 companies in 2018 in a range
of fields including tech, hardware, service,
education, health, wellbeing and social; and

* Launched 210 new products and submitted 40
IP protection applications in 2018.

In 2019, iAccelerate has added short three day courses
targeting businesses looking to improve their business
planning processes and learn about entrepreneurial
techniques. These are shorter versions of the full
incubator program and are targeted at existing business
owners looking to scale-up their businesses.

For technical skills, Illawarra TAFE has four campuses in
Wollongong which deliver post-school education across
a variety of industries and occupations including school-
based training, short courses, certificates, diplomas and
degrees.

Case study:
SMART Infrastructure
Facility

Established in 2011 by UOW, the SMART
Infrastructure Facility brings together experts
from fields such as transport, water, energy,
economics, modelling and simulation and
provides a state-of-the-art facility to support this
important research.

The dedicated team of researchers tackle
infrastructure issues from an integrated and
multi-disciplinary perspective, with a focus on
how infrastructure and social behaviour intersect
to ensure more liveable cities and regions.

An international leader in applied infrastructure
research, the SMART Infrastructure Facility

is helping to address the challenges of
infrastructure planning and management both
now and into the future.
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Close to Sydney and
international connections

Wollongong is just one hour south of Sydney, Australia’s largest city which
means international airport connections are only an hour away at Sydney’s
Kingsford Smith Airport. Looking ahead, Wollongong is also only an hour
away from the future Western Sydney Airport. Wollongong is also serviced
by the lllawarra Regional Airport, just 15 mins south of the Wollongong city
centre, which offers daily direct flights to Melbourne and Brisbane.

23 September 2019
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Wollongong needs to...

Change external perceptions

Advantage Wollongong is working to change outdated
perceptions about Wollongong so that people
understand the many benefits of locating a business in
the city.

Advantage Wollongong is a partnership between
Wollongong City Council, UOW and the NSW
Government. The partnership has a long term,
strategic approach to creating sustainable new jobs
and proeductive investment for Wollongong achieved
through the facilitation of significant new business
investment projects.

Business Perceptions Study

In 2017, Advantage Wollongong commissioned

IRIS to undertake a business perceptions study to
assess perceptions of doing business and investing
in Wollongong. Overall, the study identified external
awareness of Wollongong as a place to do business
is still generally weak. Wollongong was not on the

radar for most respondents. The study highlighted the
outdated perceptions of Wollongong as a steel city and
the associations with both ICAC and industrial disputes.

Strengths of Wollongong identified by the study
included its proximity to Sydney, its great liveability, and
UOW.

The findings of this study highlight the importance of
the ongoing work being undertaken by Advantage
Wollongong in changing perceptions and helping
the business community to understand the many
advantages of setting up in Wollongong.
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Reduce the impact of commuting

Wollongong has a large commuter pool, with around
23,000 residents across the wider region travelling to
Greater Sydney for work each day."®

On the one hand, the large commuter base means
Wollongong has a high-skilled ready-made workforce
for new or existing businesses to draw upon. It also
means local residents can access jobs in Sydney

that may offer higher levels of job satisfaction and/

or salaries. On the other hand, this daily loss of talent
from the region is associated with a number of negative
externalities - including high economic and social

costs borne by individual commuters, families and the
broader community. Reducing the size of the commuter
pool will also deliver a more connected and engaged
community.

The undesirability of long travel times is well recognised
by urban planners. For example, the Greater Sydney
Commission'’s plan for Sydney is built around the idea
of a ‘30 minute city’."” This means most residents living
within 30 minutes of where they work, access services
and enjoy recreational activities. Most Wollongong
residents already enjoy this lifestyle — but those in the
commuter pool do not.

The concept of the 30 minute city is based on multiple
studies (beginning with Yacov Zahavi® in the 1970s and
built on by Cesare Marchetti?' in the 1990s) which found
that over the entire history of cities people are willing

to spend only up to an hour a day travelling for work (ie
30 mins each way). Initially this meant as far as someone
could walk in 30 mins and then, as transport systems
evolved, it shifted to as far as people could drive.

Case study:

Cost of commuting: academic research findings

Examining the cost of commuting is an area that has
been well researched by behavioural economists and
psychologists.

A 2074 study by the UK's Office of National
Statistics?, based on responses from a sample of
60,200 people to the Annual Population Survey,
found significant impacts on the mental health of
commuters compared to non-commuters,

The key findings of the study were:
Holding all else equal, commuters have lower life

28

Beyond this 30 minute limit these studies observed
fewer people were willing to travel for work. Having a
large commuter base has a direct and immediate cost
to the Wollongong economy. The salary of a commuter
is still largely spent in Wollongong, where they live, on
everyday household needs. But a commuter is more
likely to also make purchases outside the region near
their place of work, such as groceries and discretionary
shopping, than a resident who also works in the
Wollongong LGA.

But the real cost of commuting is the direct cost on the
individual commuter such as the high social or health-
based costs associated with long journeys to work. This
includes a range of issues such as missing out on family
time, sleep deprivation, lack of time for exercise/sport
and a generally lower level of overall happiness and
well-being (see case study).

There is also a broader community cost of having

such a significant share of employees making long
commutes for work. These people are not as available
to participate fully in their local community through
volunteering, participating in sporting clubs, community
associations and cultural activities.

As a result of these high costs, regional planning
strategies across the world place considerable focus on
providing jobs close to where people live and reducing
the burden of commuting.

satisfaction, a lower sense that their daily activities
are worthwhile, lower levels of happiness and higher
anxiety an average than non-commuters. The worst
effects of commuting on personal well-being were
associated with journey times lasting between 61
and 90 minutes. On average, all four aspects of
personal well-being were negatively affected by
commutes of this duration when compared to those
travelling only 15 minutes or less to work.
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Encourage innovation and entrepreneurship

Entrepreneurship

An emerging area of entrepreneurship in Wollongong

is the growing start-up community, which often

involves tech-based businesses. One way this has been
encouraged is through programs such as iAccelerate.
There has also been a less structured formation of new
tech-based businesses that are choosing to locate in
Wollongong, develop their ideas and solutions and then
export them to the world.

This Strategy is not only about attracting new businesses
to the region, but also wants to encourage more local
residents to start a business, or encourage existing
businesses to expand. Wollongong is lagging behind
other LGAs in supporting entrepreneurship. Regional
Australia Institute®® research found that Wollongong

has lower levels of business owner-managers, at 12.1%,
versus 15.9% for regional NSW.

The Regional Australia Institute study findings are
supported by a business survey conducted by
Wollongong City Council which suggested even
established businesses in the LGA are cautious when it
comes to expanding their business.”

The survey question, which received 248 responses,
asked business owners about their plans for growing
their business over the next year. Most (81%) said they
were planning on either not growing their business at all
(38%) or only modestly and without taking on risk (43%).
Only 16% said they expected to experience strong
growth (such as growing sales and workforce) and only
3% said they would aggressively grow their business (eg
doubling the size of their workforce and turnover).
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Innovation

Today in Wellongong, local business owners display
high levels of innovation in their business operations.
This was also highlighted by recent research by the
Regional Australia Institute®® which found, based on
their matrix of innovation measures, that Wollongong
ranked third out of 95 LGAs in regional NSW in terms of
innovation.

Innovation can take many forms and does not need

to involve a major change in operations. Finding new
ways of completing an existing task is just as innovative
as launching a completely new product. Innovation

is significant because of the role it plays in driving
productivity and lifting potential economic growth. One
of the biggest influences on innovation in recent years
has been the incorporation of digital capabilities into
business operations.

In the last decade, there has been exceptional growth in
the number of small, largely tech based, entrepreneurial
ventures. These businesses seek to grow rapidly by
utilising opportunities provided by lean methodologies,
digital applications, decreasing barriers to entry,
abundance of skilled labour, readily available Venture
Capital funds (in some countries), and ready supply of
low rent office space.

Recent Australian Government research (see case study)
has also highlighted the benefits of having a business
community, especially a small business community,
willing to use digital-based innovation.

The Small Business Digital Taskforce released its
report to the Australian Government in March 2018%.
This report recommended the establishment of an
independent government-funded body to disseminate
digital information, via trusted advisers, to small
businesses about the benefits of going digital. The
Taskforce found digitisation offers the best opportunity
to lift productivity amongst small businesses.

Based on these findings, Wollongong’s large base of
SMEs (98% of all businesses) could stand to benefit
substantially from taking their businesses digital, with
flow-on impacts through the broader local economy.
Council, along with other partners and independent
government bodies, have an important role to play
in assisting businesses to embrace greater digital
transformation.

Case study:

Key findings of Small
Business Digital Taskforce

Productivity enhancements associated with
adopting digital technologies contributed over
$104 billion to Australia's GDP over the decade to
2014.

Those small businesses with advanced levels of
digital engagement were 50% more likely to be
growing revenue and 60% more likely to have
more revenue per employee, than businesses with
basic levels of digital engagement.

One third of their time — the amount of time the
average Australian small business spends dealing
with admin tasks

$56 billion — amount of money wasted per annum
by Australian & New Zealand businesses on
unnecessary, time consuming admin tasks

81 — the number of working days per year the
average small business spends on admin tasks
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Strategic
Objectives

Against the backdrop of these positive attributes and
identified challenges for Wollongong, this Strategy is
seeking to intervene in the current direction of the local
jobs market to achieve three key strategic objectives.

1 . Jobs target — generate 10,500 new jobs in the next
decade to reduce the jobs deficit. This will be more
than double the 4,998 net new jobs created in the
decade to 2018.

2. Lifting median incomes — focus on generating new
jobs in industries that are higher-paying, have a
greater share of full-time jobs and are expected to
grow in the future.

3. Targeted sectors align with talent pool - also
align the target industries with Wollongong's
existing talent pool, in particular commuters and
graduates of UOW.

This section outlines these objectives in detail, including
the underlying economic data used to develop them.

Jobs target —
10,500 in ten years

The central objective of the Economic Development
Strategy is to boost the number of jobs generated within
the Wollongong economy which, in turn, will create more
local job opportunities for the LGA's residents. Lifting
local employment oppaortunities will have a broad positive
impact on the Wollongong community, both economically
and socially. These jobs will be created in businesses that
cover a range of different structures that could include
major listed companies, small businesses, co-operatives
and social enterprises.

As illustrated in Fig 1 (see page 8), there have been
significant improvements in the unemployment rate in
Wollongong in recent years. The challenge is to continue
these positive improvements within a changing and
volatile labour market.

Not enough local jobs

Ideally, the Wollongong economy would generate
enough jobs to give all employed residents the
opportunity to work locally. Insufficient local jobs
generation leaves some of our residents with no choice
but to look outside Wollongong for work (details of the
size and impact of the commuter pocl are discussed on
page 37).

Currently, there are 94,554 local jobs in the Wollongong
LGA compared to 100,787 employed residents of
Wollongong.”

This gap between local jobs and employed residents,
known as the jobs deficit, has been present since 2002.
After peaking at 7,378 in 2016 (see Fig 6, page 32) this
number fell to 6,233 in 2018.

Another way of thinking about the jobs deficit is the
employment capacity of the economy. Currently, for every
100 employed residents in Wollongong there are 94 local
jobs available.

31
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Fig 6: Jobs deficit (local jobs v employed residents),

2000-2001 - 2017-2018

Manufacturing job losses

One of the main drivers in the Wollongong labour
market over the past decade has been the decline

in manufacturing employment. Manufacturing jobs
effectively halved over the decade from just over 12,000
in 2007-2008 to around 6,000 in 2017-2018. This was
triggered by workforce changes at local steel operations
which then had flow-on effects throughout the supply-
chain of the local economy, impacting engineering
services firms which had businesses heavily geared
towards servicing the city’s major steel manufacturer.
Manufacturing now represents just 6.6% of employment
in Wollongong, which is only just above the NSW
average of 6.5%. It remains, however, an important
sector in terms of its contribution to the local economy
and is still the largest export sector.

Jobs deficit still grows under
‘business as usual’

.id was commissioned to undertake an assessment of
the jobs deficit and provide analysis on the scope for
improvement over the next decade.?®

Initially they estimated a ‘business as usual’ jobs growth
projection, based on demographic and economic
forecasts. Both the NSW and Australian economies are
forecasting slower growth than has been experienced
over the previous decade. Forecasts were then
produced for how many jobs would be required to
maintain the employment capacity ratio of Wollongong
at its current level of 94 local jobs per 100 employed
residents.

The final stage of the estimation then calculated the
number of jobs that would need to be created to
improve the employment capacity and make inroads
into the jobs deficit.
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Fig 7 is the business as usual scenario which shows,
based on demographic trends and base-case economic
forecasts, by 2028 there will be 109,510 employed
residents of Wollongong for 100,359 local jobs. That is,
the modest improvements in the jobs deficit of recent
years is not forecast to continue, causing the jobs deficit
to widen to around 9,000 and the employment capacity
to fall to 0.92 (ie 92 local jobs for every 100 employed
residents). This represents annual average employment
growth of 0.6%, just above the 0.5% experienced over
the past decade.

In short, this scenario would see Wollongong's resident
workforce have proportionally fewer local employment
opportunities than currently.

1135k =
110k —f
105k —f —

— 100,395
100k =

Employment
]
i

94,554

T T T T T T T T T T 1
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

®— Employed Residents @ Local Jobs

Changing the jobs trajectory

The research concluded that, in order to improve
Wollongong's employment capacity, the economy
would need to grow local jobs by 10,500 over the next
ten years (or 1.1% per year).

As shown in Fig 8, page 33, the Wollongong economy
has created a net new 4,998 jobs in the ten years to

the end of 2018 (or 0.5% per year). Under the business
as usual scenario, outlined above, the number of new
local jobs is projected to grow by 5,805 in the decade
to 2028 (a growth rate of 0.6% per year). This equates to
92 local jobs per 100 employed residents.

If we were to aim to just keep the employment capacity
at its current level of 0.94, we would need to create
8,184 local jobs in the next ten years. This would lift the
annual average employment growth to 0.8%. To make
inroads into the jobs deficit, and lift the employment
capacity to 96 local jobs for every 100 employed
residents, the Wollongong economy needs to create
10,576 jobs in the next decade. This would require
lifting the annual average employment growth to 1.1%.
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If achieved, this jobs target would have a significant
impact on the jobs deficit. Fig 9 shows the two scenarios
facing Wollongong in 2028. Under business as usual

with no interventions, the deficit will widen to 9,151 (the

navy column). If the jobs target is achieved then the jobs

deficit will fall to 4,380 (aqua celumn) and be broadly in

line with where it was in 2013.
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Is such a turnaround possible?

This target of 10,500 is more than double the job creation results the Wollongong ecanomy has achieved in the
past ten years. Consequently, it is important to understand how achievable the jobs target is. .id reviewed the
performance of similar cities and regions in Australia to see if they had been able to achieve such gains and deliver

growth in local jobs that was faster than growth in the employed residents of their city.

These findings are summarised in Table 4.7

Table 4: Benchmark LGA Jobs Growth VS Employed Residents Growth, 2006-2018

Local jobs

growth

Employed
residents

Difference

growth

2.6% 2.3% 03%
2.4% 1.8% 03%
2.0% 1.8% 03%
1.3% 1.1% 0.1%
1.0% 0.9% 0.1%
1.5% 1.4% 0.1%
2.2% 2.1% 0.1%
2.8% 2.9% 0.1%
1.4% 1.5% 0.1%
1.6% 1.8% 0.2%
2.6% 2.8% 0.2%
3.8% 4.0% 0.2%
1.1% 1.3% 0.2%
0.9% 1.4% 0.5%

Benchmark analysis, Average annual growth in local jobs and employed residents, 2006 to 2018 Source: MIEIR, 2018

In short, there are a number of cities/regions across
Australia which did grow local jobs faster than the
growth in employed residents and thus narrowed their
jobs deficit.

As an example, the City of Greater Geelong
experienced similar falls to Wollongong in
manufacturing employment during the last decade

but managed to grow jobs faster than residents in key
high-income professional areas. This was largely due to
focussed public investment at a state and federal level
that contributed hundreds of millions of dollars in new

34

office construction during this period and almost 2,000
ongoing white-collar jobs.

In addition, the Wollongong economy is unlikely to face
the strong headwinds of the manufacturing job losses of
the previous ten years. If manufacturing job losses are
excluded, Wollongong’s local jobs growth would have
averaged 1.3% per year between 2008 and 2018. This
makes the 1.1% annual jobs growth required to reach
the jobs target look more achievable, even taking into
account the slowdown in macro-economic projections
that are forecast until 2028.
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Lifting median incomes o
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This Strategy also seeks to improve median incomes 500 9

across the LGA, which will have a direct positive impact
on residents. Consequently, we are targeting jobs that
can deliver a sustainable income into the future.

-500 —

Change in local workers
o
1

1000 —

Most job losses have been in '

higher paying jObs e Lowest Group f Medium I Medium ‘ Highest Group ‘

Lowest Highest

ncome quartile

Looking at income quartiles data between 2011 and
2016 (each quartile contains 25% of incomes) most of Source: ABS Census 2016 compiled in .id
the new jobs created between the census periods had
income levels at the lower end of the scale (see Fig
10). There has also been a decline in over 1,000 local
waorkers from the highest income quartile (ie those
earning > $1,750 per week or $91,000 per year).

Fig 10: Change in local worker individual income
quartiles 2011-2016

Gains and losses

The slower growth in median incomes is related to the types of jobs Wollongong has been gaining and losing in
recent years. Fig 11 highlights the top 5 sectors for job gains and losses.

+2,883

+1,559

+1,217 +1148

. +915
Health Care and Education and Accommodation Transport, Postal e
Social Assistance Training and Food Services and Warehousing SO Ces

Top 5 Industries for Job Growth and Decline (2013- 2018)

Growth

(2013 - 2018)

. . Information
Manufacturing Wholesale Trade Construction Media and Telecom-
munications

D 2 g

-535 -507 -140

-2,819

Fig 11: Top 5 Industries for Job Growth and Decline (2013-18)

The sectors that have seen the biggest job losses tend to be those with a higher propensity for higher-wage full-
time jobs (such as manufacturing and mining). In contrast, the biggest employment gains have been in sectors that
have a higher share of part-time/casual employment (social assistance, education and food services).
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Fig 12 highlights this point further, comparing the change in jobs in a sector with
the average wages produced by the sector. Many of the sectars which have had
strong jobs growth also have low wages growth and vice versa. Four out of the top
five growing sectors have median incomes less than $60,000 and six out of the nine
sectors with median incomes above $60,000 experienced decline or little growth.

Manufacturing

Wholesale trade

Information, media and telecommunications
Construction

Rental, hiring and real estate services
Mining

Financial and insurance services
Professional, scientific and technical services
Retail trade

Arts and recreation services

Administrative and support services

Public administration and safety

Electricity, gas, water and waste services
Education and training

Other services

Accommodation and food services
Transpert, postal and warehousing

Health care and social assistance

56K

T T T T T T

-60% -40% -20% 0% 20% 40% 60%

Ten year growth

Source: based on .|D data

ig 12: Sector employment gro
and median incomes (2017
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The talent pools

The final strategic objective of this Strategy is to target  group is specialist managers (2,000+ commuters),
growth in those industry sectors that align with the two ~ covering a range of sectors including advertising, public
large pools of skilled workers Wollongong has — the relations, human resources, tech, finance, logistics and
commuter pool and UOW graduates. The target sectors  construction — highlighting the talent pool available for
identified largely meet this criteria and could potentially  any business looking to locate or grow in Wollongong.
employ people from the commuter and graduate pools.

There are also over 8,000 blue-collar workers, including
The skills of the commuter pool cover a range of blue technicians and trades workers, sales workers,
collar (8,000) and white collar (14,000) industries. Almost ~ machinery operators, drivers and labourers.
two thirds of commuters work in predominantly white-
collar occupations, including nearly 9,000 managers
and professionals. Of these, the largest occupation

Table 5: lllawarra Commuter Pool

Occupation Number of Commuters Share of Total (%)
White Collar Workers 14,189 62.2
Managers 3,272 14.3
Professionals 5,715 25.0
Community and Personal Service 2,439 10.0
Workers

Clerical and Administrative Workers 121
Blue Collar Workers 8,291 36.3
Technicians and Trades Workers 3,642 16.0
Sales Workers 1,292 5.7
Machinery Operators and Drivers 1,933 8.5
Labourers 1,424 6.2
Inadequately Described/Not Stated 357 1.6
TOTAL 22,830 100

Source: ABS Census 2016

In terms of the graduate pool, more than half (59%) leave the lllawarra after they have graduated. This pool of
talent, like the commuters, is a valuable resource for current and potential employees in Wollongong.*

These graduates are recognised for their capability, quality and success in the global workplace. Details of the key
strengths of these graduates are outlined earlier in this Strategy (page 25) but include IT and engineering-based
disciplines.
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Targeted future sectors

The jobs deficit analysis shows that without this Strategy
the economy will create around 5,800 jobs. These jobs
will be in industries that service local residents such

as health, aged care, retail, hospitality and education.
These sectors will remain important employers

in Wollongong amid growth in the local resident
population.

.id identified a number of sectors that:
* Provide high median incomes

* Have a high full-time employment ratio in the
local job market

* Currently provide employment for a higher
share of residents than they do for local jobs
(suggests resident labour force has the skills
and could fill opportunities if they arise)

This Strategy is focused on the creation of the extra
4,700 jobs, that are above the business as usual
projection, to get to the target of 10,500. Jobs growth
in the targeted, knowledge-intensive, high value, high
skilled sectors, are not linked to population growth.
Instead they are industries who serve clients outside
the region and so have the capacity to grow the local
economy and employment faster than population
growth.

* Are expected to experience growth over the
next decade

These are summarised in tables 6 and 7.

The opportunities for job uplift from each of these

In order to shift the job mix in Wollongong towards
higher incomes, more full-time jobs (and therefore
support welfare outcomes), targeting growth in specific
sectors is required.

sectors is summarised in Table 6. Overall, these
broadly align with the sectors identified by Advantage
Wollongong.

Addressing the direct impacts of climate change is a
broader issue than Wollongong City Council can tackle
alone and is outside the direct scope of this Strategy.

Nevertheless, the Strategy indirectly contributes to
improved climate outcomes via its focus on knowledge-
based services industries into the future. These sectors
have a lower carbon footprint than the sectors that
dominated the Wollongong economy in the past.
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Table é: Target Sector Analysis - .id Consulting. Based on the Australian and New Zealand Standard Industry Classification

Industry Sector Income Higher | Forecast
>$65,000 Share of | Growth
residents

Agriculture,
Forestry and Fishing

Y

Electricity, Gas,
Water and Waste Services Y Y Y Y
N Y Y N

N N

N N Y

Transport, Postal and Warehousing Y N Y

Financial and Y Y Y Y
Insurance Services

Rental, Hiring and
Real Estate Services

Administrative
and Support Services N

N N Y Y

Education and Training

Health Care and Social Assistance N N N Y

Arts and Recreation Services N N N Y

N Y Y

39
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Table 7: Where are the jobs coming from? Based on .id consulting analysis

|ICT/Tech

Financial and Insurance
Services

Professional, Scientific and
Technical Services

Public Administration and Safety

Electricity, gas, water
and waste services

40

Build on growth of existing
tech industry and growth in
start-ups

Attract auxiliary finance firms
based on local expertise,
better support potentially

disruptive fintech companies.

Attraction of new regional
offices of private companies
and enabling high growth
of start-ups, including from
creative industries

Decentralisation of major
government agency

Attraction of headquarters
or major office of utilities
authority/company

23 September 2019

Item 5 - Attachment 1 - Draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029

Opportunity

* High capacity broadband
connections

* Secure data storage facilities
for businesses and public
sector entities requiring
high-security options

* Diversity of office space and/
or rentable studios

« High capacity broadband

connections
« Start-up/venture capital

» Available quality low rent
office space

* Boosting the range
(specialisation and scale) of
incubators and accelerator
programs

* | everaging recent
establishments for
investment promotion

¢ Providing a mixture of
A-grade and low rent office

space

* Improving accessibility to
Sydney and the airport

* Improving accessibility to
Sydney and the airport

¢ Upgraded lllawarra Airport

* Available high-grade
commercial space

 Quality convention and
training facilities

* Improving accessibility to
Sydney and the airport

* Available high-grade
commercial space
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Professional, Scientific and
Technical Services

Wollongong has strang potential to boost its jobs
generation in this sector and there is a substantial
resident labour pool to draw on from both the
commuter and graduate talent pools.

Many residents with expertise in these areas

are currently commuting outside the LGA for
work. There are currently 9,000 managers and
professionals who live in the Illawarra region but
work outside the LGA across Greater Sydney.

UOW is also a provider of talented employees to
fill jobs in this sector. *' Jobs gap analysis by field
of occupation, undertaken by .id, reinforces UOW's
acknowledged strengths by highlighting there are
key gaps between residents and job numbers in:

* Engineering (including environmental
engineering roles)

e law

The other key target in this sector would be in
Computer System Design and Related Services
industries building on the existing specialisation
Wollongong has in this area.

W /R DS R

This sector also includes many creative based
occupations such as professional photographers,
jewellery designers, graphic designers, sign-
writers, architects, film-makers and marketing
specialists.

Public Administration

Decentralisation of federal or state government
administrative offices have a history of supporting
the retention and attraction of qualified residents
and encouraging new investment. For example,
Geelong has secured the following government
offices in recent years:*

 The Transport Accident Commission successfully
relocated to Geelong in 2009 supporting 650
employees.

* WorkSafe Victoria started relocating in 2016 and
in 2018, 700 employees moved into a brand new
$120 million A-Grade Office building.

s The National Disability Insurance Agency which
currently supports 300 jobs and is expected
to rise to over 500 upon completion of a new
dedicated office building.

\
e

Wollongong already hosts the Australian
Taxation Office (400 employees) and the state
headquarters of the SES. High quality transport
and communication infrastructure, low office
rental costs, and access to a skilled labour force
means a transfer of additional operations could
happen comparatively easily.

Electricity, Gas, Water and
Waste Services

The city is well placed to support the commercial
operations of a large utilities company. These
offices often provide a substantial boost to jobs
and local incomes. For example, Port Macquarie
is home to the headquarters of Essential Energy
supporting over 600 jobs in the city with the
median income of these jobs being just over
$98,000 in 2016.

Financial and Insurance

Services -

Wollongong has an acknowledged specialisation
in financial, insurance services and superannuation
funds administration. Organisations such as
Mercer, IMB Bank, ICU, PeopleCare and IAG call
Wollongong home. Wollongong is also uniquely
equipped to deal with the significant disruptions
the industry faces over the next five years, due to
competition from non-traditional entrants to the
sector.

The combination of existing expertise and a
skilled talent pool could spur a number of Fintech
start-up enterprises if supported by venture funds
and adequate mentorship (eg accelerators).

ICT/Tech

Wollongong is already home to several successful
ICT based companies that have an established
presence in national and international markets
and UOW is obviously a recognised preducer of
IT talent. ICT companies located in Wollongong
include NEC, Accelo, iTree, Easy Agile and
Internetrix.

The talent pool of graduates represents an
ongoing source of future employees for the tech
sector. For example, in 2016 more than half (57%)
of young graduates in this field who were living in
Wollongong in 2011 were working elsewhere by
2016 as they left Wollongong to gain employment
elsewhere

41
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Additional Advantage Wollongong targeted
sectors

Along with the sectors identified by .id, Advantage Waollongong is also targeting the following additional industries
as future drivers of employment growth. These additional industries have been identified based on the experience
developed during the 10 year Advantage Wollongong partnership. These sectors are also targeted in this Strategy.

Advanced Manufacturing

Continued transformation in local manufacturing will
influence the ability to generate or maintain jobs.
Wollongong has expertise and capabilities in a number
of specific sub-areas combined with UOW's research
base in advanced materials and technologies.

Wollongong has strong supply-chain linkages through
the advanced manufacturing sector, as a result of its
90-year history in heavy manufacturing. Wollongong's
advanced manufacturing sector is fast changing and
diversifying, with significant operations in industrial,
chemicals, mining, defence, construction, textiles and
food and beverage, as well as exploring opportunites in
emerging fields such as renewable energy.

Wollongong's research and manufacturing credentials
around sustainable energy use were highlighted in 2018

in Dubai when a team of UOW and TAFE students and
researchers collaborated, with industry support, to build
the Desert Rose House. This project combined energy-
saving construction techniques and materials with smart
‘Internet of Things’ technology to build a sustainable
house that also promotes well-being and adapts to the
occupants’ needs as they age, including those living
with early stage dementia. This project showcased
Wollengeng's capabilities on the world stage and came
second in the prestigious Solar Decathlon 2018.

Local companies compete locally, nationally and
internationally by targeting niches which value high-
quality, high-performance manufactured product.
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Defence

Wollongong has a well-developed ecosystem

of organisations involved with defence related
procurement activities including a range of
manufacturing services as well as research activities.
Wollongong companies offer a wide-range of products
and services with growing opportunities to service the
defence industries. These include:

¢ Military-grade communications systems
* Armoured steel plate

¢ High-end welding and engineering

¢ Engineered plastics and polyurethane

* Electrical isolators and enclosures

* Specialist protective coatings

¢ Base safety systems

* Ruggedised medical computing devices
* Specialist labour services

The armoured steel for the Collins-class submarines,
Adelaide-class frigates and the Hobart-class Air
Warfare Destroyers (AWD) projects was manufactured
in Wollongong. Leading defence research and
development organisations in Wollongong include:

® Defence Materials Technology Centre (DMTC)

® The SMART Infrastructure Facility

® The Steel Research Hub

* The Centre for Computer and Information
Security Research

Medical Science and
Technology

Wollongong's growing medical science and technology
sector is supported by a network of service partners
including leading researchers and education providers
linked to UOW, and private and public health
practitioners.

UOW continues to produce excellent health graduates in
fields including medicine, nursing, medical and exercise
science, nutrition and dietetics and Indigenous health.

Advantage Wollongong will be targeting organisations
who provide support services and innovative products/
technology. Advantage Wollongong will also target allied
and mental health companies that have a strang focus on
R&D and innovation in treatment.

Scale-ups

Wollongong already has a reputation for being an
incubator city to start-ups though iAccelerate. While
Sydney hosts the nation’s largest collection of tech
start-ups, our proximity to and support of the start-up
ecosystem is a major advantage.

Wollongong's supportive business networks, along
with access to a highly skilled workforce, including a
large graduate pool, attract entrepreneurs who have
successfully commercialised their business, secured
investment and are ready for accelerated growth.

Creative Industries and Arts

Wollongong City Council is also committed to fostering
growth in creative industries. This is highlighted

in Wollongong City Council’s dedicated Creative
Wollongong 2019-24 plan which is focused on how
Wollongong can foster its creative skills. Council
recognises that these occupations, some of which

also fall into the professional, scientific and technical
services sector, play a key role in the broader vibrancy of
Wollongong and underpin the great liveability residents
enjoy. Wollongong has a very passionate and active
creative community. During the development of Creative
Wollongong many people working in these types of jobs
expressed concern about having to move out of the area
to chase opportunities.

Case study:

The sector analysis (Table 6) highlights that mining
offers well paid jobs that are largely full-time, which
are the industry characteristics this Strategy is
seeking to capitalise on.

The challenge for the sector is that climate change,
and the resulting trend towards the decarbonisation
of the energy sector, is reducing the attractiveness
of the broad mining sector for investors. Hence, the
analysis flags mining as an industry that may not
display high growth going forward.

For the lllawarra-based mining sector, however, the
outlook is more positive. Coal mined in the lllawarra

llawarra coal used for steel making not energy

is metallurgical which is coal used in the steel-making
process rather than in power stations. This means
that the impact of the decarbonisation of the energy
sector will be more muted on the lllawarra than those
regions that predominantly mine coal used in power
stations.

The coal mined in the area also has important
linkages across the local economy, via its direct use
in steel making and its shipment to export markets
via Port Kembla. These supply linkages, through
high-skilled well-paying largely full-time jobs, also
support economic growth across the broader
population-serving sectors of the economy.
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Part 2
Achieving the objectives

This Strategy takes an interventionist approach and
looks to change the trajectory of business as usual jobs
growth in Wollongong. This will require multiple policy
changes to achieve, which are outlined in further detail
in the remainder of this Strategy.

Firstly, there are a number of potential game-changer
projects that, if delivered, will contribute to reaching
the jobs target and achieving the secondary objectives
around lifting median incomes and increasing local

employment opportunities for people currently
commuting for work or forced to leave the region once
their tertiary studies are completed.

Secondly, Council has its own policy levers that will
contribute to place a higher priority on jobs growth
within Council’s own actions and priorities. The specific
actions Council can take are detailed in the Action Plan
section of the Strategy.

Potential game-changers

As well as Council’s direct actions, there are a number of external ‘game-changers’ - significant projects or activities
- that could have a major impact on Wollongong's labour market if delivered.

The game-changers we have identified are:

1. Critical transport projects to reduce the travel

time between Wollongong and Sydney

2. Capitalising on the growth of Western Sydney

and the development of the Aerotropolis

3. Increase the office capacity in the
Wollongong city centre

4. Development of unused and underutilised
employment lands

5. Attraction of more major events and tourism
infrastructure

6. Completion of the Australian Industrial Gas
Energy Terminal project

7. Establishment of a city centre university
campus

8. Delivery of the Port Kembla container
terminal project

9. Further evolving as a smart city

10. Improving the effectiveness of our advocacy

23 September 2019
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1. Critical transport projects

Wollongong to Greater
Sydney connections

Historically the focus has been on moving freight and
people between Wollongong and the Sydney CBD.
However, in line with the work of the Greater Sydney
Planning Commission, there is now recognition that
Sydney is three cities — Eastern (around the CBD),
Central (around Parramatta) and Western (around

the new Western Sydney airport). Consequently,
transport planning needs to also focus on improving
connections between Wollongong and the Central

and Western cities, both of which will be experiencing
rapid population and employment growth in the future.
Hence there needs to be a focus on infrastructure
projects that head west - such as the South Western
lllawarra Rail Line (SWIRL) — and not just those that head
north to the traditional Sydney CBD.

In 2016, 65% of lllawarra commuters to Greater Sydney
travelled to work by private motor vehicle. Another 20%
travelled by public transport, the majority by train.**

There are a number of transport projects that are
critical to Wollongong and the broader region, at
various stages of planning, which have the potential
to boost employment growth in Wollongong. These
projects are largely focussed on reducing travel times
and congestion on the key arterial road and rail links
between the lllawarra and Greater Sydney.

The 360 lllawarra Shoalhaven Economic Qutlook,
completed in 2018, notes the importance of improving
connections between Sydney and Wollongong as
critical to enhancing employment options, business
opportunities and liveability for the region.®

SWIRL

The SMART Infrastructure Facility at UOW undertook
an examination into measures to improve the speed
and reliability of rail connectivity between the lllawarra
and Sydney.* A primary recommendation of the report
was the construction of the passenger and freight
South West Illawarra Rail Line (SWIRL), by completing
and electrifying the Maldon-Dombarton line and the
electrification of the Maoss Vale — Unanderra line. The
SWIRL link will provide an important connection to the
growth area of South West Sydney. The estimated cost
for this project was $1.7 billion. Economic modelling
found a benefit-cost ratio of 1.13 and would add $2.6
billion in GRP for the lllawarra.

The new Western Sydney Airport, which was approved
after this study was completed, would further enhance
these benefits and provide a significant economic
opportunity for the lllawarra region. The delivery of

SWIRL also makes sense from a risk management
perspective. It will provide an alternate passenger and
freight link to Sydney should the South Coast Line
either reach capacity or experience temporary service
disruptions.

South Coast Line upgrades

Duplication of the South Coast rail line is essential to
cater for both growing freight and passenger demand
to the CBD and Port Botany/Airport regions. The NSW
Transport 2056 report estimates this line will reach
capacity by 2031.%

In addition, improvements to the track, such as
removing bends, could increase both speed and
capacity.

Mount Ousley interchange and
widening

This important arterial link down the Illawarra
Escarpment already operates at capacity during certain
periods of the day, making this upgrade project a major
priority.

The NSW Government has committed funds to
improving the interchange at the bottom of Mount
Ousley. However, the current lack of capacity at peak
times suggests the road also needs to be widened so
that the southbound carriageway is three lanes for the
whole length of the descent down the escarpment. The
NSW Government has not yet committed to funding the
widening project.

Picton Road

Picton Road is a major freight connection between the
M1 Princes Motorway and the M31 Hume Motorway.
The SMART Infrastructure Facility estimates this road
is likely to reach capacity by 2025 and needs to be
upgraded to a full four-lane divided highway.*

Almost a quarter of its 20,000 daily vehicle movements
are heavy vehicles. Currently the 27km stretch of road
between the two major motorways is largely single lane,
with 8kms of passing lanes in various sections. To date,
funding has only been allocated to convert 3km of the
road to dual-carriageway (Hume Motorway to Almond
Street). Improvements in recent years have focussed on
safety enhancements.

45
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F6 Extension Cost-benefit estimates

There is currently no motorway standard route between  The lllawarra Business Chamber has undertaken
the Sydney motorway network and the M1 Motorway at  a number of studies to estimate the benefits of

Waterfall. Demand for road travel along this corridor is infrastructure projects in the region, which are detailed
high and the arterial network is at capacity during peak  in Table 8. The table also includes the government
periods. The three crossings of the Georges River, which  views expressed in the current NSW Transport 2056 and
together accommodate almost 200,000 trips per day, Infrastructure Australia Priority List.

are at or close to capacity.
As outlined in Table 8, many of these projects are only

This leads to long travel times, because of slower listed for investigation over the next decade by the
speeds and intersections on arterial roads, and NSW Government in its Transport 2056 plan. More
congestion. The initiative proposes a motorway recently the NSW Government announced in December

connection between the Sydney motorway network and 2018 that it is investigating the opportunity for high-

the M1 at Waterfall. The New South Wales Government  speed rail links along four corridors between Sydney

has committed to construct Stage 1 of the link between  and regional NSW, including the Nowra-Wollongong

WestConnex (New M5) and President Avenue at corridor. This process will begin in 2019 with the initial

Kogarah. focus on how to make existing infrastructure work better
and accommodate trains travelling up to 200km/hr.
Further funding, beyond the $4.6 million for the initial
feasibility study, has not yet been committed.

Table 8: Critical Transport Projects for the lllawarra Region

2019

Sector Reduce travel Benefits Project cost | Required | Transport Infrastructure

time by Illawarra/yr by (IBC) | 2056 Australia
priority list

South West 31 mins $74m $1.7b 2028 10-20 years 0-5 years
[llawarra Rail Link (Campbelltown) investigation (freight

(SWIRL) 34 mins component -
(Liverpool) rail access for
Port Kembla)
Mt Qusley Unavailable $46m $220m - 2025 0-10 years No comment
interchange and $330m committed
widening (Widening) (Interchange
only)
Picton Rd Unavailable $42m $180m - 2025 0-10 years 5-10 years [not
upgrade $220m investigation  full dual-carriage
(Dual way)
Carriageway)
Fé extension 27 mins $67m $8.6b - 2025 0-10 years 5-10 years
(Stages 1,2,3) (Sydney CBD) $10.4b committed
(Stage 1)
0-10 years
investigation
(Stage 2 & 3)
South Coast Line 15-30 mins $55m $2b 2030 0-10 years 10-15 years
upgrade {Central Station) investigation

Seurce: Illawarra Business Chamber (2017) Upgrading rail connectivity between lllawarra and Sydney; lllawarra Business Chamber (2018) Upgrading road
connectivity between the lllawarra and Greater Sydney; NSW Government (2018) Future Transport Strategy 2056; Infrastructure Australia (2019) Infrastructure
Pricrity List
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Improving inter-city
connectivity times

This idea of improved connectivity between the regional

cities around Sydney — Wollongong, Central Coast and
Newcastle - has also been explored by the Committee
for Sydney.*” This analysis found that by reducing travel
times between Wollongong and Sydney to 60 mins

(from around 90 mins currently) could result in a shift in
housing demand, populations and employment out of

Sydney and towards the regional cities which offer more
affordable and attractive lifestyles. This report estimated

that by 2036 the 60 min train connection could result in
an additional 10,000 dwellings in Wollongong.

Furthermore, after an initial increase in employment
flows towards Sydney (as new residents kept working
in Sydney), ultimately the 60 min shift would result in
this trend reversing as businesses were also attracted
by the benefits of locating in the regional cities. The

study found that by 2036 an additional 4,725 jobs could

be created in Wollongong. For context, this represents
just under half of the 2028 jobs target outlined in this
Strategy.

Regional transport
infrastructure

Significant employment opportunities could also be
delivered to Wollongong via improvements in regional
infrastructure. Investment in neighbouring LGAs has an
impact on potential jobs growth in Wollongong.

- T
T ol oy

The lllawarra Regional Airport currently has a single
operator offering commercial flights between
Wollongong and Melbourne/Brisbane. Topographical
challenges, caused by the proximity of the airport to the
escarpment, mean there is only limited opportunity to
land larger commercial jets. Nevertheless, the expansion
of routes and/or cperators would have a positive impact
on both tourism and business travel to Wollongong. The
recently announced upgrade to the airport ($16 million)
highlights the important role this transport connection
has for the broader lllawarra region.

The free ‘Gong Shuttle provides impaortant links around
the key employment precinct of the city, university

and health precincts. This connects businesses and
customers and allows employees to move around the
area via free public transport.

The Moss Vale - Unanderra freight line delivers a critical
link between the Main South Line, which connects
through to Sydney, and the Port of Port Kembla. It too
has geographic challenges because of the steep nature
of the climb. Upgrades to the line, even if the SWIRL
project is delivered, are critical for the future of logistics
and freight transport in Wollongong and the broader
region.

These upgrades are becoming increasingly important as
the lllawarra Line (a joint freight and passenger line) gets
closer to reaching capacity. This issue was most recently
highlighted by Infrastructure Australia, which listed

this project, as part of rail connectivity of the Port of
Port Kembla, as a Priority Initiative in its February 2019
update.*

23 September 2019
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Another key freight and passenger connection in the The soon to be opened $150 million Shell Cove

region is the Princes Highway, which runs through the Marina is a major piece of tourism infrastructure that
lllawarra and into Victoria. The South East Australian could deliver region-wide benefits if encouraged
Transport Strategy (SEATS) group has advocated for to grow. When completed, it will create around

many years to have the highway raised to dual-carriage 3,000 prime residential lots, a 300 berth marina

way standard. Substantial work has been done south constructed within an in-shore boat harbour, an 18- hole
of Nowra and to the Jervis Bay area in recent years. championship-standard golf course, community parks
The Australian Government (in partnership with the and playgrounds, cycleways, and a range of quality
NSW, Victorian and South Australian governments) commercial, retail, tourist, community and recreational
is preparing a corridor plan for the Princes Highway, facilities.

including releasing an issues paper in early 2019.%"
In summary, all these transport projects, linking

Most recently, the current NSW Government has Wollongong and the broader region with opportunities
committed $1 billion to the Princes Highway on the in Greater Sydney and regional NSW, have the

NSW South Coast which will cover converting a 20km potential to be major game changers for job creation in
section between Sussex Inlet and Jervis Bay to dual- Wollongong and should continue to be a major focus of

carriage way and by-passes for Milton and Ulladulla. advocacy for Council in its civic leadership role.
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2. Western Sydney Aerotropolis

The new Western Sydney Aerotropolis presents a The 360 lllawarra Shoalhaven Economic Outlook®
significant opportunity for the Wollongong economy. It notes that the Western Sydney Airport will provide long
will provide support for an estimated 200,000 new jobs ~ term economic and employment opportunities and
and establish a new high-skill jobs hub across aerospace  accelerate the development of critical infrastructure

and defence, manufacturing, healthcare, freight and urban development. Industries in freight, logistics,
and logistics, agribusiness, education and research tourism and construction services are set to significantly
industries. benefit from the development.

There will be direct opportunities for Wollongong- Wollongong will need to take active steps to capitalise
based businesses during the construction phase of on this game-changing opportunity, recognising that
the airport and the Aerotropolis over the next decade. options to improve road and rail connectivity between

Once operational, Wollongong-based businesses could  the two areas will be essential to allow the region to
continue to service the airport and those operating out  capitalise on this development and open it up to a new
of the Aerotropalis. There will also be opportunities market.

for UOW to engage in the educational components of

the new city (see case study). The emergence of this

new city in Western Sydney provides further evidence

why enhanced connectivity between Wollongong and

Western Sydney is critical.

-
L]
®
Case study
. M i r
UOW joins ‘Super Campus
UOW will join the University of Newcastle, the University of NSW and Western Sydney University to
develop a combined ‘Multiversity” at the new aerotropolis in Western Sydney.
The four universities will create one campus that has a focus on science, technology, engineering and
mathematics (STEM) education.
Stage 1 of the development is expected to be completed around the time the airport opens in 2026.
|
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3. Increase office capacity in city centre

The Property Council found that there is currently a
shortage of office space in the city centre. The vacancy
rate for A-grade is 1.4%.%

Office space that is available is often low grade and in
buildings that, for a variety of reasons, are not being
upgraded or improved. This limits the options for
businesses to expand or start-up and places a constraint
on job creation in the city centre.

Locking ahead, there is a current pipeline of projects,
with 70,000 sgm of DA approved commercial space

in the city centre, including the four largest office
developments representing over 30,000 sgm in A-grade
office space. These could come on line within the next
24 months.

The future capacity of Wollongong city centre is
currently being examined by Wollongong City Council
via a project looking specifically at the future planning
needs of the city centre. Preliminary findings from this
project suggest at least 120,000 sqm of new office
space will be needed by 2036 to accommodate future
employment demand. That is, four times the capacity of
the new buildings currently under construction.

The role of Metro Wollongong as a key employment
precinct, as outlined earlier in this Strategy, is likely to
continue into the future. Currently, Metro Wollongong
accounts for 29% of employment in the LGA.* The
sectors this Strategy is targeting for the future are also
likely to be located in and around the city centre, again
highlighting the importance of future strategic planning
decisions to ensure there is sufficient office space in the

city centre to accommodate new jobs.

A significant game-changer for Wollongong would be if
the current investments in office space were followed by
further major developments. This would mean existing
businesses could easily find bigger premises to grow
and new businesses would have no concerns about
finding a suitable location.

Wollongong’s

future office needs

The lllawarra Shoalhaven Regional Strategy
identifies the need for more office space in the
Wollongong CBD.

Action ltem 1.1.1 notes:

“More high-quality office space is needed in the
commercial core to build Metro Wollongong's
reputation as a nationally significant city and as a
location to do business — one that can capitalise
on its proximity to global markets in Sydney
and an increasing number of skilled workers.

The priority is to make more high-quality office
space available and increase the quality of public
spaces in the commercial core so that it becomes
more attractive for investment and a place to do
business.”
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4. Develop unused and underutilised

employment lands

The NSW Government's lllawarra Shoalhaven Regional
Plan notes the importance of developing vacant
employment lands.® It states;

“The growth of Port Kembla is driving demand from
port related industries for large industrial land sites and
warehousing facilities, such as new logistics and freight
handling facilities at Kembla Grange. Demand is
expected to continue as the development plans for the
outer harbour precinct are realised and the port opens
up to containerised trade.”

Wollongong City Council acknowledges the importance
of preserving these industrial lands to ensure industry
has access to appropriately zoned land into the future.

Development of these employment lands, which

are largely privately owned, represent a significant
opportunity for the region’s manufacturing industry. The
region has seen an increase in interest from industrial
and manufacturing business located in Southern and
Western Sydney who are being squeezed out by
demand for rezoning of industrial land to residential
land.

Those looking for larger parcels, in particular, are
unable to be assisted based on the current supply
of serviceable industrial land. This inability to
provide suitable land for new businesses represents
a lost employment and investment opportunity in
Wollongong.

According to the NSW Government?, there is currently
282 hectares of undeveloped employment land zoned
in the Wollongong LGA of which 85% or just over 239
hectares is zoned industrial, with the remaining reserved
as enterprise corridor/business park (see Fig 13). The
majority of this land is around the Port of Port Kembla,
Unanderra and West Dapto.

B7 Business park

B6 Enterprise
corridor

IN1 General industrial

IN3 Heavy
industrial

IN2 Light
industrial

Source: NSW Department of Planning and Environment 2018, Employment
Land Supply Monitor, lllawarra-Shoalhaven Region

*NB -there is a small propartian of employment land zoned Special Purpose
(SP1) that has been left out of the above figure due to insignificance

Fig 13: Undeveloped employment land, 2

Wollongong LGA

Work is currently being undertaken by the NSW
Government, working with the private land owner,
around the identification of potential surplus sites.

An audit” in 2014 found that sewer services are not
provided to 67% of vacant industrial land. Potable
water is not provided to 42% of vacant industrial land.
Electricity is not provided to 22% of vacant industrial
land. Releasing and servicing these lands would be a
significant game-changer for local manufacturers in
particular.

97



\r
wollongong

city of innovation

52

Ordinary Meeting of Council

23 September 2019

Item 5 - Attachment 1 - Draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029

5. Attract more major events and tourism

infrastructure

Major Events

Hosting more, and higher profile, major cultural and
sporting events would deliver both short and long- term
benefits to Wollongong.

The direct short-term benefit is the economic impact
of visitors to the event who spend on accommodation,
activities and hospitality. This provides an immediate,
but short-term, injection of economic activity across

a range of businesses including accommodation,
restaurants and transport.

Major events also provide longer-lasting benefits.
They showcase the city to a new audience and provide
invaluable publicity. For Wollongong, hosting major
events plays a significant role in changing external
perceptions about the city.

Events such as surf lifesaving’s Ocean 6 series have
proven to be an effective way of showcasing the city to
the world, with the 2018 edition beamed into 1.7 million
households across the world according to Destination
Wollongong. Similarly, social media exposure is also
crucial to changing perceptions about Wollongong.
According to data compiled by Destination
Wollongong, the Corona Sunsets music festival held on
Wollongong's North Beach in late 2018 directly resulted
in an estimated $1.9 million in tourism spending but,
more importantly, it was beamed to the world on a ten-
hour live stream, viewed by an estimated 500 million
people.*®

The future focus on major events is outlined in
Destination Wollongong's Major Events Strategy
2016-2020. This document outlines the organisation’s
intention to attract a ‘pyramid’ (see Fig 14) of events
each year — ranging from 1-2 signature events through
to unlimited numbers of community based events.

SIGNATURE
EVENTS
1-2 PER YEAR

MAJOR EVENTS
3-5 PER YEAR

KEY REGIONAL EVENTS
10-15 PER YEAR

COMMUNITY EVENTS
UNLIMITED

Fig 14: Destination Wollongong's events pyramid

Business-related events, or events that attract significant
numbers of senior business executives, also support

the focus of Advantage Wollongong. The right type

of event can encourage visiting business owners

to reconsider Wollongong as a place to establish a
business. However, the lack of a dedicated Convention
Centre in Wollongong is a major inhibitor to attracting
business events (see case study on next page).

Case study:
UCI World Road Cycling

Wollongong has been awarded the UCI Road
World Championships in late 2022. The week long
festival of cycling will encompass more than 1000
of the world’s best cyclists racing across Under

19, Under 23 and Elite categories for the coveted
rainbow jerseys in the individual time trial, road
race and mixed team relay.

The event is expected to attract 300,000
spectators, 500 media outlets and a global
viewing audience in excess of 200 million people
and directly deliver up to $100 million in tourism
spending.

In addition to the week long event in 2022,
hosting includes multiple warm-up events and
team training camps leading up to 2022 and being
designated a world cycling city for the three years
after the event.
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Case study:

Wollongong Convention and
Entertainment Centre

In March 2017 MacroPlanDimasi were commissioned
(by Wollongong City Council, RDA Illawarra,
Destination Wollongeng and the NSW Dept

of Industry) to undertake a market assessment,
economic impact assessment and benefit-

cost assessment of an upgrade to the current
entertainment centre facilities.

The report considered a $60.4 million upgrade which
included two new levels of 1600sgm of function
rooms, a 1,000sgqm sky deck, a café, environmental
improvements, upgraded back-of-house facilities,
major building construction works and a new AV
system.

This report demonstrated a strong case for the
upgrade. MacroPlanDimasi concluded that: Having
regard for the low project cost, conservative
methodology, the strong cost benefit ratio of 2.6 to
1, the extraordinarily strong competitive advantages
of the project and the broad economic, social and
cultural penetration of the project outcomes that this
project should be funded.”

Tourism infrastructure

Wollongong needs to invest in its tourism infrastructure
if it is to build on the impact of major events and
expand its tourism industry. This includes investment in
additional beds and new attractions.

Destination Wollongong estimates that Wollongong
currently has around 2,000 beds available each night
(within 30 mins of the CBD). However, Destination
Wollongong is concerned about the imminent loss of
150 beds and the loss of up to 400 beds over the next
5 years. Destination Wollongong has raised its concerns
about this situation and the need for a Tourism Lands
Review.

Destination Wollongong is building on Wollengong's
marine-related tourism credentials by establishing the
Cruise Wollongong initiative. This focusses on attracting
cruise ships to the city.

The NSW Government's Cruise Development Plan
recognised that while Sydney will remain the preferred
cruise port for the State, a network of smaller regional
ports is also needed to maximise the benefit of the
industry to the State economy. This includes Port
Kembla, which can be used as a transit port, but would
benefit from infrastructure to support cruise visit calls to
welcome and process passengers.®

Another key infrastructure asset of the city is the
Wollongeng Entertainment Centre (WEC). This

venue has a maximum capacity of 6,000 with flexible
configurations that can host various events, including
concerts, dinners, seminars, conferences, school formals
and exhibitions. It is also home to the NBL team, the
lllawarra Hawks. Venues NSW is currently developing a
Master Plan for the venue which will provide a blueprint
for potential uses and investment into the future (see
case study.)

In summary, the attraction of major events and major
tourism infrastructure investment would be a game-
changer for the local tourism industry and has the
potential to deliver benefits throughout the broader
economy via improved perceptions about Wollongong.
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6. Australian Industrial
Energy Gas Terminal

Australia’s first Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG) terminal
with Australian Industrial Energy (AIE) Group has
recenty received development consent to build a $250
million floating import terminal at Port Kembla. The
Port Kembla Gas Terminal will, in its first phase, supply
around 100 petajoules of natural gas per annum to gas
users - equivalent to approximately 75% of NSW's total
gas needs.

Advantage Wollongong and local business groups
worked closely with AIE Group leading up to the
announcement and subsequently the project has strong
support from the broader business community.

This project was recently declared Critical State
Significant Infrastructure by the NSW Government,
which will assist in fast tracking the approval process. In
terms of direct benefits, the proponents of the project
estimate it will create around 130 to 150 jobs during
construction and between 40 to 50 ongoing roles during
operations. Such a facility would act as a major attractor
for advanced manufacturing businesses, many of which
are gas intensive operations.

Wollongong was one of three NSW industrial ports
considered for the location of the LNG gas terminal. In
choosing Wollongong, AIE Group acknowledged strong
local suppaort for the project, access to existing pipeline
infrastructure, Port Kembla's berth configurations and
the proximity of large industrial consumers as key factors
in choosing Wollongong.

/. City centre university
campus

International trends have been to locate universities into
downtown areas to capitalise on the proximity benefits
of placing students near the business community that
will employ them as graduates.

University campuses have the capacity to act as catalysts
for business growth, particularly when located in a city
centre alongside the businesses who are potential future
employers and research collaborators.

A 2017 study by the Property Council of Australia®’,
looking specifically at the option of locating a CBD
campus in Darwin, a featured case study highlighted the
benefits that flowed to Newcastle when it built a CBD
campus (see case study). It is still too early to directly
measure the benefits of the CBD campus decision but
the report noted commercial vacancy rates have fallen
to 4% from 20% in 2008 and building approvals in the
CBD have risen from $73 million in 2013-2014 to $289
million in 2015-2016.

Currently, Wollongeng’s only university campus is
located 3.5km to the north of Wollongong's city centre.
The benefits of a city centre campus are already
recognised by the UOW, which has recently undertaken
a CBD-campus project in Liverpool.

A city centre campus would play a critical role in adding
to the ongoing revitalising of the city centre in terms of
encouraging students to live in the city and enjoy the
high levels of amenity that city-based living can offer.

The UOW already recognises the role of international
campuses to a university, with its own two international
campuses. The presence of multiple university
campuses in the city centre would also aid in improving
the external perception of Wollongong and reinforce
the key messages of Advantage Wollongong around the
areas skilled workforce.
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Case study:

CBD university campuses in Newcastle

Newcastle University recently opened NeW Space, a $95 million landmark education precinct in the
heart of Newcastle’s CBD. NeW Space harnesses the latest in technology and innovation in teaching and
learning to deliver a world-class student experience by engaging students in new and exciting ways.

The precinct is also home to the Conservatorium of Music, the Newcastle Legal Centre and the Newcastle
Graduate School of Business. The city campus provides opportunities to strengthen relations with the
business community and increases the number of opportunities for students to integrate their studies with
work placements.

Newcastle has also attracted an international university, with Japan's Nihon University purchasing an old
court house facility in late 2017 to be used to initially support around 200 law students. This site is still
being refurbished.

Based on the success of this project, the Greater Newcastle Metropolitan Plan 2036 has set a target for
four university campuses in Greater Newcastle by 2036.

23 September 2019
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8. Port Kembla Container Terminal

The Port of Port Kembla is a significant economic asset
for Wollongong and the broader lllawarra. It contributes
$760 million per year to the NSW economy and
supports 5,200 jobs.*2 The NSW Government's Freight
and Ports Plan 2018-2023 describes the Port of Port
Kembla as:

NSW's largest terminal for vehicle imports

and grain exports, and the second largest
terminal for coal exports. Port Kembla has been
identified as the location for the development
of a future container terminal to augment
capacity of Port Botany when required.>

The NSW Government's commitment to the Port of Port
Kembla was recently renewed against the backdrop

of emerging pressure from the Port of Newcastle to
promote it to be the State’s next container port. The
role of the Port of Port Kembla as the second container
port was also reiterated in a February 2019 KPMG
report, Quay Conclusions.

This report found that™:

* Port Kembla offers the lowest overall costs
and highest overall benefits for an additional
container port.

* Port Kembla's proximity to the population and
employment growth areas in Greater Western
Sydney and South Western Sydney enhance
its attractiveness as a second container port,
when required.

* Port Kembla is circa half the distance relative
to Newcastle from the five largest container
consumption areas in 2046, as projected
by Transport for NSW — which all reside in
Western and South Western Sydney.

The report put the timeframe around the need for the
second container port at 2046.

The private operator of Port Kembla (which also
operates Port Botany) noted in its 30-year Master Plan®®
that:

“"When completed, Port Kembla’s Outer
Harbour Development will cater for NSW's
future container trade volumes. Planned for
operation once Port Botany nears capacity,
the Outer Harbour Development may be
completed sooner if an operator wishes to
develop a container terminal at Port Kembla
prior to this time."”

The joint ownership of Port Botany and Port Kembla
also positions the local operation well as a future
container port once Port Botany has reached capacity.

Any further expansion at both Port Botany and Port
Kembla will require substantial investment in transport
infrastructure which has not yet been committed to by
any level of government.

Prior to the 2045 timeframe, there is an opportunity for
Port Kembla to expand its operations in non-container
businesses, for example around bulk imports including
building materials such as gypsum and concrete.
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9. Further evolving as a Smart City

A key part of future planning is around making the

city a place that integrates technology with lifestyle
benefits to deliver a great place to live. That is, using
data to make better, smarter decisions about the future
direction of Wollongong.

Smart Cities use technology (eg sensors, devices) to
collect and analyse data (eg big data) and deliver
improved asset management outcomes (eg Internet

of Things) for the benefit of their residents (eg

reduce congestion, reduce water waste, lift citizen
engagement). This combination of technology, data
and management will deliver high liveability outcomes,
creating the types of cities people want to live in.

Smart Cities not only deliver positive outcomes for
residents but they also allow local governments to do
more with their scarce resources. For example, parking
management can be done using a combination of apps

to pay parking fees and sensors to monitor car rotations.

This allows parking rangers to have better data around
problem areas and target specific spots, rather than the
traditional approach of physically circulating the city.

Smart Cities are also highly collaborative, with
partnerships between residents, businesses and local
government needed to deliver projects that have a
meaningful positive impact.

Wollongong needs to ensure it is not left behind and
fast-track the delivery of the six pillars outlined in the
lllawarra-Shoalhaven Smart Region Strategy (see Case
Study). Some Australian cities are already implementing
these Smart City strategies — such as Brisbane (see Case
Study over page) and Adelaide.

Case study:

lllawarra Shoalhaven Smart
Region Strategy

The lllawarra Shoalhaven Joint Organisation, RDA
lllawarra and RDA Shoalhaven have recognised
the significant opportunities that can be reaped by
joining forces to embark on a journey to become a
smart region. Facing increased citizen expectations
and constrained budgets, all four councils are
seeking to leverage smart technology such as
Internet of Things sensors and digital connectivity
to address pressing challenges, compete on
national and global stages, and ultimately deliver a
superior experience for citizens and visitors alike.

The Smart Region Strategy®, released in 2018, is
based around six pillars that each Council will then
take and adapt to their own needs and capabilities.

1. Smart Economy

2. Smart Mobility

3. Smart Living

4. Smart Governance
5. Smart Environment
6. Smart Cornmunity

As part of this program Wollongong City Council
and SMART have been successful at securing a
Smart Cities and Suburbs Federal Government
grant ($0.5 million) to establish a flood
management system to help improve outcomes for
residents during major storm events. The project
involves placing sensors across the storm-water
system to detect flooding risks in times of heavy
rain. These risks can then be quickly attended to,
thus reducing the damage to public and private
landowners.
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Case study:
Smart, Connected Brisbane

The City of Brisbane has embraced the Smart City concept and it now underpins its
Brisbane Vision 2031 - the city’s plan for the future. The vision is a combination of six
components.

23 September 2019

« Efficient- Digital technologies are employed to make activities efficient and
effective.

* Personalised- People have a personalised human experience within the city. /f /
i .

* Inclusive- Everyone has the chance to get involved, be empowered and / / /"
participate in city life. / yf#

/
* Prosperous- Smart, connected thinking leads to prosperity and economic /M//
opportunities. 4

* Insightful- Analytics creates insight that enables data-driven decision making.

* Transparent- Open shared data and collaboration creates an environment of /
trust and innovation within the city.

Using this framework, Brisbane City Council is now developing multiple key projects
that deliver on this vision. These include;

* Brisbane Innovate - Council’s annual open innovation event, bringing together
private industry, academia, local start-ups and the community to generate
ideas to solve citywide challenges.

¢ Brisbane Metro - will boost the capacity of the busway network to carry up to
22,000 people per hour ensuring the wider bus network has the capacity to
meet current and future transport demands.

* Emergency Vehicle Priority (EVP) system - detects oncoming emergency
vehicles and gives them pricrity through an intersection with a green light.

* Open Data - Brisbane City Council releases open data free of charge to
encourage third parties to develop apps, websites and tools that can benefit
Brisbane residents and business.

* Smart watering - water monitoring devices digitally linked to weather
stations and installed to monitor and report water flow, usage trends and
environmental data, enabling clubs to better manage their water usage on
sports fields and improve their playing surfaces.

* Food truck website - an interactive map enabling food lovers to locate
their favourite gourmet food truck, find cut what's on the menu and check
operating hours.

* Free WiFi - residents and visitors to stay connected as they move around
many parks and public spaces across the city, as well as the Central Business
District, major shopping malls, libraries, Mt Coot-Tha Summit Lockout and on
CityCats.
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10. Improving the effectiveness of our advocacy

Wollongong has many stakeholder representative
groups, covering business, government, institutions
and the community sector. These groups work together,
and with local MPs from both State and Federal
Parliaments across the political spectrum. There is
regular collaboration on projects to advance the

cause of Wollongong in terms of attracting public and
private investment. Despite an abundance of good will
and effort in this collaboration, we have not been as
effective as other cities or regions, such as Geelong,
when it comes to securing government funding for
major projects.

For example, the Maldon-Dombarton freight/SWIRL
project has been a focus of concerted local advocacy

since work halted on the line in 1988. Yet it is still

only listed as "for investigation in the next 10-20 years
in Transport 2056. The Restart NSW fund is another
example of the lllawarra not being as effective at
arguing for an equitable share of funds (see case study).

Other cities or regions are placing considerable time
and money into fostering relationships in Sydney and
Canberra to ensure projects are pushed up priority lists,
for example Geelong (see case study on page 60) and
Newcastle. This Strategy represents an opportunity for
Council to learn from cther regions and contribute to
lifting the effectiveness of our region-wide advocacy
efforts.

Case study:

Wollongong Regional Status?

Wollongong is not a region according to the NSW
government and so is excluded from all but one of the
six Regional Growth Fund programs (except Resources
for Regions) and must compete against the large pool of
Sydney and Newcastle Councils for Restart NSW funds.

This regional/metro classification problem also means
the lllawarra is unable to collectively apply for funding
for major projects because either Wollongong is not

permitted to be an applicant or, for metro-based
funding, the other councils are not permitted to be
applicants.

lllawarra Business Chamber analysis found the
classification approach resulted in just 0.22% of the
revenue flowing from the sale of NSW public assets had
flowed to Wollongong - compared to the 2% share of
the NSW economy represented by the LGA.
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Case study:

Effective advocacy models: G21 - Geelong Regional Alliance

G21 - Geelong Regional Alliance is a forum that Other successes include attracting the Transport
brings together five local councils with business Accident Commission (650 jobs), WorkSafe Victoria
and community leaders. Like Wollongong, Geelong (700 jobs) and the NDIS (500 jobs).

has in recent years experienced a similar level of

impact from job losses in manufacturing. But through ~ More broadly, Geelong has secured a $355m City Deal

organisations such as G21, Geelong has been able — a partnership between all three levels of government
to attract State and Federal Government support to which will see major investment in the city, including
counteract some of these job losses. $170m for a new convention centre.

Since its inception in 2001 the Alliance has In the 2019-2020 Federal Budget, Geelong received
proven to be an effective advocate for the region, $2 billion for a faster rail connection to Melbourne.

culminating in helping to secure a Geelong City
Deal in 2018. This is expected to deliver millions of
dollars in investment from both the Victorian and
Australian Governments which will drive growth and
employment.

YRR E
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Council Policy Levers

In developing this Strategy we asked a broad range of stakeholders about the actions they thought Council could
take to lift local job creation. These consultations, together with the development of the jobs target and extensive
research into best practice policy, resulted in the development of a list of actions Council will undertake as part of

its contribution to the 10,500 jobs in a decade target.

We have grouped these actions into seven broad categories.

. Civic leadership
. Business attraction

. Knowledge hub
. Infrastructure

5. Planning
4. Business support
7. Procurement

1. Civic Leadership

Leadership and advocacy are important roles of

local councils, who can develop, communicate and
implement a vision for the future of the city. Wollongong
City’s Lord Mayor and Councillors are the public voices
of the city, representing the local community both
nationally and internationally. Council also collaborates
with political representatives and bureaucrats from

other levels of government, securing external funding,
delivering jointly funded projects and undertaking
strategic planning.

An important part of Council’s advocacy role is
contributing to regional-level groups and facilitating
joint projects. For example, the City of Wollongong
Lord Mayor is the Chair of the lllawarra Shoalhaven
Joint Organisation (ISJO), a collaboration of local
governments which provides a cohesive advocacy
platform for the region to speak to other levels of
government.

Council regularly works with other stakeholders involved
in economic development in Wollongong including
industry, business and community groups and local
State and Federal elected representatives. Collaborating
with these partners serves the dual purposes of pooling
scarce financial and time resources towards a common
goal and presenting a unified voice from the region.
This collaboration includes joint submissions, reports
and representations to other levels of government and
businesses outside the region.

As the voice of Wollongong, Council can clearly

influence, via its civic leadership, economic outcomes
and job opportunities for local residents.
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2. Business Attraction

Councils have an important role in promoting their city
outside the region as a desirable place to live, work and
play. The importance of business attraction has been
recognised by the current Council, which has this as
one of its five Councillor pricrities. This commitment is
reflected in the additional $600,000 investment made
by Council over 3 years in the activities of Advantage
Wollongong.

Business attraction includes taking a proactive approach
to marketing the regicn as a place to invest, providing
business marketing material and information about

the city and supporting Wollongong’s visitor economy.
Council supports both Advantage Wollongong and
Destination Wollongong.

Advantage Wollongong

Advantage Wollongong is a partnership between
Wollongong City Council, UOW and the NSW
Government. The partnership has a long term,
strategic approach to creating sustainable new jobs
and productive investment for Wollongong achieved
through the facilitation of significant new business
investment projects. Advantage Wollongong focusses
on attracting new businesses by promoting Wollongong
as a superior business location in key growth sectors
and has developed a range of promotional resources
and activities, aligned to the target sectors.

Advantage Wollongong has been promoting
Wollongong as a superior business location since

20089. It is recognised as a best practice approach to
business and investment attraction and has generated
significant momentum over the past decade. Advantage
Wollongong focusses on changing perceptions and
attracting new businesses.

A major win for Advantage Wollongong was the
decision by global IT giant NEC choosing to set up their
new corporate headquarters in Wellongong (see case
study on page 63).

Wollongong has several key advantages that make it a
superior business location.

3 e talent pool
. Vibrant coastal lifestyle
3. Enhanced work-life balance
4. Supportive business environment
. Proximity to Sydney, just 1 hour south

. Industry-focussed global University

Advantage Wollongong has developed tailored sector
strategies and promotes the following seven key growth
industries.

. Professional Services
. Financial Services
. Tech (see NEC case study page 63)

4. Advanced Manufacturing

. Defence

. Medical Science and Technology
. Scale-ups

These future-proof sectors generate important external
income for the region. The targeted sectors are also
broadly consistent with the work done by .id on this
Strategy to identify the potential for high-skills/high
income jobs out to 2028.
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Case study:

Advantage Wollongong
Success Story: NEC Australia

After a thorough investigation of options, NEC
Australia, a leading Australian ICT solutions and
services firm chose to locate its newest corporate
office and support centre in Wollengong in 2017.
Today it employs 140 staff, up from 70 initially.

NEC Australia was impressed with the quality of
the workforce in Wollongong and tapped into
the many experienced senior IT professionals and
executives located within the region along with
the UOW IT Graduate Pool.

Wollongong has provided NEC with the
opportunity to develop strong links with the
local and business community. Being located

in Wollongong also provided staff with access
to greater work-life benefits, the cosmopolitan
city centre, a reduction in commuting times, and
significantly lower staff turnover.

Destination Wollongong

Destination Wollongong is charged with delivering
visitor economy growth by positioning Wollongong
and the surrounds as a premier tourism, events and
conference destination. In 2016, Council entered
into a five year funding agreement with Destination
Wollongong.

In 2018, the Wollongong LGA welcomed around 3.6
million overnight and day trip visitors. The tourism
industry®’ is estimated to support a total of around
2,800 local jobs or 3% of Wollongong's local workforce.

A key focus of Destination Wollongong has been the
attraction of major events. According to Destination
Wollongong major events tourism resulted in an
estimated $53 million in spending in 2017-2018 from
31 events. This resulted in a Return on Investment (RO}
of $162 for every $1 spent on attracting events to the
city.®® The types of events Destination Wollongong
targets cover sport, adventure, the arts, innovation,
food & beverage and motoring. Events held in 2018
included Elton John, Cher, Wigan Warriors and Yours
& Owls. Wollongong has also recently secured the
hosting rights to the prestigious 2022 UCI Road World
Championships, which will attract 1,000 competitors
and 300,000 spectators to Wollongong.

‘Blue tourism’ is also increasing in importance to
Wollongong as the city takes advantage of its coastal
location. Over the last two years, Wollongong has
had six cruise ship visits. According to Destination
Wollongong, this resulted in over $3 million worth of
regional economic benefits and 17,000 visitors to our
city.
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3. Knowledge Hub

Council’'s Economic Development team is dedicated to
promoting Wollongong as open for business. The team
looks to support sustainable economic growth for the
Wollongong economy, through supporting business
expansion and attracting investment.

As the first point of contact for businesses looking

to establish, grow or re-locate to Wollongong, the
Economic Development team assists with general
business and investment enquiries, facilitates
discussions with internal and external stakeholders and
undertakes economic impact modelling.

Information on Wollongong’s economy is available
through .id which includes access to the latest economic
data about the city on Wollongong City Council’s
website.

4. Infrastructure

Council is a major investor in the city through their
capital work programs. In turn, these investments in
public space encourage and facilitate private investment
in the city.

Wollongong City Council is the custodian of
infrastructure, property, plant and equipment assets
valued at approximately $2.57 billion on behalf of the
community. During 2017-2018, Council delivered a
capital works program worth $95.9 million, completing,
commencing and working on 650 projects across the
local government area. This includes $56.4 million

on renewing and replacing existing ageing assets,

and $39.4 million on upgrading or constructing and
purchasing new assets.”

Major projects

Since 2012, Wollongong City Council has invested
over $30 million in upgrading the Wollongong city
centre’s infrastructure. The announcement by GPT
group, post the global financial crisis in 2008, that it
would be investing $200 million in the Wollongong city
centre was a significant turning point for Wollongong.
This announcement was the impetus for change,

as it signalled to the market that a large publicly

listed company was willing to invest significantly in
Wollongong.

Wollongong City Council invested $20 million for the
refurbishment of the Crown Street Mall, along with a
substantial renewal of the city centre footpaths and
street-scaping. This included public art projects in
the city centre and the rollout of different activation
activities to draw people into the city centre. Weekly
markets are now held in the city centre, including
the Thursday night Eat Street Markets and the Friday
Foragers Market.

In addition, Council invested $40 million in upgrading
the Blue Mile foreshore area between the entertainment
precinct and Stuart Park.

Wollongong City Council administered the Crown Street
and Inner City Building Facade Rejuvenation Program

to improve the public domain. The program resulted

in a $1.5 million total investment - including $200,000
by the private sector and $600,000 by Council. The
project was completed in September 2015, resulting in
38 facade rejuvenation projects, including 9 heritage
listed buildings. Free WiFi was also rolled out along key
pedestrian routes within the city centre in 2013.
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‘Incubator’ infrastructure

Council provides infrastructure that directly assists these expand to the extent that they can move into
sole traders and small business in their early stages of larger, commercial rental spaces.

development, when the cost of renting a premises is

prohibitively high. For example, Council libraries (in Council supports the expansion of more co-working
particular Thirroul library) are used by small businesses space, particularly given the large commuter pool and
and commuters as basic co-working spaces. Council for micro and small businesses establishing themselves
also hires out its community spaces and studio spaces in Wollongong. This could be either through the

to a range of users including some small creative-based  encouragement of new co-working spaces or directly
businesses (eg dance, drama and art groups). Some of investing in co-working spaces (see case study).

Case study:

NSW Smart work hubs (SWH) Pilot Program

In 2015, the NSW Government supported the establishment of five smart work hubs (SWH) as part of its
SWH Pilot Program. The five pilot locations were: Rouse Hill, Oran Park, Wyong, Penrith and Gosford. The
program was successfully completed in 2016 and involved 478 overall users.

An evaluation of the success of the program in 2017, aimed at building evidence around demand,
operating models and potential benefits. Key findings of the research were®:

Demand
* There are a range of potential users, including individuals, micro businesses and SMEs

* Surveys of actual usage by individuals showed they accessed the hub once or twice per
week, which would not have been enough demand alone to sustain the hub.

* However, additional demand from SMEs and micro-businesses provided promising
emerging demand.

Benefits
* Hub users reported expected and actual time and cost savings as a result of hub usage,
spending on average 27.7 minutes and 41.3 kilometres less commuting per day. This
translated to improved health and well-being benefits for the participants.

e Users reported new opportunities for networking and collaboration.
* Increased labour force participation was also identified.
* Interviews with hub operators indicated that additional employer benefits could be

realised in the longer term through business savings in direct and indirect real estate
costs.

Summary
e Findings showed clear benefits, emerging demand and basic characteristics of a sound
SWH operating model.
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Leveraging Council’s own assets

One of the issues raised in consultations was around the potential for Council to leverage its own asset base and
invest in new commercial assets for the broader benefit of the city. This would potentially encourage further private
investment in commercial space in the city centre. There are many examples of Councils around NSW and Australia
currently undertaking similar strategies. One such example is Liverpool City Council which is currently undertaking
such a project (see case study).

Case study:

Council-led Liverpool CBD regeneration

As major investors, councils have the opportunity to use their investments strategically to regenerate areas
and increase the provision of commercial space.

Liverpool City Council was to leverage their asset ownership in the CBD to deliver additional office capacity
and drive the regeneration of the CBD area.

The new Civic Place project, worth a total of $300 million, will provide a mixed-use development
incorporating a combination of residential, commercial, retail, cultural, educational, hotel and dining
functions. By partnering with a commercial developer and utilising State Government funding, the cost to
Council of this project will be $75 million.

Council works

* A new Liverpool City Centre Library (2,800 sgm);

* New Council offices/Chambers (as part of a total of 13,000 sqm in commercial office
space);

¢ University of Wollongong South Western Sydney campus;

® Council and Public Parking; and

* A new and exciting Civic Plaza.

Developer works

* Residential apartments within two towers;
¢ Student accommodation — providing approximately 140 rooms;
® A 3.5 to 4 star hotel — providing approximately 140 rooms.

The old library building will be used for community facilities in the future. The old Council offices will either
be sold or leased on the open market, delivering additional office space to the CBD. Proceeds of such a
lease/sale will contribute towards the delivery and operation of Liverpool Civic Place.
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5. Planning

The planning role of councils has a direct impact on Planning was a major issue raised in the consultations
jobs growth across the city. Planning covers a diversity both with businesses and investors in Wollongong. The
of activities including the approval of individual need for greater dialogue between Council planners
development applications, high-level strategic planning  and investors/businesses was needed to ensure job-
around precincts and using zoning controls to protect creating projects are progressed in a timely manner.
important employment lands. The operation of the In particular, there is an opportunity to build on the
planning approval system also directly influences the excellent work of Council’s Small Business Planning team
capacity of the city to attract new investment and assure  (see case study) and develop a model for improving the
potential investors that projects can be delivered in a experience of major commercial developments that will
timely manner. deliver long-term benefits to the city and contribute

directly to achieving the jobs target.

Case study:

Small Business Planning team

Council's dedicated Small Business Planning team provides specialist advice to small businesses on
navigating the development approvals and licencing process and also periodically hold free workshops on
the topic. Navigating the planning system can be daunting for business owners, especially as they rarely
have any expertise in this area.

In a recent example the team assisted a not-for-profit organisation, who noted:

“I cannot speak highly enough of the Small Business Team’s assistance and excellent communication
throughout my complicated DA process. It may have seemed a straightforward process for you,
but to a novice like me, bumping into issues of zoning and traffic /parking issues, the Small
Business Team’s advice in how to navigate the process was invaluable. The Small Business Team’s
expertise and knowledge of the compliance requirements and his ability to “dumb it down” for a
layperson was so appreciated.”
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6. Business Support and Development

Councils have an important role in supperting existing
businesses to expand, upskill and grow. Wollongong
City Council participates in a range of business support
and business development activities.

Small Business Friendly
Councils Program

Wollongong City Council joined the Small Business
Friendly Council's Program in August 2015,
demonstrating Council’'s commitment to supporting

and building the capabilities of local businesses. The
program includes several initiatives, which endeavour to
eradicate red tape within local government across NSW.

Economic Gardening Program

Economic Gardening lllawarra is a business
development program supported by Wollongong City
Council, in partnership with Shellharbour and Kiama
Councils.

The program focusses on helping local business
operators to grow their enterprises by providing them
with a package of professional business tools and
assistance that is designed to help them fast-track the
sustainable expansion of their business.

Since 2006, more than 500 businesses from a range
of industry sectors have participated in the program.
The program has helped lllawarra businesses increase
turnover by more than $40 million and created over
210 full time jobs®'. Many businesses have expanded
operations locally, nationally and globally after
participating in the program.

Support of business networks
and local groups

Council supports local business networks, including
i3net - a network of industry based lllawarra
organisations who promote the collective capability of
industry to local, national and international markets.
Council recently entered into a new three year funding
agreement with i3net and was a major sponsor of their
annual showcase, held on 8-9 November 2018.

Council also works with the NSW Government's Business
Connect program, which provides personalised advice
to help businesses establish and/or grow. Council works
with the Business Connect Bus, who provide subsidised
face-to face business advice to town centres across the
Wollongong LGA during the year.

Wollongong City Council is working with the start-up
community, who are choosing to locate in Wollongong
due to incubators such as iAccelerate, the liveability
benefits of the city and the geographical flexibility
available to digital businesses. These entrepreneurs
have a less structured approach to collaboration than
traditional businesses and have formed important
networks across their community. They are more
focussed on informal meet-ups and podcasts and
require a different kind of business support to traditional
models. As part of this engagement with the start-up/
scale-up community, Wollongong City Council has
joined the iAccelerate program.

Workshops for business
community

Wollongong City Council partners with other levels

of government and local business groups to deliver
workshops and seminars for businesses looking to learn
new skills and grow their business.
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7. Operational procurement

Local councils are major purchasers of goods and
services in the economy via extensive procurement
programs. In 2017-2018 Council spent $53.7 million on
materials and contracts. This includes major contracts,
such as waste management, road works, building, parks,
cleaning and security.

The size of this spending is significant and provides

an opportunity to directly support local businesses,
presenting a significant opportunity to ensure that this
capital spend and its associated multiplier effects are
retained in the Wollongong LGA, to provide a boost for
jobs, investment and local businesses.

Many state/territory governments and local councils
around Australia have a local preference policy in place
to support their local economies. There are a number of
benefits from implementing such a policy, including:

¢ Retaining local government spend (and its
expansive multiplier effects) within the local
area;

* Supporting local businesses, employers and
employees;

s Encouraging businesses to relocate/establish
in the area;

» Creating jobs in the local area and helping
reduce unemployment;

¢ |nvesting in the local community;
¢ Shorter supply chains and greater

predictability of delivery times and lower cost;
and

* Growing a prosperous economy and
increasing Gross Regional Product.

Council has a current local procurement policy
“Strengthening of Local Economic Capacity” for tenders
(ie contracts over $150,000) which include up to a 5%
weighted criteria for all local suppliers.

The following five criteria must be considered in all
tenders:

1. An existing legitimate business premises in
WCC local area;

2. Locally sourced materials (grown,
manufactured, assembled, made within the
WCC local area) specific to the contract;

3. Locally sourced services as a result of the
contract (eg maintenance);

4. Locally sourced labour (people domiciled
within the WCC local area), either sub-
contractors or employees; and

5. Locally sourced labour and materials from a
business premise in the WCC local area.

An alternative approach has been taken by Gold
Coast (see case study) which has had a significant
positive impact on local businesses and now 80% of
procurement spend is done with local suppliers.

One challenge in implementing a local procurement
policy is ensuring that local businesses are aware of the
opportunities and have the skills and accreditation to
complete the tender process. There is an opportunity
for Council to address these issues, alongside a review
of the procurement policy, to maximise the uplift in local
employment from Council's purchasing power.
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Case study:

Gold Coast Council procurement policy

The City of Gold Coast developed an Economic Development Strategy
2013-23. In this Strategy Council set a target of 80% (from 50% initially)
of procurement spend with local suppliers by 30 June 2017, which was
achieved. This procurement policy helped the city fully capitalise on
hosting the Commonwealth Games.

This policy resulted in approximately $136 million additional spending
directed to local businesses in 2016-2017 and $340 million in the five years
to June 2017.

This commitment is delivered by the ‘Buy Local’ Procurement Policy. The
objective of this policy is to proactively support local business and industry
to create jobs on the Gold Coast. Local procurement recognises and
factors local supply in determining the winning offer through application
of the 'buy local” preferential factors; local content weightings and local
pricing advantage.

A major component of Council’s buy local policy is the provision of a 15%
pricing advantage to local suppliers for tenders under $1,000,000 per
annum, and 20% to 30% pricing advantage for quotations up to $200,000.

In planning for this project, Council anticipated that it may result in a slight
increase in its procurement costs and so established a fund to cover the
anticipated extra costs. For 2016-17 the pricing advantage is capped at a
total of $250,000 but only $31,888 was actually drawn down from this fund.
In other words, the "buy local’ procurement program didn’t cost the city
what it expected to have to pay in extra procurement costs.
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This section of the Strategy outlines the key actions
Council will take to achieve the jobs target, reduce
the size of the commuter pool, lift median wages

in Wollongong and retain a greater share of the
graduating student population in the city. The Action
Plan highlights the key actions, the delivery stream
that will be responsible for the action and a timeframe
around the delivery.

Wollongong City Council recognises that this Strategy
cannot be delivered by Council alone. In order to
deliver our goals we will need to partner with other
levels of government, peak bodies and the broader
business community.

The list of actions is derived from the research and
analysis undertaken in Part 1 and Part 2 of this Strategy
around the current economic position of Wollongong,
the internal and external challenges and opportunities
and best-practice lessons from other councils. Indeed,
many of the action items have already been successfully
implemented at other councils, presenting Wollongong
with the opportunity to learn from others and tailor
already successful programs for our city's needs.

These actions are high level by nature. Specific detailed
activities to deliver these actions are detailed in future
Council business plans.
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1. Civic Leadership

Draft Action ltem Delivery Stream Short | Medium | Long

Adopt an LGA-wide jobs target of 10,500 new jobs by - Economic
2028 and report progress against this target annually Development

Incorporate job impacts as part of supporting - All
documents and projects that have employment
implications

Focus on changing perceptions and attracting - Economic
new business investment to Wollongong through Development
Advantage Wollongong

Advocate for key transport projects that improve - Economic
connectivity between Wollongong and Greater Development
Sydney and support jobs growth and investment - Infrastructure Strategic
Planning
Advocate for the retention and development of - Economic
currently unused or underused industrial and urban Development
services employment lands to support appropriate - Infrastructure Strategic
employment Planning
- Land Use Planning
Advocate for the port of Port Kembla as the second - Economic
NSW container port Development
- Infrastructure Strategic
Planning
Advocate for the South West lllawarra Rail Line - Economic
(SWIRL) to improve passenger and freight connections = Development
between Wollongong and SW Sydney - Infrastructure Strategic
Planning
Advocate for new and existing NSW and Australian - Economic
Government department or offices to be located in Development
Wollongeng
Investigate holding quarterly roundtable discussion - Economic
between WCC General Manager and key business Development

leaders and groups

Advocate for the establishment of a Wollengong city - Economic

centre university campus Development
Work with 1SJO and State government on initiatives - Economic
that benefit employment outcomes Development
Advocate for the master planning process around - Economic
Wollongong's Convention Centre/ Entertainment Development
Centre complex - Infrastructure Strategic
Planning
Work with Western Sydney counterparts and other - Economic
levels of government to ensure Wollongong benefits Development
from the Western Aerotropolis
Pursue a City Deal for Wollongong - Economic

Development

]
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2. Business Attraction

Draft Action Item Delivery Stream Short | Medium | Long | BAU

Support an ongoing strategic business attraction - Economic

program via Advantage Wollongong Development

Develop a Wollongong place brand to increase - Communications,

exposure, consistency and brand reach across key Engagement, Events

economic development areas — Invest/Live/Visit/ and Signage

Study

Develop and implement an Advantage Wollongong | - Economic

integrated marketing strategy targeting high value/ = Development

high income jobs in key sectors

Promote co-working facilities as a way for - Economic

Wollongong resident staff to work for Sydney- Development

based companies - City Centre & Crown
St Mall

Develop and launch the Advantage Wollengong - Economic

stakeholder program to leverage the existing Development

networks of local businesses

Investigate famils, tours and delegations around - Economic

Advantage Wollongong's target sectors Development

Investigate future governance and management - Economic

models for Advantage Wollongong Development

Facilitate business investment enquiries - Economic
Development

Explore the re-introduction of a NSW government | - Economic

supported fund to assist new businesses seekingto = Development

establish in Wollongong
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3. Knowledge Hub

Draft Action Item Delivery Stream Medium | Long

Provide a 6-monthly update to Councillors - Economic Development
on the state of the local economy

Provide accurate and timely investment - Economic Development
information such as economic, demographic

and development information, and making

this available to the community as a

means of supporting business expansion/

investment decisions

Provide support for government - Economic Development
submissions, modelling and policy advice for
other business unit’s funding applications

Promote libraries as learning centres and - Library Services

work spaces for business owners and their - Economic Development
staff

Undertake research into the negative - Economic Development
individual and community impacts of

commuting

Maintain current data on a range of types of = - Economic Development
commercial floorspace in the LGA including: = - Development Assessment
significant enquiries; Development - Building Certification
Applications; constructed projects; vacancy - Customer Service Delivery
rates
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4. Infrastructure

Draft Action Item Delivery Stream Medium | Long

Develop the business case for the - Economic Development

installation of ultra-high-speed digital - Technology Infrastructure

infrastructure in the Wollongong city Services

centre to enable new digital economy - Infrastructure Strategic Planning

businesses - City Centre and Crown Street
Mall

Explore future opportunities in the Smart - Technology Infrastructure

City space to improve Council's operating = Services

efficiency and delivery of services to the - Infrastructure Strategic Planning
community

Develop local transport policies - Infrastructure Strategic Planning
that ensure all residents can access - Road Safety, Traffic and
employment opportunities in job centres Transport Planning

such as Metro Wollengong

Investigate options for reducing car - Infrastructure Strategic Planning
parking rates to assist commercial - Road Safety, Traffic and
building feasibility in the city Transport Planning

Include recognition of the econemic - Infrastructure Strategic Planning

impact and job creation capacity of major - Urban Renewal and Civic

infrastructure projects undertaken by Improvement

Council - City Centre and Crown Street
Mall

Provide infrastructure to support activities ' - Infrastructure Strategic Planning
and improve amenity and activation within | - City Centre and Crown Street
the Wollongong city centre Mall

Establish digital way-finding, using - Road Safety, Traffic and
information systems and data collection, Transport Planning
to improve traffic flows and car parking - Infrastructure Strategic Planning
utilisation in the city centre - City Centre and Crown Street
Mall
- Economic Development
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5. Planning

Draft Action Item Delivery Stream Short | Medium | Long

Establish a mechanism to expedite - Infrastructure Strategic
significant employment generating projects, Planning
which involves input from multiple specialist ' - Development Assessment

teams across Council - Economic Development
Implement policies that support a mix of - Infrastructure Strategic
office development in the Wollongong city Planning

centre including new A-grade commercial - Land Use Planning
buildings

Implement policies (via town and village - Infrastructure Strategic
plans) that support appropriate jobs Planning

generation in other (non-city centre) - Land Use Planning

employment areas across the LGA

Develop a planning and policy framework - City Centre and Crown Street
to support the ongoing evolution of Mall
Wollongong's evening economy - Cultural Development

- Land Use Planning

- Economic Development

Undertake a Tourism Lands Review in order - Infrastructure Strategic
to investigate the use of tourism-specific Planning

zoning on key coastal sites to ensure the - Land Use Planning
provision of sufficient beds in Wollongong

to support a growing visitor economy

Conduct a survey of local investors every - Economic Development
two years to obtain feedback on their
business investment experience in the LGA

5.7 Establish an investment Industry - Development Assessment
Forum every 6 months where WCC can - Infrastructure Strategic
communicate strategic directions and gain Planning
market insights - Land Use Planning

- Economic Development
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6. Business Support

Draft Action Item

Undertake regular dialogue/events/
workshops with small business focussed
on building capacity and entrepreneurship
in partnership with business groups, local
chambers, iAccelerate and Advantage

SME

Implement the Small Business Friendly
Council Program, including the ‘Easy to
do Business’ program

Work with local chambers to establish
a 'Buy Local” campaign to support
businesses

Promote links between the University's
research capabilities and local industry

Support local industry clusters and
destination marketing activities

Investigate partnerships and promotional
opportunities to further develop and
expand the Made in Wollongong brand
and support its delivery

Support the Renew Wollongong Program
in the Wollongong City Centre

Establish a 6-monthly economic
development electronic newsletter to
update local businesses on Council
activities and projects

Investigate a review of city centre levies

Delivery Stream Short | Medium | Long

- Economic Development

- Economic Development

- Development Assessment

- Inspections, Education and
Registrations

- Customer Service Delivery

- Economic Development

- Economic Development
- Economic Development

- Destinaticn Wollongong

- Cultural Development
- Economic Development

- City Centre and Crown St Mall

- Economic Development

- City Centre and Crown St Mall
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7. Procurement

Draft Action Item Delivery Stream Medium | Long

78

Review Council’s procurement of local goods = - Economic Development
and services to increase its role as a major - Supply Management
lever for local job creation

Launch an annual procurement showcase - Supply Management
event associated with the capital works

program to assist local businesses with

tendering opportunities

Support the inclusicn of targeted groups - Economic Development
in procurement programs as per Council’s - Community Development
Social Procurement Policy - Supply Management

Use Council’s procurement policy to support | - Supply Management
new businesses which are developing

innovative and sustainable building materials

and techniques
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APPENDIX 1:
Related Documents

Council Documents

Council has an integrated approach, Council’s Plans, and Strategies work together to make Wollongong a
liveable city for all people. The Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029 expands on the economic aspects of
our Wollongong 2028 Community Strategic Plan and sits alongside a number of ‘supporting documents’.

Goal 2 of the Community Strategic Plan specifically deals with the economy - We have an innovative and
sustainable economy

The Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029 is closely linked to a number of supporting documents including
(but not limited to):

Development Control Plan (2009)

Local Environment Plans

Town & Village Plans

Creative Wollongong 2019-2024

Major Events Strategy 2016-2020

City Centre Urban Design Framework 2019 (pending)
Access & Movement Strategy (pending)

Housing Strategy (pending)

Social Procurement Policy

Environmental Sustainability Strategy 2014-2022

NSW Government Documents

The Strategy has links to, and references, the following NSW Government documents:
Illawarra Shoalhaven Regional Plan 2015
Greater Sydney Regional Plan
Future Transport Strategy 2056
Regional NSW Services and Infrastructure Plan
lllawarra-Shoalhaven Smart Region Strategy
Freight & Ports Plan 2018-2023
Employment Land Supply, lllawarra-Shoalhaven
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Glossary

ANZSIC - Australia and New Zealand Standard Industry Classification

DA - Development Application

DCP - Development Control Plan

FSR - Floor Space Ratio

GRP - Gross Regional Product - Headline GRP is a measure of size or net wealth generated
by the local economy. Changes in this over time can
represent changes in employment, productivity or the types
of industries in the area.

IBC - Illawarra Business Chamber

ISJO - lllawarra Shoalhaven Joint Organisation

IRIS — lllawarra Regional Information Service

LEP — Local Environmental Plan

LGA - Local Government Area

NABERS - National Australian Built Environment Rating System

NIEIR - National Institute of Economic and Industry Research

R&D - Research and Development
SME - Small and Medium Enterprise

SWIRL - South West Illawarra Rail Line
Tourism — An amalgam of activities across various industry sectors

Value added by industry - An indicator of business productivity in Wollongong City. It
shows how productive each industry sector is at increasing
the value of its inputs. It is a more accurate measure of the
productivity of an industry sector than output (total gross
revenue), as some industries have high levels of output but
require large amounts of input expenditure to achieve that.

Undeveloped land — Currently zoned land which was not occupied by an employment
related use at the time of data collection

UOW - University of Wollongong
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Thank you

We would like to acknowledge and thank all the
organisations and individuals who contributed
to the development of this Strategy and took
the time to provide input. Your thoughts, ideas
and aspirations for a stronger Wollongong
economy have formed the foundation for the
Strategy which will guide our work over the

next ten years. We look forward to continuing
to collaborate to grow employment in
Wollongong.
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The information in this report is based on data collected from community members who chase to
be involved in engagement activities and therefore should not be considered representative.

This report is intended to provide a high-level analysis of the most prominent themes and issues.
While it's not possible to include all the details of feedback we received, feedback that was
relevant to the project has been provided to technical experts for review and consideration.

- _/
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Community Engagement Report

Executive Summary

The draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029 [draft Stralegyl, sets out local goals and
actions to alter the trajectory of employment growth and improve job outcomes. The draft Strategy
is informed by extensive engagement, learnings from the previous Strategy and research into
best-practice approaches. The draft Strategy was exhibited from 30 May - 1 July 2019.

The communication process for the exhibition included a media release, social media posts, and
Council’'s Community Update in the Advertiser. Information was distributed to key stakeholders
and the Register of Interest participants. A project page on Council’'s Engagement HQ webhsite
provided copies of the draft Strategy, frequently asked questions and links to an online survey.
These documents as well as a feedback form were made available at Council libraries and the
Customer Service Centre.

During the exhibition period 10 presentations and meetings were held with key stakeholders,
groups and organisations reaching 207 individuals. 31 formal submissions were received from 13
groups/organisations and 38 individuals. There was general support for the draft Strategy and
feedback included recommendations for changes or considerations.

There were reguests to include green industries and renewal energy, social enterprise, co-
operatives and export as target sectors. There was support for ITC and start-ups as target sectors
and requests to strengthen our commitment to creative industries. Feedback highlighted concern
towards advanced manufacturing as a target sector, suggesting these industries are in decline.
There were opposing views regarding defence as a target sector suggesting it does not align with
creating a positive image for Wollongong, alternatively highlighting the opportunity to leverage off
what the sector can provide our region.

A range of concerns were presented regarding the transport network including the need for
upgrades to the south coast rail line, issues with congestion on roads, the need for additional car
parking and a push to support active transport and associated infrastructure. It was also
reguested that the Gong shuttle be recognised in the Strategy.

Both commercial and residential accommodation needs were raised. It was argued that a plan
needs to be developed to unlock the supply of industrial lands. Housing affordability and the link to
economic development was presented. There was also notable interest in the supply of co-work
spaces.

Protecting our environment, sustainability, renewable energies and climate change, featured in
many submissions. It was argued that sustainability should be embedded into the Strategy and
economic development should not be at the cost of the environment.

Challenges created by planning controls and processes were presented. There was support for
changing the perceptions of the region. A range of ideas to boost tourism were presented. There
was also a range of edits offered. The need for additional resources was highlighted, in particular,
to introduce a concierge service or a dedicated major projects team. There was strong support for
Council to undertake an advocacy role and requests for Council to continue to engage and work
with stakeholders to deliver the Strategy.

Draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029 Exhibition - Engagement Report 3
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Background

The Economic Development Strategy 2013-2023 has been reviewed and redeveloped to reset local
economic goals and actions which reflect the current situation and guide the direction of key
stakeholders over the next ten years.

Engagement was undertaken in 2018 with key
stakeholders to inform the development of the
draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029
[draft Strategy). These stakeholders included:

e Councillors

e Council officers

o Avreference group including private
enterprise, peak organisations and
government agencies;

e Peak bodies including tourism, Property
Council, Business Chamber, Urban
Development Institute of Australia and
SMART Infrastructure Facility

e Investor /developer representatives

e Start-up businesses

e Government departments

« University of Wollongong . L

e NSW Ports Economic .

e Registered businesses-predominantly Devaioparent Btategy v
[micro businesses with 5 or less

;Olq.- 2029
employees).

A variety of methods were implemented to encourage participation including meetings with
individuals and representative networks, consultation at roundtable event, tailored workshops and
distribution of & business survey.

The draft Strategy has been informed by outcomes from extensive engagement, our learnings
from the previous Strategy and research into best-practice approaches from other local
governments. The key theme running through the document is a renewed focus on increasing the
number of high-quality jobs in Wollongong. Based on the identified trends and challenges, the
Strategy set out three strategic objectives.

» Generating and sustaining jobs growth - Target 10,500.
= Lifting median incomes - focussing on generating jobs in higher paying industries
= Aligning industries with the skills of the local commuter and university graduate workforce

The draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-7029 was placed on formal exhibition and the
broader community were invited to provide feedback.

Draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029 Exhibition - Engagement Report 4
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Methodology

The following section outlines the various activities undertaken during the during the exhibition
period from 30 May - 1 July 2019. NOTE: A report which provides details of the engagement
activities and feedback used to develop the draft Strategy is available Z19/97924.

Table 1: Details of Communication and Engagement Methods

Methods Details of Methods

Communication Methods

Details of Engagement HQ webpage were included in Council's Community

The Advertiser
Update pages.

Media release A media release was made available for media outlets.

Email to key An email and FAQ were sent to all stakeholders who participated in engagement
stekeholders to date and stakeholders identified through an analysis process.
Register of T
CgISIEr 0 An email was sent to all participants with registered interest in ‘Business’.
Interest
Info packs Freguently asked question brochures and hardcopy feedback forms were sent to
P key stakeholders and made available at libraries and customer service.,
) , Information about the exhibition was promoted through Council’'s Facebook and
Social Media

Twitter accounts.

Engagement Methods

Presentations  Presentations were made to key stakeholder, groups and crganisations

Meetings were held with stakeholders with high interest and impact or by

Meetings . . . .
g request. The meeting provided an opportunity to discuss the draft Strategy.

Engagement An anline survey tool was used to capture participant’s feedback. The page also

HQ Website hosted background info and supporting documents.
Feedback A hard copy feedback form was made available at libraries and engagement
Form activities.

Draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029 Exhibition - Engagement Report 5
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Results

This section provides details on the participation at engagement activities and the feedback
received during the exhibition period.

Engagement Participation
Details of the number of participants for each engagement activity are presented in Table 2.

Table 2: Engagement participation results

Engagement Activities Participation

Presentations/Meetings
e Property Council of Australia, lllawarra Chapter (15) 207
e lllawarra Business Chamber Regional Advisory Council [15)
Port Kembla Chamber of Commerce (8)
Dapto Chamber of Commerce (6]
Northern Illawarra Chamber of Commerce (20
Corrimal Chamber of Commerce (35]
Property Council Illawarra Future Directions event (70]
Siligong Meet-up (23)
RDA Illawarra [14)
South Coast Labour Union member (1)

Total Written Submissions B

Online Participation

e Aware - Total number of users who viewed the project page 485

e Informed - Total number of users who opened a hyperlink or read a 298
document

e Engaged -Total number of users who have actively contributed to 36

the project

Feedback Results

Formal feedback on the draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029 came from 51
submissions, which included 13 groups/organisations and 38 individuals.

The groups/organisations/business included:

Cardno Northern Illawarra Residents Action Group
Co-Ops NSW NSW Paorts

Department of Premier and Cabinet Property Council of Australia

Destination Sydney Surrounds South Regional Development Australia

Doctors Against Violence toward The Black Opal Bay Group

Women uow

Illawarra Business Chamber Z1g Zag Hub

Draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029 Exhibition - Engagement Report 6



V./ Ordinary Meeting of Council

wollongong ltem 5 - Attachment 2 - Draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029 - 23 September 2019 141
Community Engagement Report

There was general support for the draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029 and some
feedback congratulated Council on the document. While some suggested the jobs target was over
ambitious the general sentiment was supportive of striving to create mare jobs, reduce commute
times and strengthen our eccnomy. The following information provides an overview of the
suggestions and recommendations presented through the feedback.

Target Sectors

Advanced Manufacturing

There was concern about advanced manufacturing as a target sector. It was suggested the mining
and manufacturing sectors are increasingly automated, which has created gains in productivity
and safety, but not in employment numbers. With this in mind it was recommended that the
strategy pursue sectors that provide a transition out of mining. It was proposed that focus on
‘heavy induslry, manufacturing and property development’ should slop, citing these industries are
in decline and continued economic investment into these sectors will have diminishing future
value. It was argued that advanced manufacturing should include a ‘forward-looking approach to
energy’. There also feedback which argued advanced manufacturing is critical and need to be
included as a target sector.

Arts and creatives

Support towards the arts and creative industries as a target sector was presented. Suggestions
were made to strengthen the support of these industries and recognition they have to the
economic viability of our community. It was presented that inclusion of creative industries as a
target sector would build on existing strong cultural and creative values of the region.

Disappointment was expressed towards the arts sector not being consulted during the
development of the document. It was suggested that the mention of the Arts and Creative
Industries does not go far enough "both in terms of analysis of the current "talent pool”, and more
importantly, in subsequent espousal of strategies to address the lack of local opportunities’.

Defence

Opposing views were presented toward defence as a target sector. It was argued that 'Wollongong
needs a positive vision for its future and the defence industry is not consistent with such a vision'.
It was also suggested that defence manufacturing has a low ratio of jobs per investment.
Alternatively, there was recognition of our regions ability to leverage from the defence sector.

Export

There was some feedback requesting export be included as a key target sector. It was suggested
regional development practices support to identify industries that attract income from outside the
area for the region to generate sustainable economic growth. It was argued that most industries
detailed in the Strategy are not exporting or competitive industries compared to the other regions.
Arange of risks associated with not including export as a target sector were presented.
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Green Industries and Renewal Energy

Requests were made for green industries and renewal energy projects to be included as a target
sector. It was suggested that this would ‘leverage the
decarbonisation of our power system, and support a

A huge area of opportunity for
new jobs /s in innovative green

growing industry that is essential for & sustainable
future’. It was also argued that there is a significant shift

industries’ . .
in the economic focus away from coal towards greener

living. Reference was made to a report published by the
International Labour Organisation (ILO] about the green
Job market. It was also suggested two of the proposed target sectors align with economic growth
in a sustainable way being ‘Professional, Scientific and Technical Services” and ‘Electricity, Gas,
Water and Waste Services', the rationale was presented. In addition, there was support for
'scaling-up waste management enterprises’. One submission argued that given its significance,
climate change should be a key target sector in the strategy.

ITC and Start-ups

There was particular support for increased focus on the ITC
and start up industries. It was presented that Wollongong is
becoming a strong technical hub, with a shift away from
blue collar jobs towards skilled labour. It was suggested
the Strategy should place more emphasis on Wollongong's
future as a tech hub and the provision of resources and

Wollongong is becoming a
strong technical hub, with a

shift away from blue collar jobs
towards skilled labour with a
steady stream of lalent coming
infrastructure required for this 'new ecosystem to flourish’. from the university each year,
It was recommended that well-known tech companies
should be attracted to the area as a stralegy to boost

Wollongong's profile as a tech hub.

Social Enterprise and Cooperatives

It was requested that Council actively encourage the creation and growth of more social
enterprises and recognise the value of cooperatives in Wollongong. It was argued that this
approach links directly to the Illawarra-Shoalhaven Regional Plan - “building a strong, diversified
economy is a priority because it will enable the community to respond to environmental, economic
and social challenges™.

It was also argued that there should be a focus on how to prioritise local procurement suggesting
increasing demand for local goods and services will boost the local economy. Feedback suggested
‘Council has a role to play directly, through its procurement policy, and indirectly as a leader in
the region that can advocate for this'. It was suggested Council’s procurement policy should
prioritise social procurement by giving social outcomes a weighting in all procurement processes
and further, Council should advocate for other organisations to prioritise social procurement.
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Transport

The frustrations with the South Coast rail line were evident. There was criticism over travel delays,
carriage crowding, and poor or no internet coverage. Il was suggested that the Strategy should
acknowledge the urgent need to upgrade rail services and that Council should advocate to
address these issues.

The local and regional road network issues were presented and suggestions made regarding the
need for significant development to reduce current and future vulnerabilities.

Car parking was also identified as an issue. One submission cited Council's research which
indicates parking issues will continue to hinder commercial projects and business. It was
suggested that Council identify suitable land close to the CBD to be used for additional car
parking and develop incentive schemes linked to local business.

There was support for the Strategy to encourage the reduction of car dependence and focus on
becoming a sustainable SMART city. It was suggested there must be more effort to encourage
cycling by dedicated paths, signage, cycle lanes, parking facilities in the city and provision for
bikes on trains.

It was suggested the contribution the Gong shuttle and Illawarra Airport provide to our economic
viability should be reflected in the Strategy.

Development Controls and Processes

Concerns regarding Council’'s planning processes were presented. It was suggested many of the
challenges faced by the industry are in relation to the development application process. The
impact of development application fees on small business was presented, suggesting these fees
are prohibitive.

Recommendations were made to make amendments to the current LEP and DCP. One suggestion
encouraged changes to diversify of housing options across the LGA and stimulate affordable
housing development in certain precincts. Another suggested revision to these documents, or
other planning measures, to protect the commercial core from increased residential
encroachment.

It was highlighted that development controls needs to align with the actions outlined in the draft
Strategy. One suggestion recommended that development applications should be progressive in
meeting sustainability objectives. Further recognising the importance of linking these controls to
the implementation of the Strategy, it was recommended that an additional action be included ‘5.
Planning - Implement policies to avoid the intensification of sensitive land uses in close proximity
to Port Kembla and supporting industrial lands.’
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Accommodation

Both commercial and residential accommodation spaces were raised throughout the feedback.
There was an emphasis on the CBD, it was suggested that Council should undertake actions to
increase commercial occupancy and that key businesses need to be appropriately located to
maximise success. The need for more quality office space in the CBD was also identified.

It was argued that it is essential for a plan to be developed to unlock the supply of industrial lands
across the LGA. It was presented that in developing unused
Developing a long-term plan and underutilised employment lands, Council should
{o unlock the supply of consider the ‘long term value of those lands in supporting
industrial lands across the future port operations and catering for larger industrial
LGA and facilitating the users relocating from Sydney'. It was also suggested that it
redevelopment of large is necessary to undertake efforts to connect under-
disused industrial sites /s developed employment lands to sewerage, water and power
essential . and publicise these efforts to attract commercial and

industrial property development.

Housing affordability and the link to economic development was presented. It was suggested that
housing is becoming increasingly unaffordable and that Council needs to take an active role in
addressing the issue in our region. One suggestion stated ‘Council needs lo altract developers of
affordable housing, rather than upmarket investor-driven development’. Another encouraged
changes to planning controls to diversify of housing options across the LGA and stimulate
affordable housing development. The link to housing affordability and income was presented,
supporting the strategic approach to increase incomes as a means of addressing this issue.

There was notable interest in the supply of co-work spaces. It was suggested that a plan be
created for the establishment of modern co-working spaces similar to Google and Atlassian which
would allow employees to operate from a Wollongong based office space for part or all of their
work week. The henefits of working ‘remotely’, reducing commute times and collaborative spaces
were presented.

Environment

Protecting our environment, sustainability, renewable energies, climate change, featured in many
submissions. It was argued that sustainability

should be embedded into the Strategy and 1am disappointed there is not a
economic development should not be at the cost greater emphasis of addressing
of the environment. It was proposed the lack of issues relating to climate change
focus on climate change or progress in a greener and sustainability long-term of
direction 'seems to highlight a lack of research or the environment which is at the
at the very least research that was toc focused heart of what makes Wollongong
without assessing other options'. the eminently attractive and

It was argued that some of the key projects and beautiful place it is currently’.
activities identified in the draft Strategy are at
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‘fundamental odds with the commitments and priorities in the Wollongong City Council
Environmental Sustainability Policy and Strategy’. Examples included the Gas Energy Terminal
Project due to carbon emissions from the export, gasification and re-importation of Australian
gas; Mount Qusley interchange and widening as it is doubling freight traffic rather than
decarbonising freight and Fé extension where rail allernatives are feasible and would result in
lower carbon emissions.

Perceptions

There was support for changing the perceptions of the region. Recommendations suggested the
need to focus marketing to key audiences in particular to draw key businesses to the area. It was
suggested that the art and culture sector can positively impact perceptions. Suggestions were
also made regarding the impact of the perception of antisocial behaviour in Crown Street Mall has
on overall perceptions of the Mall.

Tourism

|deas to boost tourism were presented. It was suggested that we should harness the significant
environmental attributes of our area to increase visitation, in particular moving focus from the
beaches to the bush. Various drawcard locations were suggested such as Mount Keira and
Kembla, Wollongong Botanic Gardens, Rhododendron Gardens and the unique sub-tropical
rainforests.

In achieving the goal "to attract more major events and tourism infrastructure”, it was suggested
that this must not be at the expense of the natural environment. Events were suggested such as
the UCI World Road Cycling, surfing, CrossFit competition and triathlons. Opposing views were
presented szbout mountain bike riding on the escarpment with both support and opposition to
making it permissible.

Strategy Development

Feedback was received towards the engagement process undertaken during the development of
the document. It was recognised that the feedback provided by the industry had been taken into
account by Council when developing the Strategy and key actions. Alternatively, it was suggested
more collaboration should have occurred and there was discontent the engagement to develop
the Strategy was 'shaped largely by business interests, rather than employees, job seekers, and
other sections of our community affected by the local economy’.
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Implementation

The need for additional resources was highlighted, in particular, to introduce a concierge service
or a dedicated major projects team. It was suggested that this approach would expedite
processing times for significant commercial development applications and ‘'boost economic
activity’.

There was strong support for Council to undertake an
advocacy role. It was suggested Council need to advocate
for key infrastructure priorities and ensure they are
‘shovel-ready’. Further, advocacy should include removing
barriers to employment and creation of permanent jobs
rather than a casual workforce.

Council should continue
engagement with the industry,
and collaboration with key
slakeholders across the region
such as the peak bodies lo assist

in improving the effectiveness of
It was suggested that Council continue to engage and advocacy and achieving strategic
work with stakeholders to deliver the Strategy. It was also objectives and goals as set out in
suggested that Council could lead the way in holding the strategy’

industry specific forums to discuss such issues and
brainstorm improvements.

Other considerations

A range of feedback was presented relating to proposed changes to document structure and
typos.

There were suggestions to reconsider the language used regarding "low income’,

A request was made to consider opportunities to leverage the expected growth of the Health Care
and Social Assistance sector.

The need to improve telecommunications across region was presented.
It was suggested that secure dalz storage be removed.

Recommendations were provided regarding Crown Street Mall, in particular, requests to open the
Mall to traffic, the need to activate the space and address perceived antisocial behaviour in the
space.

It was suggested that Council continues to focus on the development of the CBD, drawing
investment to the area and making the city centre a vibrant and attractive place to do business

It was requested that support to scale-up, develop and grow medium-sized resource recovery
companies be addressed in the Strategy.

It was requested that liveability through enhancement of the urban environment through green
spaces and urban farming, to attract 2 modern and diversely skilled and connected workforce and
create jobs in environment and education’ be addressed in the Strategy.

A request was made for Council to invest in a comprehensive trauma centre.
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It was suggested the current Strategy is incorrect and if we strengthen the Wollongong economy,
we must raise income of low income earners and those living in poverty in addition to attracting
high income jobs.

It was requested that the Strategy recognise that some members of our community are ‘locked
out of full-time paid work due to unpaid work responsibilities, health issues, or study and they
need part-time jobs that fit around these constraints’.

It was suggested the Strategy risks increasing the already growing inequality within our
community.

It was suggested Council lead an Entertainment Precinct Masterplan.

It was argued Council need to consider economic development in a holistic approach. It was
proposed that the current practice of separating out Council Plans under the divisions of
‘economics’, ‘culture’, ‘environment’, ‘community, and so forth, fails to recognise the
interconnectedness of everything.

Draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-202%9 Exhibition - Engagement Report 13



\V 4
wollongon

ity of innovation

Ordinary Meeting of Council

ltem 5 - Attachment 3 - Draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029 - 23 September 2019
Recommended Updates Summary

Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029
Recommended Updates Summary

Feedback Addressed

Target sectors — general We clarified the difference between BAU
(population-based) jobs growth and the target
sectors, where the Strategy seeks to grow
additional jobs which are not tied to population.
As a result, the target sectors of the Strategy
service markets outside the city and therefore
have the potential to grow at a faster rate than
those sectors which are focused largely on
serving the Wollongong market. The population
serving sectors of the economy remain
important, especially major employing sectors,
and will form the bulk of the BAU jobs growth.

The specific adjustments made were:

Requests to include additional industries to be
target sectors e.g. aged care, health care and
social assistance, education and construction.

On page 7 - the following addition was made

Of the 10,500 jobs goal for the next decade,
modelling suggests that 5,800 of these will be in
population serving industries. That is, these jobs
will occur because of population growth. This
means sectors such as health, education, aged
care, retail and hospitality will remain important
employers in Wollongong and continue to make
a critical contribution to the economy. This
Strategy is focused on the additional 4,700 jobs
that the city needs but which may not happen
without specific actions.

This Strategy is focused on the creation of the
extra 4,700 jobs, that are above the business as
usual projection, to get to the target of 10,500.
Jobs growth in the targeted, knowledge-
intensive, high value, high skilled sectors, are
not linked to population growth. Instead they are
industries who serve clients outside the region
and so have the capacity to grow the local
economy and employment faster than
population growth.

On page 38 - the following addition was
made

The jobs deficit analysis shows that without this
Strategy the economy will create around 5,800
jobs. These jobs will be in industries that service
local residents such as health, aged care, retail,
hospitality and education. These sectors will
remain important employers in Wollongong
amid growth in the local resident population.

This Strategy is focused on the creation of the
extra 4,700 jobs, that are above the business as
usual projection, to get to the target of 10,500.
Jobs growth in the targeted, knowledge-
intensive, high value, high skilled sectors, are
not linked to population growth. Instead they are
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industries who serve clients outside the region
and so have the capacity to grow the local
economy and employment faster than
population growth.

Advanced manufacturing Despite job losses in recent years,
manufacturing remains an important employer
in Wollongong, with around 6000 people directly
employed. Manufacturing is an export-
Some were happy with the way it was | orientated sector and so can grow jobs faster
positioned as a target sector, recognising the | than population serving sectors. Hence, it can
important role the sector still plays in the city. help lift job creation faster than BAU.

There was widely varied feedback on Advanced
Manufacturing.

One submission was disappointed it was not a | As an Advantage Wollongong sector, Advanced
target sector. Manufacturing is a target sector of the Strategy.

Some argued that it should not be a target | As outlined on page 42, advanced
sector, mainly due to concerns about emissions | manufacturing is not the same as heavy
and the impact on climate change. industrial manufacturing. This was clarified, with
additional examples provided.

The specific adjustments made were:

Additional sectors targeted by Advantage
Wollongong, and also this Strategy, include:

On page 41 - the following addition was
made

Engineering (including environmental
engineering roles)

On page 42 - the following addition was
made

These sectors are also targeted in this Strategy.

On page 42 - the following addition was
made

Wollongong's research and manufacturing
credentials around sustainable energy use were
highlighted in 2018 in Dubai when a team of
UOW and TAFE students and researchers
collaborated, with industry support, to build the
Desert Rose House. This project combined
energy-saving construction techniques and
materials with smart ‘Internet of Things’
technology to build a sustainable house that
also promotes well-being and adapts to the
occupants’ needs as they age, including those
living with early stage dementia. This project
showcased Wollongong's capabilites on the
world stage and came second in the prestigious
Solar Decathlon 2018.

Creative industries Further recognition of the creative industries has

Suggestions for greater emphasis of the | been included in the final version of the
importance of creative industries in the Strategy. | Strategy.

The specific adjustments made were:

On page 41 - the following addition was
made

This sector also includes many creative based




\r
wollongon

ity of innovation

Ordinary Meeting of Council

Iltem 5 - Attachment 3 - Draft Economic Development Strategy 2019-2029 -
Recommended Updates Summary

23 September 2019

occupations such as professional
photographers, jewelry designers, graphic
designers, sign-writers, architects, film-makers
and marketing specialists.

On page 41 -

Arts and Creative Industries paragraph was
deleted

On page 43 - the following addition was
made

Creative Industries and Arts (new heading)
Wollongong City Council is also committed to
fostering growth in creative industries. This is
highlighted in Wollongong City Council's
dedicated Creative Wollongong 2019-24 plan
which is focused on how Wollongong can foster
its creative skills. Council recognises that these
occupations, some of which also fall into the
professional, scientific and technical services
sector, play a key role in the broader vibrancy of
Wollongong and underpin the great livability
residents enjoy. Wollongong has a very
passionate and active creative community.
During the development of Creative Wollongong
many people working in these types of jobs
expressed concern about having to move out of
the area to chase opportunities.

Defence

There was widely varied feedback on the
inclusion of defence as a target sector.

Some supported its inclusion, recognising the
job opportunities the sector presents including
leveraging from the Wollongong's advanced
manufacturing skills.

Some argued that it should not be a target
sector, due to concerns about involvement in
the global arms industry and the negative
impact it has on external perceptions of
Wollongong.

Wollongong's links to the defence industry
relate to its historical expertise in engineering
services and manufacturing, rather than arms
manufacturing. Existing businesses have sought
to diversify and expand their markets to include
defence contracts. For example, provide
gearboxes and steel-plating for defence
vehicles. This was clarified in the Strategy to
ease the concerns raised.

The specific updates made were:

On page 43 - the following clarification was
made

Wollongong has a well-developed ecosystem of
organisations involved with defence related
procurement activities including a range of
manufacturing services as well as research
activities. Wollongong companies offer a wide-
range of products and services with growing
opportunities to service the defence industries.

Export

Feedback requested the inclusion of exporting
as a target sector due to its capacity to attract
income from outside the region and grow the
economy and jobs at a faster pace than the
population.

The Strategy uses the Australian and New
Zealand Standard Industrial Classification
(ANSIC) classification for sectors. ‘Exports’ is
not an industry under this system. Under the
ANSIC system exporting industries are those
that sell their products and services to clients
outside Wollongong. The target sectors meet
this criteria.
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To clarify this the specific changes made were:
On page 7 - the following addition was made

This Strategy is focused on the creation of the
extra 4,700 jobs, that are above the business as
usual projection, to get to the target of 10,500.
Jobs growth in the targeted, knowledge-
intensive, high value, high skilled sectors, are
not linked to population growth. Instead they are
industries who serve clients outside the region
and so have the capacity to grow the local
economy and employment faster than
population growth.

On page 38 - the following addition was
made

This Strategy is focused on the creation of the
extra 4,700 jobs, that are above the business as
usual projection, to get to the target of 10,500.
Jobs growth in the targeted, knowledge-
intensive, high value, high skilled sectors, are
not linked to population growth. Instead they are
industries who serve clients outside the region
and so have the capacity to grow the local
economy and employment faster than
population growth.

Green industries and renewable energy

Some requests for additional inclusion of
renewable energy and green industries.

Supporters of sustainability-based jobs noted
that two of the target sectors align with
economic growth in a sustainable way
(Professional, Scientific and Technical Services;
Electricity, Gas, Water and Waste Services).

Other feedback noted waste management and
scale-ups align strongly with target sectors of
local environmental social enterprises.

The potential role of renewable energy is
acknowledged in the draft Strategy on page 42.

The specific updates made were:

On page 38 - the following addition was
made

the Strategy indirectly contributes to
improved climate outcomes via its focus on
knowledge-based services industries into the
future. These sectors have a lower carbon
footprint than the sectors that dominated the
Wollongong economy in the past.

On page 42 - the following addition was
made

Wollongong's research and manufacturing
credentials around sustainable energy use were
highlighted in 2018 in Dubai when a team of
UOW and TAFE students and researchers
collaborated, with industry support, to build the
Desert Rose House. This project combined
energy-saving construction techniques and
materials with smart ‘Internet of Things’
technology to build a sustainable house that
also promotes well-being and adapts to the
occupants’ needs as they age, including those
living with early stage dementia. This project
showcased Wollongong's capabilites on the
world stage and came second in the prestigious
Solar Decathlon 2018.

ICT and Start-ups

ICT/Tech is a target sector of the Strategy and
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Feedback supported the inclusion of the tech
and scale-up sectors in the Strategy. Additional
suggestions included attracting well-known
international tech brands to Wollongong and
establishing a tech hub in the city.

Advantage Wollongong (see page 39 — 43).

Specific projects to attract more tech companies
to Wollongong will be considered as part of the
implementation phase of the Strategy. Council
looks forward to continuing to work with this
industry sector both directly with businesses, via
iAccelerate and through groups such as
Silligong.

Social enterprises and co-operatives

Feedback requested the inclusion of social
enterprises and co-ops into the Strategy.

Feedback requested additional mention of
Social Procurement as a way to support social
outcomes.

Council has a Social Procurement Policy which
is covered in Action Item 7.3.

The specific updates made were:

On page 31 - the following addition was
made

These jobs will be created in businesses that
cover a range of different structures that could
include major listed companies, small
businesses, co-operatives and social
enterprises.

On page 78 - the following addition was
made (bold)

Action ltem 7.3: Support the inclusion of
targeted groups in procurement programs as
per Council’s Social Procurement Policy

Transport

A number of specific transport policy issues
were raised in submissions. These include:

e Support for improvement in connections to
Greater Sydney, including South Coast rail
line

e Support for addressing car parking -
availability and impact of car parking rates
on viability of commercial buildings

e Suggestions to improve traffic flow around
the city and use more active transport
options

s Support for lllawarra Regional Airport

« Support for ‘Gong Shuttle

The transport related feedback received is
already addressed in multiple Action ltems in
the Strategy including 1.4, 1.7, 1.14, 3.5, 4.2,
43,44 8&47.

The specific updates made were:

On page 26 - the following addition was
made

Wollongong is also serviced by the lllawarra
Regional Airport, just 15 mins south of the
Wollongong city centre, which offers daily direct
flights to Melbourne and Brishane.

On page 47 - the following addition was
made

The free ‘Gong Shuttle provides important links
around the key employment precinct of the city,
university and health precincts. This connects
businesses and customers and allows
employees to move around the area via free
public transport.

Development Controls and Processes
Issues raised included:

* Support for the recognition of the importance
of preserving employment lands in the
Strategy

* Concerns about the development application
process and costs

e Support for Action ltem 5.1 — major projects

The issues raised were broadly consistent with
the feedback received via the Business Survey
and the Investor Roundtable. These are already
addressed in the Strategy in multiple Action
ltems associated with the Planning function of
Council (5.1-5.7) and Action Item 1.5
(employment lands).

The specific updates made were:

On page 51 — the following additions were
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multi-disciplinary team

made

Wollongong City Council acknowledges the
importance of preserving these industrial lands
to ensure industry has access to appropriately
zoned land into the future.

The region has seen an increase in interest
from industrial and manufacturing business
located in Southern and Western Sydney

Accommodation

Issues raised in relation to accommodation
included:

» Support to provide more commercial office
space in the CBD to accommodate future jobs
growth.

« Support for co-warking spaces

e Tourism lands review

« Affordable housing

There are a number of Action ltems around the
provision of commercial and residential
accommodation that received support from
feedback including 5.2 — 5.7.

Specific actions include the importance of
encouraging investment in more commercial
office space (5.1), the benefits of co-working are
addressed (2.4) and tourism lands review (5.5).

Affordable housing is currently being reviewed
by Council officers and will be covered in a new
Housing Strategy.

Environment

Requests to include renewable energy in the
document.

Requests to exclude specific target sectors and
game-changing projects on the grounds of
climate change.

The potential role of renewable energy is
mentioned on page 42 of the draft Strategy.

Feedback received when the Strategy was
being developed and during the public exhibition
period offered widespread, majority support for
the target sectors and the ‘game-changing’
projects.

The specific changes made were:

On page 38 - the following addition was
made

Addressing the impacts of climate change is a
broader issue than Wollongong City Council can
tackle alone and is outside the direct scope of
this Strategy. Nevertheless, the Strategy
indirectly contributes to improved climate
outcomes via its focus on knowledge-based
services industries into the future. These
sectors have a lower carbon footprint than the
sectors that dominated the Wollongong
economy in the past. Wollongong City Council
also has other Supporting Documents that
relate to sustainability and climate change.

Perceptions

Support for activities that shifted often dated
views of Wollongong.

Specific suggestions around activities that could
be undertaken will be explored in detail during
the implementation phase of the Strategy.

Tourism

Support for activities that boost tourism, in
particular help attract more major events.

Boosting tourism infrastructure is identified as a
‘game-changer’ in the Strategy (see page 52-
53). The Strategy also recognises the role of
major events in boosting tourism and changing
perceptions about Wollongong.

Specific suggestions around activities that could
be undertaken will be explored in detail during
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the implementation phase of the Strategy.

Strategy Development

Feedback overwhelmingly complimented
Council on the development of the Strategy and
the extensive consultation that was undertaken
both while the Strategy was being written and as
part of the broader public consultation process.

Some feedback suggested there was too much
consultation with employers rather than job
seekers and employees.

Employers were heavily consulted because they
are the group that will be creating the 10,500
new jobs over the next decade. The Strategy
seeks to address the barriers they face to
employing and investing in the city so as to
maximise the likelihood of achieving the jobs
goal.

Council staff met with South Coast Labour
Council as part of the consultation process.

This Strategy is focused on ensuring that local
job opportunities are increased. Council
acknowledges there are employment barriers
faced by some of our residents. These include
the level of Newstart, health conditions, access
to education and skills development, poor
transport and housing and domestic violence.
Council seeks to address these issues through
its own community services and by collaborating
with  the NSW and Commonwealth
Governments. These issues are not unique to
Wollongong and require attention beyond local
government.

The contribution this Strategy makes to these
challenges is to create more local job
opportunities.

Implementation

Feedback was strongly supportive of Council
increasing its advocacy role.

Many Stakeholders expressed interest in
ongoing engagement with Council to support the
implementation of the Action Plan and
Implementation Plan.

The Strategy acknowledges Council will not be
able to create the 10,500 new jobs without a
community-wide effort and intends to continue
to work with others to deliver for the residents of
Wollongong (for example, the Lord Mayor's
comments on page 3).

All of the Civic Leadership Action ltems will
require collective action. Action Item 1.9, 1.11,
1.13 specifically note the need for collaboration
with various Stakeholders.

Secure data storage

Some feedback questioned the relevance of
secure data storage facilites as businesses
move to cloud-based storage.

The specific adjustments made were:

On page 40 - the following additions (bold)
were made

Secure data storage facilities for businesses
and public sector entities requiring high-
security options.

Cheap versus cost effective

Some feedback raised concerns about
portraying Wollongong as a cheap location
which could create perception of low skilled
workforce.

The specific adjustments made were:

On page 23 - the following additions (bold)
were made

Wollongong is a more cost effective location
with the most affordable salary and real estate
outcomes for an indicative 150 seat shared
services operation.

Poor telecommunications in the region

Some feedback around the need to improve

Telecommunications policy is outside the direct
control of Council. However, Council recognises
that not all businesses in the LGA have access
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telecommunications in the region to assist
businesses to serve clients outside the region.

to high-speed internet and will advocate to
public and private providers about improving
black-spots.

Action Item 4.1 commits Council to exploring the
installation of ultra-high-speed digital
infrastructure in the CBD area to support the
businesses of the future who will have high data
needs.

Crown Street Mall
Feedback around the Mall included:

» Request to open Crown Street Mall to traffic,

« Review the City Centre Special and Crown
Street Mall levies

« More programs to reduce anti-social behavior
in the Mall

» More programs to activate the CBD

The issue of opening up the Mall was the
subject of considerable community discussion
prior to Council making a $20 million investment
in the revitalisation of the Mall in 2012. Council
took the decision to keep the Mall closed.

Action Item 6.9 commits to investigating a
review of city centre levies.

Council continues to invest in activation
programs for the Mall such as Eat Street
markets and school holiday programs.

Urban environment and livability

Feedback called for improved livability policies
by Council to deliver green spaces which, in
turn, would attract a modern and diversely
skilled workforce.

Council addresses these issues in a variety of
planning policies such as the Urban Greening
Strategy 2017-2037.

Entertainment Precinct

Feedback suggested Council develop an
Entertainment Precinct masterplan for the WEC
and surrounding areas.

This is addressed in the Strategy via Action ltem
1.12.

Funding for a Trauma Centre in Warilla

There was a funding request for a Trauma
Centre at Warilla to support victims of domestic
violence.

This is an important Australia-wide issue and
Council recognises domestic violence can be a
barrier to staying in work or obtaining work.

Council is contributing to a working party on this
issue, however, it is outside the direct scope of
this Strategy.

Inequality

Feedback suggested this Strategy will increase
inequality in the lllawarra because it is focused
on job creation (particularly full-time jobs) and
income lifting actions. There were calls to
change the focus on the Strategy to be on
encouraging more low paid jobs and part time
jobs.

Analysis on page 35 of the Strategy explains
that the Woallongong economy has been very
successful at creating part-time, entry-level
lower paid jobs. This pattern will continue over
the next decade and this Strategy does not act
to stop the creation of these lower paid, part-
time, entry level jobs. The Strategies focus on
also creating more full-time, high-paying, higher-
skilled jobs.

Council policy development

Feedback suggested Council should change its
approach to policy development and move away
from specialist divisions writing individual
policies.

There was extensive internal consultation as
part of the development of this Strategy. It was
not written in isolation from other teams within
Council as staff recognises that many of these
policies are interconnected.
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1. CIVIC LEADERSHIP

Action Delivery Responsibility Partners Resourcing Yri Yr2 Yr3 Yra Yr5 Yr6 Yr7 Yr8 Yr9 Yr10 Indicator/ Strategic Links
Stream 19/20 | 20/21 | 21/22 | 22/23 | 23/24 | 24/25 | 25/26 | 26/27 | 27/28 | 29/30 Milestone
11 Adopt an LGA-wide jobs target of 10,500 new Economic Economic Executive Existing Annual jobs CSP21,228&
jobs by 2028 and report progress against this Development Development Management operational report 2.3
target annually Manager Committee budget
Peak bodies
Advantage
Wollongong
1.2 Incorporate job impacts as part of supporting All Executive Economic Existing Employment CSP21,228&
documents and projects that have employment Strategy Development operational impact 23
implications Manager Manager budget statements
Manager used, where
Development applicable
Assessment &
Certification
1.3 Focus on changing perceptions and attracting Economic Economic Advantage Existing Bi-annual CSP21,2.2,
new business investment to Wollongong Development Development Wollongong operational perceptions 23824
through Advantage Wollongong Infrastructure Manager Peak bodies budget to survey
Strategic 2/2*
Planning
1.4 Advocate for key transport projects that Economic Econamic Manager Existing Areductionin | CSP2.1,2.2,
improve connectivity between Wollongong and | Development Development Infrastructure operational travel times 2.3,24,42,
Greater Sydney and support jobs growth and Infrastructure Manager Strategy and budget between 51,528&6.2
investment Strategic Planning Wollongong &
Planning Manager Greater Sydney
Land Use Environmental
Planning Strategy and
Planning
Peak bodies
1.5 | Advocate for the retention and development of | Economic Economic Manager Existing Areductionin | CSP2.1&2.2
currently unused and underused industrial and Development Development Environmental | operational unused/under
urban services employment lands to support Land Use Manager Strategy and budget used
appropriate employment Planning Planning employment
Infrastructure Manager fand in the LGA
Strategic Infrastructure
Planning Strategy and
Planning
Peak bodies
1.6 | Advocate for the port of Port Kembla as the Economic Economic Manager Existing Increase in P21
second NSW container port as soon as possible | Development Development Infrastructure | Operational activity at Port
Infrastructure Manager Strategy and budget of Pobr;:
Strategic Planning il:ecT;d;.
Planning Peak bodies . &
containers
NSW Ports
1.7 | Advocate f‘?r the South West mawa"‘? rail Line | Economic Economic Manager Existing SWIRL project | CSP2.1,2.2 &
(SWIRL) to improve passenger and freight Development Infrastructure operational planning
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connections between Wollongong and SW Development Manager Strategy and budget advances and 2.3
Sydney Infrastructure Planning is ultimately
Strategic Peak bodies delivered
Planning SMART
1.8 Advcca? for new and existing NSW and ) Economic Economic Peak bodies Existing Increase in €SP 2.1,228&
Australian Ga\.uernment departments or offices Development Development Advantage operational public service 23
to be located in Wollongong Manager Wollongong budget jobsin
Wollongong
19 \qvestigate holding a quarterly roundtable Economic Economic Peak bodies Existing Regularly €5P2.1,22,
dlscusswgn between WCC General Manager and Development Development operational hosting 23824
key business leaders and groups Manager budget roundtable
1.10 | Advocate for ?he establishmenE ofa Economic Economic Manager Existing Advocacy work | CSP 2.4
Wollongong city centre university campus Development Development Infrastructure | operational commences
Manager Strategy and budget A campus
Planning locates in CBD
Peak bodies
111 | Work with I5J0 and State Govemnment on Economic Director Econamic Existing Increase in CSP2.1,22,
initiatives that benefit employment outcomes Development Community Development operational Government 23&24
Services Manager budget funding for
1SI0 employment-
generating
projects
112 Advocate for the master planning process Economic Manager Economic Existing Master Planis | CSP2.1,2.2&
around WD"°"_E°"3 s Convention Development Infrastructure Development operational completed and | 2.3
Centre/Entertainment Centre complex Infrastructure Strate_GV and Manager budget ider_ltiﬁed cW3.28
Strategic Planning Destination projects are
Planning Wollongeng delivered
Peak bodies
1.13 | Work with Western Sydney counterparts and Economic Director Economic Existing Increase in CSP2.1,2.2,
other levels of govgrnment to ensure Development Community Development operational economic 23,24 862
Wollongong benefits from the Western Services Manager budget activity flows
Aerotropolis 1510 from Western
Sydney to
Wollongong
1.14 | Pursue a City Deal for Wollongong Economic Executive Economic Unfunded MOU signed C5P2.1,22,
Development Management Development (GR Components 23,24,42,&
Committee Manager staffing?) agreed 6.2
Manager Implemented
Infrastructure
Strategy and
Planning
Peak bodies
1510
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2. BUSINESS ATTRACTION

Action Delivery Stream Responsibility Partners Resourcing Yri Yr2 Yr3 Yra Yr5 Yré Yr7 Yr8 Yr9 Yr10 Indicator/ Strategic Links
19/20 | 20/21 | 21/22 | 22/23 | 23/24 | 24/25 | 25/26 | 26/27 | 27/28 | 29/30 Milestone
2.1 Support an ongoing strategic business Economic Economic Advantage Existing csp2.3
attraction program via Advantage Wollongong | Development Development Waollongong operational
Manager budget
2.2 Develop a Wollongong place brand to increase | Communications, | Manager Economic Existing Brand project | CSP2.1,2.2,
exposure, consistency and brand reach across | Engagement, Community Development operational implemented 23,24,42,
key economic development areas — Events and Cultural and Manager budget 51&5.2
Invest/Live/Visit/Study Signage Economic Advantage
Development Wollongong
uow
23 Develop and implement an Advantage Economic Economic Advantage Existing Marketing C5P 21,228
Wollongong integrated marketing strategy Development Development Wollongong operational strategy 23
targeting high value/high income jobs in key Manager budget implemented
sectors
2.4 Promote co-working facilities as a way for Economic Economic City Centre Unfunded Increaseinco- | CSP2.1,22 &
Wollongong resident staff to work for Sydney- | Development Development Activation working spaces | 2.3
based companies City Centre and Manager Manager
Crown St Mall
2.5 Develop and launch the Advantage Economic Economic Advantage Existing Stakeholder CSP21,228&
Wollongong stakeholder program to leverage | Development Development Wollongong operational program 23
the existing networks of local businesses Manager budget launched
2.6 Investigate familiarisation visits, tours and Economic Economic Advantage Unfunded Program CsP21,228
delegations around Advantage Wollongong's | Development Development Wollongong underway 23
target sectors Manager
2.7 | Investigate future governance and Economic Economic Advantage Existing New €5P2.1,228&
management models for Advantage Development Development Wollongong operational governance 23
Wollongong Manager budget model
implemented
2.8 | Facilitate business investment enquires Economic Economic Advantage Existing CsP21,22&
Development Development Wollongong operational 23
Manager budget
2.9 | Explore the re-introduction of a NSW Economic Economic Peak bodies Existing New fund CSP21,22&
government supported fund te assist new Development Development operational introduced 23
businesses seeking to establish in Wollongong Manager budget
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3. KNOWLEDGE HUB

Action Delivery Responsibility Partners Resourcing Yri Yr2 Yr3 Yra Yr5 Yré Yr7 Yr8 Yr9 ¥Yr10 Indicator/ Strategic Links
Stream 19/20 | 20/21 | 21/22 | 22/23 | 23/24 | 24/25 | 25/26 | 26/27 | 27/28 | 29/30 Milestone
31 Provide a 6-monthly update to Councillors on Economic Economic Existing 6 monthly CSP21&22
the state of the local economy Development Development operational updates
Manager budget delivered
3.2 Provide accurate and timely investment Economic Economic Existing Economy .id CSP21&22
information such as economic, demographic Development Development operational subscription
and development information, and making this Manager budget maintained
available to the community as a means of
supporting business expansion/investment
decisions
3.3 Provide support for government submissions, Economic Economic Existing C5P21,228&
maodelling and policy advice for other business Development Development operational 23
unit’s funding applications Manager budget
3.4 Promate libraries as learning centres and work Library Services | Manager Economic Existing CSP 2.4
spaces for business owners and their staff Economic Library & Development operational
Development Community Manager budget
Services
3.5 Undertake research into the negative individual | Economic Economic Unfunded Research is CSP21&22
and community impacts of commuting Development Development commissioned
Manager and completed
3.6 | Maintain current data on a range of types of Economic Manager Economic Existing Internal CSP21,228&
commercial floorspace in the LGA including Development Development Development operational dat_“b“}‘es are |23
significant enquires, Development Applications, | peyelopment Assessment & Manager budget maintained
constructed projects and vacancy rates Assessment Certification
o Manager
Building Governance &
Certification Information
Customer

Service Delivery
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4. INFRASTRUCTURE

Action Delivery Responsibility Partners Resourcing Yri Yr2 Yr3 Yra Yr5 Yré Yr7 Yr8 Yr9 Yr10 Indicator/ Strategic Links
Stream 19/20 | 20/21 | 21/22 | 22/23 | 23/24 | 24/25 | 25/26 | 26/27 | 27/28 | 29/30 Milestone
4.1 Develop the business case for the installation of | Economic Manager Manager Unfunded Business case CSP2.1,2.2,
ultra-high-speed digital infrastructure in the Development Infrastructure Governance & completedand | 23&2.4
Wollongong city centre to enable new digital Technology Strategy and Information project
economy businesses Infrastructure Planning Economic progressed
Services Development
Infrastructure Manager
Strategic City Centre
Planning Activation
City Centre and Manager
Crown Street
Mall
4.2 Explore future opportunities in the Smart City Technology Manager Manager Existing Smart City sp21,22,
space to improve Council’s operating efficiency | Infrastructure Governance & Infrastructure operational projects are 23,24,6.1&
and delivery of services to the community Services Information Strategy and budget researched, 6.3
Infrastructure Planning designed and
Strategic implemented
Planning
4.3 Develop local transport policies that ensure all Infrastructure Manager Existing C5P2.1,618&
residents can access employment opportunities | Strategic Infrastructure operational 6.3
in job centres such as Metro Wollongong Planning Strategy and budget
Road Safety, | Planning
Traffic and
Transport
Planning
4.4 Investigate options for reducing car parking Infrastructure Manager Existing New car CSP2.1,2.28&
rates to assist commercial building feasibility in | Strategic Infrastructure operational parking 23
the city Planning Strategy and budget provisions and
Road Safety, Planning non-car
Traffic and lrarjsport
Transport options
Planning developed for
commercial
projects
45 Include recognition of the economic impact and | Infrastructure Manager Manager Existing Employment CSP21,228&
job creation capacity of major infrastructure Strategic Infrastructure Environmental operational impact 2.3
projects undertaken by Council Planning Strategy and Strategy and budget statements
Urban Renewal | Planning Planning used, where
and Civic City Centre applicable
Improvement Activation
City Centre and Manager
Crown Street
Mall
4.6 | Provide infrastructure to support activities and | Infrastructure | City Centre Manager Emti“? CsP21,22,
improve amenity and activation within the Strategic Activation Infrastructure | Operational 3.1,324&33
Wollongong city centre Planning Manager Strategy and budget
City Centre and Planning
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Crown Street
Mall

4.7

Establish digital way-finding, using information
system and data collection, to improve traffic
flows and car parking utilisation in the city
centre

Road Safety,
Traffic and
Transport
Planning
Infrastructure
Strategic
Planning

City Centre and
Crown Street
Mall
Economic
Development

Manager
Infrastructure
Strategy and
Planning

City Centre
Activation
Manager
Economic
Development
Manager

Unfunded

Project scoped,
funded and
delivered

CSP21,61&
6.3
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5.

PLANNING

Action Delivery Responsibility Partners Resourcing Yri Yr2 Yr3 Yra Yr5 Yré Yr7 Yr8 Yr9 Yr10 Indicator/ Strategic Links
Stream 19/20 | 20/21 | 21/22 | 22/23 | 23/24 | 24/25 | 25/26 | 26/27 | 27/28 | 29/30 Milestone
5.1 Establish a mechanism to expedite significant Infrastructure Manager Manager Existing Mechanism CSP21,228&
employment generating projects, which Strategic Development Infrastructure operational adopted by 23
involves input from multiple specialist teams Planning Assessment & Strategy and budget Council
across Council Development Certification Planning
Assessment Economic
Economic Development
Development Manager
5.2 Implement policies that support a mix of office | Infrastructure Manager Manager Existing City Centre CSP2.1,228&
development in the Wollongong city centre Strategic Infrastructure Environmental operational planning 23
including new A-grade commercial buildings Planning Strategy and Strategy and budget review
Land Use Planning Planning completed
Planning
53 Implement policies (via town and village plans) Infrastructure Manager Manager Existing Employment CsP21&22
that support appropriate jobs generation in Strategic Infrastructure Environmental | operational impact
other (non-city centre) employment areas Planning Strategy and Strategy and budget statements
across the LGA Land Use Planning Planning used, where
Planning applicable
5.4 Develop a planning and policy framework to City Centre and | Manager City Centre Existing Evening CsP2.1,2.2,
support the ongoing evolution of Wollongong’s | Crown Street Environmental Activation operational Economy 23,31,32&
evening economy Mall Strategy and Manager budget policy 33
Cultural Planning Econamic reviewedand | ey 411,
Development Development updated 43.1,4328&
Land Use Manager 433
Planning Community
Economic Cultural
Development Development
Manager
5.5 Undertake a Tourism Lands review in order to Infrastructure Manager Manager Existing Tourism Lands | CSP 2.1, 2.2,
investigate the use of tourism-specific zoning on | Strategic Infrastructure Environmental | operational review 23
key coastal sites to ensure the provision of Planning Strategy and Strategy and budget completed
sufficient beds in Wollongong to support a Land Use Planning Planning
growing visitor economy Planning Destination
Wollongong
5.6 | Conduct a survey of local investor every two Economic Economic Manager Existing Survey GsP2.1,2.2,
years to obtain feedback on their business Development Development Infrastructure operational conducted 23
investment experience in the LGA Manager Strategy and budget over life of
Planning Strategy
5.7 | Establish an investment Industry Forum every 6 | Development Manager Manager Existing Forum ©sP21,22,
months where WCC can communicate strategic | Assessment Infrastructure Environmental | operatianal conducted 2.3
directions and gain market insights infrastructure | Strategy and Strategy and budget over life of
Strategic Planning Planning Strategy
Planning Manager
Land Use Development
Assessment &
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Planning
Economic
Development

Certification
Economic
Development
Manager
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6. BUSINESS SUPPORT

Action Delivery Responsibility Partners Resourcing Yri Yr2 Yr3 Yra Yr5 Yré Yr7 Yr8 Yr9 Yr10 Indicator/ Strategic Links
Stream 19/20 | 20/21 | 21/22 | 22/23 | 23/24 | 24/25 | 25/26 | 26/27 | 27/28 | 29/30 | Milestone
6.1 Undertake regular dialogue/events/workshops | Economic Economic Peak bodies Existing CSP21&22
with small business focused on building Development Development UOW operational
capacity and entrepreneurship in partnership Manager budget
with business groups, local chambers,
iAccelerate and Advantage SME
6.2 Implement the Small Business Friendly Council Economic Economic Manager Existing Easy to do CSP21&122
Program, including the ‘Easy to do Business’ Development Development Development operational Business
program Development Manager Assessment & budget launched
Assessment Certification Commitment
Inspections, Manager to Small
Education and Governance & Business
Registrations Information Friendly
Customer Manager Council
Service Delivery Regulation & program
Enforcement continues
6.3 Work with local chambers to establish a ‘Buy Economic Economic Local Chambers | Existing Campaign P21
Local’ campaign to support businesses Development Development operational launched
Manager budget
6.4 Promote links between the University's Economic Economic uow Existing CSP2.1,2.2,
research capabilities and local industry Development Development operational 23&24
Manager budget
6.5 Support local industry clusters and destination Economic Economic Destination Existing C5P2.1,228&
activities Development Development Wollongong operational 23
Destination Manager budget
Wollongong
6.6 | Investigate partnerships and promotional Cultural Community Economic E"“”"? CsP21,238&
opportunities to further develop and expand Development Cultural Development operaticnal 31
the Made in Wollongong brand and supportits | gconomic Development Manager budget
delivery Development Manager Cw2.15
6.7 | Support the Renew Wollongong Program in the | City Centre and | City Centre Economic Emﬁ"? CSP23&3.2
Wollongong City Centre Crown Street Activation Development operational
Mall Manager Manager budget w321
6.8 | Establish a 6-monthly economic development Economic Economic City Centre Existing Launch CSP2.1,228&
electronic newsletter to update local businesses | Development Development Activation operational newsletter & 23
on Council activities and projects Manager Manager budget regularly
release
6.9 Investigate a review of the City Centre levies City Centre and | City Centre Economic E"i“i"? Cor_lduc| €sP21
Crown Street Activation Development operational review
Mall Manager Manager budget
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7. Operational Procurement

Action Delivery Responsibility Partners Resourcing Yri Yr2 Yr3 Yra Yr5 Yré Yr7 Yr8 Yr9 Yr10 Indicator/ Strategic Links
Stream 19/20 | 20/21 | 21/22 | 22/23 | 23/24 | 24/25 | 25/26 | 26/27 | 27/28 | 29/30 Milestone
7.1 Review Council’s procurement of local goods Economic Manager Economic Existing Increase in CSP21&22
and services to increase its role as a major lever | Development Finance Development operational local business
for local job creation Supply Manager budget weighting in
Management procurement
policies
7.2 Launch an annual procurement showcase event | Supply Manager Manager Existing Briefing held P21
associated with the capital works program to Management Infrastructure Finance operational annually over
assist local businesses with tendering Strategy and Economic budget life of Strategy
opportunities Planning Development
Manager
7.3 Support the inclusion of targeted groups in Economic Manager Community and | Existing Increase in CSP21&22
procurement programs Development Finance Cultural operational targeted
Devel
Community evelopment budget groups
Devel . Manager applying/succe
evelopmen Economic ssin
Supply Development procurement
Management Manager process
7.4 Use Council’s procurement policy to support Supply Manager Manager Existing CSP21&22
new businesses which are delivering innovative | Management Finance Infrastructure operational
and sustainable building materials and Strategy and budget
techniques Planning

Index

CSP — Community Strategic Plan (Wollongong 2028)

CW - Creative Wollongong

10
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.@ﬁ) We asked... for your feedback on the draft Economic Development Strategy 2019/29

You said...

Target Sectors

There were requests to include green industries and renewal energy, social
enlerprise, co-operatives and export as larget sectors. There was support for
ITC and start-ups as target sectors and requests to strengthen our
commitment to creative industries. Feedback highlighted concern towards
advanced manufacturing as a target sector, suggesting these industries are
in decline. There were opposing views regarding defence as a target sector
suggesting it does not align with creating a positive image for Wollongoeng,
alternatively highlighting the opportunity to leverage off what the sector can
provide our region.

Transport

A range of concerns were presented regarding the transport network
including the need for upgrades to the south coast rail line, issues with
congestion on roads, the need for additional car parking and a push to
support active transport and associated infrastructure. It was also requested
that the Gong shultle be recognised in the Strategy.

Accommodation

Both commercial and residential accommodation needs were raised. It was
argued that a plan needs to be developed to unlock the supply of industrial
lands. Housing affordability and the link to economic development was
presented. There was also notable interest in the supply of co-work spaces.

Environment

Protecting our environment, sustainability, renewable energies, climate
change, featured in many submissions. It was argued that sustainability
should be embedded into the Strategy and the economic development should
not be at the cost of the environment.

Planning Controls

It was suggested many of the challenges faced by businesses are in relation
to the development application process. The impacts of development
application fees on small business was presented, suggesting these fees are
prohibitive. Recommendations were made to make amendments to the
current LEP and DCP. It was highlighted that development controls need to
align with the actions outlined in the draft Strategy.

Implementation

The need for additional resources was highlighted, in particular, to introduce
a concierge service or a dedicated major projects team. There was strong
support for Council to undertake an advocacy role and requests for Council
to continue to engage and work with stakeholders to deliver the Strategy.

Other considerations

There was support for changing the perceptions of the region. A range of
ideas to boost tourism were presented. There was also a range of edits
offered.

Target Sectors

We added in a reference to the range of business structures that may create
the new 10,500 jobs goal. We also added more references to Creative
Wollongong 2019-24 and the links between creative occupations and the
Professional, Scientific &Technical Services sector.

We added a reference to the role of advanced manufacturing in the
development of sustainable housing and energy use, including the example of
Desert Rose project by UOW and TAFE Illawarra

There are already many businesses in Wollongong that service the defence
industry. These are often manufacturers who have broadened their client base
into defence to reflect changes in demand. They are research, services and
procurement based rather than direct producers of defence hardware.

Transport

We added specific mention of the Gong Shuttle and its role in the key
employment precinct of the city centre area

We also added another mention of the Illawarra Regional Airport.
Recognising the transport network link to economic development and
advocating for stronger transport links between Wollongong and Greater
Sydney is a key advocacy action of the Strategy [Action Item 1.4]

Accommodation

The importance of facilitating commercial development to accommodate the
new 10,500 jobs is recognised in the Strategy. In particular, via the proposed
major development mechanism [Action Itern 5.1].

Unlacking underdeveloped industrial land is recognised as a ‘'game changer’
and key advocacy area [Action Item 1.5] in the Strategy.

We are addressing Housing Affordability in another Council Strategy.

Environment

Additions were made to the Strategy to emphasise that the sectors which
make up Wollongong's economy, now and into the future, have a lower carbon
footprint than the economic base of the past.

Planning Controls

The connection to planning controls is supported, this is reflected in the seven
specific planning related Action ltems included in the Strategy.

The Wollongong City Centre Planning Review is examining planning controls
of this key employment precinct. Your feedback has also been provided to the
review team for consideration in this process.

Implementation

Advocacy is a key role of Council in the Strategy with 14 Civic Leadership
Action Items.

Other considerations

The work of Advantage Wollongong in changing perceptions about the city is
included in the Strategy

A number of minor edits were included as part of the general editing process



N 167

wollongong
ity of innovation

File: IW-075.150.04.011 Doc: IC19/535

ITEM 6 EMISSIONS REDUCTION TARGET - GLOBAL COVENANT OF MAYORS

Wollongong City Council is one of 26 Councils in Australia to commit to carbon reduction through the
Global Covenant of Mayors for Climate and Energy (GCoM). Under the GCoM initiative, Council is
required to adopt a science-derived emissions reduction target on behalf of our community

Council has completed an inventory of local government area (LGA) wide emissions, with the majority of
emissions being derived from the industrial sector. The inventory has determined that the Wollongong
Local Government Area has a carbon budget of 49 Mt CO»-e, which it must stay within in order to avoid
the impact of catastrophic climate change. It should be noted that Council is submitting this target on
behalf of the community, for the benefit of the entire community and that Council is not solely responsible
for the implementation of actions to achieve this target.

If the Wollongong community continues to emit carbon at the current our carbon budget (49 Mt CO.-e)
will be exhausted in just over 18 years. The emissions reduction target suggested in this report will
extend our carbon budget until 2050, after which a net zero emission target is proposed.

On 12 August 2019, Council resolved to declare a State of Climate Emergency. The proposed emissions
reduction target will strongly support Council’s Climate Emergency declaration.

Following adoption of a target and under the auspice of the GCoM framework, Council is required to
develop an action plan to reduce emissions through a robust investigation and consultation process. The
action plan will include a range of actions to reduce Council’s emissions. Given the emissions source
profile, it is envisaged that Council will be taking on a significant supporting role in terms of advocacy,
stewardship, education and engagement to assist the community, businesses and industry to yield the
highest possible emissions reduction outcome for Wollongong.

RECOMMENDATION

1 A science-derived emissions reduction target of net zero emissions by 2050 be submitted to the
Global Covenant of Mayors secretariat. Noting that Council is submitting this target on behalf of the
community, for the benefit of the entire community and that Council is not solely responsible for the
implementation of actions to achieve this target.

2  An Emissions Reduction Action Plan be developed to assist all sectors of the community achieve
the emissions reduction target for the Wollongong local government area.

REPORT AUTHORISATIONS

Report of: David Green, Manager City Strategy (Acting)

Authorised by:  Chris Stewart, Director Planning and Environment - Future City and Neighbourhoods
(Acting)

ATTACHMENTS

1 City of Wollongong Science Derived Targets for Greenhouse Gas Emissions - Report
2 Australian GCoM Councils Targets

BACKGROUND

In August 2017, Council became a signatory to the GCoM, following a Council resolution on 17 July
2017. The GCoM is an international alliance of cities and local governments with a shared long-term
vision of promoting and supporting voluntary action to combat climate change and move to a low
emission, resilient society. The GCoM merges the Compact of Mayors and the EU based Covenant of
Mayors, with 9,209 cities around the world having committed to date.
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compliance. The required commitments, target dates and current status according to the GCoM are
outlined in Table 1 below.

Table 1 - GCoM compliance framework for Wollongong

Commitment Target date Status
Register commitment August 2017 Completed
Complete an emissions inventory August 2018 Completed
Complete a climate change hazards assessment August 2018 Completed
Adopt a science-derived emissions reduction target for the LGA August 2019 Subiject of this report
Complete a climate change vulnerability assessment August 2019 Work commenced
Develop climate change mitigation (emissions reduction) plan August 2020 To be developed
Develop climate change adaptation plan August 2020 To be developed

Emissions Inventory

The LGA wide emissions inventory showed that 78% of emissions within Wollongong are derived from
stationary energy generation, which includes both electricity and gas (refer to Figure 1). When emissions
are examined by source, 72% of emissions are from the industrial sector and 20% from the residential
sector (Figure 2). Wollongong is a unique city in terms of our emissions profile; industrial emissions are
significantly higher than the NSW and National averages (which are 35% and 52% respectively), whilst
transport emissions are lower than the NSW average of 21%.

_~Transport
19%

_ Residential
—
— 20%

__Waste
2%

- J
\MWastewater ___Commercial
1% -~ 8%

Staionary __
E N
oo Industrial _—" &
72%
Figure 1 — Wollongong emissions by source type Figure 2 — Wollongong emissions by sector

Emissions from Council operations equate to less than 5% of community wide emissions. The majority of
Council’'s emissions (88%) are generated at Whytes Gully landfill.

Carbon Budget

Under the Paris Accord a global carbon budget of 1040 Gt COz-e was determined by the
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC). This is based on the amount of carbon emissions
that can be produced globally (indefinitely) to keep global temperature less than 2°C above pre-industrial
levels. This is the level that has been determined to avoid catastrophic climate change.

Carbon budgets were then determined for countries across the world based on populations, socio-
economic factors and projections. Wollongong’s carbon budget of 49 Mt CO,-e has been determined
based on the carbon budget allocation for Australia (refer to Figure 3 and full report Attachment 1), as
the limit that we cannot exceed for Wollongong to play its role in avoiding catastrophic climate change.

If the Wollongong community continues to emit at the rate that it is today — business as usual — our
carbon budget (49 Mt CO.-e) will be exhausted in just over 18 years. This assumes that no actions will
be undertaken, however, implementing actions to reduce emissions will ‘buy’ more time in terms of use
of the allocated budget.
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If the Wollongong community continues to emit at the rate that it is today — business as usual — our
carbon budget (49 Mt CO.-e) will be exhausted in just over 18 years. This assumes that no actions will
be undertaken, however, implementing actions to reduce emissions will ‘buy’ more time in terms of use
of the allocated budget.

GLOBAL
1,040 Gt CO,-e
(1,040,000Mt CO,-¢)

AUSTRALIA
10,100 Mt CO,-e

!

WOLLONGONG LGA
49 Mt of CO,-¢

It has been suggested that the global carbon budget has been significantly reduced since it was
determined in 2016. There is a meeting of the IPCC in September 2019 and updated figures will be
released following the meeting.

Catastrophic climate change is predicted to result in devastating cumulative effects that will be
experienced across the globe as well as locally. These local impacts include:

¢ Increasing temperatures
¢ Increase in the number of extreme hot days (>35 °C)
e Decrease in number of cold nights (<2 °C)
e Decrease in winter rainfall
¢ Increase in summer and autumn rainfall
¢ Increase in bushfire risk
o Sea level rise and coastal inundation.
Local and broader impacts will include:

¢ Health issues, particularly in vulnerable communities, with people unable to escape or tolerate
extreme temperatures

¢ Increased costs to households from energy use associated with cooling

e Damage to infrastructure as a result of extreme weather events and sea level rise

o Displaced communities and populations in low-lying areas

e Species loss as a result of changes in breeding patterns and inability to adapt to new climates
e Decreased access to water/food/shelter

¢ |nvasion of weed/pest species

e Sea grass loss.
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There are currently 26 Councils across Australia that are signatories to GCoM. All GCoM Councils are
required to submit a science-derived community emissions reduction target. The target must be
calculated according to specific protocols derived from the IPCC carbon budget framework by an
accredited consultant.

Wollongong Council’s Science-Derived Target for Greenhouse Gas Emissions report has been prepared
in accordance with the GCoM framework by an accredited person (Attachment 1).

Council is recommended to set a science-derived emissions reduction target that will:
¢ Incorporate an initial reduction target to extend the carbon budget to 2050,

e Beyond 2050 the target will be adjusted to net zero emissions

The initial reduction target equates to a linear reduction of approximately 2.7% or 74,251 tonnes per
year. By 2050 a net zero community emissions target is proposed on behalf of and for the benefit of the
Wollongong community. The proposed emissions reduction target is expressed in Table 2 below:

Table 2 — Wollongong'’s carbon budget and proposed community emissions reduction target

Carbon Budget (t CO,*) 49,200,000

Pre 2050 target
Rate of reduction (pa) 2.7%
Annual reduction (t CO,*) 74,251

Post 2050 target
Annual reduction (t CO,*) Net zero emissions

Council has an important role in reducing emissions from its operations and will need to prepare an
action plan focused on emission reductions associated with these operations.

As identified above, the industrial and residential sectors are responsible for the vast majority of
Wollongong’s emissions. In order to leverage actions, which yield the highest emission reductions,
Council will need to work in partnership with major industry, business and the community. In this regard
Council is likely to be responsible for actions associated with advocacy, stewardship, education and
engagement for emissions reduction for these sectors.

A list of the carbon emission targets proposed by other Australian GCoM Councils is provided as
Attachment 2. It should be noted that the net zero emissions target set for Wollongong is consistent with
the target for the City of Sydney and City of Adelaide.

CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION

Workshops were held with staff and Councillors in November and December 2018. On 5 August 2019,
an additional Councillor briefing session was held.
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PLANNING AND POLICY IMPACT

This report contributes to the delivery of Wollongong 2028 Goal 1 — ‘We value and protect our natural
environment’, Goal 2 — ‘We have an innovative and sustainable economy’, Goal 6 — ‘We have
sustainable, affordable and accessible transport'. It specifically delivers on the following objectives -

Objective 1.1 - Our natural environment, waterways and terrestrial areas are protected, managed and
improved

Objective 1.2 — We practice sustainable living and reduce our ecological footprint
Objective 2.2 — The regions industry base is diversified

It specifically delivers on the following Strategies and Actions -

Community Strategic Plan Delivery Program 2018-2021 Operational Plan 2018-19
Strategy 3 Year Action Operational Plan Actions

1.2.1 Reduce our ecological footprint, 1.2.1.1 Develop and implement a 1.2.1.1.1 Coordinate community

Reducing greenhouse emissions is also a priority in the Environmental Sustainability Strategy

1.2.2

221

working together to minimise
the impacts of climate change
and reduce waste going to
landfill

Government and community
work together to mitigate the
impacts of climate change on
our environment and future
generations

Further diversify the region’s
economy through a focus on
new and disruptive industries
and green technology

2014-2022 -

1.21.3

1.2.21

range of programs that
encourage community
participation in reducing
Wollongong’s ecological
footprint

Methods to reduce emissions
are investigated and utilized.

Our community is proactively
engaged in a range of
initiatives that improve the
sustainability of our
environments

2.2.1.1 The development of renewable

energy products and services
is supported

1.21.3.3

1.21.3.4

1.2.21.3

1.221.4

221141

environmental programs
including: Rise and Shine,
Clean Up Australia Day,
World Environment Day,
National Recycling Week,
International Composting
Week and other waste
education activities

Participate in the Global
Covenant of Mayors and set
emissions reduction targets
for the LGA

Monitor and report on
organizational water, energy
and greenhouse gas
emissions trends

Develop a project and work
with partners to further
explore the United Nations
Sustainable Development
Goals and how they align to
the community’s goals with
funding to be considered
through the business
proposal process

Implement resourced priority
actions from the
Environmental Sustainability
Strategy 2014-22

Seek out opportunities to
incorporate green
technologies in Council’s
projects and contracts

Focus Area 2 - Reducing our ecological footprint - Reducing emissions from Council operations

Focus Area 5 - Demonstrating Sustainable Leadership and Governance — Complying with Global
Covenant of Mayors requirements, which includes setting emissions reduction targets and developing
an action plan to achieve the target.
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The adoption of an emissions reduction target will support the achievement of the following United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals -

GOOD HEALTH INDUSTRY, INNGVATION | /44 SUSTAINABLE CITIES 12 RESPONSIBLE
AND WELL BEING AND GOMMUNITIES CONSUMPTION
ANDPRODUCTION

Biow [Mws™ [Oowe | 17 s

Ecological Sustainability

Compliance with the GCoM requirements will mean that Wollongong is contributing to avert catastrophic
climate change. Without action Wollongong is likely to experience a range of impacts including increase
in extremely hot days, drought, bushfire, sea level rise, extreme weather events and flooding inundation.
These impacts will significantly affect vulnerable communities, infrastructure and asset viability and
management, biodiversity and water availability. Setting an emissions reduction target for Wollongong
will support Council’s August 2019 Climate Emergency Declaration.

RISK ASSESSMENT
There will be significant environmental and social risks associated with not addressing climate change.

Council is the owner of a significant assets that will also be affected by the impacts of climate change
including roads, bridges, coastal infrastructure, buildings and facilities.

There is will also be a reputational risk if Council does not adopt an emissions reduction target following
the recent Climate Emergency declaration. Council will also be non-compliant with GCoM requirements.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Whilst there is nil cost associated with adopting an emissions reduction target, the cost of implementing
actions to reduce emissions is yet to be determined. Council is only directly responsible for 5% of
community emissions and therefore the role of Council is mainly one of advocacy, stewardship,
education and engagement. Actions will need to be reviewed to leverage the largest reductions in
emissions.

CONCLUSION

Adoption of a community emissions reduction target is a requirement for the GCoM. Based on the Paris
Accord and GCoM protocols it is proposed that Council, on behalf of and for the benefit of the
Wollongong community, set a science-derived emissions reduction target of net zero community
emissions by 2050. Noting that achieving the target is not the sole responsibly of Council. Should
Council resolve to adopt a target, Council staff will proceed to action the subsequent commitments
associated with the GCoM, which includes the development of an emissions reduction plan in
consultation with key stakeholders. The endorsement of an emissions reduction target will also show
significant support for the recent August Climate Emergency declaration.
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Wollongong City Council

Version Author Date Description of changes
V0a Hannah Snape 20/05/2019 First draft

VOb Alexi Lynch 25/05/2019 Review

Via Hannah Snape 31/05/2019 Final repart for Council
Vib Hannah Snape 30/09/2019 Revised report for Council

Prepared by

Ironbark Sustainability

Suite 8, 70-80 Wellington St, Collingwood 3066

ABN: 51 127 566 090

Ph: 1300 288 262 | info@realaction.com.au | http://www.realaction.com.au/

© 2019 Ironbark Group Pty. Ltd.

The information contained in this document produced by Ironbark Group Pty. Ltd is solely for the use of
the client identified on this page for the purpose for which it has been prepared and Ironbark Group Pty.
Ironbark undertakes no duty to or accepts any responsibility to any third party who may rely upon this
document. All rights reserved. No section or element of this document may be removed from this
document, reproduced, electronically stored or transmitted in any form without the written permission of
Ironbark Group Pty. Ltd.

About Ironbark Sustainability

Ironbark Sustainability is a specialist consultancy that works with government and business around
Australia by assisting them to reduce energy and water usage through sustainable asset and data
management and on-the-ground implementation.

Ironbark has been operating since 2005 and brings together a wealth of technical and financial analysis,
maintenance and implementation experience in the areas of building energy and water efficiency, public
lighting and data management. We pride ourselves on supporting our clients to achieve real action
regarding the sustainable management of their operations.

Our Mission
The Ironbark mission is to achieve real action on sustainability for councils and their communities.

ceriified  Tronbark are a certified B Corporation. We have been independently assessed as meeting the
highest standards of verified social and environmental performance, public transparency, and
cpaton |@gal accountability to balance profit and purpose.

Science-Derived Target - City of Wollongong Page 2 of 12
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1.

1.1

Background

At the United Nations Framework Convention for Climate Change (UNFCCC) Paris Conference in
2015, the Australian Government signed an international agreement between 195 countries to
keep any temperature rise “well below 2°C”, and to drive efforts to keep warming below 1.5°C
higher than pre-industrial levels. This Paris Agreement, entered into force on 4 November
2016, explicitly recognises and engages local and subnational governments and their critical
role in supporting the transformation, including setting goals and strategies aligned with the
science.

Climate science tells us that warming beyond 1.5°C threshold is likely to
have increasingly severe social, economic and environmental impacts,
especially on a water scarce continent like Australia. As of October 2018,
the IPCC announced that there were no longer any scenarios for
remaining within this temperature increase-range without the use of
carbon removal technologies.

In becoming a signatory to the Paris Agreement, Australia now has a limited, established
carbon budget within which to operate in order to meet its commitment. The development of
science-derived targets for councils enables us to understand the scale of action that is
required at a municipal level to stay within this budget.

An emissions reduction target for an organisation, entity or community is considered "science-
derived” or "science-based” when it is aligned with the broader emissions reduction required to
keep global temperature increase below 2°C compared to preindustrial temperatures, as
described in the Fifth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
(IPCC).

Role of Targets

In considering science-derived targets for reducing greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions at the
community level, it is useful to explore their role and application. In application with carbon
mitigation strategies, there are three key types of target:

1. Aspirational - a ‘call to action’

The Aspirational Target is set according to political or other considerations and will typically
involve something memorable or easy to communicate. It may not consider if this target is
necessary, or what is needed to achieve the target. The primary motivation for this target is to
establish a common rallying point and encourage all stakeholders to get motivated. An example
of this type of target is, "We will achieve 20% carbon emissions reduction by 2020"

2. Top down - what needs to be achieved (Science-Derived Targets)

The Science-Derived Target is determined from an external requirement (in this instance, the
recommendations of the IPCC to avoid catastrophic climate change). It may be better thought
of as a limit, rather than a target. It is independent of political or other considerations and does
not consider how difficult (or otherwise) the target will be to achieve. The primary motivation

Science-Derived Target - City of Wollongong Page 4 of 12
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for this target is to avoid some negative outcome. An example of this type of target from other
fields is, “Do not descend below 8,000m otherwise the submarine will implode”.

3. Bottom up - what we can achieve (Action-plan Based)

The Action-plan Based Target is one that is constructed from what can be achieved from the
actions being considered in a council’s action plan. It can be ambitious; however, its scope is
directly derived from planned actions. An example of this type of target is, “Our factory will
produce 10,000 widgets this quarter”.

Science-Derived Target - City of Wollongong Page 5 of 12
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2.2

Methodology
Global Carbon Budget

The IPCC, the leading authority on current climate change scientific knowledge, has developed
long-term emission scenarios which show a range of potential emissions trajectories and
impacts based on highly detailed and rigorous modelling. These scenarios indicate the
maximum total emissions allowable to limit the increase in global average temperatures to 2°C,
which is considered the threshold for avoiding dangerous climate change. The IPCC reports that
for climate stabilisation to occur (2°C), industrialised countries need to reduce their greenhouse
gas emissions by approximately 85% by 2050.

Based on the above, the world’s “carbon budget” is the total volume of greenhouse gases that
can be emitted while providing a degree of confidence that temperature rise will be limited to a
relatively safe and manageable 2°C. The accepted global carbon budget established by the
IPCCis 1,701 Gt CO2-e for the period 2000-2050.

National Carbon Budget

There is no international agreement on the division of the global carbon budget between
countries. In apportioning a national carbon budget, there are a number of approaches, The
Australian Climate Change Authority (CCA) has used an approach that they consider fair and
equitable. This approach ensures that:

+ developing countries are initially allowed an increased per-capita carbon budget to
allow for additional emissions whilst they grow their economy; and,

« high per-capita emitters (such as Australia) are allowed time to adjust to their
reduced carbon budget, rather than setting them up to fail with an allowance that is
considerably lower than their current emissions.

Based on this methodology, CCA recommended

a national carbon budget of 10.1 Gt COz-e for AUSTRALIA
the period 2013-2050. As at September 2018, 10,100
7.26 Gt CO:z-e of this budget remains. Y

Australia’s current targets for reducing greenhouse gas emissions are 26-28% reductions on
2005 levels by 2030. In its 2015 reports to the Minister for the Environment on Australia’s
future greenhouse gas emissions reduction targets, the CCA recommends Australia commit to
the following science-based targets:

« a 2025 target of 30% below 2000 levels; and
« further reductions by 2030 of between 40 and 60% below 2000 levels.

Science-Derived Target - City of Wollongong Page 6 of 12
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Figure 1: Historical emissions and trajectory to recommended target

Source: CCA 2015, Final Report on Australia’s Future Emissions Reduction Targets, https://goo.gl/s4CYvb

2.3 Municipal Carbon Budget

In determining a municipal budget for greenhouse gas emissions, there are again a number of
methodologies that can be employed. Most simply, it is possible to divide the national carbon
budget according to population so that a municipality with a bigger population would be given a
larger budget than a smaller municipality. However, this neglects a number of important factors
that influence a municipality’s ability to reduce emissions.

In developing a science-based target for Wollongong, Ironbark has applied the following
considerations:

1. Australia’s current carbon budget at September 2018 is calculated as 7.26 Gt CO:z -e. This
is the CCA’s national carbon budget minus all emissions that have occurred since the
budget was derived, per the National Greenhouse Gas Inventory.

2. The carbon budget is adjusted to account for the sources considered in Wollongong'’s
community emissions profile (stationary energy, transport, agriculture, solid waste and
wastewater). This is done by applying the proportions of each sector from the most recent
National Greenhouse Gas Inventory.

o This means that sectors which have not yet been modelled (land use change and
forestry, industrial processes and product use) are not included in the budget, but can
easily be added as the data become available.

3. This adjusted national carbon budget is then scaled down to the municipal-level based on
the percentage of emissions for the included sector that occurred in Wollongong according
to the most recent data.

Science-Derived Target - City of Wollongong Page 7 of 12
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2.4 Scaling the Budget

Once a total carbon budget for Wollongong was calculated, further scaling factors are applied.
This is to ensure the allocation of budgets across Australian municipalities is fair and provides
the greatest chance of success.

2.4.1 SEIFA Scaling

The municipal carbon budget is scaled to account for socio-economic differences using the
Socio-Economic Index for Areas (SEIFA) as follows:

+ Municipalities with a higher than average SEIFA score are allocated a larger share of
the national carbon budget.

« Municipalities with a lower than average SEIFA score are allocated a smaller share of
the national carbon budget.

+ This allows us to account for the fact that councils with a highly disadvantaged
community are expected to find it more difficult to reduce emissions.

2.4.2 Scaling for Growth

The municipal carbon budget is then scaled to account for projected population growth as
follows:

« Municipalities with a higher than average growth rate are allocated a larger share of
the national carbon budget.

* Municipalities with a lower growth rate are allocated a smaller share of the national
carbon budget.

« This accounts for the fact that councils experiencing higher growth rates are expected
to find it more difficult to reduce emissions.

Science-Derived Target - City of Wollongong Page 8 of 12
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Targets
Science-Derived Target for Wollongong

In October 2018 Wollongong's science-derived target was calculated by Ironbark. The
outcomes are in Table 1.

Table 1: Scaled science-derived target for Wollongong, as calculated in October 2018

Remaining budget for Wollongong (kt CO.-e) 49,185
Remaining years without change (years) 18.2
Required linear annual reduction (t CO2-e) 74,251
Required linear rate of reduction (p.a.) 2.7%

The Remaining budget for Wollongong is 49,815 kt CO2-e.

The Remaining years without change (18.2 years) calculates how long this carbon budget
would last, based on the emissions released in the 2017/18 financial year.

The Required annual reduction and Required rate of reduction shows that Wollongong's
emissions need to reduce by 74 kt CO2-e (2.7%) per year until 2050, if the carbon budget is to
be used in a linear fashion over this time period. To give an idea of the scale of action required,
Sunshine Coast Council’'s 15MW solar farm has saved just under 30 kt CO2-e in the 1.5 years
since its installation.

When re-calculated in 2019, the remaining budget in tCO2-e had changed. This is due to
reductions in the overall budget available based on emissions released nationally drawing from
the Australian carbon budget. It is also because of changes to data sources, data sets and
methodologies. Ironbark is committed to ensuring methods are regularly updated to remain in
line with best practice and to utilise the more relevant, accurate and transparent data available.
These changes applied to all muncipalities.

Whilst the numbers for the carbon budget are quite different, the remaining years without
change and % reduction required are similar. This is because the updates that have been
applied to the calculation of the science-derived target also apply to the calculation of the
Wollongong community emissions profile.

Science-Derived Target - City of Wollongong Page 9 of 12
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4.2

4.3

Next Steps
How to Use a Science-derived Target

The methodology that Ironbark uses to develop science-derived targets has been designed to
allow all municipalities the greatest possibility of success. Whilst the targets are challenging,
they are targets that must be met in order to avoid catastrophic climate change and represent
the true scale of action that is required within each community. This target should not be
considered aspirational, rather it should be considered essential to avoiding the negative effects
on Wollongong’s community, environment and economy.

Whilst understanding the necessity of meeting this target, it is also important to understand
Council’s level of accountability. Reducing greenhouse gas emissions must be a whole of
community effort and actions taken by state and federal governments and emissions intensive
industries will be key in ensuring Australia stays within its national carbon budget. Council may
advocate for and support these actions or engage in collaborative planning with key
stakeholders, but ultimately is not solely responsible for meeting the full municipal emissions
target.

In engaging with stakeholders, it is important that the communication of the science-derived
target is undertaken strategically. Whilst aspirational targets have been used to educate and
motivate for many years, the science-derived target can be most useful as a tool for climate
planning and understanding relevant carbon budgets and timeframes.

Monitoring a Science-derived Target

Historically, success in achieving action towards targets
may have been measured by the reduction of a municipal
greenhouse gas profile. However, this is not the approach
that we currently recommend, due to the potential
fluctuation of the emissions profile related to factors entirely
outside of Council’s influence, such as the state electricity
emissions factor. Instead, targeted monitoring on specific
greenhouse gas mitigation activities can provide Council
with a measure of success in the effectiveness of programs
and greenhouse gas emissions reductions.

Action Planning for Community Emissions Mitigation

The community emissions profile previously developed by Ironbark Sustainability for
Wollongong, coupled with the science-derived target presented in this report are important
tools for climate planning. Used together, they allow Council to understand the scale of the
impact of their municipality, the breakdown of sectors responsible for the emissions and the
magnitude of the reductions needed. They provide the necessary foundation that advances and

Science-Derived Target - City of Wollongong Page 10 of 12
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enables Council to engage specific sectors or stakeholders in actions to reduce emissions and
develop a plan to reduce emissions.

When considering community emissions mitigation against a science-derived target, it is clear
that the scale of reductions required is exceptionally high. For this reason, it's important for
Council to carefully consider how best to leverage resources. Most often, direct action by
Council will not be the most efficient way towards achieving the target. However, there are a
number of ways that Council can engage and work with stakeholders and other levels of
government to facilitate the required emissions reductions.

In Ironbark’s experience, there are twelve key interventions that councils can employ to
support the reduction of community emissions. These are:

[y

Administration and strategy

Advocacy

Development of new policy or regulation
Education

Facilitation

Monitoring and reporting

New implementation of policy or regulation

Performance or supply contracting

v 0 N oo 0 ok WwN

Provision of incentive schemes or grants
10. Provision of loan schemes
11. Purchase and deployment

12. Strategic planning

4.3.1 Ironbark’s Community Action Planning Tool

Ironbark has developed a Community Action Planning Tool (CAPT), which allows us to develop
a list of actions that will target a specific emissions source and sector. CAPT is a natural
extension to the work we have been doing to develop community emissions profiles and
provides a more complete solution to the community-scale carbon management system. CAPT
is capable of:

« Calculating the best action list for a specific municipality, down to the estimated
spend (or in reverse, if councils have a predetermined budget, CAPT will be able to
estimate how much abatement can be achieved)

* Representing uncertainty of outcome, a critical component for mutually aggregate
actions that can have either a guaranteed outcome (such as installing solar on
councils’ own assets) to ones that cannot be certain at all (such as advocacy for
closing down coal power plants). This uncertainty is represented in a “descending
confidence” table, that maps the amount of carbon a program will mitigate against
the probability of achieving success.
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Grouping of all identified activities into “actions”, which are activities that actively
reduce emissions, and “interventions”, which are activities that a stakeholder
undertakes to effect the action. Examples of an action is “install EV charging
infrastructure in public-accessible locations”, and corresponding interventions may be
“finance and deploy”, and “facilitation”.

CAPT is specifically designed for councils, and our intent is for the tool to quantify all the
interventions currently being planned or implemented by councils across Australia. As we
expand this resource, more and mare of the initiatives we are seeing across the country will be
available for objective comparison and application to your municipality. Please get in touch to
find out more about how to be involved.

4.4 Further Resources

The following resources may also be useful in developing and assessing actions for
Wollongong’s community emissions mitigation planning:

The Rocky Mountain Institute’s website (www.rmi.org) has a number of useful
resources, including The Carbon-Free City Handbook (2007), which reveals 22
actions and associated resources for cities globally to move toward climate-neutrality
and see results within a year.

The World Bank’s CURB Tool is an interactive tool that is designed to help cities take
action on climate by mapping out different action plans and evaluating their cost,
feasibility, and impact. See https://bit.ly/1SeZ052.

Beyond Zero Emissions is an Australian think tank that has a number of publications
covering municipal-wide emissions reduction solutions (https://bit.ly/2QDcoWz), as
well as a Local Government Climate Review (2018).

Energy Innovation LLC (www.energyinnovation.org) is an energy and environmental
policy firm based in the United States with a number of useful resources on designing
carbon solutions. Among other things, they have developed free online computer
model to help design packages of policies to reduce carbon emissions
(https://www.energypolicy.solutions/). Although it is not yet pre-populated with
Australian data, the model provides a good visualization of key policy settings and
their impacts in other regions like the US and Canada.

The Global Covenant of Mayors is beginning to collate data on emissions, targets and
actions at: https://www.globalcovenantofmayors.org/global-covenant-cities-data
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Attachment 2: Australian GCoM Councils Emissions Reduction Targets

Council Emissions Reduction Target

ACT Net zero emissions by 2045

Adelaide Matching state target of zero net emissions by 2050
Byron 30% by 2020

Darebin Carbon neutral by 2020

Glen Eira Net zero emissions from the community by 2050

Net zero emissions from council operations by 2030

Hobart Zero net carbon emissions by 2020

Zero net greenhouse gas emissions by 2020

Hobsons Bay Zero net emissions community by 2030

Corporate target: Reduce net greenhouse gas emissions by 5% per
capita below 2012/13 emissions by 2018/19

Mandurah Carbon neutral 2020

Council: 100% carbon neutral by 2020
Community: 20% GHG reductions

Joondalup

Manningham

Maribyrnong No target found

Melbourne Zero net emissions by 2020

Melton ( Australia) Zero net emissions from council operations by 2025
Melville (Australia) 48% emission reduction from council operations by 2025
Moreland Zero carbon community by 2040

Zero net carbon emissions for council operations by 2021
Minimum community greenhouse gas emission reductions target of
2.9% annually

Momington Peninsula Shire
(Australia)

Mount Barker (Australia) No target found

30% carbon footprint reduction by 2020 for council operations

Newcastle (Australia) 30% reduction in per capita carbon emissions below 2008 levels

Penrith 40% reduction in greenhouse gas emissions by 2030

Reduce City of Perth operational emissions by 30% by 2030
Perth (Australia) Work with the community to achieve 30% reduction in city-wide GHG
emissions by 2030

Zero net council carbon emissions by 2020

Port Phillip (Australia) 50% reduction in per capita community carbon emissions by 2020

Sydney Net zero emissions by 2050

The goal of reducing corporate greenhouse gas emissions to 20% below
1996 levels by 2010

The goal of reducing community greenhouse gas emissions per capita to
20% below 1996 levels by 2010.

Tweed Shire (Australia)

Reduce councils corporate GHG emissions by 12% by 2020

Reduce councils corporate GHG emissions by 95% by 2040
Wyndham ( Australia) At least 55 000 tonnes of GHG emissions avoided from residential and
business sectors by 2020

Zero net GHG emissions from electricity use by 2040

Yarra No target found




N 186

wollongong
ity of innovation

File: TR-471 Doc: 1C19/556

ITEM 7 COLLINS CREEK FLOOD STUDY 2019

The Collins Creek Flood Study (2019) has been finalised following public exhibition between 17 June
2019 to 19 July 2019. It is recommended Council adopt the Collins Creek Flood Study (2019) which will
inform land use planning and planning certificates.

The study improves the accuracy and reliability of flood levels and flood behaviour in the combined
Collins Creek Catchment. This catchment includes the sub-catchments of Collins Creek, Bellambi Lake,
Bellambi Gully, Farrahars Creek, and Whartons Creek.

The reports and flood models for the Collins Creek Flood Study (2019) will be placed on the NSW Flood
data portal so that they can be publicly accessed. This will lead to a greater understanding of flood
behaviour and risk and wiser decision making.

RECOMMENDATION
1. That the Collins Creek Flood Study (2019) be adopted.

2. Persons who made submissions be thanked and advised of Council’s decision.

REPORT AUTHORISATIONS

Report of: Mike Dowd, Manager Infrastructure Strategy + Planning
Authorised by:  Andrew Carfield, Director Infrastructure + Works

ATTACHMENTS

1 Executive summary - Collins Creek Flood Study 2019
2 Community Engagement report - Collins Creek Flood study 2019
3 Submissions - key themes and Council's responses

BACKGROUND

The NSW Government's Floodplain Development Manual provides a framework to ensure the
sustainable use of floodplain environments and incorporates the NSW Flood Prone Policy. Under the
Policy, the management of flood liable land remains the responsibility of Local Government with State
Government subsidising flood mitigation works to alleviate existing problems and providing specialist
technical advice to assist Councils in performing their floodplain management responsibilities.

The Policy provides for technical and financial support by the State Government through five stages -
1 Flood Study — Determines the nature and extent of flooding.

2 Floodplain Risk Management Study — Evaluates risks and management options for the floodplain in
respect of both existing and proposed development.

3 Floodplain Risk Management Plan — Involves formal adoption by Council of a plan of management
for the floodplain.

4 Implementation of the Plan — voluntary house purchase, flood readiness and response plans,
construction of flood mitigation works to protect existing development and use of planning controls
(LEP, DCP) to ensure new development is compatible with the flood hazard.

5 Review — reviews are recommended on average every 5 years and are also generally recommended
after significant flood events, policy changes, or land use changes and where impediments to
floodplain management plan implementation exist that warrant a review.
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In 2017, Catchment Simulation Solutions was commissioned by Wollongong City Council (WCC) to
review the Collins Creek Flood Study (2011) to take into consideration Council’s updated Conduit
Blockage Policy (2016). The review incorporates new survey data, more detailed modelling techniques,
the updated blockage factors, and additional development within the catchment.

The results show that the revised 1% AEP flood levels are very similar to the 2011 Flood

Study levels across most of the floodplain. There are negligible (i.e. within 0.1m) flood level differences
across 60% of the floodplain, higher flood levels across 15% of the floodplain, and lower flood levels
across 25% of the floodplain. In areas where there are more significant differences (i.e. not within 0.1m),
the revised 1% AEP flood levels are more commonly lower than higher than the 2011 Flood Study levels.

Attachment 1 to this report provides an executive summary of the final report recommended for adoption
by Council.
PROPOSAL

The Collins Creek Flood Study (2019) be adopted. After adoption, the following actions will be
undertaken -

e Update the flood planning levels — Planning and Environment

e Update of the relevant Section 10.7 planning certificate — Planning and Environment

e Provide flood level information advice in accordance with the new study results — Infrastructure +
Works

CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION

On the 28" of May 2019, the draft flood study was presented to the Northern Floodplain Risk
Management Committee who recommended public exhibition of the draft report.

The final draft Flood Study report went on public exhibition between 17 June 2019 to 19 July 2019. A
weekend community drop-in session at the Bulli Senior Citizens Centre on Saturday 22 June from
9:30am — 11am was attended by 55 community members. A second drop-in session was held at the
Bulli Surf Lifesaving Club on Tuesday 25 June from 4pm — 5:30pm and was attended by 39 community
members.

A letter to over 5,300 residents and property owners in flood affected areas (all properties within the
extent of the probable maximum flood) was mailed out to advise of the public exhibition process and
seek feedback on the document.

Notices of the public exhibition were published in the local newspaper on 19 and 26 June 2019. Hard
copies of the Flood Study were placed in the Library and PDFs were available through Council’s “Have
Your Say” page. 148 people viewed the Website’s project page. 96 people downloaded the documents
from the Website. There were a total of 30 submissions throughout the exhibition period.

Comments from the submissions and at drop in sessions related to -
e Perceived causes of flooding

e Flooding impacts on property

e Flood mitigation options

¢ Flood mitigation work in the catchment

e Creek maintenance

e Development

e Responsibility for managing flood risk

e Insurance premiums
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Persons who made a submission were thanked and advised of this matter being reported to Council for

adoption.

A community engagement report is provided in attachment 2 and outlines in more detail the process and
outcomes of the consultation.

Attachment 3 provides responses to all key themes raised during the consultation.

The comments provided can be addressed through on-going education on floodplain management, or
considered as part of the future review of the floodplain risk management study and plan for the
catchment, they do not have any direct relation to the draft flood study report and did not result in
changes to the draft report that was presented to the Northern Floodplain Risk Management Committee.

The committee has been advised of the outcomes of the public exhibition and has not raised any
objection to Council adopting the final report.
PLANNING AND POLICY IMPACT

This report contributes to the delivery of Our Wollongong 2028 goal “We value and protect our
environment”. It specifically delivers on the following —

Community Strategic Plan Delivery Program 2018-2021 Operational Plan 2019-20

Strategy 3 Year Action Operational Plan Actions

1.1.3 The potential impacts of natural 1.1.3.2 Establish effective urban Develop and implement Floodplain
disasters, such as those related to stormwater and floodplain Risk Management Plans
flood and landslips are managed management programs

and risks are reduced to protect
life, property and the environment

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The Collins Creek Flood Study (2019) has cost $107,628 excl. GST

CONCLUSION

The Collins Creek Flood Study (2019) was prepared with the cooperation, assistance and support of
many stakeholders, including community members and State government representatives and the
Northern Floodplain Risk Management Committee.

The study improves the accuracy and reliability of flood levels and flood behaviour in the Collins
Creek Catchment. The reports and flood models for the Collins Creek Flood Study (2019) will be
placed on the NSW Flood data portal so that they can be publicly accessed. This will lead to a
greater understanding of flood behaviour and risk and wiser decision making.
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) EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Introduction

The Collins Creek Flood Study area is located within the Wollongong City Council Local
Government Area and covers a total area of 14 km2 As shown in Figure E1, the study area
incorporates five major catchments, namely:

& Bellambi Lake;
Bellambi Gully;
Farrahars Creek;
Collins Creek; and
Whartons Creek.

> oo

Flooding across the study area has been experienced on a number of occasions with the most
notable floods occurring on 20 October 1987, 30 April 1988 and 17 August 1998. The August
1998 flood, in particular, inundated a number of properties and caused significant damage to
public and private property.

In recognition of the significant impact that flooding has had on the community, Wollongong
City Council prepared the ‘Combined Catchment of Whartons, Collins and Farrahars Creeks,
Bellambi Gully and Bellambi Lake Flood Study’ (Lyall & Associates) in 2011. The 2011 flood
study defined design flood behaviour for a range of design floods based upon catchment
conditions and Council policy at that time.

However, since the flood study was prepared in 2011, Council has adopted a revised blockage
policy (referred to as the 2016 blockage policy) and additional development has also occurred
across each of the catchments. These changes have prompted Council to review and update
the flood study for the Collins Creek area. This report documents the outcomes of the flood
study review.

Flood Models

The flood results documented in the 2011 Flood Study were based upon hydrologic and
hydraulic computer models of each catchment that were developed specifically for the flood
study. Each model was reviewed as part of the current study to ensure they were developed
in accordance with modern best practice and would provide the best possible description of
flood behaviour across the full study area.

In general, the models were found to be suitable. However, some updates were completed
as part of the current study to improve the definition of flood behaviour provided by the
models. This included a reduced grid size in the hydraulic model as well as a more detailed
description of the variation in land use in both the hydrologic and hydraulic models. In
addition, sections of the hydraulic model were expanded to include areas that were omitted

Catchment Simulation iii
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from the 2011 flood study. It was these updated flood models that formed the basis for this
flood study.

Impact of Catchment Development and 2016 Blockage Policy

A range of “scenarios” were developed as part of this flood study to quantify the impact of

catchment and policy updates on flood behaviour (as defined in the 2011 Flood Study). The

scenarios included:

& Scenario ID Base: reflects 2011 catchment conditions and Council’s 2009 blockage policy
(i.e., what was adopted as part of the 2011 flood study)

& Scenario ID 1: includes updates to reflect the 2016 blockage policy;

& Scenario ID 2A and 2B: includes updates to reflect catchment development since 2011.

Table E1 summarises each of the scenarios that were investigated as part of this flood study.
Table E1 also highlights which variable was altered as part of each scenario.

Table E1 Summary of Modelled Scenarios

CATCHMENT
SCET: RO DEVELOPMENT TOPOGRAPHIC DATASET BI;,OOCLI:?;; E CLE:TDEI_:E:)T“':GE
SCENARIO
BASE?! 2011 2005/2007 ALS 2008 -
1 2011 2005/2007 ALS 2016 -
2A 2013 2013 LiDAR 2016 -
8 2017 2013 L|D;.AR‘+_add|tlonaI ground 2016 )
survey for individual developments
3 To be considered as part of the future Floodplain Risk Management Study

Note:
1 “BASE” case reflects catchment development and blockage as defined in the 2011 Flood Study

Scenario ID: 3 was originally intended to address the potential impacts of the 2016 version of
Australian Rainfall and Runoff (ARR2016). However, additional ARR2016 information that was
to inform this component were not sufficiently advanced to allow this assessment to be
included in the current study. As a result, the ARR2016 assessment is to be considered as part
of the future Floodplain Risk Management Study.

The flood models were used to simulate a range of design floods for each scenario. This
included the 20%, 10%, 5%, 2%, 1%, 0.5% and 0.2% AEP floods as well as the PMF. A range of
flood maps were prepared for each scenario to illustrate the flood results for each scenario.
A selection of flood maps for Scenario 2B are included at the end of this Executive Summary
for the 20% AEP flood, 1% AEP flood and the probable maximum flood (PMF):

& Figures ES2 to ES4 show peak flood levels;

& Figures ES5 to ES7 show peak floodwater depths;
& Figures ES8 to ES10 show peak flow velocities;

& Figures ES11 to ES12 show flood hazard.

Catchment Simulation Solution: iv
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As outlined above, Scenario ID: 2B reflects 2017 catchment conditions and Council’s 2016
blockage policy. Accordingly, the results presented in Figures ES2 to ES12 reflect the
updated, best description of design flood behaviour across the Collins Creek study area.
However, it should be noted that the 2016 Blockage Policy makes provision for two different
blockage scenarios (i.e., “design” and “risk management” blockage scenarios). Figures ES2
to ES12 reflect the results fraom the “risk management” blockage scenario.

The results from each of the scenarios were compared so the impact of each variable could
be quantified. The outcomes of this review determined that:

® Scenario ID1 (2016 blockage policy). The 2016 blockage policy results in reductions in
flood levels relative to the previous (i.e., 2009) blockage policy upstream of most
hydraulic structures (e.g., bridges and culverts). The magnitude of the differences varies
based on the size of the structure opening and the height of the overlying road/rail
embankment but is most commonly between 0.1 and 0.5 metres. Flood levels
downstream of most structures remain largely unchanged.

& Scenario ID2 (catchment development). Catchment development that has occurred
since the 2011 flood study produce changes in flood behaviour that are typically very
localised (i.e., contained in close proximity to the development areas) and do not have a
significant and/or widespread impact on flood levels. The lack of sensitivity is
considered to be associated with the fact that large scale developments have included
appropriate stormwater management systems to help ensure there are no adverse
floods impacts.

As noted above, the 2016 blockage policy includes two different blockage scenarios. A review
of the flood level results from the “design” blockage and “risk management” blockage
simulations showed that the flood level differences were most commonly less than
0.15 metres and were concentrated upstream of hydraulic structures. Due to the relatively
small and localised differences between the flood level results and the significant number of
additional flood simulations and flood maps that need to be documented, it is recommended
that Council assess the merit of having two sets of blockage factors.

As shown in Figure ES11, areas of high hazard flood (e.g., 2H4) are typically concentrated in
defined watercourses during the 1% AEP flood. The flood hazard across most “built up” areas
is estimated to be less than H3 during the 1% AEP flood indicating that floodwaters are
unlikely to pose a significant hazard to people across most of the study area (however, there
is still potential for floodwaters to mobilise cars). Nevertheless, there are some localised areas
where higher hazard conditions are estimated during the 1% AEP flood including several
streets where high velocity flood flows are anticipated. Furthermore, Figure ES12 shows that
during the PMF, a much larger area would be exposed to H4 or higher hazard indicating that
floodwaters during particularly large floods are likely to pose a significant risk to vehicles,
people and, in some cases, buildings/structures.

Climate Change

A range of additional scenarios were also developed to assess the potential impact of climate
change (refer Table E2). This included scenarios to assess the impact of increases in rainfall
intensity (Scenario ID: 4A), increases in sea level (Scenario ID: 4B and 4C) as well as increases

Catchment Simulation v
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in rainfall intensity and sea level (Scenario ID: 4D and 4E). All climate change simulations
employed the Scenario 2B model as the “base”.

Table E2  Summary of Climate Change Scenarios

CATCHMENT
SCEI:‘I: RIO DEVELOPMENT TOPOGRAPHIC DATASET BLF%CLTQYGE CLE?QTSI_IC_:.CI:“D;GE
SCENARIO
- — — A
aA 2017 2013 LID{:\R-'F.addItIOI"Iﬂ ground 2016 20,6|nc.rease‘|n rainfall
survey for individual developments intensity
48 2017 2013 LIDAR + additional ground 2016 0.4m Sea Level Rise
survey for individual developments
ac 2017 2013 LIDAR + additional ground 2016 0.9m Sea Level Rise
survey for individual developments
. -, 20% increase in rainfall
4D 2017 2013 LIDAR + additional ground 2016 intensity plus 0.4m Sea
survey for individual developments .
Level Rise
. . 20% increase in rainfall
4E 2017 2013 LIDAR + :’addltlonal ground 2016 intensity pfus 0.9m Sea
survey for individual developments Level Rise

The results of the climate change simulations showed that climate change is predicted to
increase flood levels across the study area. More specifically:

& Sealevel increases are predicted to increase flood levels along the coastal foreshore
areas as well as across some estuarine areas. Sea level increases are not predicted to
increase the flood affectation across the more elevated sections of each catchment (i.e.,
the majority of the study area).

& Increases in rainfall intensity are predicted to increase flood levels along most major
waterways including the more elevated sections of the study area. Flood levels are
predicted to increase by more than 0.1 metres at most locations. However, more
significant increases are predicted in the vicinity of major hydraulic structures.

Catchment Simulation Solutions
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The information in this report is based on data collected from community members who chose to
be involved in engagement activities and therefore should not be considered representative.

This report is intended to provide a high-level analysis of the most prominent themes and issues.
While it's not possible to include all the details of feedback we received, feedback that was
relevant to the project has been provided to technical experts for review and consideration.
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Executive Summary

Council is responsible for planning and managing flood prone lands in our area and has
updated the Collins Creek Flood Study as part of this commitment. The community
contributed valuable information at the start of the study, with Council receiving more than
500 submissions about the flooding and drainage problems they've experienced on their
properties. A report on the draft Flood Study was prepared with information on how it was
updated and what the results are. The updated Study explains the ways flooding happens in
the Collins Creek calchment. It uses Council's revised Blockage Policy, which was updated in

2016. It also uses improved information, such as recent data from land and waterway
surveying. We've considered development that has occurred since the previous Flood Study
[2011], an extended network of stormwater pits and pipes and used more detailed modelling
techniques. We've also extended the mapping to capture additional flood-prone areas that
were not previously mapped.

Council's engagement team worked collaboratively with a technical consultant to share the
updated Study with the community and key stakeholders. During the public exhibition period,
17 June to 19 July 2019, Council sent letters to mare than 5,300 residents and property
owners in the catchment area (Appendix A) inviting them to learn more about the review.
Emails with this information were sent to community, education, Register of Interest (flood],
business, government and emergency services stakehclders. The information was also
available at Council's Customer Service Centre. Copies of the draft report [Appendix EJ, a
Frequently Asked Questions sheet (Appendix B] and Feedback Form [Appendix C] were made
available at Corrimal Library, as well as information sessions at Bulli Senior Citizens Centre
on 22 June 2019 and Bulli Surf Lifesaving Club on 25 June 2019. They were also included on
the project webpage [Appendix D). Notices of the exhibition were published in the Advertiser
on 19 and 26 June 2019. A media release was distributed on 19 June 2019. The community
were invited to provide feedback via Council's website, Customer Service Centre and at the
community information sessions.

There were 30 submissions. Some comments were provided at the drop-in information
sessions which were attended by a total of 94 community members. A suggestion was made
about how to make flood modelling easier to understand. A concern was raised that the
Study does not extend into the Wollongong Coal Russell Vale mine site and that it should also
address weater quality, not just quantity. A request was made to correct the way a creek was
displayed on the aerial map, as there was a concern this would impact property values.

Other comments related to the perceived causes of flooding, how flooding impacts people’s
own property, creek maintenance and suggestions for flood mitigation options. Some were
unawere of flood mitigation work that has happened, is in progress or planned for the
catchment. Concerns were expressed that development has, or may in future, increase flood
impacts on people’s properties. The potential impact of the Flood Study on insurance
premiums, property values and the development potential of privately-owned land was
raised. |t was commented that development should not be zllowed on flood-prone land and
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that landowners should bear the responsibility of managing flood risk on their land. Interest
was expressed by a property owner in participating in the Voluntary Purchase Scheme.
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Background

Wollongong City Council is committed to finding solutions to reduce the social and economic
damages of flooding. In 2016, new national guidelines [Australian Rainfall and Runoff 2016)
were released to better inform flood modelling, with a focus on estimating flood behaviour.
Council also updated its Blockage Policy, and the combination of the updated policy and
guidelines saw Council resolve to review and update its flood studies. The Collins Creek
Flood Study is one of 10 studies to undergo review. This catchment is located in Woonona,
Russell Vale, Bellambi and Corrimal.

The Collins Creek Catchment Flood Study and Floodplain Risk Management Study and Plan
were completed by Council in 2011 and 2014 respectively. These studies identified the risk
within the Collins Creek catchment and the steps that can be taken to manage this risk now
and into the future.

Since these studies, Council has explored several flood mitigation measures, and new
developments have seen the catchment’s land use change. As part of this review, the study
area was extended to capture 2 sub-catchments not included in the previous study. The
combination of these factors along with Council's updated Blockage Policy and consideration
of an extended stormwater network meant there was a possibility there could be changes to
the extent and behaviour of flooding. Council is completing a review of the 2011 study to
ensure it is based on the latest available knowledge and information.

Community engagement to gather reports on residents’ flooding and drainage problems in
recent years was conducted in October - December 2017, which included some collection of
historic flood data in the catchment. The community submitted feedback by completing a
questionnaire. The collected data was used to update the computer models used to simulate
the flooding in the catchment, and to update flood maps which provide a visual illustration of
the flood risk in the catchment.

At the Northern Floodplain Risk Management Committee meeting on 28 May 2019, the public
exhibition of the draft Collins Creek Flood Study was unanimously supported. The outcomes
of the exhibition and resulting amendments to the Study will be reported to the Northern
Floodplain Risk Management Committee and Council in view of adopting it in 2019.

Z19/140135 Collins Creek Flood Study - Community Engagement Report
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Figure 1 Collins Creek Catchment
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Methods
Our Stakeholders

Carrington Street Development

Bushcare

slllawarra Youth
Landcare /
Landcare lllawarra

eKulgoa Road

Industry Bushcare

Local residents Neighbourhood

and landowners Forum 4

eNorthern oNSW Office
Floodplain Environment &
Committee Heritage

sRegister of
Interest - Flood

Our Methods

eTransport for

NSW / Sydney eWhartons Creek

Central Bushcare

Trains

Table 1: Details of Communication and Engagement Methods

Details of Methods

Presentation

The
Advertiser

Media release

Email to key
stakeholders
Register of
Interest

Info packs
Letter
Frequently

Asked
Questions

Information about the proposal was presented at the Floodplain Risk
Management Committee (Northern) meeting on 28 May 2019

Details of the public exhibition, information sessions and Engagement HQ
webpage were included in Council's Community Update pages on 19 & 26
June

A media release was made available for media outlets

An email and FAQ were sent to key stakeholders identified through an
analysis process

An email was sent to all participants with registered interest in 'Flood’

Frequently asked question sheets and hardcopy feedback forms were made
available at Corrimal Library and Customer Service. Hardcopies of the draft
report were also made available at Corrimal Library.

A letter about the public exhibition, information sessions and how to submit
feedback [via phone, email, in person or post] was mailed to local residents
and property owners

Responses to questions aboul updates to the Study and floodplain risk
management were distributed with the letter and emails, published on the
project webpage and distributed at the information sessions.
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Details of Methods

Video

Engagement
HQ Website

Feedback
Form
Community
Information
Sessions

The Floading in Wollongong video was used on the Engagement HQ webpage
and a flood modelling video was screened at information sessions and on
the Engagement HQ webpage

An online survey tool was used to capture participant’'s feedback. The page

also hosted background info and supporting documents.

o Frequently Asked Questions with information on the Study and flood risk
management

e News Feed for updates on project progress

e Document Library with the Report

e Flood modelling video

e Flooding in Wollongong video

A hard copy feedback form was made available at libraries and engagement

activities.

Two drop-in sessions were held to provide the community with information

on the wark undertaken to date and findings of the Report. The Report, flood

modelling maps, flood modelling video and images of flood mitigation work

taking place in the catchment were displayed along with the FAQ and

feedback forms. Floodplain management engineers working on the Study

were on hand to answer questions.
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Results

All stakeholders and the wider community were invited to provide feedback on the draft
Study. This section provides details on the participation at engagement activities [Table 2],
and the feedback received during the exhibition period.

Engagement Participation
Details of the number of participants for each engagement activity are presented in Table 2.

Table 2: Engagement participation results

Engagement Activities Participation

Northern Floodplain Risk Management Committee Meeting 10
Drop-in Community Information Session at Bulli Senior Citizens Centre 55
Drop-in Community Information Session at Bulli Surf Lifesaving Club 39
Online Participation
Aware - Total number of users who viewed the project page 148
Informed - Total number of users who clicked a hyperlink, e.g. to download 96
a document
e Engaged - Total number of users who actively contributed to the project, 3

e.g. submitted feedback via the online form

Submission Results

There were a total of 30 submissions; 9 emails lincluding 1 group submission from an
Owners Corporation committeel, 3 online forms and 15 hardcopy forms. Three late
submissions were accepted. Discussions from drop-in sessions are also presented in this
section.

Feedback relating to the flood study included a suggestion for how to make flood modelling
easier to understand. A concern was raised that the Study does not extend into the
Woallongong Coal mine site in Russell Vale and that it should also address water quality, not
just quantity. There was a concern that the way Collins Creek was displayed on the aerial
map would impact property values.

Understanding modelling will

/ \ be easier with select examples
The whole of the Russell Vale mine e.q 75 min rainfall of half a
site should be included i the Sl‘Udy metre is modelled 1%AER

The Russell Vale mine, Russell Vale
slag heap and the Russell Vale Golf
Course are large polluting areas that

The aerial study or satellite survey
shows the Collins Creek above my

require special attention, or the
consequences will be similar to the

Qf’nsc&fed in the 1998 ﬂoods/

Z19/140135 Collins Creek Flood Study - Community Engagement Report
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Other feedback themes were:

Perceived causes of flooding
Arange of reasons for what people perceived to be the cause of flooding was presented.

At some stage, the course of the /nadequate culvert design at the

creek which comes down the . .
rear of my property /s causing

escarpment was altered which

flood issues at my property

seems now lo affect this address

Floodwater can't escape through the blocked The creek can't drain
culvert in Franklin Ave. The supermarket car properly because it is
park sends water down Ursula Rd, through choked with weeds

Bulli High and residents’ homes. and rubbish

Flooding impacts own property
Examples were shared about how flooding directly impacts resident’s own property. There
was a focus on what could be done to reduce the impacts.

Could you please send fam interested in knowing what has been done or is planned
me some flood to be done regarding the inundation during an extremely
mitigation information heavy and consistent deluge affecting my property. Hopefully
for my actual house? you have plans to rectify this problem. for the future

Flood mitigation options
A range of potention options for mitigating flood impacts on people’s own properties and

those adjoining was suggested.

Upgrading the drainage in our A detention capabilily upstrearm of High

street would go a long way in
giving peace of mind for the future

Street would be useful to limit impacts
on our and adjacent properties

Flood mitigation work in the catchment
Some were unaware of what flood mitigation work has been done, is in progress or was
planned for the catchment.

/s there ever to be any attention paid to I've complained about waler coming onto rmy
prevention of the next over-due property in Russell St Woonona from Hopetoun

flooding of Ursula Road to Trinity Row? St for 40 years and nothing has been done

Z19/140135 Collins Creek Flood Study - Community Engagement Report
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Creek maintenance
Requests were made for creek maintenance on private land, Council land or where the
landowner was not identified.

Please continue removing creek line The privately-owned creek/drainage
exolic species restricting flows such channel behind my property is full of reeds,
as coral trees and planting with plants and rubbish. Can Council help in
suitable native species. requiring landowners to clean it up?

The creek at the back

of my property needs Council used to clean the creeks out with a bulldozer once a

year. It started flooding when they stopped. If we go back to
something as simple as this, it could fix all our problems.

cleaning. Big trees &

noxious weed.

Development

Concerns were expressed about that development has, or may in future, increase flood
impacts on people's properties. There was a concern that the study would impact the
development potential of privately-owned land.

Council's report has

The creek flows through land that was The Edgewood Estate
sold to developers. Residenis don't know development has
what's happening. They sprayed poison on increased flooding on
weeds last year, but nathing done since. my properiy.

sterilised our lot from
being able to build a

aual occupancy to help
fund our retirement.

Responsibility for managing flood risk

It was commented that development shouldn’t be allowed on flood-prone land. It was also
suggested that landowners who take the risk of buying or building property on flood-prone
land should bear the respansibility for managing flood impacts on their properties.

/ Historical records show this land \ / People should've done their research \

was always marked as [flood prone]. before buying flood-prone properties.
People think they can oulsmart Council shouldn 't have permitted
mother nalure, but regardless of building on these sites but despite this,
what you do, mother nature will It's the responsibility of the homeowners
wear it down. Build on land that and whoever sold them the property. /

doesn 't require extensive works! /

Insurance premiums
Concerns were raised about the impact of the flood study on home insurance premiums.

Z19/140135 Collins Creek Flood Study - Community Engagement Report
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Figure 2: Community information session at Bulli Surf Lifesaving Club 25 June 2019
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Appendix A: Stakeholder Letter
Vy WOLLONGONG CITY COUNCIL
wallongong
«PAFBSP»

«Owmer» Our Ref Z126730
«StreetNoandAddress» File CCE-040.010.01.2¢08
«SuburbStatePostcode» Date 17 June 2019

Dear SirMadam

COLLINS CREEK FLOOD STUDY PUBLIC EXHIBITION

I'm writing to provide you with an update on the Collins Creek Flood Study. The community contributed
valuable information to the study, with Council receiving hundreds of submissions about the flooding and
drainage problems they've experienced on their properties. There is now a draft report of the Flood Study with
information on how it was done and what the results are.

The updated Study explains the ways flooding happens in the Collins Creek catchment, located in Woonona,
Russell Vale, Bellambi and Corrimal. Enclosed is a Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) sheet that provides
more information about the Study and how we manage flood risk.

We'll be sharing the report with the community during the public exhibition from 17 June to 19 July 2019. Come
along to one of our drop-in community information sessions where the floodplain engineers working on the
Study will be able to answer your questions. These are drop-in sessions, so you can come in at any time.

Weekend Session Saturday 22 June 2019, drop in anytime between 9:30am — 11am
Bulli Senior Citizens Centre, 8 Hospital Rd, Bulli

Mid-week Session Tuesday 25 June 2019, drop in anytime between 4pm - 5:30pm
Bulli Surf Lifesaving Club, 1 Trinity Row, Bulli

If you'd like to attend and have accessibility or mobility requirements, or need an interpreter, please contact me
to let me know how we can support your attendance. If you'd like to learn more but are unable to attend a
session, information and a form to provide feedback online will be available on our website
www.wollongong.nsw.qov.au until Friday 19 July 2019. The report will also be available to view at Corrimal
Library, with copies of the FAQ, feedback forms and reply-paid envelopes available for people to take.

Following our conversations with the community, the Collins Creek Flood Study will go to Council for adoption.
After that, we can start working on a Floodplain Risk Management Study that looks at what the risks and
damages from floods might be, and what we could do to mitigate (reduce) those risks. We'll again be inviting
the community to contribute to that process when the time comes.

Please contact me should you require further information.

This letter is authorised by

Jen Lysle-van Dyk
Engagement Officer

Wollongong City Council
Telephone (02) 4227 7111

Z19/140135 Collins Creek Flood Study - Community Engagement Report
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Appendix B: Frequently Asked Questions

OUR PLACE CRRRTIZY =FUTURE

Collins Creek Flood Study

i

As part of our commitment to managing flood and stormwater risks in our region, we've updated the Collins
Creek Flood Study and are letting the community know what's changed.
Let us know your thoughts before Friday 19 July 2019

Why is the Flood Study being reviewed and
what’s changed?

From time to time, flood models are reviewed and
predicted levels may change. For the Colling Creek
Flood Study, we've considered Council's revised
Blockage Policy. We have improved information, such
as recent data from land and waterway surveying.
We've considered an extended network of pits and
pipes and used more detailed modelling techniques.
We've also extended the mapping to capture
additional flood-prone areas that were not previously
mapped.

We've found that Council's revised blockage policy
typically provides lower flood levels upstream of key
culverts. The consideration of pits and pipes also
resulted in some areas where there was shallow
flooding before to no lenger be flood affected, as the
model recognises that the pits and pipes will carry
some of the floodwaters. There are a few new areas
that have been captured by the flood mapping, as the
model was extended to include additional areas of the
catchment. Generally, 0%, of the areas that were
identified as flood prone by the last flood studies
haven't had a change in flocd levels, 25% of the area
had reduction in flocd levels and about 15% had an
increace in flood levels (that includes the newdy
mapped areas). On the difference maps presented in
the report, the areas with reduction are shown in
bluish colours and the area of increase are shown
with warm colours [yellow, orange).

What about historical floods?

At the start of the Collins Creek Flood study review,
we sent out more than 6,000 brochures and
guestionnaires asking the community about the
floods they have experienced in the past. We received
over 500 responses. Many people reported having
experienced a flood in the past and specifically in
August 1998. Those residents that have reported
flooding are captured by the flood extend of our flood
maps which gives us additional confidence in our
results. The 1998 flood in this area was not as big as
& 1% Annual Excesdance Probability [AEP) flood,
which would explain why some areas are within the
mapped flood extent while residents haven't been
impacted by a flood to date. A 1% AEP flood means
there is & 1% chance of a flood of this size or larger
occurring at a particular location in any given year.

What happens next?

After we've completed the flood study, we'll review
the Floodplain Risk Management Study to look at
what the risks/damages from floods might be and
what we could do to mitigate [reduce] those risks
Next, we'll review the Floodplain Risk Management
Plan, to give us a prioritised plan of flood mitigation
measures proposed for the catchment. Then we'll roll
out the Plan! Every 5-10 years, we go back to the
beginning of this process and start with a review of
the flood study to consider new survey data, policy
changes, recent major flood events and changes in
the catchment such as flood mitigation works or new
development.

www.wollongong.nsw.gov.au
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What flood mitigation work is Council doing in
this catchment?

We've purchased the two houses that were identified
in the Collins Creek Floodplain Risk Management
Study and Plan for Voluntary Purchase.

We're progressing the detailed design of structures
that help stop debris from blocking drains at Gordon
Hutton Park [Woononal and Albert St [next to
Memorial Drive, Bellambi), with construction
expected in the next 2 years.

We've progressed the design of a swale in West St

[Russell Vale] and are in the process of negotiating
access with the owner of the land so that the swale
can be constructed.

The Ursula Road Flood Mitigation Scheme in Bulli is
progressing well. Investigations have shown that
increasing the culverts under Franklin Avenue and/or
installing a deflection levee on the northern bank of
Whartons Creek would reduce flooding to properties
located in this area. We're now assessing other
drainage options downstream of this area.

We're progressing flood mitigation investigations in
Bellambi around Gladstone Street. We'll scon go out
and talk with the community in this area about this
project.

How does Council manage flood risk?

Each year, Council spends millions of dollars on
stormwater and floodplain management. Our team of
flood experts prepare flood studies and floodplain
risk management studies that help us understand the
flood behaviour for a particular catchment and see if
there are any ways of reducing flooding risk in an
area.

Floodplain risk management studies include a plan of
potential solutions aimed at reducing the existing and

Join the conversation

future flood risk. Examples of these solutions

include:

* Emergency response plans based on detailed
understanding of flood behaviour

e Building new structures that collect and carry
stermwater into drains or creeks, such as
detention basins and swales, or improving
existing ones to better manage stormwater and
floods

* Land zoning that says what can and can’t be built
on flood-prene land

* Voluntary purchase of houses built in high flood
risk areas

How do you predict flood levels?

There's a chance that floods of any size will cccur in
future. As the size of a flood increases, the chances
of it occurring becomes smaller. Some rare types of
floods may not have occurred for over 100 years, sc
we have to predict the height of future flocds using
computer models. These models produce different
flood levels and velocities [speeds) for a variety of
different-sized floods. To predict floed levels, Council
works with experts to establish and operate the
computer models. Council also gets valuable
community input on historical floods so we can adjust
the model and make sure it copies what's happened
in the past.

Wheat is a catchment?

An area where water is collected by the natural
landscape, usually surrounded by mountains or hills.
In a catchment, rainwater run-off eventually flows to
a creek, river, dam, lake or ocean.

23 September 2019
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How will my feedback be used?

At the conclusion of the engagement period, all
feedback is read and considered. A report will be
produced and provided to Councillors, and they will

consider whether to adopt the Flood Study.

Visit www.wollongong.nsw.gov.au

Wiite Locked Bag 8821, Wollongong DC 2500  Drop-in Information Sessions:

Email engagement@wollongong.nsw.gov.au
Phone [02) 4227 7111

¥ Bulli Senior Citizens Centre, Sat 22 June 9:30-11am
¥ Bulli Surf Club, Tuesday 25 June & - 5:30pm

www.wollongong.nsw.gov.au
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Appendix C: Feedback Form

OUR PLACE EERTIEDSFUTURE X2

Collins Creek Flood Study

Feedback Form
We're sharing & draft report on the Collins Creek Flood Study with the community during the public
exhibition from 17 June to 19 July 2019. The draft report provides information on how the Study was done
and what the results are. This is an opportunity to share your comments about the draft report with the
floodplain engineers who are working on the Study.
Let us know vour thouaghts before Friday 19 Julv 2019.

Do you have any comments about the draft report on the Collins Creek Flood Study?

More overleaf....

Please returmn completed form to:
Email engagement(@wollongong.nsw.gov.au Post Locked Bag 8821, Wollongong DC 2500
In person 41 Burelli Street Wollongong

www.wollongong.nsw. gov.au
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If there ia inaufficient room for your commaents, pleasa attach any additionsl sheets to this feedback form.

If you would like a reply to your submission and to be kept informed of progress, please fill in the section below.

MName:

Addrass:
Suburb: Email:
Privacy Notification:

The pursese for seeking your submission on advertised matters s to better assist Councilinits decision making processes.

The intended recipients of your submission are officers within Council and those granted lawful access to the information. Your
submission may be exhibited on Council's website and included in publicly accessible registers. |f you make an anonymous submission,
Council will be unable to contact you further. If your submission relates to a development proposal or other relevant planning
application, Council is required o disclose on its website all relevant details of political donations o qifts made by you, including your
name and address. In limited circumstances, you may apply for suppression of your personal information from a publicly accessible
register. Further information is available on Council's website at wwwowollongong.nsw.gov. rivecy.aspx or by phoning Council
on [02) 4227 7111

wollongong.n

Z19/140135 Collins Creek Flood Study - Community Engagement Report
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Collins Creek Flood Study
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Collins Creek Flood study 2019

Comments from the submissions and at drop in sessions related to -

Key themes Council’s response

Perceived causes of | The draft flood study takes into consideration factors
flooding which may affect flooding such as the alignment and
capacity of the existing drainage system (much of which
is verified by detailed survey) and the level of vegetation
within the waterways. The study also shows that
development that has occurred since the 2011 flood study
produce changes in flood behaviour that are typically very
localised (mostly contained within the developed area)
and have a minimal impact on flood levels. The lack of
sensitivity is considered to be associated with the flood
and stormwater controls placed on developments by
Council.

Flooding impacts on | The purpose of a flood study is to describe flood
residents property behaviour. Options to reduce flooding on private property
will be considered as part of the future review of the
floodplain risk management study and plan.

Flood mitigation options Potential flood mitigation options will be considered as
part of the future review of the floodplain risk
management study and plan. At that time, consultation
will be undertaken with residents to get their thoughts on
potential options.

Flood mitigation work in | Council has undertaken/is currently undertaking various
the catchment flood mitigation projects in the catchment including the
Ursula Road Flood Mitigation Scheme, West Street Flood
Mitigation, Bellambi Gully Scheme, debris control
structures and the voluntary purchase of severely flood
affected properties. Council's website includes
information on mitigation works in the catchment.

Requests for creek | Where maintenance was requested for sections of creek
maintenance on Council property, they were forwarded to Council's
maintenance crews for action. Where it was brought to
Council’'s attention that maintenance was required on
private land, residents were advised of their
responsibilities in person or by letter.

Potential impacts from | The study shows that development that has occurred
existing and future | since the 2011 flood study produce changes in flood
development behaviour that are typically very localised (mostly
contained within the developed area) and have a minimal
impact on flood levels. The lack of sensitivity is
considered to be associated with the flood and
stormwater controls placed on developments by Council.
Similar controls would also be applied to future
development.

Responsibility for | It was commented that development shouldn’t be allowed
managing flood risk on flood-prone land, or that the landowner should be
responsible for managing their own flood risk. However,
the NSW Government's Floodplain Development Manual
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provides a framework to ensure the sustainable use of
floodplain environments and incorporates the NSW Flood
Prone Policy. Under the Policy, the management of flood
liable land remains the responsibilty of Local
Government. Council’'s policies are consistent with the
framework.

Impact of the flood study on | Fact sheets on insurance were provided to residents.
home insurance premiums | People were advised that the standard definition of ‘flood’
for insurance purpose may or may not apply to their
properties and that the standard definition does not
include overland flows and that overland flows are
typically covered as a standard inclusion in home
insurance policies. Council doesn’t have any say in what
and how flood data is used for setting flood premiums.
We recommend that homeowners contact their insurer
about the flood premium for their property.
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File: CST-100.05.032 Doc: 1C19/232

ITEM 8 DRAFT PLANNING AGREEMENT: CALDERWOOD HEIGHTS PTY LTD - 347
CALDERWOOD ROAD, CALDERWOOD

Calderwood Heights Pty Ltd has requested that Council enter into a Planning Agreement for a
development located within the Shellharbour City Council Local Government Area to facilitate road
upgrades at Yallah Marshall Mount in the Wollongong City Council Local Government Area. The
Planning Agreement is required to address development contributions payable to Wollongong City
Council in accordance with the Calderwood Urban Development Project Major Project Approval
MP09_0082.

The Draft Planning Agreement and Explanatory Note are provided as attachments to this report. It is
recommended that Council exhibit these documents for community input.

RECOMMENDATION

1 The Draft Planning Agreement and Explanatory Note between Wollongong City Council and
Calderwood Heights Pty Ltd (Attachments 2 and 3) be exhibited for a minimum period of 28 days.

2 Shellharbour City Council be advised that Wollongong City Council and Calderwood Heights Pty Ltd
are proposing to enter into a Planning Agreement for the provision of monetary contributions
towards Wollongong City Council road upgrades as required by the Calderwood Major Project
Approval, and should it determine that DA0290/2018 or any other development application for the
subject land be approved, appropriate conditions of consent be included.

3 The General Manager be delegated authority to determine, finalise and execute the Planning
Agreement, including making minor amendments, after consideration of any issues raised in the
public exhibition.

REPORT AUTHORISATIONS

Report of: David Green, Manager City Strategy (Acting)

Authorised by:  Chris Stewart, Director Planning and Environment - Future City and Neighbourhoods
(Acting)

ATTACHMENTS

1 Site Context Plan
2 Draft Planning Agreement
3 Explanatory Note

BACKGROUND
Calderwood Urban Development Project — Major Project Approval

On 8 December 2010, the Minister for Planning approved the Calderwood Urban Development Project
Concept Plan for the development of approximately 4,800 dwellings, 50 hectares of mixed use land,
open space and land for environmental protection (Major Project No.09_0082). The Calderwood release
area includes land in both the Shellharbour (593 hectares) and Wollongong Local Government Areas
(107 hectares).

Condition C12 of the Concept Plan Approval includes general requirements for local infrastructure
contributions and Statement of Commitment #5 states that “the proponent will enter into a Planning
Agreement with the relevant Council... if agreed by the Council”. This means that Council needs to enter
into a Planning Agreement (or adopt a contributions plan) in order to collect contributions from this
development.
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Wollongong City Council Contributions

On 23 September 2013, the Stage 1 Project Application was approved by the Land and Environment
Court, and in the absence of an adopted Contributions Plan or executed Planning Agreement, a
condition was imposed requiring the payment of contributions toward Wollongong City Council road
upgrades at the rate of $1,320 per dwelling.

On 15 September 2014, Shellharbour City Council entered into a Planning Agreement with Lend Lease
for contributions payable to Shellharbour City Council. This Planning Agreement does not cover
contributions payable to Wollongong City Council.

On 31 July 2017, Council endorsed a draft cross boundary Calderwood Section 94 Plan and made a
request to the Secretary of the Department of Planning and Environment to assist with its finalisation.
The draft Section 94 Plan proposed a local contribution rate of $6,996 per lot / dwelling towards road
upgrades in the Wollongong Local Government Area. This Plan was not adopted by Council.

On 13 December 2017, Council entered into a Planning Agreement with Lend Lease where contributions
of $4,400 per dwelling are payable for the first 4,800 dwellings, and then $1,000 for the next 1,200
dwellings, with the contributions being allocated to road upgrades at Yallah Marshall Mount.

The above Planning Agreements are between the relevant Council and Lend Lease. However, there are
a number of land holdings within the Calderwood release area that are not owned or controlled by Lend
Lease. These are referred to as ‘non-core lands’.

There are currently three known ‘non-core’ sites subject to development proposals, including
347 Calderwood Drive, Calderwood, the subject of this report. This site is identified in the site context
plan at Attachment 1.

On 6 May 2019, Council considered two similar reports proposing the exhibition of draft Planning
Agreements at two other non-core sites at 81 Escarpment Drive, Calderwood and 128 North Macquarie
Rd, Calderwood. Council resolved to exhibit both draft Planning Agreements. Both draft Planning
Agreements have now been exhibited, finalised and executed.

Shellharbour City Council DA0290/2018

A Development Application (DA0290/2018) has been lodged with Shellharbour City Council for a 455 lot
residential subdivision on Lot 1 DP 608238, 347 Calderwood Drive, Calderwood. The site falls within the
Calderwood release area and the provisions of the Major Project Approval apply and contributions are
required toward roads in the Wollongong local government area.

Council has provided referral advice to Shellharbour City Council requesting that adequate local
contribution arrangements are in place prior to the determination of this, or any other, application on the
subject land. The appropriate mechanism to facilitate this is a Planning Agreement.

PROPOSAL

A Planning Agreement is a voluntary arrangement between a developer and Council under which the
developer is required to dedicate land, pay a monetary contribution or provide any other material public
benefit, or a combination of these, to be used for or applied towards the provision of public infrastructure
or another public purpose.

In this instance, the developer has proposed to provide a monetary contribution toward road upgrades in
the Wollongong City Council Local Government Area.

On 17 October 2018, the applicant provided a Letter of Offer to enter into a Planning Agreement under
Section 7.4 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 in connection with Shellharbour
City Council DA0290/2018. The offer was based on the provisions of the existing Council and Lend
Lease Planning Agreement, being a monetary contribution of $4,400 per dwelling.

It has been agreed that the total contribution payable under the Planning Agreement will be
$2,186,798.25 (subject to indexation from September 2017 until date of payment). This has been
calculated based on an anticipated dwelling yield of 497 at the rate of $4,400 per dwelling. The
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contribution will be payable on a per lot basis prior to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate for each
phase in the development, at a rate of $4,806.15 per lot ($4,806.15 x 455 lots = $2,186,798.25).

Council officers considered this proposal reasonable as it would secure the same contributions as would
be provided under the existing Planning Agreement with Lend Lease, and overall it is considered that the
Planning Agreement will result in a positive outcome for the developer, Council and the community.

CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION

Internal:

Development Contributions Coordination Group.

External:

If Council endorses the recommendations of this report the draft Planning Agreement (Attachment 2) and
Explanatory Note (Attachment 3) will be exhibited for community input for a minimum period of 28 days.
PLANNING AND POLICY IMPACT

The draft Planning Agreement has been negotiated and prepared in accordance with Council’s Planning
Agreements Policy (2018), Sections 7.4 to 7.10 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act
1979 and Clauses 25B — 25E of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000.

This report contributes to the delivery of Our Wollongong 2028 goal “We have affordable and accessible
transport”.

It specifically delivers on core business activities as detailed in the Land Use Planning and Transport
Services Annual Service Plans 2019-20.

RISK ASSESSMENT

The proposed Planning Agreement provides a formal instrument to manage and mitigate any risks
associated with the development of land within the Shellharbour City Council Local Government Area for
which contributions are payable to Wollongong City Council.

Should the Planning Agreement not proceed, the risk exists that the developer will obtain an approval for
subdivision development of land without a mechanism for contributions to be paid to Council.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Planning Agreement will enable monetary contributions to be paid to Wollongong City Council prior
to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate by Shellharbour City Council. The funds collected will be held in
a restricted account and allocated toward road upgrades in the Yallah Marshall Mount area.

CONCLUSION

Calderwood Heights Pty Ltd has requested that Council enter into a Planning Agreement for the
provision of monetary contributions toward road upgrades in the Wollongong City Council Local
Government Area. The Planning Agreement is required to address development contributions payable
to Wollongong City Council in accordance with the Major Project Approval in association with a
development application currently under assessment at Shellharbour City Council.

It is recommended that Council endorse the Draft Planning Agreement for exhibition to enable
community input. If there are no significant issues raised during the exhibition period, it is proposed that
delegation be issued to the General Manager to determine, finalise and execute the Planning
Agreement, including making minor changes.
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DRAFT PLANNING AGREEMENT

Wollongong City Council
and

Calderwood Heights Pty Ltd

[ ] WOLLONGONG CITY COUNCIL
~/ 41 Burelli Street, Wollongong NSW 2500
Locked Bag 8821, Wollongong DC NSW 2500
wollongong Tel: 024227 7111
n Fax: 024227 7277
Web: www.wollongong.nsw.qov.au
ABN: 63 139 525 939 — GST Registered

city of innovatio
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DATE

PARTIES WOLLONGONG CITY COUNCIL (ABN 63 139 525 939) of 41 Burelli
Street, Wollongong in the State of New South Wales (Council)
CALDERWOOD HEIGHTS PTY LTD (ABN: 58 623 438 844) of Suite
4005-4006, Level 40, One International Towers, 100 Barangaroo
Avenue, Barangaroo NSW 2000 (Developer)

BACKGROUND

1

2
3
4

The Developer intends to carry out the Development.

The Land is situated in proximity to the local government area of Council.

The Developer has made a Development Application with Shellharbour City Council.

The Developer has offered to provide the Monetary Contributions if the Development is undertaken.

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS

1

DEFINITIONS

The following definitions apply unless the context otherwise requires:

Act

Assign

Business Day

Claim

Complete, Completed,

means the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (NSW).

as the context requires refers to any assignment, sale, transfer,
disposition, declaration of trust over or other assignment of a legal
and/or beneficial interest.

means any day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, gazetted public holiday
or bank holiday in Sydney, and concludes at 5pm on that day.

against any person any allegation, action, demand, cause of action, suit,
proceeding, judgement, debt, damage, loss, cost, expense or liability
howsoever arising and whether present or future, fixed or unascertained,
actual or contingent whether at law, in equity, under statute or otherwise.

means completed in accordance with the requirements of this document.

Completion
Council means Wollongong City Council.
Developer means Calderwood Heights Pty Ltd.

Development

Development
Application

Development Consent

GST Law

means the subdivision of the Land into approximately 455 Lots.

has the same meaning as in the Act.

Has the same meaning as in the Act.

means A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) Act 1999
(Commonwealth) and any other Act or regulation relating to the

] Page |2
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Monetary
Contributions

Planning Legislation
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imposition or administration of the goods and services tax.
Land means the whole of the land contained in Lot 1 DP 608238 as shown at
Appendix A.
Law means all legislation, regulations, by-laws, common law and other
binding order made by any Authority.
Lot means a lot in the Development created on the registration of a plan of

subdivision as part of the Development where the construction of one (1)
or more residential dwellings is permissible.

means the rules for Mediation as published by the Resolution Institute
and updated from time to time

means the monetary contributions set out in Clause 6 and Schedule 2.

means the Act, the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and the Roads
Act 1993 (NSW).

Subdivision Certificate means a subdivision certificate as defined in section 6.4(d) of the Act.

INTERPRETATION

The following rules of interpretation apply unless the context requires otherwise:

clauses, annexures
and schedules

reference to statutes

singular includes
plural

person

executors,
administrators,
successors

dollars

calculation of time

reference to a day

reference to a group
of persons

a clause, annexure or schedule is a reference to a clause in, or annexure
or schedule to, this document.

a statute, ordinance, code or other law includes regulations and other
instruments under it and consolidations, amendments, re-enactments or
replacements of any of them.

the singular includes the plural and vice versa.

the word ‘person’ includes an individual, a firm, a body corporate, a
partnership, joint venture, an unincorporated body or association or any
government agency.

a particular person includes a reference to the person’s executors,
administrators, successors, substitutes (including persons taking by

novation) and assigns.

Australian dollars, dollars, $ or A$ is a reference to the lawful currency of
Australia.

if a period of time dates from a given day or the day of an act or event, it is
to be calculated exclusive of that day.

a day is to be interpreted as the period of time commencing at midnight
and ending 24 hours later.

a group of persons or things is a reference to any two or more of them
jointly and to each of them individually.

1 Page |3
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meaning not limited the words ‘include’, ‘including’, ‘for example’ or ‘such as’ are not used as,
nor are they to be interpreted as, words of limitation, and, when
introducing an example, do not limit the meaning of the words to which the
example relates to that example or examples of a similar kind.

next day if an act under this document to be done by a party on or by a given day is
done after 4.30pm on that day, it is taken to be done on the next day.

next Business Day if an event must occur on a stipulated day which is not a Business Day
then the stipulated day will be taken to be the next Business Day.

Business Day means any day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, gazetted public holiday or
bank holiday in Sydney, and concludes at 5pm on that day.

time of day time is a reference to Sydney time.

headings headings (including those in brackets at the beginning of paragraphs) are
for convenience only and do not affect the interpretation of this document.

agreement a reference to any agreement, Agreement or instrument includes the

same as varied, supplemented, novated or replaced from time to time.

3 OPERATION OF AGREEMENT
3.1 Planning agreement
This document is a planning agreement:
i Within the meaning set out in section 7.4 of the Act; and
ii  Governed by Subdivision 2 of Division 7.1 of Part 7 of the Act.
3.2 Application
This document applies to both the Land and the Development.
3.3 Operation of document

i Subject to paragraph (ii), this document operates from the date it is executed by both
parties.

ii Clause 6 of this Agreement will only operate if and when Development Consent is granted
to the Development.
4  APPLICATION OF SECTION 7.11, SECTION 7.12 AND SECTION 7.24
41 Application

a. This document excludes the application by Council of section 7.11, section 7.12 and
section 7.24 of the Act to the Development.

b. Despite Clause 4.1(a) nothing in this document excludes the application by another
consent authority, the Minister, or an accredited certifier, of sections 7.11, 7.12 and 7.24
of the Act to the Development

4.2 Consideration of benefits
Section 7.11(6) of the Act does not apply to the Monetary Contributions that are to be provided
pursuant to this document.
5 REGISTRATION OF THIS DOCUMENT
5.1 Registration

This document must be registered on the title of the Land pursuant to section 7.6 of the Act.

[ 1 Page |4 TRIM: Z19/68154
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5.2 Obligations of the Developer

The Developer must:

i do all things necessary to facilitate the registration of this document to occur within 30 days
of the execution of this document, including but not limited to obtaining the consent of any
mortgagee registered on the title of the Land; and

ii  pay any reasonable costs incurred by Council in undertaking that registration; and

iii. provide Council with a copy of the relevant folio within 10 Business Days of registration of
this document.

5.3 Removal from title of the Land

i Council will do all things necessary to allow the Developer to remove the registration of this
document from the title of the Land, or any part of the Land, where the Developer has:

a provided all applicable Monetary Contributions.
i The Developer must pay any reasonable costs incurred by Council in undertaking that
discharge.
6 PROVISION OF CONTRIBUTIONS
6.1 Monetary Contributions

i. The Developer must make the Monetary Contributions to Council in accordance with
Schedule 2.

ii. Where Schedule 2 establishes the phasing of payment of the Monetary Contributions to
Council by reference to the number of Lots to be created, the Developer agrees to make that
Monetary Contribution prior to seeking or procuring the grant of any Subdivision Certificate
in relation to those Lots.

6.2 Indexation
i The base contribution rate will be indexed in accordance with the following formula:
Indexed base contribution rate = $C x (CP2/CP1)
Where:
$C is the base contribution rate as set out in Schedule 2 of this document
CP1 is the Consumer Price Index; All Groups CPI; Sydney at September 2017
CP2 is the Consumer Price Index; All Groups CPI; Sydney at the time of payment
ii For the purposes of paragraph (i):
a each component of the Monetary Contribution is indexed as at the date it is paid; and
b  the Index means the Consumer Price Index (All Groups) for Sydney or such other
index which replaces it from time to time.

7  WARRANTIES AND INDEMNITIES
7.1  Warranties
The Developer warrants to Council that:
i it is able to fully comply with its obligations under this document;
ii it has full capacity to enter into this document; and

i~ there is no legal impediment to it entering into this document, or performing the obligations
imposed under it.

7.2  Indemnity
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The Developer indemnifies Council in respect of any Claim that may arise as a result of the
conduct of the Works, but only to the extent that any such Claim does not arise as a result of the
negligent acts or omissions of Council.

8 DETERMINATION OF THIS DOCUMENT
8.1 Determination

This document will determine upon the Developer satisfying all of its obligations under the
document.

8.2 Effect of determination

Upon the determination of this document Council will do all things necessary to allow the
Developer to remove this document from the title of the whole or any part of the Land as quickly
as possible.

9 ASSIGNMENT
9.1 Prohibition

Neither party may Assign their rights under this document without the prior written consent of the
other party, acting reasonably.

9.2 Assignment of Land

The Developer must not Assign its interest in the Land, other than a single Lot approved pursuant
to a Development Consent and created by the registration of a plan of subdivision, unless:

i Council consents to the Assignment, such consent must not be reasonably withheld or
delayed; and

ii  the proposed assignee enters into an agreement to the satisfaction of Council, acting
reasonably, under which the assignee agrees to be bound by the terms of this document
with respect to the relevant part of the Land being Assigned.

10 DISPUTE RESOLUTION
10.1 Notice of dispute

i If a dispute between the parties arises in connection with this document or its subject matter
(Dispute), then either party (First Party) must give to the other (Second Party) a notice
which:

a is in writing;

b adequately identifies and provides details of the Dispute;

¢ stipulates what the First Party believes will resolve the Dispute; and
d

designates its representative (Representative) with the necessary authority to
negotiate and resolve the Dispute.

ii The Second Party must, within five (5) Business Days of service of the notice of dispute,
provide a notice to the First Party designating as its representative a person with the
necessary authority to negotiate and settle the Dispute (the representatives designated by
the parties being together, the Representatives).

10.2 Conduct pending resolution

The parties must continue to perform their respective obligations under this document if there is a
Dispute but will not be required to complete the matter the subject of the Dispute, unless the
appropriate party indemnifies the other parties against costs, damages and all losses suffered in
completing the disputed matter if the Dispute is not resolved in favour of the indemnifying party.

10.3 Further steps required before proceedings

Subiject to clause 10.7 and except as otherwise expressly provided in this document, any Dispute
must, as a condition precedent to the commencement of litigation or mediation under clause
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10.5, first be referred to the Representatives. The Representatives must endeavour to resolve the
dispute within ten (10) Business Days of the date a notice under clause 10.1(ii) is served.

10.4 Disputes for mediation

If the Representatives have not been able to resolve the Dispute, then the parties must agree
within five (5) Business Days to refer the matter to mediation under clause 10.5.

10.5 Disputes for mediation
i If the parties agree in accordance with clause 10.4 to refer the Dispute to mediation:
a. the mediation must be conducted by a mediator agreed by the parties;

b. in accordance with the Mediation Rules of the Resolution Institution

ii if the parties cannot agree within five (5) Business Days, then by a mediator appointed by
the President of the Law Society of New South Wales for the time being.

i If the mediation referred to in paragraph (i) has not resulted in settlement of the Dispute and
has been terminated, the parties may agree to have the matter determined by expert
determination under clause 10.6.

10.6 Other courses of action

If the mediation referred to in clause 10.5 has not resulted in settlement of the dispute and the
mediation has been terminated then either party may take whatever course of action it deems
appropriate for the purpose of resolving the Dispute.

10.7 Remedies available under the Act

This clause 10 does not operate to limit the availability of any remedies available to Council
under sections 9.45 and 9.46 and Division 9.6 of the Act.

10.8 Urgent relief

This clause 10 does not prevent a party from seeking urgent injunctive or declaratory relief
concerning any matter arising out of this document.

11 POSITION OF COUNCIL
11.1 Consent authority

The parties acknowledge that Council is a consent authority with statutory rights and obligations
pursuant to the terms of the Planning Legislation.

11.2 Document does not fetter discretion

This document is not intended to operate to fetter:

i the power of Council to make any Law; or

i the exercise by Council of any statutory power or discretion (Discretion).
11.3 Severance of provisions

i No provision of this document is intended to, or does, constitute any unlawful fetter on any
Discretion. If, contrary to the operation of this clause, any provision of this document is held
by a court of competent jurisdiction to constitute an unlawful fetter on any Discretion, the
parties agree:

a they will take all practical steps, including the execution of any further documents, to
ensure the objective of this clause 11 is substantially satisfied,;

b in the event that paragraph (a) cannot be achieved without giving rise to an unlawful
fetter on a Discretion, the relevant provision is to be severed and the remainder of this
document has full force and effect; and

c to endeavour to satisfy the common objectives of the parties on relation to the
provision of this document which is held to be an unlawful fetter to the extent that it is
possible having regard to the relevant court judgment.
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ii Where the Law permits Council to contract out of a provision of that Law or gives Council
power to exercise a Discretion, then if Council has in this document contracted out of a
provision or exercised a Discretion under this document, then to the extent of this document
is not to be taken to be inconsistent with the Law.

11.4 No obligations

Nothing in this document will be deemed to impose any obligation on Council to exercise any of
its functions under the Act in relation to the Development Consent, the Land or the Development
in a certain manner.

12 CONFIDENTIALITY

12.1 Document not confidential
The terms of this document are not confidential and this document may be treated as a public
document and exhibited or reported without restriction by any party.
13 GST
13.1 Definitions

Words used in this clause that are defined in the GST Legislation have the meaning given in that
legislation.

13.2 Intention of the parties
Without limiting any other provision of this clause 13, the parties intend that:
i Divisions 81 and 82 of the GST Legislation apply to the supplies made under and in respect
of this document; and

ii  no additional amounts will be payable on account of GST and no tax invoices will be
exchanged between the parties.

13.3 Reimbursement

Any payment or reimbursement required to be made under this document that is calculated by
reference to a cost, expense, or other amount paid or incurred will be limited to the total cost,
expense or amount less the amount of any input tax credit to which any entity is entitled for the
acquisition to which the cost, expense or amount relates.

13.4 Consideration GST exclusive

Unless otherwise expressly stated, all prices or other sums payable or consideration to be
provided under this document are GST Exclusive. Any consideration that is specified to be
inclusive of GST must not be taken into account in calculating the GST payable in relation to a
supply for the purposes of this clause 13.

13.5 Additional amounts for GST
Subject to clause 13.7, if GST becomes payable on any supply made by a party (Supplier) under

or in connection with this document:

i any party (Recipient) that is required to provide consideration to the Supplier for that supply
must pay an additional amount to the Supplier equal to the amount of the GST payable on
that supply (GST Amount);

ii the GST Amount is payable at the same time as any other consideration is to be first
provided for that supply; and

i the Supplier must provide a tax invoice to the Recipient for that supply, no later than the time
at which the GST Amount for that supply is to be paid.

13.6 Variation

i If the GST Amount properly payable in relation to a supply (as determined in accordance
with clauses 13.5 and 13.7), varies from the additional amount paid by the Recipient under
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clause 13.5, then the Supplier will provide a corresponding refund or credit to, or will be
entitled to receive the amount of that variation from, the Recipient. Any payment, credit or
refund under this clause 13.6 is deemed to be a payment, credit or refund of the GST
Amount payable under clause 13.5.

ii  The Supplier must issue an adjustment note to the Recipient in respect of any adjustment
event occurring in relation to a supply made under or in connection with this document as
soon as reasonably practicable after the Supplier becomes aware of the adjustment event.

13.7 Non-monetary consideration

ii To the extent that the consideration provided for the Supplier's taxable supply to which
clause 13.5 applies is a taxable supply made by the Recipient (the Recipient Supply), the
GST Amount that would otherwise be payable by the Recipient to the Supplier in accordance
with clause 13.5 shall be reduced by the amount of GST payable by the Recipient on the
Recipient Supply.

iv. The Recipient must issue to the Supplier an invoice for any Recipient Supply on or before
the time at which the Recipient must pay the GST Amount in accordance with clause 13.5
(or the time at which such GST Amount would have been payable in accordance with
clause 13.5 but for the operation of clause 13.7(i)).

13.8 No merger

This clause will not merge on completion or termination of this document.

14 LEGAL COSTS

Each party must pay their own legal costs and disbursements with respect to the preparation,
negotiation, formation and implementation of this document.

15 ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS
15.1 Notices

i Any notice, consent or other communication under this document must be in writing and
signed by or on behalf of the person giving it, addressed to the person to whom it is to be
given and:

a delivered to that person’s address;
b sent by pre-paid mail to that person’s address; or
c sent by email to that person’s email address.

ii A notice given to a person in accordance with this clause is treated as having been given
and received:

a if delivered to a person's address, on the day of delivery if a Business Day, otherwise
on the next Business Day;

b if sent by pre-paid mail, on the third Business Day after posting; and

c if sent by email to a person’'s email address and a conformation of receipt can be
retrieved, on the day it was sent if a Business Day, otherwise on the next Business
Day.

i~ For the purpose of this clause the address of a person is the address set out in this
document or another address of which that person may from time to time give notice to each
other person.

15.2 Entire agreement

This document is the entire agreement of the parties on the subject matter. All representations,
communications and prior agreements in relation to the subject matter are merged in and
superseded by this document.

15.3 Waiver

[ 1 Page |9 TRIM: Z19/68154
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The non-exercise of or delay in exercising any power or right of a party does not operate as a
waiver of that power or right, nor does any single exercise of a power or right preclude any other
or further exercise of it or the exercise of any other power or right. A power or right may only be
waived in writing, signed by the parties to be bound by the waiver.

15.4 Counterparts

This document may be executed in any number of counterparts and all of those counterparts
taken together constitute one and the same instrument.

15.5 Unenforceability

Any provision of this document which is invalid or unenforceable in any jurisdiction is to be read
down for the purposes of that jurisdiction, if possible, so as to be valid or enforceable, and is
otherwise capable of being severed to the extent of the invalidity or enforceability, without
affecting the remaining provisions of this document or affecting the validity or enforceability of
that provision in any other jurisdiction.

15.6 Power of attorney

Each attorney who executes this document on behalf of a party declares that the attorney has no
notice of:

i the revocation or suspension of the power of attorney by the grantor; or
ii  the death of the grantor.
15.7 Governing law
The law in force in the State of New South Wales governs this document. The parties:

i submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of New South Wales and any courts that
may hear appeal from those courts in respect of any proceedings in connection with this
document; and

ii  may not seek to have any proceedings removed from the jurisdiction of New South Wales
on the grounds of forum non conveniens.

[ 1 Page |10 TRIM: Z19/68154
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EXECUTED AS AN AGREEMENT

EXECUTED by and on behalf of WOLLONGONG CITY COUNCIL (ABN 63 139 525 939) by its Authorised
Officer:

Signature of Authorised Person Signature of Witness

[Print] Name of Authorised Officer [Print] Name of Witness

Office Held Date

Date

EXECUTED by Calderwood Heights Pty Ltd (ABN: 58 623 438 844) in accordance with section 127(1) of
the Corporations Act 2001 by authority of its directors.

Director Signature Director / Secretary Signature
[Print] Name of Director [Print] Name of Director/Secretary
Date Date
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SCHEDULE 1: REQUIREMENTS UNDER SECTION 7.4 OF THE ACT

REQUIREMENT UNDER THE ACT

Planning instrument and/or
Application - (Section 7.4(1))

The Developer has:

Development

(a) sought a change to an environmental planning
instrument.

(b)

made, or proposes to make, a Development
Application.

(c) entered into an agreement with, or is otherwise
associated with, a person, to whom paragraph

(a) or (b) applies.

Description of land to which this agreement
applies — (Section 7.4(3)(a))

Description of development to which this
agreement applies — (Section 7.4(3)(b))

Application of section 7.11 of the Act — (Section
7.4(3)(d))

Applicability of section 7.12 of the Act — (Section
7.4(3)(d))

Applicability of section 7.24 of the Act — (Section
74(3)d)

Consideration of benefits under this agreement if
section 7.11 applies — (Section 7.4(3)(e))
Mechanism for resolution -
(Section 7.4(3)(f))

dispute

Enforcement of this agreement (Section 7.4(3)(g))

No obligation to grant consent or exercise
functions — (Section 7.4(3)(9))

Page |12

THIS PLANNING AGREEMENT

(a) No.
(b) Yes.

(c) No.

Lot 1 DP608238 known as 347 Calderwood Road,
Calderwood

the subdivision of the Land into approximately 455

Lots.

Refer to clause 4.1 of the Planning Agreement.

Refer to clause 4.1 of the Planning Agreement.

Refer to clause 4.1 of the Planning Agreement.

Refer to clause 4.2 of the Planning Agreement.

Refer to clause 11 of the Planning Agreement.

Refer to clause 5 of the Planning Agreement.

Refer to clause 11 of the Planning Agreement.
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SCHEDULE 2: MONETARY CONTRIBUTIONS

Table 1 Monetary Contributions
The Developer must pay the Monetary Contribution in accordance with this clause.

The Monetary Contributions payable are based on the following provisions:

Base contribution rate*

Unit

Timing

$4,806.15

Each Lot to be created

Prior to the issue of a Subdivision
Certificate for that part of the
Development that when registered will

create that Lot.

* The base contribution rate must be indexed in accordance with clause 6.2.

The Monetary Contribution payable is to be calculated as follows:

Monetary Contribution payable = Rate x Units

Where:

Rate is the indexed base contribution rate calculated in accordance with clause 6.2

Units is the number of Lots to be created

Table 2 Indicative phasing schedule

Indicative number Base Indicative Monetary
Phase of Lots to be contribution rate Contribution
created per Lot payable per phase
1 183 $4.806.15 $879,525.45
2 272 $4,806.15 $1,307,272.80
Total 455 $2,186,798.25

For the avoidance of doubt, prior to the issue of a Subdivision Certificate that will create the last Lot in the
Development the Developer must ensure that the total Monetary Contribution of $2,186,798.25 (plus
indexation) has been paid to Council.

Page |13
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APPENDIX A - LAND

[Draft Planning Agreement — Calderwood Heights Pty Ltd] Page |14 TRIM: Z19/68154
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APPENDIX B — INDICATIVE PHASING PLAN
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Explanatory Note - Draft Planning Agreement: 347 Calderwood Road, Calderwood

Introduction

The purpose of this explanatory note is to provide a plain English written summary to support the notification
of the draft planning agreement (the Planning Agreement) prepared under Subdivision 2 of Division 7.1 of
Part 7 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (the Act). This explanatory note has been
prepared jointly by the parties in accordance with clause 25E of the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Regulation 2000 (the Regulation). This explanatory note is not to be used to assist in
construing the agreement.

Parties to the Planning Agreement

The parties to the Planning Agreement are:
1. Wollongong City Council ABN 38 755 709 681 (the Council); and
2. Calderwood Heights Pty Ltd ABN 58 623 438 844 (the Developer).

Description of the Subject Land
The Planning Agreement applies to:
e Lot 1 DP 608238 known as Calderwood Road, Calderwood NSW 2527 (Subject Land).
It should be noted that the Subject Land is located within the Shellharbour Local Government Area.

Description of Proposed Development

The Developer is seeking to subdivide the Subject Land into 455 residential lots and has lodged
Development Application DA0290/2018 with Shellharbour City Council (Proposed Development).

Summary of objectives, nature and effect of the proposed Planning Agreement

The Subject Land is included within the area of Concept Approval MP09_0082 granted by the Minister for
Planning under the former section 75W of the Act.

The Concept Approval requires the Developer to make contributions towards the provision of local
infrastructure in both the Shellharbour and Wollongong Local Government Areas. Accordingly, the Developer
has made an offer to Wollongong City Council to enter into the Planning Agreement in connection with the
Proposed Development.

The Planning Agreement provides that the Developer will make a monetary contribution of $4,806.15 for
each lot to be created on the Subject Land, prior to the issue of a subdivision certificate for each phase.

Assessment of the Merits of the Draft Planning Agreement

Wollongong City Council and the Developer have assessed the Planning Agreement, and both hold the view
that the provisions of the Planning Agreement provide a reasonable means of achieving the public purpose
set out above.

The Developer’s offer to contribute towards the provision of local infrastructure will have a positive public
impact as funds from the Developer will be available towards the provision of infrastructure in Wollongong.

The Planning Purpose of the Draft Planning Agreement
In accordance with section 7.4(2) of the Act, the Planning Agreement has the following public purpose:
e the provision of transport or other infrastructure relating to land.

The Planning Agreement will enable monetary contributions to be paid to Wollongong City Council prior to
the issue of a Subdivision Certificate by Shellharbour City Council. The funds collected will be held in a
restricted account and allocated toward road upgrades in the Wollongong City Council local government

area.

How the Planning Agreement promotes the public interest and objects of the Act
The Planning Agreement promotes the objects of the Act by encouraging:
e the promotion of the orderly and economic use and development of land (section 1.3(c)).
The Planning Agreement promotes the public interest by ensuring that an appropriate contribution is made
towards the provision of infrastructure required to meet the needs that arise from development of the Land.

[ ] Page |1 TRIM: Z19/68175
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File: PP-2018/8 Doc: 1C19/520

ITEM 9 DRAFT PLANNING PROPOSAL 4 YENDA AVENUE BULLI PP-2018/8

A draft Planning Proposal request has been submitted for 4 Yenda Avenue, Bulli which seeks to enable
a Centre-based Child Care Facility on the property. The Centre-based Child Care Facility would be
made permissible through an amendment to Schedule 1 as an additional permitted use on the site. The
proposal has been reviewed by the Wollongong Local Planning Panel which supported the proposal, but
raised concern about evacuation of children in the event of a flood or bushfire. This issue is addressed in
the report.

This report presents the preliminary assessment of the draft Planning Proposal request and
recommends that Council resolve to submit a draft Planning Proposal to the NSW Department of
Planning, Industry and Environment seeking a Gateway Determination to enable public exhibition.

RECOMMENDATION

1 A draft Planning Proposal be submitted to the NSW Department of Planning, Industry and
Environment for 4 Yenda Avenue (Lot 105 DP 264639) Bulli seeking a Gateway determination to
amend Schedule 1 of Wollongong Local Environmental Plan 2009 to permit a Centre-based Child
Care Facility.

2 A detailed Flood Management Plan and Bushfire Management Plan be submitted by the applicant if
the proposal obtains a “Gateway” approval and prior to public exhibition.

3  The draft Planning Proposal, including the Flood Management Plan and Bushfire Management Plan
be exhibited for 28 days.

4  The Department of Planning, Industry and Environment be requested to issue authority to the
General Manager to exercise plan making delegation in accordance with Council’s resolution of
26 November 2012.

REPORT AUTHORISATIONS

Report of: David Green, Manager City Strategy (Acting)

Authorised by:  Chris Stewart, Director Planning and Environment - Future City and Neighbourhoods
(Acting)

ATTACHMENTS

1 Site Map

2  Wollongong Local Planning Panel Recommendation

BACKGROUND

In July 2018 a Planning Proposal request was submitted by the landowner for 4 Yenda Avenue, Bulli
(Lot 105 DP 264639). The site is approximately 2.36 hectares in size and is currently zoned E3
Environmental Management. The site is bounded by properties zoned E3 Environmental Management to
the north, east and west, and R2 Low Density Residential to the south (Attachment 1).

The site contains a dwelling house, farm sheds and a swim school facility with car parking. The swim
school was approved in 2004 (DA-2004/224). Native vegetation is present along the southern and
northern boundaries. Woodlands Creek is located on the low lying northern portions of the site. The site
contains a vegetated watercourse. The site assessment identified patches of Acacia Scrub (MU56a),
Wet Sclerophyll Forest — Escarpment Blackbutt Forest — (MU16) and weeds and exotics. No threatened
flora species are recorded on the site.

The site inspection undertaken in October 2018 identified several hollow-bearing trees within the stands
of vegetation marked as high and moderate ecological value. Both the vegetation and hollows have the
potential to provide habitat for a number of threatened species, and are proposed to be retained within
the riparian area with no works proposed in any vegetated areas.
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PROPOSAL

The draft Planning Proposal request includes an indicative floor plan for the Centre-based Child Care
Facility which utilises the existing structure of the swim school. To facilitate the proposed development,
the draft Planning Proposal request seeks to amend Schedule 1 of the Wollongong Local Environmental
Plan 2009 to include an additional permitted use for Lot 105 DP 264639, 4 Yenda Avenue Centre-based
Child Care Facility.

Access to the site is proposed to remain via a driveway from Yenda Avenue which is accessible from
George Road. Full urban reticulation services (power, gas, sewer, water and telecommunications) are
provided to the site.

The following key issues are relevant to the evaluation of the Planning Proposal request -
Traffic generation

A capacity assessment of the existing road network to accommodate the additional traffic generated by
the new development has not been conducted. However, the proposed new development is expected to
have less impact than the existing use (i.e. swim school). Should the additional permitted use be
approved, any subsequent development application would need to be supported by a detailed
assessment of traffic impacts, car parking, site servicing/manoeuvring and waste collection. Any
proposed access to the site would need to comply with Australian Standards AS2890.1 and Wollongong
Development Control Plan 2009 to provide adequate grades, widths and safe sight distances.

Consistency with lllawarra Escarpment Strategic Management Plan 2015

The Planning Proposal request is generally consistent with the Planning Principles contained within the
lllawarra Escarpment Strategic Management Plan (2015) and lllawarra Escarpment Lands Urban Review
Strategy (2007). The Office of Environment and Heritage (OEH) did not object to the preliminary
Planning Proposal and requested OEH be given the opportunity to review the final Planning Proposal, as
required under s3.25 of the Environmental Planning & Assessment Act 1979.

Bushfire

A bushfire assessment was undertaken by Peterson Bushfire (2018) in accordance with Planning for
Bushfire Protection 2006 (PBP) and consisted of desktop analysis and a site inspection. The
assessment of the site identified three areas of vegetation that are mapped as bushfire hazards.

The primary vegetation area is to the north and north-west of the site is the primary bushfire hazard area
and is identified as bushfire prone. The primary threat area is vegetation classified as Escarpment
Blackbutt Forest with rainforest understorey and is associated with the riparian corridor which traverses
the northern portion of the site at a distance of 50m. The second area of vegetation is on the north-east,
associated along a tributary of Woodlands Creek, the plantings are classified as ‘low hazard’ due to the
narrow width (approximately 10m) and small area. The plantings are situated on the floodplain of
Woodlands Creek. The third area is the eastern portion of the site with regrowth of native eucalypts and
noxious weeds, the stands are disconnected from the vegetation on the other portions of the site and are
no wider than 50m. The remnants are not mapped as bushfire prone vegetation on Council mapping,
and are classified as ‘low hazard’.

The bushfire assessment provided the following recommended mitigation measures to ensure suitability
of part of the subject lands for the Special Fire Protection Purpose development —

e Asset Protection Zones -

- North: 50m — consists of cleared flood plain (60m required)

- North-east: 50m — Consists of cleared area and access way (30m required)

- East: 30m — weed infestation and understorey to be managed. (30m required)
e Proposed works on existing buildings to achieve BAL-12.5 requirements

e A static water supply of 10,000 be made available in accordance with PBP 2006
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e Services and infrastructure to the site to comply Planning for Bushfire Protection 2006

e Access for firefighting operations to be constructed in accordance with the specifications of Section
4.1.3 (1) of Planning for Bushfire Protection 2006.

The NSW Rural Fire Service (RFS) raised no objection to the proposal during the preliminary notification
period, however noted that Asset Protection Zones (APZs) conditioned with the special fire purpose
development of the swim school facility (DA-2004/224) are to be complied with. The APZs recommended
by Peterson Bushfire (2018) are considered to be satisfactory with regard to the conditions of DA-
2004/224. The RFS will be provided with further opportunities to comment at the development
application and detailed subdivision stage.

The Wollongong Local Planning Panel raised concern about bushfire risk and requested the preparation
of a detailed Bushfire Management Plan.

Flooding

The access driveway to the site passes close to Woodlands Creek and could be inundated during a flood
event. Although the facility would not be affected, the evacuation route could be affected. It is anticipated
that flood events would be of a short duration. NSW Office of Environment and Heritage (now
Biodiversity and Conservation; Department of Planning, Industry and Environment) had no comment at
the preliminary stage of the proposal, but would have further opportunity to comment should the
Planning Proposal proceed to a “Gateway” determination.

The Wollongong Local Planning Panel raised concern about flooding and requested the preparation of a
Flood Management Plan.

Geotechnical

The site is mapped as being subject to suspected land instability. Any subsequent development
application requiring excavations would be required to submit geotechnical advice indicating no adverse
impacts to the site, site conditions, surrounding development or environment.

Heritage

An Aboriginal Heritage Information Management System (AHIMS) search was undertaken, with no
recorded Aboriginal Heritage sites or Aboriginal places declared in or near the site. The proposal does
not seek to alter existing site conditions.

No European or Cultural heritage items are located on or near the site. The proposal intends to utilise
existing developed areas of the site. The proposal is considered to not impact upon any heritage items or
items of cultural significance.

Foreshore Building Line

The lot is identified as being located within the Foreshore Building Line of Woodlands Creek. However,
the building for the child care centre is located outside of this area. Furthermore, the building is
connected to potable water, sewerage and stormwater services. Therefore, it is unlikely any additional
impacts upon the environment within foreshore building will occur as a result of the proposed amended
use to the site. Matters regarding the Foreshore Building Line will be required to be addressed should
the Planning Proposal progress.

Visual Impact

The proposed development is to be located within an existing approved structure upon the site.
Furthermore, the Planning Proposal does not seek to intensify land use upon the site or impact upon the
existing vegetation. The visual impact has been considered in relation to the existing residential setting
south of the lot and being situated within a depression in the lower reaches of the escarpment. No
additional or negative visual impacts are likely to occur from the additional permitted use upon the site
within the existing building. However, potential visual impact on the site will be considered at the
development application stage with respect to the principles and strategies outlined in the IESMP (2015).
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CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION

Preliminary consultation was carried out in July 2018 as part of the assessment of the draft Planning
Proposal request, which involved referrals to Roads and Maritime Services, NSW Rural Fire Service, the
Office of Environment and Heritage, Department of Primary Industries — Water, and relevant internal

divisions of Council.

State Authority comments provided on the Planning Proposal request were as follows -

Issues Raised Council Officer Response

2014/244.

NSW Rural Fire Service (RFS):

No objection to the proposed rezoning. Future development will be required | Noted.
to provide Asset Protection Zones as per the plan in the Bushfire
Assessment report prepared by Peterson Bushfire and as required under
previous Special Fire Protection Purpose development approval under DA-

Office of Environment & Heritage (OEH):

Did not object to the preliminary Planning Proposal and will comment Noted.
should the Proposal progress

(Previously Water NSW):

Department of Industries — Natural Resources Access Regulator

Raised no objection to the proposal.

Noted.

Three community submissions received following the preliminary notification of the draft planning

proposal were as follows -

Concern

Council Comment

1 Three submissions were
concerned about Traffic,
Parking and Pedestrian
impacts associated with a
Centre-Based Child Care
Facility

The site is accessed from Yenda Avenue which joins George Avenue. George
Avenue is a no through road which services a residential area from Lawrence
Hargrave Drive to the escarpment. The existing street network is of a typical
residential street design and is considered to adequately service the residential
and other existing uses within the locality.

The site is considered to be able to support the existing use of a residence and
a swim school facility with access gained from Yenda Avenue. The proposal to
permit an additional permitted use of a Centre-base Child Care Facility with
indicative plans to convert the swim school building to a child care centre
would not intensify existing traffic movements or parking requirements on the
site.

Currently the site supports an approximate maximum of 346 movements on an
average weekday in its use of a swim school and residence. Approximate
calculations for the indicative plans of a Child Care Centre would involve an
approximate maximum of 160 movements on an average weekday. The site
would therefore be reducing overall approximate average daily traffic
movements.

Parking and pedestrian access are considered to be able to be supplied and
the site is considered to be able to comply with Council, RFS and Australian
Standards for parking, access and evacuations.

It is noted that the specific development requirements relating to a Centre-base
Child Care Facility are considered during a development application. The
planning proposal stage is responsible for determining the sites suitability for
supporting uses, and as such it is considered that the site and locality can
support the traffic, parking and pedestrian access for a Centre-based Child
Care Facility.
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Concern

Council Comment

Two submissions were
concerned about potential
noise impacts on
surrounding residential
area

The noise generated on the site as part of the existing use is considered to be
mitigated within the buildings and with the appropriate screening on the
southern boundary of the site. The existing use of the site is considered to
create a greater level of noise than a Child Care Centre potentially would upon
the adjacent E3 Environmental Management zoned land. Child Care Centres
of all types are permissible and encouraged within residential areas, and
therefore it is not considered to be inappropriate for the site.

It is noted that noise impacts associated with a specific development are not
formally considered under the assessment of a planning proposal — with more
detailed consideration and assessment taking place during the development
application stage.

One submission was
concerned about hours of
Operation, and impact
upon surrounding residents

The site currently hosts a swim school facility which operates between 7am
and 6.30pm on weekdays and 7am to 12pm on Saturdays. The planning
proposal application was accompanied by an indicative hours of operation plan
which indicates weekday operations from 7am till 6pm.

The proposal currently under assessment does not formally consider the hours
of operation, however the indicative hours of operation are similar to the
existing use and existing hours of operation.

The proposal is not considered to be inappropriate for the locality due to the
permissibility of Child Care Centres within adjoining residential zones, which
allows similar and in some instances more intensive hours of operation than
indicated within this proposal.

One submission was
concerned about health
and Safety of Children
within close proximity to
bushlands

The health and safety of children is considered as part of the assessment of a
development application. It is considered that the site would be able to cater for
the health and safety of the children within a child care facility.

The NSW RFS has indicated in previous approvals for the site that the site is
capable of providing compliant and safe access from the site in the event of a
bushfire. The access road on the site was subject to a detailed flood and
stormwater analysis which indicated that the road is not subject to flooding,
and therefore evacuation is possible at flood planning levels.

One submission was
concerned about the
impact on aesthetic value
of adjoining land and
subject site

The proposal under assessment cannot determine impacts on the aesthetic
value of land.

The indicative proposal however is to utilise the existing buildings on the site,
with alterations (Children’s playground) proposed on the northern aspect which
is not visible from any adjoining properties.

One submission
questioned the legality of
buildings and zonings

A desktop assessment and site inspection determined that the buildings on the
site have relevant approvals and have been constructed in accordance with
their respective approvals.

The site is zoned E3 Environmental Management, the planning proposal has
been lodged to include a Centre-based Child Care Facility in the Additional
Permitted Use Schedule 1 of the Wollongong Local Environmental Plan 2009
which allows a use not specified in the permissible uses for a specific zone on
an specified site(s).

One submission was
concerned about
overdevelopment of the
site

The existing swim school facility is proposed to be reused for the child care
facility, thus not requiring any further construction on the site.

The sites zoning and site conditions permit development, as such the proposal
site is capable of facilitating the existing development on the site.

Further consideration to existing site conditions and development on the site in
relation to further construction is appropriately considered during the
development application stage.
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Concern Council Comment

The proposal is not considered to be inappropriate in this regard.

8 One submission was The evacuation of the site during a bushfire has been considered as part of
concerned about previous approvals on the site, and within this application. The proposal is
evacuation of site in the considered to adequately address concerns for evacuation management.
event of bushfire Further details and specific evacuation plans are required at the Development

Application stage.

The planning proposal assessment requires that the site is capable of
facilitating the development. The NSW RFS was consulted as part of the
preliminary notification of the planning proposal, and identified the use as a
Special Fire Protection Purpose development. It was noted by the NSW RFS
that the site has a previous approval for a Special Fire Protection Purpose
development (swim school), and as such did not object to the planning
proposal subject to previous approvals conditions being complied with.

The Wollongong Local Planning Panel was also concerned about bushfire risk.
The Panel noted that with the swim school that parents and children come for a
lesson then leave. Whereas with a child care centre, the children are on-site all
day. The Panel was concerned that evacuation of the children.

WOLLONGONG LOCAL PLANNING PANEL RECOMMENDATION

This report was considered by the Wollongong Local Planning Panel on 7 August 2019. The panel
noted concerns over access via land impacted by flood and bushfire constraints. The Panel have
recommended that a Flood Management Plan and Bushfire Management Plan to be submitted prior to
the proposal being sent to the NSW Department of Planning, Industry and Environment for a “Gateway”
determination. The Panel’s advice is at Attachment 2.

While the Wollongong Local Planning Panel recommends that a detailed Flood Management Plan and
Bushfire Management Plan be submitted prior to “Gateway” determination, the intent of a “Gateway”
determination is to determine if the proposal warrants further consideration and identifies the further work
or studies required prior to exhibition. In this case, Council could resolve to send the Planning Proposal
to “Gateway” with a recommendation that the further studies are to be completed if the NSW Department
of Planning, Industry and Environment issues a “Gateway” approval and prior to exhibition.

PLANNING AND POLICY IMPACT

This report is consistent with the vision and objectives of the lllawarra-Shoalhaven Regional Plan 2015.
The proposal particularly meets the directions 1.1, 1.4, 3.2 and 5.1.

This report is consistent with the aims and objects of State Environmental Planning Policy (Educational
Establishments and Child Care Facilities) 2017. The proposal seeks to permit a Centre-based Child Care
Facility on the subject lot. The NSW Department of Planning and Environment has projected the demand
for 2,700 additional child care facilities across NSW; and, with Wollongong’s population increase
projections; demand for child care facilities will continue to rise the LGA.
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This report contributes to the delivery of Wollongong 2028 objective “Our natural environment,
waterways and terrestrial areas are protected, managed and improved”, under the Community Goal “We
value and protect our environment”. It specifically delivers on the following —

Community Strategic Plan Delivery Program 2018-2021 Operational Plan 2018-2021

Strategy 3 Year Action Operational Plan Actions

1.3.1 Manage land uses to 1.3.1.1 Impacts from developmenton | 1.3.1.1.1 Assess new developments
strengthen urban areas and the environment are and planning proposals for
improve connectivity to train assessed, monitored and environmental impacts
stations and key transport mitigated ) i
routes 1.3.1.1.2 Engage with other tiers of

government, the
development/building
industry and the broader
community to achieve
improved development
outcomes.

CONCLUSION

A Planning Proposal seeking to amend Schedule 1 on the Wollongong Local Environmental Plan 2009 to
include the provision for a Centre-based Child Care Facility as additional use upon the site at 4 Yenda
Avenue Bulli has been assessed. The strategic merit of the planning proposal has been considered,
which included examining the surrounding land uses, environmental constraints and the need for child
care facilities in the immediate area. Submissions received from the community and internal and external
reference groups have been considered in determine the suitability in recommending the progression of
the Planning Proposal.

It is recommended that Council resolve to prepare a draft Planning Proposal for Lot 105 DP 264639
Yenda Avenue, Bulli and submit it to the NSW Department of Planning, Industry and Environment
seeking a Gateway determination to allow the further studies and subsequent public exhibition.
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Draft Planning Proposal
g Additional permitted use - centre based Childcare
4 Yenda Ave Bulli

wollongong o
city of innovation E Subject site Profecion: GDA 1964

D.,-:_‘D Map Identification number

Meters SubjectSite_zoning.mxd
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ADVICE
WOLLONGONG CITY COUNCIL = WOLLONGONG LOCAL PLANNING PANEL (WLPP)

DATE OF MEETING 7 August 2019

PANEL MEMBERS Robert Montgomery (Chair), Mark Carlon and Sue Hobley

David Green (Land Use Planning Manager), Jon Bridge (Senior Strategic

STAFF IN ATTENDANCE Project Officer)

PROPERTY 4 Yenda Avenue Bulli

Wollongong Local Planning Panel (WLPP) meeting held at Corrimal Community Centre Meeting Room, Short
Street Corrimal, opened at 1:12pm, adjourned from 1:20pm to 2:10 and closed at 3:20pm. Panel
deliberations continued after the meeting closed.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST
None of the Panel members had any conflict of interests relating to the matter.

ITEM 1
Planning proposal amend the Additional Permitted Use Schedule to include “centre-based child care facility”
at 4 Yenda Avenue Bulli.

PUBLIC SUBMISSIONS
As the Panel is providing advice only to Council on the planning proposal, the Panel meeting was not open
to members of the public. No representative of the applicant attended the Panel.

PANEL CONSIDERATION
The Panel inspected the site prior to the meeting.

The Panel acknowledges that a centre based child care facility may be appropriate in the locality based on
population growth and demand for such facilities in the area. While there appears to be sufficient area within
the subject land to accommodate such a facility, concern is raised about the suitability of the site for a child
care centre due to the risks of flooding and bushfire. The Panel considers this to be the sole obstacle to its
support of the planning proposal.

The Panel notes that the driveway access to the site traverses hoth the flood prone, and bushfire risk section
of the site. The Panel considers that the proponent has not demonstrated how these significant risks will be
managed in terms of general safety and in particular the safe evacuation of the occupants in time of flood or
bushfire threat, noting that the facility may serve infants and toddlers among others.

Notwithstanding preliminary advice from Rural Fire Services raising no objection to the planning proposal,
the Panel is not inclined to support the proposal unless compliance with Planning for Bushfire 2006 for a
future child care facility can be demonstrated. In particular, concern is raised as to whether the existing
access driveway is capable of compliance.

ADVICE TO COUNCIL

The Wollongong Local Planning Panel recommends to Council that the following matters should be addressed
by the applicant prior to Council deciding whether to submit the draft Planning Proposal for land known as 4
Yenda Avenue Bulli to the Department of Planning and Environment (DPE) for a Gateway Determination:

1. A flood management plan be submitted which details how the safety of child care centre staff and
children will be assured during a flood event. The plan should include the following information:

e details of flood warning systems and warning times;

s Flood characteristics, ie depth, velocity, hazard and location of flood waters;
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e the likely time that the site will be isolated by floodwater;

e whether evacuation is required, or if staying in place is recommended based on the flooding
characteristics.

s [If evacuation is required, details of evacuation of the building, including timing, logistics and
evacuation route.

2. Adetailed bushfire management plan be submitted which includes the following information:

s A review of whether the existing access complies or is capable of compliance with Planning for
Bushfire 2006; and

e Details of evacuation of the building, including timing, logistics and evacuation route.

3. The Panel acknowledges that this level of detail would generally be submitted with a development
application, however, in the circumstances of this site-specific proposal, it is considered imprudent
for the planning proposal to proceed unless it can be demonstrated that the natural hazard risks of
the site can be suitably managed for the establishment of a child care centre on the land.

Voting: 3/0
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File: CST-100.07.039 Doc: 1C19/564

DRAFT COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION PLAN - ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING AND
ASSESSMENT ACT

ITEM 10

Community Participation Plans (CPPs) are a new requirement under the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act 1979 (the Act). A CPP outlines how and when planning authorities engage with the
community across their planning functions. Council is required to have the final version of the CPP
published on the NSW Planning Portal by 1 December 2019.

A draft Community Participation Plan (CPP) has been prepared for exhibition. The CPP will replace
Wollongong Development Control Plan 2009 - Appendix 1 Public Notification and Advertising
Procedures, which currently outlines how Council exhibits development applications.

RECOMMENDATION
1 The Draft Community Participation Plan be exhibited for a minimum period of 28 days.

2 The exhibition material include advice that the Wollongong Development Control Plan 2009 —
Appendix 1 Public Notification and Advertising Procedures is proposed to be repealed, upon the
commencement of the Community Participation Plan.

REPORT AUTHORISATIONS

Report of: David Green, Manager City Strategy (Acting)

Authorised by:  Chris Stewart, Director Planning and Environment - Future City and Neighbourhoods
(Acting)

ATTACHMENTS

1 Draft Community Participation Plan

BACKGROUND

Wollongong Development Control Plan 2009 — Appendix 1 Public Notification and Advertising
Procedures, currently outlines how, when and for what period Council exhibits development applications
and modifications.

On 1 March 2018, amendments to the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (the Act)
commenced including a requirement for all councils to prepare a Community Participation Plan (CPP) by
1 December 2019. In October 2018, the (then) Department of Planning and Environment exhibited a
draft Community Participation Plan for that organisation, and as a template. The stated purpose of a
CPP is to provide a single document that the community can access that sets out all of council’s
community participation requirements under the planning legislation, including all minimum mandatory
exhibition timeframes.

Currently councils outline community participation requirements in multiple documents including a
notification development control plan and community engagement plan or strategy prepared under
section 402 of the Local Government Act 1993. This includes information setting out specific exhibition
timeframes (sometimes referred to as notification periods) for types for development applications.

The State requires councils to transfer all its planning functions community participation requirements
(sometimes referred to as notification, advertising or submission periods) from Development Control
Plans to their CPP or a community engagement strategy prepared to meet the CPP requirement.

Planning functions include the exhibition of development applications, draft Planning Proposals and draft
Planning Policies. The CPP only applies to planning functions and not other exhibition requirements, for
example draft Plans of Management exhibited under the Local Government Act 1993.
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Council has the option to prepare a standalone CPP or include the requirements in a community
engagement plan/strategy prepared under the Community Strategic Plan (section 402 of the Local
Government Act 1993).

The CPP should be clear about what is meant by public exhibition, which could be described as -
¢ Giving notice to individual land owners / occupiers
e Determining an appropriate exhibition timeframe
e Advertising the exhibition notice, including how submissions can be made
e Making documents publicly available

A CPP should include all other non-mandatory community participation commitments including when
extended public exhibition will occur or targeted consultation.

The CPP should set out, as a minimum, the following -

Schedule 1 to the EP&A Act Minimum Community Participation Requirement

Draft community participation plans 28 days
Draft local strategic planning statements 28 days
Planning proposals for local environmental | 28 days or -

plans subject to a gateway determination a If a different period of public exhibition is specified

in the gateway determination for the proposal—the
period so specified, or

b If the gateway determination specifies that no
public exhibition is required because of the minor
nature of the proposal—no public exhibition.

Draft development control plans 28 days
Draft contribution plans 28 days
Application for development consent (other | 14 days or -

than for complying development certificate,
for designated development or for State
significant development)

a If a different period of public exhibition is specified
for the application in the relevant community
participation plan—the period so specified, or

b If the relevant community participation plan
specifies that no public exhibition is required for the
application—no public exhibition.

Application for development consent for
designated development

28 days

Application for modification of development
consent that is required to be publicly
exhibited by the regulations

The period (if any) determined by the consent authority
in accordance with the relevant community participation
plan.

Environmental impact statement obtained
under Division 5.1

28 days

On 23 July 2018 Council adopted the Community Engagement Policy which details how, why and when
Council engages with the community on all projects. Despite Council having this overarching policy,
Council is still required to prepare a CPP.
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PROPOSAL

A draft Community Participation Plan (CPP) has been prepared (Attachment 1). The draft CPP
incorporates all Council planning functions, whereas Appendix 1 Public Notification and Advertising
Procedures of the DCP related solely to Development Assessment and Determinations. The draft CPP
incorporates key elements from the Wollongong Development Control Plan 2009 — Appendix 1. The
draft CPP has been prepared under Council’s overarching Community Engagement Policy and does not
duplicate the information in the policy.

As required by the Department of Planning, Industry and Environment (the Department), the CPP has
been written in plain language to make an easily understood document that will encourage community
participation in planning.

The draft CPP is structured in a sequence which reflects the notification process. Planning functions are
firstly defined with information provided that is pertinent to that category. The CPP then explains how
members of the community can participate in the planning functions of the Council. This includes details
on how to make submissions and what information should be included. Details on how Council will
respond and provide information on determinations follows.

Links are provided within the draft CPP to relevant pages of Council’s, and the Department’s website.
This allows community members easy access to further detail on certain topics, without needing to
repeat definitions and processes not required within the CPP. The principles of Community Engagement
are also incorporated into the document, without replicating the entirety of the Community Engagement
Strategy.

This makes the CPP a much easier plan to navigate than the previous notification policy, as it is more
user friendly, and therefore inclusive.

The draft plan includes Sections 13 - Matrix notification requirements for Development Applications and
Section 1.3 — Applications for which notification/advertising is not required from Appendix 1. They have
been revised and updated, in consultation with Managers from Development Assessment and
Compliance, and are included as Schedules 2 and 3 respectively.

One important change is the removal of the requirement to advertise certain applications in the
newspaper. Integrated and Designated developments will remain advertised development, however
other types of development applications will not. As exists presently, there remains the ability for a
Development Application to be advertised, at the relevant Area Managers discretion, if the wider
community would benefit.

In resources provided by the Department, to assist Councils in the preparation of their CPPs, it was
suggested that newspaper advertisements should not be committed to within the CPP. The Department
is investigating making notification requirements online rather than newspaper publication. The draft
CPP reflects this and additional notification is required, for certain development categories, to offset the
removal of newspaper advertising for some planning functions. It is noted that local newspapers are no
longer available in some parts of the Local Government Area.

The key changes to the notification requirements are detailed as follows —

e Some development categories have been updated to increase the level of written notification, to
offset the removal of newspaper advertising for certain DAs. Where in Appendix 1 a Development
Application may have required written notice to adjoining land and newspaper advertisement, such
development categories have been updated to include or consider written notice to neighbouring
land also. This is either at Managers’ discretion, for lower impact development categories (such as
ancillary structures) or is mandatory for those likely to attract more public interest (such as multi-
dwelling housing). This will ensure that those community members most likely to be interested in the
potential impacts of a development application are notified. It also allows Managers’ discretion for
development categories with variable impacts
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e Updated legend for Notification requirements Matrix to reflect new requirements

e Designated and Integrated Development Added to matrix. Activity application removed as they are
not normally notified. This is reflected in Schedule 3

e Ancillary structures amended to include the requirement that -
- They will only be advertised if they are less than 0.9m from side and rear property boundaries.
- They not be advertised if they have -

* A maximum height of 3.5m above natural ground level
* A maximum wall/eave height of up to 2.7m above natural ground level and a minimum
0.9m setback from any side or rear property boundary

e Development descriptions updated to align with the definitions contained within the Wollongong LEP
2009 land use table. Development Descriptions align with the Land Use Matrix. For instance, Bed &
Breakfast Accommodation has been removed as it is covered by the higher order definition Tourist &
Visitor Accommodation.

e Minor changes to development categories to remove unnecessary wording.

e Dwelling houses category amended to avoid conflicts with schedule 3 carried over from Section 1.3
of Appendix 1.

¢ All measurements standardised and expressed as metres.

o References to sections of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 have been updated
to reflect new numbering which commenced 1 March 2018.

CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION

The draft Community Participation Plan was prepared in consultation with the Development Assessment
and Certification Division and the Community Development and Engagement Team.

If Council endorses the draft Community Participation Plan, it will be exhibited for a minimum period of
28 days.

Copies will be available on Council’s website and at Council’'s Administration Centre and libraries.
Following the exhibition period, a report on submissions will be prepared for Council’s consideration,
along with a recommendation regarding adoption.

PLANNING AND POLICY IMPACT

The CPP is required to be adopted by 1 December 2019. If not, all development applications are
required to be notified.

This report contributes to the delivery of Our Wollongong 2028 goal “We are a connected and engaged
community”.

It specifically delivers on core business activities as detailed in the Land Use Planning Service Plan
2019-20.
CONCLUSION

The Community Participation Plan is an important policy for the Council and incorporated overdue
updates to Appendix 1 of the Wollongong DCP 2009.

It is recommended that the draft Community Participation Plan (2019) (Attachment 1) be
exhibited for community comment.
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Draft Community Participation Plan

The Community Participation Plan (CPP) outlines how Council will inform and
engage with the community about planning and development matters. The CPP
also provides information on how you, as the community, can participate in
planning matters. Other matters, not directly related to planning, are covered by
Council’'s Community Engagement Policy.

The CPP applies to all land within the Wollongong Local Government Area (LGA).
The CPP sets out Council's exhibition requirements, as required by the Local
Government Act 1993 and the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

This plan replaces the Wollongong Development Control Plan 2009 — Appendix 1
Public Notification and Advertising Procedures, which currently outlines how Council
exhibits development applications. The CPP provides notification and engagement
requirementsforall planning matters, including -

Development Application (DA) determinations
Preparation of strategic plans

Otherrelevant planning policies
Decisonsmade by the Local Planning Panel.

The CPP reflects Council’'s community engagement objectives which we use to
guide our notification strategies when inviting the community to participate in local
planning.

Community Engagement

Community engagement ishow we reach out and encourage you, our community,
to talk with usabout the plans, projectsand policieswe develop on your behalf, for
the LGA. It isabout asking and listening to the community to help usmake decisions.
We recognise that the community hasan interest, and a right, to be informed about
planning mattersand given opportunitiesto participate in strategic planning for the
LGA.

Community Engagement isimportant, it -

* Informsdecison making

* Buildsrelationshipsand trust

« Strengthenscommunity

« Buildsa sense of belonging

« Keepsthe community informed.

Our commitment to community engagement is detailed in Councils Community
Engagement Policy. We are committed to the following principles for community
engagement -

e We aim to be flexible

« We willbe inclusive

« We believe community engagement isimportant forgood governance
« We aim to effectively plan each engagement

« We willgive you feedback.
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Public Exhibition

There are mandatory and non-mandatory consultation requirements for planning
matters that are to be publically exhibited. Mandatory requirements for community
participation are set out by Section 2.6 of the Environmental Planning & Assessment
Act 1979 (EP&A Act) and the Environmental Planning & Assessment Regulation 2000.
Thisincludes the minimum exhibition periods, public notification obligations and the
requirement to provide reasons for planning decisions made, such as for
development assessments.

Schedule 1 below containsthe minimum time that a matter must be exhibited for -

Minimum Community

Schedule 1 of the EP&A Act s .
Participation Requirement

Draft Community Participation Plans 28 days

Draft Local Srategic Planning Statements 28days

Planning ProposalsforLocal Envionmental 28 daysor—

Planssubject to a Gateway Determination a If a different period of public

exhibition isspecified in the gateway
determination forthe proposal —the
period so specified, or

b Ifthe gateway determination
specifiesthat no public exhibition is
required because of the minor nature
of the proposal — no public exhibition.

Draft Development Control Plansand 28 days
amendments
Draft Development Contribution Plansand 28 days
amendments

Application for Development Consent (other 14 daysor—

than for Complying Development Certificate, | a If a different period of public

for Designated Development or for Sate exhibition isspecified for the

Sgnificant Development) application in the relevant
community participation plan —the
period so specified, or

b Ifthe relevant community
participation plan specifiesthat no
public exhibition isrequired forthe
application —no public exhibition.

Application for Development Consent for 30days
Designated Development

Application for Modification of Development 14 daysor-

Consent that isrequired to be publicly The period (if any) determined by the

exhibited by the Regulations consent authority in accordance with
the relevant Community participation
plan.

Application for Development Consent for 28 days

Nominated Integrated Development and
threatened speciesdevelopment

Application for Development Consent for 14 days
Integrated Development

Environmental Impact Statement obtained 28 days
under Section 5.1
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The notification period for development applications is listed in Schedule 2, at the
end of thispolicy. Clause 17 in Schedule 1 to the EP&A Act statesthat if a particular
matter has a different exhibition or notification period that applies under Part 1 of
Schedule 1, the longerperiod applies.

If a planning matter needs to be exhibited, Council may do any, or all, of the
following -

« Make documentspublicly available

« Determine an appropriate exhibition timeframe (where non-mandatory)
*« Give notice to individualland owners/ occupiers

* Advertise the exhibition notice and advise how submissonscan be made
« Utilise social media

* Hold aninformation session orworkshop.

Plan Making and Strategic Planning

Council, via planning controls manages how most land in the LGA is used,
protected, or developed. This includes things like where new roads or buildings
should go, or how many houses can be built in a certain area. Development also
includes activities like holding a big event, running a business or demolishing a
building.

We have development controls to make sure buildings and public areas are safe,
welldesigned, and meet planning rulesset by the State Govemment.

When Council prepares a new policy, such as Planning Proposals, Local
Environmental Plans (LEPs), Development Control Plans (DCPs) and Development
Contributions Plans we will ssek comments from the community. The community will
also be consulted, in line with the EP&A Act, when Council seeksto amend a policy,
orrezone a parcelof land.

Development Applications

A Development Application isa formal request for consent to camy out a proposed
development, such aserecting a building, subdividing land, and or changing the
use of land.

Council is committed to listening to community concems that may arise from
Development Applications (DAs). We aim to ensure that all partiescan be confident
of an impartial, fair, and transparent assessment process.

DAs have different classifications and these determine the length of the notification
period: ranging from no exhibition or short exhibition for minor proposals and longer
exhibition periods for more complex DAs. The length of time a Development
Application is notified, if required, is specified in Schedule 2 at the end of thispolicy.
Schedule 3 lists Development Application types which do not require notification.
This is generally due to their minor nature. Development not mentioned in the
schedules will only be notified at the discretion of the responsble Assessing Officer,
or Area Manager.

There are types of development, such as Exempt and Complying, which do not
need to be notified by Council. They are assessed under various state policies and
not processed by Council.
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If a DA needsto be notified oradvertised, the applicant willbe charged a notification
fee,inaccordance with Counci'sadopted feesand charges.

Before you lodge a DA, we recommended that you discuss your proposal with
adjacent landowners. This allows any potential issuesto be discussed early on in the
process, and may allow some mattersto be addressed before the DA islodged.

Keeping You Informed

How you will be notified

Council will write to you if you are likely to be affected by a development
application, or policy. Thisincludes land owners, occupants, neighbours, businesses
and the general public. This is so everyone has a chance to raise any concerns,
provide support, make a comment or provide useful information before a planning
decisonismade.

Please note that exhibition timeframes vary in length. Some timeframes are
prescribed in legisation and others are at our discretion. The typical minimum
mandatory exhibition timeframes are provided in Schedule 1. Council is able to
extend a notification/exhibition timeframe for longer than the minimum, as
considered necessary.

1 Development Applications

If a complete DA is lodged, it will normally be notified within a few days of
lodgement. If more information isrequired from the applicant, the notification willbe
delayed until this information is received. Generally, written notification of an
application will be limited to directly adjoining property owners and occupants.
However, some notifications may extend beyond this to include those within the
immediate locality. For major applications, the notification area may be extended,
depending upon the nature and potential environmental impacts associated with
the proposal.

A Development Application may need to be re-notified, if during the assessment the
design changes substantially, or additional supporting information is supplied. The
decision to re-notify will be at the discretion of the responsible Assessing Officer and
Area Manager.

For certain DAs, correspondence may be forwarded to a public authority (i.e.
govermnment departments/ statutory authorities) from which formal concurrence or
approvalisrequired, orwhere Council seeks specialist advice on a particular part of
the application from that authority. If you think you should have been notified about
a DA, but did not receive a letter, please callusand let usknow.

Where a DA may, in the apinion of Council, affect property owners of land outside
Wollongong City Local Govemment Area (LGA), Council will contact the
neighbouring Council.

Where the Development Application has an associated Planning Agreement, the
Draft Planning Agreement will be reported to Council for endorsement and
exhibited fora minimum period of 28 days.
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If a Development Application is subject to an appeal in the NSW Land and
Environment Court (LEC), or if a refused DA is subject to a Review of Determination
via Section 8.2 of the EP&A Act, and you sent in a submission, you will be notified of
the application and the outcome.

Christmas Period

DAsreceived after close of business on the Friday before Christmas (25 December)
and before the second Monday in January will be placed on public exhibition for 31
days.

Forapplicationswhere the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000
stipulatesa maximum notification / advertising period, ie -

a Applicationsunder Section 8.2 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment
Act 1979 (Clause 113A of the Environmental Planning and Assessment
Regulation 2000), and

b Applicationsfor modification of development consent under Sections4.55 and
4.56 to which Clause 119 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment
Regulation 2000 applies.

Council will not commence this notification until the second Monday in January, the
following year.

2 Planning Proposals

A planning proposal isa request to change how land is zoned so certain types of
development can go ahead. When Council prepares or assesses a Planning
Proposal, the public will be notified as soon as possible, to measure community
interest. For minor proposals, the Planning Proposal may not be notified until Council
receivesthe Gateway Determination from the Department of Planning, Industry and
Environment. This will inform Council of the minimum level of consultation required.
The exhibition of new or amended Planning Proposal will not be started, or finish,
during school holidays.

Before submitting a Planning Proposal to Council, we recommend a proponent
discuss the planning proposal with adjacent landowners. This allows any potential
issues to be discussed early on in the process, and may allow some mattersto be
addressed before itisconsdered by Council.

A report on issues raised in submissons will be consdered by Council, following
exhibition. If you wrote a submission, Council will let you know the report datesand
resolutions. You may also have opportunity to address Councillors at Council
meetings, through a Public AccessForum.

Public hearingsmay be held for some Planning Proposals, such asthe reclassfication
of community land to operational land. Where the Planning Proposal has an
associated Planning Agreement, the Draft Planning Agreement will be reported to
Council forendorsement and exhibited fora minimum period of 28 days.

If there are significant changesto a Planning Proposal before it isadopted, and you
were originally notified or wrote to us, you will be notified of those changes. Minor
changesare unlikely to be re- notified. Secific detail on The Gateway Process and
the making of Local Environmental Plans can be found on the Depariment of
Planning and Envionment'swebste and in Council's Planning Proposal Policy.
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3  Planning Policies

Planning policies are prepared by Council to inform and guide development
decisons within the LGA, such as Development Control Plans. They are regularly
updated, and we generally invite the community to comment on new policies, or
changesto existing policies, before they are put into place. Notification may include
community surveys and workshops, or we may ask you to visit Council’s website,
review the documents and provide comment. We wil tailor community
engagement strategies in the lead up to notification and exhibition, to ensure a
targeted process.

When Council makes or amends a Planning Policy, the public will generally be
notified when the draft policy isready for public exhibition. The exhibition timeframe
depends on the type of document prepared or updated, as well as the level of
community interest. Schedule 1 lists the minimum mandatory timeframes for the
various planning functions. When we prepare some policies, we may seek
community input before the policy isdrafted, to ensure that the community hasthe
opportunity to help inform the plan. The exhibition of new or amended Planning
Policy will not be started, or finish, during school holidays.

Following exhibition of a draft policy, we will review all submissionsreceived and the
draft policy willbe updated to incorporate any relevant ornecessary changes.

When a new, oramended, planning policy isto be adopted this will be advised on
Council'swebsite.

How you can participate

Submissions — Have Your Say

Anyone with an interest in a planning matteriswelcome to make a submission, but
this has to be done in writing. If you’re objecting or supporting, you need to give a
clear reason why, e.g. how the proposed development impacts on you or your
property. We also encourage people to share postive suggestions or
recommendationsto improve the finaloutcome.

Submissions are public documents, and other people can view them on request, so
make sure you read ourprivacy statement before you comment.

You are required to tell usif you have made a reportable political donation or gift. It
isan offence not to disclose relevant information under the Environmental Planning
and Assessment Act 1979. It isalso an offence to make a false disclosure statement.
Under the Local Govermment Act 1993, submissons must be made available for
public inspection and will not remain confidential. If you wish to suppress personal
details within your submission, a statutory declaration must be completed along with
a request to suppress the information. These requests are considered and
determined in accordance with the Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act
1998.
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All submissions received within the notification period will be considered when the
notification period finishes. Comments on social media will not be treated as
submissions. Any of the following methodsof submission are acceptable -

* Personal delivery
Council's Customer Service Centre, Ground Hoor Administration Building,
41 Burelli Sreet Wollongong, between 9am and 5pm weekdays;

¢ Post
Locked Bag 8821, Wollongong, NSV 2500
¢ E-mail

council@wollongong.nsw.gov.au

* On-line
A submission may be made foreach exhibited application directly via the
online Application tracking page

Submissions must be received by close of business on the last day of the notification
period and include the following information -

a Addressed to the GENERALMANAGER

Application Numberand location, orpolicy name

Addressof the property; subject of the application

Youraddress; (so we can inform you of the outcome)

Date of submission

State the reasonsforsupport orobjection expressed in the submission. You

may include mapsand photos

g Solutionsto issuesorsuggestionsforwaysthe planscould be amended to
provide a betteroutcome

h Reply postaladdressand daytime contact telephone number.

0o aonoo

In certain circumstances, the relevant Area Manager may approve an extension to
the closing date for submissions. However, extensions will generally only occurwhen it
is consdered reasonable that more time be permitted. This may be to allow
stakeholders the opportunity to thoroughly review the proposal and any
accompanying specialist report(s), prior to making any submission. Such extensions
willappearon the relevant website.

Where you can view proposals on notification

If you're a neighbour of a proposal that needsto be notified, we will send you a letter
that explainshow you can review the relevant documents.

Foreveryone else, you can find information about itemson exhibition and that are
open forcomment via the following -

« The View an Application page on ourwebsite

¢ Council'sHave Your Say online community engagement site

¢ Council'sCustomer Service Centre, Ground Foor Administration Building, 41
Burelli Street Wollongong, between 9am and 5pm weekdays

e Forsome DAs information may be available in yournearest library branch.
e Current LEP Proposalson The Department of Planning website
e Newspaper (Designated development only)
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Responding

When we receive your submission, we will write to you confirming that it has been
received, within 14 days. If there are numerous names on the submission, orit is a
petition, we will send the letter to the head signatory. This letter will not respond to
any issuesraised in the submission.

If a proposalisamended while itisbeing considered, any person who hasexpressed
written interest in the application may be contacted about the amendments. Thisis
at the Assessing Officer/Area Manager's discretion. Minor amendments are
generally not re-notified.

All submissons received within the notification period wil be consdered, and
referenced in the relevant report. If a submission is received after the closing date
specified, it may not possible to consider it in the assessment. Individual replies to
questionsraised in submissionscannot be guaranteed.

Decisions

All Development Determinations and Assessment Reports are available on Council's
website. If you were notified about a DA, or you wrote a submission, you will be
contacted advising the decision made. We will also tell you where you can review
the reasonsforthe decision, and how submissionswere taken into account.

Decisionsmade by the Wollongong Local Planning Panel and the Southern Regional
Planning Panel are available on their respective web pages If you made a
submission, oraddressed the panel, you will be notified of the decision. You can also
view the decision, assessment report and panel commentary on the respective web
pages.

Planning proposalscan be tracked on The Department of Planning’s online tracking
system.
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Schedule 2 - Notification Requirements Matrix

LEGEND NOTES -

v Notification / Consultation required
X Notification / Consultation not required
e At the discretion of the Area Development Manager

Written notice Notification Period
Written to (Calendar Days
Development Description notice to Neighbouring commencing on the
p P Adjoining Land in day after first notice
Land Proximity to the published in the
Site notification letter)
Development involving a varation to a 7 7 14 Days
development standard
Designated Development 7 v 30 Days
Nominated Integrated Development v 7 30 Days
Integrated 7 s 14 Days
Advertisng Sructures/ Sgns / v 14 Days
Agriculture v . 14 Days
Amusement Centres i v 14 Days
Ancillary structureslessthan 0.9m from sde v/ G 14 Days
and rearproperty boundaries.
Animal Boarding or Training Establishment v 7/ 14 Days

Any structuresencroaching on building v . 14 Days
alignment (front, rearorsecondary for
caomer allotments)

Any application associated with/or without v . 14 Days
a Building Certificate seeking to legitimise

ilegal works

Attached Dwellings & . 14 Days
Boarding Houses v v 14 Days
Boat building and repairfacilities s . 14 Days
Boat Launching Ramps s . 14 Days
Boat Sheds v . 14 Days
Brothels (Sex Service s Premises) s s 14 Days
BusinessPremises v . 14 Days
Camping Grounds v v 14 Days
CarParks v s 14 Days
Caravan Parks s v 14 Days
Cemetenes v v 14 Days
Centre-based Child Care Facilities v v 14 Days
Charter and tourism boating facilities v 7 14 Days
Commercial Premises v v 14 Days
Community Facilities v v 14 Days
Crematoria v 7 14 Days
Drainage Works/ Food Mitigation Works v . 14 Days
Dual Occupancies v . 14 Days
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Written notice to

Notification Period

n‘::ii::r:o Neighbouring (Calendar Days
Development Description Adjoining I:al_Td in commencin.g on ﬂ“‘: day
Land Proximity to the| after first notice published
Site in the notification letter)
Dwelling-houes (where not specified in v . 14 Days
Schedule 3)
MNew dwelling-housesregardlessof sde setback
Alterations & additionsto existing dwelling-
houses
Earthworks (Excavation or Land Flling Works) v . 14 Days
Educational Establishments v v 14 Days
Emergency Service Facilities v . 14 Days
Entertainment Facilities v v 14 Days
Environmental facilities v 4 14 Days
Environmental Protection Works v . 14 Days
Exhibition Homes & Exhibition Vilages v . 14 Days
Extractive Industries v 4 14 Days
Farm Buildings 4 X 14 Days
Forestry v . 14 Days
Function Centres v v 14 Days
Group Homes v v 14 Days
Helipad v v 14 Days
Heliport (or Air Transport Facilities) v v 14 Days
Health ServicesFacility or Consulting Rooms v v 14 Days
Heavy Industrial Sorage Establishments v . 14 Days
Home-based Child Care v . 14 Days
Home Business v . 14 Days
Hospitals (where Council isthe consent v v 14 Days
authority)
Hostels v v 14 Days
Industrial Retail Qutlet v [] 14 Days
Industrial Training Facility v . 14 Days
Industries v v 14 Days
Information and Education Facilities v v 14 Days
Intensive Livestock Agriculture v v 14 Days
Intensive Plant Agriculture 4 v 14 Days
Light Industries v < 14 Days
Markets v v 14 Days
Medical Centres v v 14 Days
Multi-Dwelling Housing v v 14 Days
Mixed Use Development v v 14 Days
Neighbourhood Shops v v 14 Days
Office Premises 4 . 14 Days
Open Cut Mining v v 14 Days
Passenger Transport Facilities v v 14 Days
Placesof Public Waorship v v 14 Days

10
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Written notice to

Notification Period

““Bit];i::t:]:o Neighbouring (Calendar Days
Development Description Adjoining |:-=ll.1d in commencin'g on th(’: day
Land Proximity to the| after first notice published
Site in the notification letter)
Port Facilities v 14 Days
Public Administration Buildings v . 14 Days
Public Utility Undertakings v . 14 Days
Pubsand Registered Clubs v v 14 Days
Recreation Areas v . 14 Days
Recreation Facilties (Indoor) v v 14 Days
Recreation Facilities (Major) v v 14 Days
Recreation Facilities (Outdoor) v v 14 Days
Resdential Aat Buildings v v 14 Days
Respite Day Care Centres v . 14 Days
Resdiricted Premises v v 14 Days
Rural Supplies v . 14 Days
Rural Industries v . 14 Days
Secondary Dwellings v . 14 Days
Semi-detached Dwellings v . 14 Days
Seniors Housing / Residential Care Facilities v . 14 Days
Service Sation v v 14 Days
Shop Top Housing v . 14 Days
Storage Premises v . 14 Days
Subdivison v v 14 Days
Swimming Poolswith a setback from any sde or v . 14 Days
rear property boundary lessthan 800mm
Svimming Poolslocated lessthan 3m from
any sidegrrearproperty bounda.rywith a v o 14 Days
pool coping greaterthan 0.3m wide and a
height greaterthan 0.6m above natural
ground level.
Fecommunicalonss ad- ’ ‘
Temparary Usesof Land v . 14 Days
Tourist and Vistor Accommodation v v 14 Days
Transport Depot v v 14 Days
Vehicle Body Repair Shop v v 14 Days
Vehicle Repair Sation v v 14 Days
Veterinary Hospitals v v 14 Days
Warehouse or Distribution Centre v . 14 Days
Waste or Resource Management Facility v v 14 Days
Waste or Resource Transfer Sation v v 14 Days
Water Recreation Sructures v v 14 Days
Water Supply System v v 14 Days
Wholesale Supplies v . 14 Days

11

294
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Schedule 3 - Applications for which notification / advertising is not required

The following applicationswill not be notified -

1
2

10

11

12

13

14

15
16

17
18
19

20

Activity Applicationsunder section 68 of the Local Government Act 1993

Alterations to a building that are internal only and are not visible from any adjoining
property

Minor amendments to undetermined Development Applications which are, in the
opinion of Council, unlikely to impact any adjoining property.

Ancillary structureswith —

a A maximum height of 3.5m above natural ground level
b A maximum wall/eave height of 2.7 m above naturalground levland a minimum
0.9m setback from any side orrearproperty boundary.

Applications where insufficient information has been provided with the application, or
Section 4.55 Applicationswhich are to be refused forthat reason

Balconies, decks, patios, terracesorverandahswhich are greaterthan 3m from side and
rearproperty boundariesand lessthan 1m in height from natural ground level.

Building Certificate applications
Bushfire hazard reduction work
Businessidentification signage applications

Change of use of premises from a commercial office to another commercial office or
shop; shop to anothershop orcommercial office; light industry to light industry

Community events camied out by or on behalf of Council on Council owned or
controlled land fora maximum 5 daysduration and an anticipated attendance of less
than 100 people

Complying development as refered to in either: Schedule 3 of Wollongong Local
Environmental Plan 2009 or a Sate Policy

Demolition works for any building or structure (except where the demolition work is
proposed upon a site which contains an item of envionmental heritage or the ste is
within a Heritage Conservation Area)

Exempt development as referred to in either: Schedule 2 of Wollongong Local
Environmental Plan 2009, State Environmental Planning Policy orany State Code.

First use of an approved light industry building; warehouse distribution building.

Innovation Campusdevelopment proposalswhich are consistent with the Wollongong
Innovation CampusMasterPlan asapproved by Council.

Kiosk id entified within any Plan of Management fora specific public reserve.
Manufactured home placement within an approved manufactured home estate.

Modification of development consent under Section 4.55 (1) of the Environmental
Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (i.e. modifications involving the proposed correction
of a minor error, misdescription or miscalculation only).

Modification of a development consent under Section 4.55 (1A) of the Environmental
Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (i.e. minimal envionmental impact) and where it
involvesone of following scenarios-

a Intemal alterations and / or additions to a dwelling-house or semi-detached
dwelling,and

b Minorextemal changeswhich, in the opinion of Council, willnot cause any adverse
impact upon any adjoining properties.

12
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21 Moveable dwelling installation or placement upon a site within an approved caravan
park (excluding any camping ground site).

22 Rainwatertankswhich —
i Have a maximum storage capacity of 20,000 litres
i Amaximum 3.5m height above natural ground leveland
i Arelocated atleast 3 metresfrom any side orrearproperty boundary.

23 Section 4.55 modification that was previously notified and the amendment to the
application differs only in @ minor nature and in the opinion of Council is unlikely to
cause any adverse impact upon any adjoining property.

24 Sngle storey dwelling-houses with a setback of at least 0.9m from any side or rear
property boundary.

25 dngle storey Dwelling-houses alterations or additions with a minimum setback from any
side orrearproperty boundary at orgreaterthan 0.9m.

26 Two Sorey Dwelling-houses, with a setback greater than 1.5m from any side or rear
property boundary.

27 Solar heating or photovoltaic cells on the roof of any residential dwelling, commercial
office building orindustrial building.

28 Strata subdivision of an existing or approved development, except where the building is
affected by the operation of State Environmental Planning Policy No. 10 — Retention of
Low Cost Rental Accommodation.

29 Torrenstitle subdivision of an existing or previously approved development.

30 Torrens title subdivision involving minor boundary adjustments which are not exempt
development.

31 Tree Management Orders(TMOs).

13
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File: PR-005.04.80.017 Doc: 1C19/459

THIRROUL SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB INC - REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF FEES FOR
LICENCE AGREEMENT

ITEM 11

A request has been received from Thirroul Surf Life Saving Club Inc to waive fees payable in respect of
a proposed licence agreement for the occupation of the Crown land by the Club. This request is
submitted for Council’s determination.

RECOMMENDATION

The fees payable in respect of the proposed licence agreement, being the preparation of lease and
licence agreements fee and the licence fee (payable annually), not be waived.

REPORT AUTHORISATIONS

Report of: Lucielle Power, Manager Property + Recreation (Acting)
Authorised by:  Kerry Hunt, Director Community Services - Creative and Innovative City

ATTACHMENTS

There are no attachments for this report.

BACKGROUND

Council has received a request from Thirroul Surf Life Saving Club Inc [the Club] to waive the annual
Community and Sporting Group Licence Fee and Licence Preparation Fee in relation to its licence
agreement for Council’s surf club located on Crown land known as part Thirroul (R89099) Trust.

Council has been working with each of the surf life saving clubs in our local government area to finalise
all lease arrangements on land owned and managed by Council, including Crown land. Council has
worked rigorously over a number of years with external stakeholders, including extensive consultation
with Surf Life Saving lllawarra and Surf Life Saving New South Wales [SLSNSW] to finalise a template
surf club draft lease acceptable to all parties. This template is now finalised and several surf clubs within
our local government area have been granted 21 year lease tenures.

Council has progressed leases/licences with eight of the 17 surf clubs to date. Of the leases that have
been finalised, seven of the eight surf clubs have agreed to payment of the fees as per Council’s Fees
and Charges. The exception relates to Wollongong City Surf Lifesaving Club who only occupies a small
percentage of the total floor space of the building and contributes to outgoings on a pro rata basis. The
remaining nine surf clubs are currently under negotiation and will be required to pay the fees as per
Council’'s Fees and Charges. Negotiations to date have not encountered any objection to the payment of
these fees with the exception of Thirroul Surf Life Saving Club.

On 1 July 2018, the way in which Council administered the control and management of its Crown
reserves, including the land upon which the Thirroul Surf Life Saving Club is constructed, was
significantly altered. As part of these changes, Council is required to adopt appropriate plans of
management in accordance with the legislation. These must be adopted prior to the granting of most
leases and licences, including the 21 year surf club lease. An exception to this is Section 2.20 of the
Crown Lands Management Act 2016 which permits certain short term licences whilst plans of
management are being developed. This short term licence for a 12 month period is currently being
developed whilst Council is continuing to prepare and finalise the draft plan of management affecting the
Crown reserve to which the Club currently operates. Once finalised Council will have the ability to grant
the preferred 21 year lease.

There is a development application active in respect of the premises. The development application
requires owner’s consent. Council, as Crown Land Manager, can issue owner’s consent pursuant to the
Crown Land Management Act 2016 (enacted 1 July 2018), however subject to Council’s policies cannot
do so until the licence agreement is executed. Extensive correspondence has been entered into with the
Club to clarify this position.
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SLSNSW has recently been recognised as an emergency service as has been the case with majority of
the state based surf life saving bodies nationally. SLSNSW remains a not-for-profit organisation and has
not become a government agency. There is largely no material change to operations, other than some
potential additional support services being offered. Where additional services are required to support
other organisations outside of the core role as surf lifesavers, additional resources will be requested to
undertake this. It should be noted that being recognised as an approved emergency service does not
alter the Club’s status under Council’'s Community and Sporting Group Rentals Policy and therefore
Council’'s Fees and Charges would apply. SLSNSW will remain a not-for-profit organisation and is not
becoming a government agency and as such there is neither mandate nor expectation on clubs to
deliver emergency support services 24/7 as this remains on an opt-in basis. As per the policy, any
variation to these fees and charges requires a report to Council for determination.

PROPOSAL
Thirroul Surf Life Saving Club on 6 May 2019 requested a waiver of fees on the grounds that -

« It is now recognised as an approved emergency service and training agent by the Federal
Government

»  Other surf life saving clubs have not paid the licence fees and licence preparation fees.

The Club also raised concerns that its development application was being delayed from processing until
signing of the agreement.

By way of response, the Club was advised by Council that -

* Alicence agreement does need to be in place to not only secure tenure for the Club but for Council,
as Crown Land Manager, to comply with its legislative requirements. Once the licence is executed
then owner’s consent can be issued in respect of the development application. This response is
consistent with both the Surf Lifesaving Building Management Policy and the Community and
Sporting Group Rentals Policy

*  Other surf clubs have paid the community and sporting group licence fee and the licence
preparation fee in relation to their licence agreements once the agreements have been finalised.
There are some agreements which are yet to be finalised however will be subject to the fees and
charges as conditions of their respective leases.

Whilst the change in legislation notes SLSNSW as an emergency service, the Club occupying the
premises fundamentally remains a not-for-profit organisation and therefore should still be considered
under this policy.

The Club was advised that the waiver of fees would be considered on the information provided to date
and, whilst Council has internal processes to follow and adhere to, we do not seek to tie up the
development application process with this matter as it may take some time. Council requested the Club
to proceed with the licence proposal in its original form and that the waiver of the fees would be
considered as a separate matter. In the event the request for waiver of fees was successful, Council
would apply this retrospectively and, if applicable, a refund will be raised. This approach will ensure the
development application process can progress without impediment. The Club chose not to abide by this
recommendation.

The Club was also informed that, pursuant to the Community and Sporting Group Rentals Policy, any
request from an organisation to pay an alternative amount other than that stipulated in Council’s Fees
and Charges will be formally reported to Council for determination.

In an effort to minimise disturbance to the Club’s operations, Council officers are continuing to liaise with
the Club to work towards a mutually acceptable resolution in respect of the terms and conditions in the
licence proposal.
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Thirroul Surf Life Saving Club representatives in respect of the proposal for a licence agreement and the
request by the Club for waiver of fees

SLSNSW in the development of the agreed document including payment of the applicable fees in
accordance with the adopted fees and charges

Recreation Services

Legal Services
PLANNING AND POLICY IMPACT
This report contributes to the delivery of Our Wollongong 2028 goal “Participation in recreational and

lifestyle activities is increased”.

It specifically delivers on core business activities as detailed in the Service Plan 2019-20 - ‘Provide
statutory services to appropriately manage and maintain our public spaces’.

Two adopted policies relevant to this report are -

e  Community and Sporting Group Rentals Council Policy

e Surf Life Saving Buildings Management Policy

The payment of the licence fee and the licence preparation fee are standard charges required to be
made to Council pursuant to the Community and Sporting Group Rentals Council Policy.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Council’s adopted Fees and Charges for 2019/2020 include charges for -

e Preparation of Lease and Licence Agreements (Community and Sporting Groups) $182.00

e Licence Fee (payable annually) $705.00

If this waiver is applied consistently for other surf clubs and community groups it could result in a
significant reduction in income to Council noting the amount of surf clubs and community groups
occupying Council owned land throughout the local government area.

CONCLUSION

Council acknowledges the valuable contribution made to the community by the Club, its members and
volunteers. In good faith and in an effort to minimise disturbance to the Club’s operations, Council
officers will continue to negotiate with the Club to achieve a mutually agreeable resolution in respect of
the terms and conditions in the licence.

As the fees are adopted by Council and incorporated in our fees and charges, the request for the waiver
of the annual licence fee and the licence preparation fee is submitted to Council for determination.

The requirement for the payment of these fees has been applied to other surf life saving clubs that are
now under lease/licence agreement. If a determination was made to waive the above fees, other surf
clubs and community groups may request consistency across the board and request that these fees also
be waived for their respective clubs. If this were to occur, it could result in a loss of income of the
preparation fee for each surf club as well as a loss of the annual licence fee per surf club.
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File: LCS-015.116 Doc: IC19/555

PUBLIC EXHIBITION PROPOSED FEES AND CHARGES 2019/20 - BALGOWNIE
VILLAGE COMMUNITY CENTRE

ITEM 12

This report provides advice on the outcome of the exhibition of fees and charges for the hire of
Balgownie Village Community Centre and seeks Council approval to adopt these for the 2019/2020
financial year.

Balgownie Village Community Centre is returning to Council’s management as the community group that
has managed the facility on behalf of Council since 1992 has rescinded its licence.

RECOMMENDATION

Council adopt the Balgownie Village Community Centre Fees and Charges for 2019/2020.

REPORT AUTHORISATIONS

Report of: Jenny Thompson, Manager Library and Community Services
Authorised by:  Kerry Hunt, Director Community Services - Creative and Innovative City

ATTACHMENTS

1 Balgownie Village Community Centre - Proposed Fees and Charges 2019/20
2 Engagement Report - Balgownie Village Community Centre - Fees and Charges - 2019/20

BACKGROUND

Balgownie Village Community Centre Inc. (BVCCinc) has managed Balgownie Village Community
Centre (BVCC) under a licence agreement with Wollongong City Council since 1992.

On 24 June 2019 Council was informed by BVCCinc of its decision to cease operations as of
30 September 2019 due to the management committee’s inability to continue. BVCCinc will hand back
the licence to manage BVCC as of this date. Council will commence management of hall hire/bookings
from 1 September 2019 enabling the committee to wind up the organisation during this period.

CURRENT SITUATION

To assist in the smooth transition of management, a communications strategy has been developed and
regular hirers have been informed by BVCCinc. of its decision to hand back the licence. Council’s
Community Facilities Team has also contacted regular hirers to reassure them their bookings will be
honoured and meetings were held with these individuals and groups in August 2019 to discuss the
changes at the centre.

The proposed fees for hire of BVCC have been benchmarked against other, similarly sized, rooms within
the Council community facilities portfolio, taking into consideration building condition and levels of
utilisation.

On 30 July 2019, Executive endorsed the public exhibition of the proposed fees and charges for hire of
BVCC for a period of 28 days.

The proposed fees were placed on public exhibition for a period of 28 days concluding on
4 September 2019. No submissions were received during the exhibition period.

PROPOSAL

Council adopt the scheduled fees and charges for hire of the Balgownie Village Community Centre Fees
and Charges - 2019/2020.
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Finance Division regarding the process for adoption of fees and charges

Existing hirers of Balgownie Village Community Centre

The proposed fees and charges were placed on public exhibition for a period of 28 days commencing
7 August 2019. During this period there were 20 visits to Council's Have Your Say website, the
document was downloaded eight times and nil submissions were received.

PLANNING AND POLICY IMPACT

This report contributes to the delivery of Our Wollongong 2028 goal “Wollongong is a creative and
vibrant city”. Strategy 3.3.1 - Provide access for communities to quality local spaces and places to meet,
share and celebrate.

It specifically delivers on core business activities as detailed in the Community Facilities Service Plan
2019-20.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Adoption of the proposed fees and charges for hire of Balgownie Village Community Centre will provide
income to Council which will assist in defraying the operating costs of the facility.

CONCLUSION

The proposed fees and charges have been on public exhibition for a period of 28 days. As no comments
or feedback have been received, it is recommended Council adopt these fees and charges for the
2019/2020 financial year.



V./ Ordinary Meeting of Council

wollongong Iltem 12 - Attachment 1 - Balgownie Village Community Centre - Proposed Fees 23 September 2019 302
and Charges 2019/20

Attachment 1

Balgownie Village Community Centre
Proposed Fees

2019/20
Fee Name Pricing GST | Amount incl
Structure Y/N GST
Code

COMMUNITY FACILITIES — BALGOWNIE
VILLAGE COMMUNITY CENTRE
HALL/ANNEXE
Hourly rate — Function Sub Y 40.00
Hourly rate — Non Profit Sub Y 10.00
Hourly rate — Other Sub Y 19.00
CWA ROOM
Hourly rate — Function Sub Y 33.00
Hourly rate — Non Profit Sub Y 8.50
Hourly rate — Other Sub Y 16.50
OFFICE
Hourly rate — Other Sub Y 8.00
Half Day rate — Other (9am — 1pm, 1pm — Sub Y 16.00
5pm).
Full Day rate — Other (9am — 5pm). Sub Y 26.50
Hourly rate — Non Profit Sub Y 7.00
Half Day rate — Non Profit (9am — 1pm, 1pm Sub Y 13.00
— 5pm).
Full Day rate — Non Profit (9am — 5pm). Sub Y 20.50
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Attachment 2

Engagement Report
Balgownie Village Community Centre Fees and Charges - 2019/2020

Projects av B o6Aug19-04Sep'1s v TSI

SELECTED PROJECTS: "Balgownie Community Centre - Proposed fees and charges”

TRAFFIC

i Highlights
H g rom OB Aug'1a 1004 Sep'Ll DAILY  MONTHLY
= | I
20 T
1 i

— Pageviews Visitors

* Seiect s secticn ofthe rach o zoom

23 September 2019

&8 pownload Report
+
I
0
|
18

303



N 304

wollongong
ity of innovation

File: FI-230.01.480 Doc: 1C19/511

RIS KA TENDER T18/46 PROVISION OF DESIGN AND TECHNICAL SERVICES TO COUNCIL

Council’s existing Design and Technical Services panel, which is now nearing expiry, was established to
provide a list of consultants which have been assessed, are engaged under Council contract, and could
be called upon by Council during periods of high workload which exceed the internal capacity of Council
or when the provision of specialist services is required.

This report recommends acceptance of a tender for the Provision of Design and Technical Services to
Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1993 and the Local
Government (General) Regulation 2005. Twenty (20) panels of specialist disciplines in design and
technical services will be engaged for a period of one year with four options for extensions of one year
each, with such extensions exercisable at Council’s sole discretion.

RECOMMENDATION

1 In accordance with clause 178(1)(a) of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005, Council
accept the tenders shown below in Tables A — T for the Provision of Design and Technical Services
to Council for a period of one year with the option to extend annually for a further four years at the
sole discretion of Council.

2  Council delegate to the General Manager the authority to finalise and execute the contract and any
other documentation required to give effect to this resolution.

3  Council grant authority for the use of the Common Seal of Council on the contract and any other
documentation, should it be required, to give effect to this resolution.

REPORT AUTHORISATIONS

Report of: Glenn Whittaker, Manager Project Delivery
Authorised by:  Andrew Carfield, Director Infrastructure + Works

ATTACHMENTS

There are no attachments for this report.

BACKGROUND

Council uses a range of consultant design and technical services to supplement its internal design
resources to design and investigate Council’s infrastructure projects. Council has an increasing demand
for various specialist disciplines of design consultants due to the increase in both the number and
complexity of the projects in the future infrastructure delivery program. The establishment of panels
creates a list of preapproved consultants in identified disciplines, with Council contracts in place, at
competitive prices while reducing the lead time for engagement of consultant teams.

A previous panel of consultants (T14/16) has operated successfully since July 2015 and is now in its last
year of optional extension and requires a refresh due to a number of changes in the consultant field. This
new panel will commence operation in December 2019 and includes additional specialist disciplines. In
addition, the panel has been refined to now include a reserve list for each discipline to enable a simple
method of refreshing the panel if consultants merge, cease trading or do not perform satisfactorily.

Tenders were invited for this project by the open tender method with a close of tenders of 10.00 am on
4 June 2019.
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One hundred and ninety-eight (198) tenders were received by the close of tenders. The Tender
Assessment Panel determined that ten (10) of the tenders were non-compliant and not able to be further
assessed. The remaining tenders have been scrutinised and assessed by a Tender Assessment Panel
constituted in accordance with Council’'s Procurement Policies and Procedures and comprising
representatives of the Project Delivery, Finance, Governance and Customer Service and Infrastructure
Strategy and Planning Divisions.

The Tender Assessment Panel assessed all tenders in accordance with the following assessment
criteria and weightings as set out in the formal tender documents:

Mandatory Criteria

1 Satisfactory references from referees for previous projects of similar size and scope

2 Agreement to specification requirements

Assessable Criteria
1 Cost to Council — 25%
2 Demonstrated strengthening of the local economic capacity — 5%

3 Demonstrated experience and satisfactory performance in providing consultant services of a similar
size and scope (including past experience with Council) — 50%

4  Staff qualifications and experience — 20%

The assessment of cost to Council was based on a typical project undertaken by Council which took into
account a range of hourly rates, travelling and other costs.

The mandatory assessment criteria have been met by the recommended tenderers.

The Tender Assessment Panel utilised a weighted scoring method for the assessment of tenders which
allocates a numerical score out of 5 in relation to the level of compliance offered by the tenders to each
of the assessment criteria as specified in the tender documentation. The method then takes into account
pre-determined weightings for each of the assessment criteria which provides for a total score out of 5 to
be calculated for each tender. The tender with the highest total score is considered to be the tender that
best meets the requirements of the tender documentation in providing best value to Council. Following
the above analysis, it is recommended that the twenty (20) tender panels be established for the provision
of design and technical services as per the recommendation to this report.

PROPOSAL

Council should authorise the establishment of twenty (20) tender panels for the provision of design and
technical services in accordance with the technical specification developed.

The recommended tenderers have satisfied the Tender Assessment Panel that they are capable of
undertaking the consulting works to Council’'s standards and in accordance with the technical
specification.

Referees nominated by the recommended tenderer have been contacted by the
Tender Assessment Panel and expressed satisfaction with the standard of work and methods of
operation undertaken on their behalf.

CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION

1 Members of the Tender Assessment Panel

2 Nominated Referees
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PLANNING AND POLICY IMPACT
This report contributes to the delivery of Our Wollongong 2028 goal 5 “We have a healthy community in

a liveable city”.

It specifically delivers on core business activities as detailed in the Infrastructure Planning and Support
Service Plan 2019-20.

RISK ASSESSMENT

The risk in accepting the recommendation of this report is considered low on the basis that the tender
process has fully complied with Council’s Procurement Policies and Procedures and the Local
Government Act 1993.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

It is proposed that the individual design or technical service costs be funded from the project allocation
within the appropriate Council Budget when that service is provided.

CONCLUSION

The establishment of the design consultant panels will ensure competitive pricing is obtained and
reduces the timeframes involved in tendering individual projects.

Council should endorse the recommendations of this report.

Summary of Results of Tender Assessment and Ranking of Tenders

TABLE A — SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT — Multidisciplinary Design (Civil)

Panel Contractors

Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty Ltd
SMEC Australia Pty Ltd

Calibre Professional Services Pty Ltd
GHD Pty Ltd

J. Wyndham Prince Pty Ltd

Advisian Pty Ltd

Reserve Panel Contractors
Murphy Udayan Group Pty Ltd trading as MU Group Consulting Pty Ltd

Cardno (NSW/ACT) Pty Ltd
Beca Pty Ltd

TABLE B — SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT — Multidisciplinary (Buildings & Architecture)

Small/medium projects (estimated construction cost up to $2 million)

Panel Contractors

Tilment Pty Ltd T/A Edmiston Jones

Z and M Popovic Architects and Heritage Consultants trading as ZMP Architects and Heritage Consultants
Lacoste + Stevenson Pty Ltd trading as Lacoste + Stevenson Architects

Elemental Architecture Pty Ltd trading as Sam Crawford Architects

BKA Architecture Pty Ltd

JPA & D Australia Pty Ltd

Choi Ropiha Fighera Pty Ltd

BHI Architects Pty Ltd

Regional Workshop Pty Ltd trading as Webber Architects
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TABLE B — SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT -
Multidisciplinary (Buildings & Architecture) (Continued)

Small/medium projects (estimated construction cost up to $2 million)
Reserve Panel Contractors

Thomson Adsett Pty Ltd

CCG Architects Pty Ltd

GHD Pty Ltd

Borst and Co Architecture Pty Ltd

Conybeare Morrison International Pty Ltd trading as CM+
Figgis Jefferson Tepa Pty Ltd

Collins and Turner Pty Ltd

Lucktime Pty Ltd trading as Imagescape Design Studio Pty Ltd
Wesley Hindmarch trading as Local Architect South Coast
Archer Office Pty Ltd

Nordon Jago Architects Pty Ltd

Studio Takt Pty Ltd trading as Takt Studio for Architecture
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TABLE C — SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT — Multidisciplinary (Buildings & Architecture)

Medium/large projects (greater than estimated construction cost $1million)

Panel Contractors

Lacoste + Stevenson Pty Ltd trading as Lacoste + Stevenson Architects
Thomson Adsett Pty Ltd

Tilment Pty Ltd trading as Edmiston Jones

NBRS and Partners Pty Ltd

Brewster Hjorth Pty Ltd trading as Brewster Hjorth Architects

Reserve Panel Contractors

CCG Architects Pty Ltd

Michael Davies Architecture Pty Ltd
Terroir Pty Ltd

Choi Ropiha Fighera Pty Ltd
Stewart Architecture Pty Ltd
Hames Sharley Pty Ltd
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TABLE D — SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT - Civil Design

Panel Contractors

Indesco South Coast Pty Ltd trading as Indesco Pty Ltd
Footprint (NSW) Pty Ltd

J. Wyndham Prince Pty Ltd

Shire Civil Design

Barker Ryan Stewart Pty Ltd

Cardno (NSW/ACT) Pty Ltd

Reserve Panel Contractors

Talis Consultants Pty Ltd

Murphy Udayan Group Pty Ltd trading as MU Group Consulting Pty Ltd
Group Development Services Pty Ltd

AT&L Associates Pty Ltd

CHRISP Consulting Pty Ltd

Warren Smith and Partners Pty Ltd as Trustee for W S Partners Unit Trust
Sabai Consulting Pty Ltd

TABLE E —- SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT - Structural Design

Panel Contractors

SMEC Australia Pty Ltd

Cardno (NSW/ACT) Pty Ltd

Advisian Pty Ltd

Bonacci Group (NSW) Pty Ltd

GHD Pty Ltd

Westlake Punnett and Associates Pty Ltd
Jones Nicholson Pty Ltd

Northrop Consulting Engineers Pty Ltd

Reserve Panel Contractors

ROC Engineering Design Pty Ltd

Murphy Udayan Group Pty Ltd trading as MU Group Consulting Pty Ltd

Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty Ltd

Meinhardt Australia Pty Ltd

Tonkin Consulting Pty Ltd

Taylor Thomson Whitting (NSW) Pty Ltd as Trustee for the Taylor Thomson Whitting NSW Trust
Leckring Pty Ltd trading as MIEngineers
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TABLE F - SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT - Hydraulic Design

(includes Sydney Water Service Coordinator)

Panel Contractors

Arrow Consulting Engineers Pty Ltd

Meinhardt Australia Pty Ltd

Erbas and Associates Pty Ltd

Jones Nicholson Pty Ltd

GHD Pty Ltd

ACOR Consultants Pty Ltd

Warren Smith and Partners Pty Ltd as Trustee for W S Partners Unit Trust
SCP Consulting Pty Ltd

NDY Management Pty Limited trading as Norman Disney & Young
Integral Group Consulting Engineers Pty Ltd

LandTeam Australia Pty Ltd

Northrop Consulting Engineers Pty Ltd

KF Williams and associates Pty Ltd

Building Services Engineers Pty Ltd

Cardno (NSW/ACT) Pty Ltd

Reserve Panel Contractors

SMEC Australia Pty Ltd
VOS Group Pty Ltd

TABLE G - SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT — Mechanical Design

Panel Contractors

Barry C Smith and Associates Pty Ltd

Cardno (NSW/ACT) Pty Ltd

NDY Management Pty Ltd trading as Norman Disney & Young
Arrow Consulting Engineers Pty Ltd

Crowley Consulting Pty Ltd

GHD Pty Ltd

TABLE G - SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT — Mechanical Design (Continued)
Reserve Panel Contractors

EPES Pty Ltd trading as EPES Consulting Engineers
Rapley Consulting Engineers Pty Ltd

Erbas and Associates Pty Ltd

ACOR Consultants Pty Ltd

Building Services Engineers Pty Ltd

Meinhardt Australia Pty Ltd

Jones Nicholson Pty Ltd
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TABLE H - SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT - Electrical Design

Panel Contractors

Paul Anthony Electrical Pty Ltd

ARA Electrical High Voltage Services Pty Ltd
SMEC Australia Pty Ltd

GHD Pty Ltd

Barry C Smith and Associates Pty Ltd
Cardno (NSW/ACT) Pty Ltd

Edwards U Pty Ltd trading as Ausconnex
Jones Nicholson Pty Ltd

Reserve Panel Contractors

Meinhardt Australia Pty Ltd

Sam Al Maraee trading as AZ Engineering Consultancy Pty Ltd
ArconaTech Pty Ltd

Peter Mascioli trading as Lightpoint Consulting Services
ACOR Consultants Pty Ltd

Arrow Consulting Engineers Pty Ltd

Northrop Consulting Engineers Pty Ltd

TABLE | - SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT - Coastal Engineering

Panel Contractors

Cardno (NSW/ACT) Pty Ltd

Haskoning Australia Pty Ltd

Advisian Pty Ltd

Baird Australia Pty Ltd ATF Baird Australia Unit Trust
BMT Eastern Australia Pty Ltd trading as BMT

GHD Pty Ltd

Reserve Panel Contractors

Manly Hydraulics Laboratory

Horton Coastal Engineering Pty Ltd

SMEC Australia Pty Ltd

Molino Stewart Pty Ltd as trustee for Molino Stewart Unit Trust
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TABLE J — SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT - Landscape Architecture

Panel contractors

Corkery Consulting Pty Ltd

Clouston Associates Australia Pty Ltd

Taylor Brammer Landscape Architects Pty Ltd
LSA Design Pty Ltd

Flame Tree Landscape Design

Gallagher Studio Pty Ltd

James Mather Delaney Design Pty Ltd
Cardno (NSW/ACT) Pty Ltd

Black Beetle Pty Ltd

Reserve panel contractors

Indesco South Coast Pty Ltd trading as Indesco Pty Ltd

Distinctive Gardens and Interiors Pty Ltd trading as Distinctive Living Design
Tilment Pty Ltd trading as Edmiston Jones

Tract Consultants Pty Ltd as Trustee for the Tract Consultant Unit Trust
HASSELL Ltd trading as HASSELL

DSB Landscape Architects Pty Ltd

NBRS and Partners Pty Ltd

Spackman Mossop Michaels Pty Ltd

TABLE K — SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT — Stormwater Design

Panel contractors

J. Wyndham Prince Pty Ltd

Advisian Pty Ltd

Cardno (NSW/ACT) Pty Ltd

Rhelm Pty Ltd

Engeny Management Pty Ltd ATF Engeny M Trust trading as Engeny Water Management
Footprint (NSW) Pty Ltd

Bradley Ashe trading as Ashe Civil Engineering and Design
GHD Pty Ltd

Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty Ltd

Manly Hydraulics Laboratory

LandTeam Australia Pty Ltd

WMAwater Pty Ltd

Reserve panel contractors

Molino Stewart Pty Ltd as trustee for Molino Stewart Unit Trust

SMEC Australia Pty Ltd

Murphy Udayan Group Pty Ltd trading as MU Group Consulting Pty Ltd
KF Williams and Associates Pty Ltd

BG&E Pty Ltd

Haskoning Australia Pty Ltd

Taylor Thomson Whitting (NSW) Pty Ltd as Trustee for the Taylor Thomson Whitting NSW Trust
Tonkin Consulting Pty Ltd

Calibre Professional Services Pty Ltd

AT&L Associates Pty Ltd

BMT Eastern Australia Pty Ltd trading as BMT
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TABLE L - SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT - Drafting Services

Panel contractors

Gary Melleuish trading as Gary Melleuish — Drafting Services

Z and M Popovic Architects and Heritage Consultants trading as ZMP Architects and Heritage Consultants
Peter Lukin trading as Lukin Design

Bradley Ashe trading as Ashe Civil Engineering and Design

Troutman Asset Integrity Pty Limited as Trustee for TAI Discretionary trust.
SMEC Australia Pty Ltd

Footprint (NSW) Pty Ltd

Jones Nicholson Pty Ltd

Allen Price & Scarratts Pty Ltd

Bonacci Group (NSW) Pty Ltd

Marko Matkovic trading as MIMA Group

Borst and Co Architecture Pty Ltd

Reserve panel contractors

BG&E Pty Ltd

Shire Civil Design

Triaxial Consulting Pty Ltd

Cardno (NSW/ACT) Pty Ltd

Rapley Consulting Engineers Pty Ltd

Indesco South Coast Pty Ltd trading as Indesco Pty Ltd

TABLE M - SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT - Geotechnical Services

Panel contractors

SMEC Australia Pty Ltd

GHD Pty Ltd

Douglas Partners Pty Ltd

Cardno (NSW/ACT) Pty Ltd

Terrainsight Pty Ltd

Jeffery and Katauskas Pty Ltd trading as JK Geotechnics

Reserve panel contractors

SLR Consulting Australia Pty Ltd trading as SLR Consulting
Advisian Pty Ltd

Asset Geotechnical Engineering Pty Ltd

Golder Associates Pty Ltd

ACT Geotechnical Engineers
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TABLE N — SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT - Environmental Science/Engineering

Panel contractors

Sur Mer Pty Ltd as Trustee for Sound Wood Trust trading as Moore Trees
Eco Logical Australia Pty Ltd

SMEC Australia Pty Ltd

Clearsafe Environmental Solutions Pty Ltd

Brett Enman Trading as Earthwise Environmental Consultants
Ecoplanning Pty Ltd

Biosis Pty Ltd

Advisian Pty Ltd

Zoic Environmental Pty Ltd

Niche Environment and Heritage Pty Ltd

Wilkinson Murray Pty Ltd

Talis Consultants Pty Ltd

Molino Stewart Pty Ltd as Trustee for Molino Stewart Unit Trust
GHD Pty Ltd

Mara Consulting Pty Ltd

Reserve panel contractors

Engeny Management Pty Ltd as Trustee for Engeny M Trust, trading as Engeny Water Management
BMT Eastern Australia Pty Ltd trading as BMT

Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty Ltd

SLR Consulting Australia Pty Ltd trading as SLR Consulting

Rhelm Pty Ltd

Haskoning Australia Pty Ltd

Cardno (NSW/ACT) Pty Lid

TABLE O — SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT — Survey/Spatial Services

Panel contractors

JRK Surveys Pty Ltd

Masters Surveying

SMEC Australia Pty Ltd

LandTeam Australia Pty Ltd

KF Williams and associates Pty Ltd

S and L Keatley Pty Ltd trading as Keatley Surveyors
Cardno (NSW/ACT) Pty Ltd

Reserve panel contractors

AAM Pty Ltd

NSW Government Public Works Advisory
Allen Price & Scarratts Pty Ltd

Group Development Services Pty Ltd
ADW Johnson Pty Ltd

Craig & Rhodes Pty Ltd
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TABLE P — SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT - Quantity Surveyor Services

Panel contractors

Mitbrand NSW ACT Pty Ltd trading as Mitchell Brandtman
MBMpl Pty Ltd

Altus Group Cost Management Pty Ltd

Leckring Pty Ltd trading as MIEngineers

Muller Pty Ltd ATF Muller Unit Trust trading as Muller Partnership
Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty Ltd

Reserve panel contractors
Xmirus Pty Ltd
Construction and Remediation Advisory Services Pty Ltd trading as CARAS

Civcon Solutions
Beca Pty Ltd

TABLE Q - SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT - Land Contamination Services

Panel contractors

Clear Safe Environmental Solutions

SMEC Australia Pty Ltd

Brett Enman trading as Earthwise Environmental Consultants
Cardno (NSW/ACT) Pty Ltd

Zoic Environmental Pty Ltd

Douglas Partners Pty Ltd

Reserve panel contractors
GHD Pty Ltd

Arcadis Australia Pacific Pty Ltd
Golder Associates Pty Ltd

TABLE R — SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT - Location of Underground Utility Services

Panel contractors

Laneyrie Electrical Pty Ltd

VAC Group Operations Pty Ltd trading as VAC Group/Earth Radar Utilities
Durkin Construction Pty Ltd

V-Mark Survey Pty Ltd trading as Australian Locating Services

Cardno (NSW/ACT) Pty Ltd previously SureSearch

Reserve panel contractors

N/A
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TABLE S — SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT - Materials Assessment, Testing & Remediation

Panel contractors

GHD Pty Ltd
SMEC Australia Pty Ltd

Building and Construction Research and Consulting Pty Ltd trading as BCRC

Corrosion Control Engineering Pty Ltd
Remedial Technology Pty Ltd

Reserve panel contractors

ACOR Consultants Pty Ltd

BG&E Pty Ltd

ICD Asia Pacific Pty Ltd

Aegis Value Engineering Pty Ltd trading as Aegis

TABLE T — SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT - Building Compliance Advice

Panel contractors

Daniel David Bedwell trading as Obvius Access Consultants
BCA Logic Pty Ltd

Northwest Professional Services Pty Ltd

Aegis Value Engineering Pty Ltd trading as Aegis

ACOR Consultants Pty Ltd

Reserve panel contractors

N/A
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File: FI-230.01.541 Doc: 1C19/503

M= TENDER T19/26 RIBBONWOOD KURRAJONG KITCHEN REFURBISHMENT

This report recommends acceptance of a tender for the Kurrajong Hall Kitchen Refurbishment works at
the Ribbonwood Community Centre, Princes Highway, Dapto in accordance with the requirements of the
Local Government Act 1993 and the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005.

The proposed works to Kurrajong Hall Kitchen requires the demolition and removal of existing kitchen
equipment and furnishings, and the supply, installation and fit out of a new stainless-steel food
preparation and kitchen components. Completed works include demolition, disposal, installation of new
flooring and tiles, benches, sinks, appliances, repainting walls and service connections. The kitchen will
be fully compliant with all relevant food safety legislation and guidelines, and the Disability Discrimination
Act (DDA) compliant access.

RECOMMENDATION

1 In accordance with clause 178(1)(a) of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005, Council
accept the tender of Sullivans Constructions for Ribbonwood Kurrajong Hall 1 kitchen refurbishment,
in the sum of $139,716, excluding GST.

2 Council delegate to the General Manager the authority to finalise and execute the contract and any
other documentation required to give effect to this resolution.

3  Council grant authority for the use of the Common Seal of Council on the contract and any other
documentation, should it be required, to give effect to this resolution.

REPORT AUTHORISATIONS

Report of: Mark Roebuck, Manager City Works

Authorised by:  Andrew Carfield, Director Infrastructure + Works
ATTACHMENTS

1 Location Plans

BACKGROUND

The Kurrajong Hall Kitchen is located in the Ribbonwood Centre, Dapto. The proposed refurbishment
works will modernise the kitchen using the existing layout and will include new floor coverings, stainless
steel bench tops, sinks and appliances.

The proposed works ensure that Council facilities are compliant with legislative requirements and that
they offer community spaces with a high level of amenity, quality and compliance.

The tender specifications outlined the requirements for the works to be undertaken between January and
February 2020. The purpose of this construction period is to minimise the impacts on the licensee and
hirers.

Tenders were invited for this project by the open tender method with a close of tenders of 10.00am on
20 August 2019.

Six (6) tenders were received by the close of tender and all tenders have been scrutinised and assessed
by a Tender Assessment Panel constituted in accordance with Council’s Procurement Policies and
Procedures and comprising representatives of Governance + Customer Service, Library + Community
Services, Infrastructure Strategy + Planning, and City Works Divisions.

The Tender Assessment Panel assessed all tenders in accordance with the following assessment
criteria and weightings as set out in the formal tender documents:
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Mandatory Criteria
1  Satisfactory references from referees for previous projects of similar size and scope;

2  Financial assessment acceptable to Council which demonstrates the tenderer’s financial capacity to
undertake the works.

Assessable Criteria
1 Cost to Council — 40%
2 Appreciation of scope of work, construction methodology and demonstrable environmental policies

and procedures — 10%
3 Demonstrated experience and satisfactory performance — 5%
4  Staff qualifications and experience — 10%
5 Proposed subcontractors — 5%
6 Proposed schedule — 20%
7 Demonstrated WHS management system — 5%
8 Demonstrated strengthening of Local Economic Capacity — 5%.

The mandatory assessment criteria have been met by the recommended tenderer.

The Tender Assessment Panel utilised a weighted scoring method for the assessment of tenders which
allocates a numerical score out of 5 in relation to the level of compliance offered by the tenders to each
of the assessment criteria as specified in the tender documentation. The method then takes into account
pre-determined weightings for each of the assessment criteria which provides for a total score out of 5 to
be calculated for each tender. The tender with the highest total score is considered to be the tender that
best meets the requirements of the tender documentation in providing best value to Council.

Table 1 below summarises the results of the tender assessment and the ranking of tenders.

TABLE 1 - SUMMARY OF TENDER ASSESSMENT

Name of Tenderer Ranking
Sullivans Constructions 1
Batmac Constructions Pty Ltd
Joss Facility Management
Elite Commercial Solutions Pty Ltd
Adaptive Interiors
AJ Grant Group

o OB~ WN
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PROPOSAL

Council should authorise the engagement of Sullivans Constructions to carry out the Ribbonwood
Kurrajong Hall kitchen refurbishment in accordance with the scope of works and technical specifications
developed for the project.

The recommended tenderer has satisfied the Tender Assessment Panel that it is capable of undertaking
the works to Council’s standards and in accordance with the technical specification.

Referees nominated by the recommended tenderer have been contacted by the Tender Assessment
Panel and expressed satisfaction with the standard of work and methods of operation undertaken on
their behalf.

CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION

1 Members of the Tender Assessment Panel;

2 Nominated Referees.
PLANNING AND POLICY IMPACT

This report contributes to the delivery of Our Wollongong 2028 “We have a healthy community in a
liveable city.” It specifically delivers on the following:

Community Strategic Plan Delivery Program 2018-2021 Operational Plan 2019-20
Strategy 3 Year Action Operational Plan Actions

5.5.1 Public facilities in key locations and  5.5.1.3 Coordinator an access Establish a program to ensure
transport routes are maintained and improvement program Disability Discrimination Act
clean, accessible and inviting to our through pre-planning and compliance is integrated with Council
community and visitors. renewal activities. asset management plans.
RISK ASSESSMENT

The risk in accepting the recommendation of this report is considered low on the basis that the tender
process has fully complied with Council’s Procurement Policies and Procedures and the Local
Government Act 1993.

The risk of the project works or services is considered low based upon Council’s risk assessment matrix
and appropriate risk management strategies will be implemented.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

It is proposed that the total project be funded from the following source/s as identified in the
Annual Plan —

Operational Plan 2019-2020

CONCLUSION

The recommended tenderer Sullivans Constructions has submitted an acceptable tender for this project
and Council should endorse the recommendations of this report.



V‘/ Ordinary Meeting of Council
wollongong Item 14 - Attachment 1 - Location Plans

city of innovation

23 September 2019 319

@ T19/26 - Ribbonwood Kitchen Refurbishment A

N
1193701 mad

e e 1 b b D - A0 A habon e
AT g 3 L] Sa P S S S AR £ 4 PR e v s ¢ g ) P 8



V’/ Ordinary Meeting of Council
wollongong Item 14 - Attachment 1 - Location Plans

ity of in

23 September 2019 320

Dapto
Malt

_-—P-'-'_

-/

—
Pharn Sueet o
‘-—\—l—-_—-

Dapto
Showground

Fuwlcrs Rnat‘

———

2D 13:25 - Rivbonwand Kitchen Refurbishment _,\

N

Pt i) FXLN

e




N 321

wollongong
ity of innovation

File: FI-914.05.001 Doc: 1C19/588

RIS A ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

PRESENTER: Audit Office of NSW — Financial Statements

Council officers have prepared the draft 2018-2019 Annual Financial Statements in accordance with the
Local Government Act 1993 (as amended) and the Regulations, the Australian Accounting Standards
and the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

The draft Financial Statements were presented to the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee on
17 September 2019. At that meeting, the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee resolved that the
General Purpose Financial Statements and the Special Purpose Financial Statements be recommended
to Council for endorsement and the signing of the Statements by the Lord Mayor, Deputy Lord Mayor
and Management.

The Statements have been reviewed by Council’s Auditors, Audit Office of NSW, and are presented to
Council for an opinion to be formed in the prescribed format (as attached). The Audit Office of NSW will
address the meeting to provide an overview of their Audit Report for the year ended 30 June 2019.

RECOMMENDATION

1 The Annual Financial Statements be endorsed and an opinion be formed in the prescribed format
(as per Attachments 2 and 3) on the General Purpose Financial Statement and the Special
Purpose Financial Statement.

2 The audited Financial Statements, together with the Auditor's report, Executive Summary
(Attachment 4) and Financial Commentary (Attachment 5) be presented to the public at the next
Council meeting.

REPORT AUTHORISATIONS

Report of: Brian Jenkins, Chief Financial Officer
Authorised by:  Renee Campbell, Director Corporate Services - Connected + Engaged City

ATTACHMENTS

1 Annual Financial Statements 2018-2019

2 Statement by the Lord Mayor, Deputy Lord Mayor and Management on the General Purpose
Financial Statements

3  Statement by the Lord Mayor, Deputy Lord Mayor and Management on the Special Purpose
Financial Statements

4 Executive Summary

5 Financial Commentary 2018-2019

6 Flowchart of the Annual Financial Statement Approval and Audit Process

BACKGROUND

The Local Government Act 1993 (as amended) requires Council to prepare financial statements for each
year and refer them for audit as soon as practicable after the end of that year.

A council’s financial statements must include:
1 A General Purpose Financial Statement;
2  Any other matter prescribed by the regulations, and

3 A statement in the approved form by the Council as to its opinion on the General Purpose Financial
Statement.
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The Annual Financial Statement Approval and Audit Process is outlined in Attachment 6 of this report.
This process is largely governed by the requirements of the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended)
having regard to the timing of Council meetings. In accordance with this process, the Audit, Risk and
Improvement Committee recommends to the Council whether the Financial Statements should be signed
based on the Committee’s assessment of them.

An Executive Summary (Attachment 4) and Financial Commentary (Attachment 5) to the Statements are
also prepared to provide an overview of the Financial Statements. The Executive Summary and
Financial Commentary are not audited.

PROPOSAL

Section 413 of the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended) requires the Council to form an opinion as
to whether Council’s Annual Financial Statements have been drawn up in accordance with the Local
Government Act and associated Codes and Australian Accounting Standards as prescribed by the
Regulations. The Statements have been reviewed by Council’s Auditors, Audit Office of NSW, and are
presented to Council for an opinion to be formed in the prescribed format (see Attachments 2 and 3).
Subsequent to these Statements being signed, Council’s Auditor will present its Audit Report to Council.

Following the signing of the opinions and receiving the Auditor’'s Report, a copy of the Audited Financial
Statements will be submitted to the Office of Local Government in accordance with Section 417(5) of the
Local Government Act 1993 (as amended).

Section 418 of the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended) requires that Council, as soon as practical
after receiving a copy of the Auditor’s Reports, fix a date for a meeting at which it proposes to present its
Audited Financial Statements, together with the Auditor’s Reports, to the public. The Council must give
public notice of the date of the meeting. Consequently, an advertisement is scheduled to appear in The
Advertiser on Wednesday, 9 October 2019.

Section 420 of the Local Government Act 1993 provides that any person may make submissions to the
Council with respect to the Financial Statements and/or the Auditor's Reports and those submissions
must be made in writing and lodged with the Council within seven days of the public meeting. The date
of the Council meeting (public meeting) is the next Council meeting as resolved by Council.

CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION

The Audit Office of NSW have been consulted throughout the preparation of the Annual Financial
Statements. The audit staff have been helpful in ensuring compliance with all accounting requirements.

A set of draft Financial Statements were presented to the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee on 17
September 2019. At the meeting, the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee resolved:

1  The draft Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019 were noted and accepted.

2 The General Purpose Financial Reports be recommended to Council for endorsement and the
signing of the Statement by the Lord Mayor, Deputy Lord Mayor and Management, made pursuant
to Section 413[2][c] of the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended).

3 The Special Purpose Financial Reports be recommended to Council for endorsement and the
signing of the Statement by the Lord Mayor, Deputy Lord Mayor and Management, made pursuant
to the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

Through their review of the draft Financial Statements the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee
made the following recommendations:

e Minor updates to formatting and grammar in the Executive Summary and Financial Commentary
(page 9).
e Additional detail in the financial overview within the Financial Commentary to explain the results

and the nature of the one-off transactions causing the deficit in the Net Operating Result Before
Capital Grants and Contributions (page 1).
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e Disclosures to explain the larger variances in the Notes to the Financial Statements (Note 3b,
Note 4a & Note 5).

Executive, senior managers and significant senior officers were requested to ensure that all relevant
information with regards to the 2018-2019 transactions relating to their area/s of responsibility had either
been entered into the financial records or disclosed to the Chief Financial Officer.

PLANNING AND POLICY IMPACT

This report contributes to the delivery of Our Wollongong 2022 goal ‘We are a connected and engaged
community’. It specifically delivers on the following:

Community Strategic Plan Delivery Program 2018-2021 Operational Plan 2019-20

Strategy 3 Year Action Operational Plan Actions

4.3.2 Resources (finance, 4.3.2.1 Effective and transparent Monitor and review achievement of Financial
technology, assets and financial management Strategy
people) are effectively systems are in place

Continuous budget management is in place,

managed to ensure long term
9 9 controlled and reported

financial sustainability

Provide accurate and timely financial reports
monthly, quarterly and via the annual
statement

Manage and further develop a compliance
program to promote awareness and
compliance with Council’s procurement
policies and procedures and other related
policies

RISK ASSESSMENT

The Annual Financial Statements are required to be prepared in accordance with the Local Government
Act 1993 (as amended), the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting
and the Australian Accounting Standards. Council has professionally qualified staff to ensure compliance
with the reporting requirements.

Council staff have also undertaken additional training in specialised areas. A higher level of assurance is
attained from the Audit Office of NSW review.

Further to this, Council’'s Executive, senior management and relevant senior officers each signed a
document giving the necessary assurances that:

1 No matters or occurrences have come to their attention in respect to their areas of responsibility that
would materially affect the Financial Statements or disclosures therein, or which are likely to
materially affect the future results or operations of the Council; and

2 Should any such matters or occurrences come to their attention after the date of signing the
document, the Chief Financial Officer be immediately advised.

Consequently, there is considered to be a low risk of any material errors or omissions in reporting.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Council is now presented with a set of draft Financial Statements that have been prepared in accordance
with the Australian Accounting Standards and other professional pronouncements and the Local
Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.
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A preliminary pre-audit result was presented to Council on 2 September 2019 as part of the Draft
Quarterly Review Statement June 2019. The Annual Financial Statements 2018/19 reflect the following
variances to the preliminary pre-audit result:

e A late adjustment of $10 thousand increasing expenses from continuing operations.

e Rates and annual charges income includes the pensioner subsidies received within the Financial
Statements which were reported under Grants & Contributions in the Quarterly Review
Statement. This is the result of a change in reporting requirements for the Financial Statements.

The Financial Statements for 30 June 2019 shows a positive operating result when compared to original
budget however changes to the budget during the year resulted in an unfavourable operating result
compared to the current budget as reported through the Draft Quarterly Review Statement. The
Operating Result [pre capital] has been impacted by a number of large abnormal transactions primarily
related to accounting treatment and valuation of employee liabilities. Large variations in this result are
associated with the application of revised discount factors reflecting current interest expectations that
have contributed to an increase in valuation of employee leave liabilities ($5.2M), the reassessment of
prior year workers’ compensation claims to reflect broader community valuation trends ($2.0M), the
reclassification of capital expenditure as operational ($1.7M) and asset disposal costs relating to the
replacement of infrastructure assets ($6.8M).

CONCLUSION

The Financial Statements will be presented to the public at the next Council meeting pending Council
forming an opinion that they have been drawn up in accordance with the Local Government Act and
associated Codes and Australian Accounting Standards as prescribed by the Regulations.
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Overview
Wollongong City Council is constituted under the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and has its principal place of business at:

41 Burelli Street
Wollongong NSW 2500

Council's guiding principles are detailed in Chapter 3 of the LGA and includes:

« principles applying to the exergise of functions generally by council,

principles to be applied when making decisions,

principles of community participation,

principles of sound financial management, and

principles for strategic planning relating to the development of an integrated planning and reporting framework.

A description of the nature of Council's operations and its principal activities are provided in Note 2(b).

Through the use of the internet, we have ensured that our reporting is timely, complete and available at minimum cost. All
press releases, financial statements and other information are publicly available on our website: www.wollongong.nsw.gov.au.

Page 2
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Wollongong City Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Statement by Councillors and Management
made pursuant to Section 413(2)(c) of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended)
The attached General Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:
» the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended) and the regulations made thereunder,
+ the Australian Accounting Standards and other pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board,

+ the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these statements:
« present fairly the Council’s operating result and financial position for the year,
« accord with Council's accounting and other records.
We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 23 September 2019.

Gordon Bradbery David Brown

Lord Mayor Deputy Lord Mayor

23 September 2019 23 September 2019

Greg Doyle Brian Jenkins

General Manager Responsible Accounting Officer
23 September 2019 23 September 2019
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Financial Statements 2019

Original
unaudited
budget Actual Actual
2019 $'000 Notes 2019 2018 °
Income from continuing operations
Revenue:
197,686 Rates and annual charges 3a 199,524 193,429
34,967 User charges and fees 3b 32,793 34,805
4,672 Interest and investment revenue e 5,069 5,162
10,062  Other revenues 3d 12,125 10,551
19,837  Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes 3e, 3f 28,856 29,364
53,752  Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 3e, 3f 59,656 40,637
Other income:
—  Fair value increment on investment properties 1 220 5
_Netshare of interests in joint ventures and associates using 17 291 803
the equity method
320,876 Total income from continuing operations 338,534 314,776
Expenses from continuing operations
112,838 Employee benefits and on-costs da 122,445 107,843
3,310 Borrowing costs 4b 3,337 3,819
55,983 Materials and contracts dc 57,432 53,709
64,508 Depreciation and amortisation 4d 61,781 60,067
37,360 Other expenses de 34,571 40,211
—  Net losses from the disposal of assets 5 6,856 361
273,999 Total expenses from continuing operations 286,422 266,010
46,877 Operating result from continuing operations 52,112 48,766
46,877 Net operating result for the year 52,112 48,766
46,877  Net operating result attributable to council 52,112 48,766
(6.875) Net operating result for the year before grants and contributions (7,544) 8,129

provided for capital purposes

(1) The Council has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 9. The comparative information has been prepared under

AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

The above Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Page 4
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Wollongong City Council

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2019

$°000 Notes 2019 2018 °

Net operating result for the year (as per Income Statement) 52,112 48,766

Other comprehensive income:
Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating result

Gain (loss) on revaluation of IPP&E 10 196,818 5,692
Total items which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating
result 196,818 5,692

Amounts which will be reclassified subsequently to the operating result when specific

conditions are met

Gain(/loss) on revaluation of equity instruments at fair value through other (32) -
comprehensive income

Total items which will be reclassified subsequently to the operating

result when specific conditions are met (32) —
Total other comprehensive income for the year 196,786 5,692
Total comprehensive income for the year 248,898 54,458
Total comprehensive income attributable to Council 248,898 54,458

(1) The Council has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 9. The comparalive information has been prepared under
AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income ‘'should be read in conjunection with the accompanying notes.

Page 5
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Wollongong City Council

Statement of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2019

$°'000 Notes 2019 2018 °
ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalent assets 6(a) 25,187 26,491
Investments 6(b) 114,579 109,162
Receivables 7 36,620 27,036
Inventories 8a 337 306
Other 80 11,879 10,666
Total current assets 188,602 173,661
Non-current assets

Investments 8(b) 15,056 22,115
Inventories 8a 5,948 5,835
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 10 2,565,095 2,317,081
Investment property 1a 5,000 4,780
Intangible assets 12 440 388
Investments accounted for using the equity method 17 2,929 2,638
Total non-current assets 2,594 468 2,352,837
TOTAL ASSETS 2,783,070 2,526,498
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Payables 13 30,006 26,754
Income received in advance 13 5,014 3,256
Borrowings 13 7,934 7,716
Provisions 14 58,214 50,377
Total current liabilities 101,168 88,103
Non-current liabilities

Payables 13 385 700
Borrowings 13 17,497 25,039
Provisions 14 47,054 44,566
Total non-current liabilities 64,936 70,305
TOTAL LIABILITIES 166,104 158,408
Net assets 2,616,966 2,368,090
EQUITY

Accumulated surplus 15a 1,463,845 1,411,338
Revaluation reserves 15a 1,153,065 956,752
Other reserves 15a 56 —
Council equity interest 2,616,966 2,368,090
Total equity 2,616,966 2,368,090

(1) The Council has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 9. The comparative information has been prepared under
AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Page 6
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2019

$°000

Opening balance

Correction of prior period errors

Adoption of new accounling standards — not retrospective
Restated opening balance

Net operating result for the year
Restated net operating result for the period

Other comprehensive income
— Gain (loss) on revaluation of IPP&E

- Gain(/loss) on revaluation of equity instruments at fair value through

other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Transfers between equity items
Equity — balance at end of the reporting period

Notes

2019

23 September 2019

Financial Statements 2019

2018 '

IPP&E

Investment

IPP&E Investment

Accumulated revaluation Revaluation Total Accumulated revaluation Revaluation Total
surplus reserve Reserve equity surplus reserve Reserve equity
1,411,338 956,752 - 2,368,090 1,389,905 962,952 - 2,352,857
- - - - (30,652) (8,573) - (39,225)

(110) = 88 (22) - - - -
1,411,228 956,752 88 2,368,068 1,359,253 954,379 - 2,313,632
52,112 - - 52,112 48,766 - - 48,766
52,112 - - 52,112 48,766 - - 48,766

- 196,818 - 196,818 - 5,692 - 5,692

- - (32) (32) - - - -

— . 196318 @32) 196,786 - 5,692 - 5,692

52,112 196,818 (32) 248,898 48,766 5,692 - 54,458
505 (505) - - 3,319 (3,319) - -
1,463,845 1,153,065 56 2,616,966 1,411,338 956,752 - 2,368,090

(1) The Council has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 9: The comparative information has been prepared under AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Financial Statements 2019

Wollongong City Council

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Original
unaudited
budget Actual Actual
2019 $°'000 Notes 2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
197,421 Rates and annual charges 198,536 193,451
34,967 User charges and fees 35,009 35,362
4,572  Investment and interest revenue received 4,859 5,426
63,420 Grants and contributions 74,808 50,700
9,598 Bonds, deposits and retention amounts received 3,060 591
- Other 25,603 23,198
Payments
(110,458) Employee benefits and on-costs (116,018) (107,925)
(92,522) Materials and contracts (76,382) (65,774)
(1,089 Borrowing costs (1,096) (1,263)
—  Bonds, deposits and retention amounts refunded (907) (1,543)
—  Other (33,844) (52,022)
105,909 Net cash provided (or used in) operating activities Tob 113,628 80,201
Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts
(205) Sale of investment securities 61,106 67,557
1,795  Sale of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 1,920 10,923
Payments
—  Purchase of investment securities (69,267) (54,661)
(97,962) Purchase of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (110,578) (93,506)
—  Purchase of real estate assets (113) (44)
—  Purchase of intangible assets (285) -
(96,372) Net cash provided (or used in) investing activities (107,217) (69,731)
Cash flows from financing activities
Payments
(7,692) Repayment of borrowings and advances (7,715) (7,513)
(7,692) Net cash flow provided (used in) financing activities (7,715) (7,513)
1,845 Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,304) 2,957
131,797  Plus: cash and cash equivalents — beginning of year 16a 26,491 23,534
133,642 Cash and cash equivalents — end of the year 16 25,187 26,491
Additional Information:
—  plus: Investments on hand — end of year 6(b) 129,635 131,277
133,642 Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 154,822 157,768

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Financial Statements 2019

Wollongong City Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Contents of the Notes accompanying the Financial Statements

Note Details Page
1 Basis of preparation 10
2(a) Council functions/activities — financial information 14
2(b) Council functions/activities — component descriptions 15
3 Income from continuing operations 16
4 Expenses from continuing operations 23
5 Gains or losses from the disposal, replacement and de-recognition of assets 27
6(a) Cash and cash equivalent assets 28
6(b) Investments 28
6(c) Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments — details Ky
7 Receivables 33
8 Inventories and other assets 35
9 Non-current assets classified as held for sale 36
10 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 37
11 Investment property 39
12 Intangible assets 41
13 Payables and borrowings 42
14 Provisions 44
15 Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies, changes in 48
accounting estimates and errors
16 Statement of cash flows — additional information 51
17 Interests in other entities 52
18 Commitments 55
19 Contingencies and other assets/liabilities not recognised 56
20 Financial risk management 58
21 Material budget variations 61
22 Fair Value Measurement 63
23 Related Party Transactions 72
24 Events occurring after the reporting date 74
25 Statement of developer contributions 74
26 Financial result and financial position by fund 77
27(a) Statement of performance measures — consolidated results 77

Additional Council Disclosures (unaudited)

27(b) Statement of performance measures — consolidated results (graphs) 78
28 Council information and contact details 80
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Financial Statements 2019

Wollongong City Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 1. Basis of preparation

These financial statements were authorised for issue by Council on 23 September 2019. Council has the power to amend
and reissue these financial statements.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
Australian Accounting Interpretations, the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and Regulations, and the Local Government
Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting. Council is a not for-profit entity for the purposse of preparing these
financial statements. The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and are rounded to the nearest thousand
dollars.

Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts disclosed in the financial statements are actual amounts.
Specific budgetary amounts have been included for comparative analysis (to actuals) in the following reports and notes:

* Income statement
« Statement of cash flows
» Note 21 — Material budget variations

and are clearly marked.

(a) New and amended standards adopted by Council

During the year, Council adopted all standards which were mandatorily effective for the first time at 30 June 2019. Those newly
adopted standards which had an impact on reported position, performance and/or disclosures have been discussed in Note 15.

(b) Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain
financial assets and liabilities and certain classes of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment and investment property.

(c) Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Council's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Council and that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Council makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year include:

i) estimated fair values of investment properties — refer Note 11

ii) estimated fair values of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment — refer Note 10
iii) estimated tip remediation provisions — refer Note 14

iv) employee benefit provisions — refer Note 14.

e

Significant judgements in applying the council's accounting policies
(i) Impairment of receivables

Council has made a significant judgement about the impairment of a number of its receivables — refer Note 7.

continued on next page ... Page 10
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Wollongong City Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 1. Basis of preparation (continued)

Monies and other assets received by Council
(a) The Consolidated Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 409(1) of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW), all money and property received
by Council is held in the Council’s Consolidated Fund unless it is required to be held in the Council's Trust Fund.

(b) The Trust Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended), a separate and
distinct Trust Fund is maintained to account for all money and property received by the council in trust which must be applied
only for the purposes of, or in accordance with, the trusts relating to those monies.

Trust monies and property subject to Council's control have been included in these reports.

The following Trust monies and properties are held by Council but not considered to_be under the control of Council and
therefore are excluded from these financial statements:

»  WCC Trust Account (deposits from sale of land/properties due to unpaid rates)
+ Lord Mayor's Relief Fund

« Art Gallery (bequeaths/donations)

« Environment Foundation Gift Trust

A separate statement of monies held in the Trust Fund is available for inspection at the council office by any person free of
charge.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not

recoverable from the taxation.authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part
of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The netamount of GST recoverable
from, or payable to the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities
that are recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority are presented as operating cash flows.

New accounting standards and interpretations issued not yet effective
New accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2019 reporting
periods (and which have not been early adopted by Council).

Council's assessment of these new standards and interpretations (where they have been deemed as having a material impact
on Council's future financial performance, financial positon and cash flows) are set out below:

AASB 16 Leases

AASB 16 will result (for the year ending 30 June 2020 and beyond) in all operating leases being recognised on the balance
sheet by Council with the distinction between operating and finance leases removed.

Under the new standard, a financial liability (ie. a lease liability) and an asset (ie. a right to use the leased item) will be
recognised for nearly all arrangements where Council commits itself to paying a rental fee for the use of a specific asset.

The only exceptions are short-term and low-value leases which are exempt from the accounting (but not disclosure)
requirements of AASB 16 - Leases.

Council staff have reviewed all of Council’s leasing arrangements over the last 12 months taking into consideration the new

lease accounting rules in AASB 16 (applicable from 1 July 2019). Further investigation of the waste services contracts in
consultation with suppliers is required to determine potential inclusion.

continued on next page ... Page 11
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Financial Statements 2019

Wollongong City Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 1. Basis of preparation (continued)

AASB 16 will (on the whole) affect Council's accounting for existing operating lease agreements that are in place as at 30
June 2019.

At the end of this reporting period, Council has non-cancellable operating lease commitments of $1,273,319 - refer Note 18,
No portion of these commitments relate to short-term leases or low value leases.

Council anticipates it will recognise lease liabilities (on its balance sheet) of $1,148,929 (after adjustments for prepayments
and accrued lease payments recognised as at 30 June 2019) and also recognise complimentary right-of-use assets (on its
balance sheet) totalling $1,148,929 on 1 July 2019.

From a financial position standpoint, as a result of recognising the above lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, Council's net
assets (as at 1 July 2019) will remain unchanged, while net current assets will be $335,056 lower due to the presentation of
a portion of the lease liability as a current liability.

From a financial performance standpoint, Council expects that net operating result will be unchanged for the year ending 30
June 2020 as a result of adopting the standard.

Operating cash flows will increase and financing cash flows decrease by approximately $1,148,929 as repayment of the
principal portion of the lease liabilities will be classified as cash flows from financing activities.

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and associated amending standards.

AASB15 introduces a five-step process for revenue recognition, with the core principle of the new standard being for entities
to recognise revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services 1o customers in amounts that reflect the consideration (that
is, payment) to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Accounting policy changes will arise in the timing of revenue recagnition, treatment of contracts costs and contracts which
contain a financing element.

Councils should assess each revenue stream but particular impact is expected for grant income and rates which are paid
before the commencement of the rating period,

The changes in revenue recognition requirements in AASB15 may cause changes to the timing of revenue recorded in the
financial statements as well as additional disclosures. The new standard requires that revenue received under a contract
with sufficiently specific performance obligations be recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer. Where revenue is not connected to a contract with sufficiently specific performance obligations, it will generally be
recognised upon receipt. Currently revenue is recognised when it is received, and where income is received in arrears an
accrual is made by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction.

AASB 1058 Income of NFP Entities
AASB 1058 supersedes all the income recognition requirements relating to councils, previously in AASB 1004 Contributions.

Under AASB 1058, the future timing of income recognition will depend on whether the fransaction gives rise to a liability or
other performance obligation (a promise to transfer a good or service) related to an asset (such as cash or another asset)
received by an entity.

AASB 1058 also applies when a council receives volunteer services or enters into other transactions in which the consideration
to acquire an asset is significantly less than the fair value of the asset, and where the council’s objective is principally to enable
the asset to further the council's objectives.

Upon initial recognition of the asset, this standard requires council to consider whether any other financial statement elements
(called ‘related amounts’) should be recognised in accordance with the applicable accounting standard, such as:

a) contributions by owners

b) revenue, or a contract liability arising from a contract with a customer
c) a lease liability

d) a financial instrument, or

e) a provision.

(
(
(
(
(

continued on next page ... Page 12
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 1. Basis of preparation (continued)

If the transaction is a transfer of a financial asset to enable council to acquire or construct a recognisable non-financial asset
to be controlled by council (i.e. an in-substance acquisition of a non-financial asset), the council recognises a liability for the
excess of the fair value of the transfer over any related amounts recognised. Council will then recognise income as it satisfies
its obligations under the transfer similarly to income recognition in relation to performance obligations under AASB 15.

If the transaction does not enable council to acquire or construct a recognisable non-financial asset to be controlled by council,
then any excess of the initial carrying amount of the recognised asset over the related amounts is recognised as income.

It is anticipated that the adoption of AASB 1058 may impact the timing of income recognition relating to some capital grants.
Council will also be required to recognise income for volunteer services received if the fair value of those services can be
measured reliably and the services would have been purchased if they had not been donated. Currently volunteer services
are nat recognised.

AASB 2018-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Right-of-Use Assets of Not-for-Profit Entities

This Standard provides a temporary option for not-for-profit entities to not apply the fair value initial measurement requirements
for right-of-use assets arising under leases with significantly below market terms and conditions, principally to enable the entity
to further its objectives (for example, concessionary or peppercorn leases).

The Standard requires an entity that elects to apply the option (i.e. measures a class orclasses of such right-of-use assets at
cost rather than fair value) to include additional disclosures in the financial statements to ensure users understand the effects
on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the entity arising from these leases

As per a NSW Office of Local Government recommendation, Council has elected to measure right-of-use assets (under a
concessionary or peppercorn lease) at cost. The standard requires additional disclosures be provided in relation to below
market-value leases measured at cost.

Council has not applied any pronouncements before its operative date in the annual reporting period beginning 1 July 2018.
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for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 2(a). Council functions/activities — financial information

Income, expenses and assets have been directly attributed to the following functions or activities,

Details of those functions or activities are provided in Note 2(b).

Grants included
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Total assets held

Income from Expenses from Operating result from in income from (current and
continuing operations continuing operations continuing operations continuing operations non-current)
$'000 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Functions or activities
Planning and engagement 27,520 13,355 28,058 26,099 (538) (12,744) 273 1,369 258,471 269,637
Environment 49,350 48,375 61,691 62,198 (12,341) (13,823) 2,941 1,470 470,695 354,251
Transport services/infrastructure 29,491 17,113 50,189 48,466 (20,698) (31,353) 26,623 14,130 476,782 430,258
Community services/facilities 8,155 9,033 33,661 32,730 (25,506) (23,697) 4,732 4,758 37,374 31,089
Recreation and open space 13,954 12,274 47,796 45,762 (33,842) (33,488) 367 209 79,719 93,723
Regulatory services and safety 8,241 8,417 19,284 18,574 (11,043) (10,157) 476 521 1,527 1,641
Governance and internal services 194,427 188,042 45,743 32,181 148,684 155,861 16,983 17,281 1,458,502 1,345,899
Contributed Assets 7,396 18,167 = - 7,396 18,167 - - - -
Total functions and activities 338,534 314,776 286,422 266,010 52,112 48,766 52,395 39,738 2,783,070 2,526,498
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Wollongong City Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 2(b). Council functions/activities - component descriptions

Details relatin